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PROXY STATEMENT FOR THE SPECIAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
OF ROMAN DBDR TECH ACQUISITION CORP.

Proxy Statement dated November 30, 2021
and first mailed to stockholders on or about November 30, 2021
Dear Stockholders:

You are cordially invited to attend the Special Meeting of the stockholders of Roman DBDR Tech
Acquisition Corp. (“Roman DBDR”), which will be held virtually at
https://www.cstproxy.com/romandbdr/sm2021, at 10:00 a.m. Eastern Time on December 23, 2021. Roman
DBDR is a Delaware corporation incorporated as a blank check company for the purpose of entering into a
merger, share exchange, asset acquisition, share purchase, recapitalization, reorganization or similar
business combination with one or more businesses or entities, which we refer to as a “target business.”

Holders of the common stock of Roman DBDR will be asked to approve the Agreement and Plan of
Merger, dated as of April 19, 2021, and amended as of May 25, 2021, (the “Merger Agreement”), by and
among Roman DBDR, CompoSecure Holdings, L.L.C., a Delaware limited liability company
(“CompoSecure”), Roman Parent Merger Sub, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and wholly-
owned subsidiary of Roman DBDR (the “Merger Sub”) and LLR Equity Partners IV, L.P., a Delaware
limited partnership (“Member Representative”), and the other related proposals.

The issuance of shares of Roman DBDR to the equityholders of CompoSecure is being consummated
on a private placement basis, pursuant to Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. The
aggregate value of the consideration to be paid by Roman DBDR in the business combination is
approximately $852,991,200, which consists of (i) an amount of cash equal to (A) the amount of cash in
Roman DBDR’s trust account established for the purpose of holding the net proceeds from its initial public
offering and concurrent private placement of warrants ($236.2 million as of April 19, 2021), net of any
amounts paid to Roman DBDR’s shareholders that exercise their redemption rights in connection with the
Business Combination, plus (B) the proceeds of the sale of $130 million of CompoSecure’s Exchangeable
Notes and the sale of $45 million of Roman DBDR’s Class A Common Stock, each in private placements to
be consummated at the Closing of the Business Combination, minus (C) certain transaction expenses;

(ii) equity consideration valued at $10.00 per share in respect of the remaining portion of CompoSecure’s
enterprise value after deducting the cash consideration in clause (i), and payable in the form of newly-issued
Class B Common Units of CompoSecure (and a corresponding number of shares of newly-issued Roman
DBDR’s Class B Common Stock); and (iii) CompoSecure’s equity holders’ right to receive an aggregate of
up to 7,500,000 additional (i) newly issued shares of Roman DBDR’s Class A Common Stock or (ii) newly-
issued Class B Common Units of CompoSecure (and a corresponding number of shares of newly-issued
Roman DBDR'’s Class B Common Stock), as applicable, in earn-out consideration based on the achievement
of certain stock price thresholds, if payable. The transactions contemplated under the Merger Agreement
relating to the business combination are referred to collectively in this proxy statement as the “Business
Combination.”

On November 1, 2021, the record date for the Special Meeting of stockholders, the last sale price of
Roman DBDR’s Class A Common Stock was $10.21.

Each stockholder’s vote is very important. Whether or not you plan to attend the Special Meeting
virtually, please submit your proxy card without delay. Stockholders may revoke proxies at any time before
they are voted at the meeting. Voting by proxy will not prevent a stockholder from voting at the Special
Meeting if such stockholder subsequently chooses to attend the Special Meeting virtually.

We encourage you to read this proxy statement carefully. In particular, you should review the matters
discussed under the caption “Risk Factors” beginning on page 15.

The Roman DBDR Board unanimously recommends that Roman DBDR stockholders vote “FOR”
approval of each of the Proposals.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or
disapproved of the securities to be issued in the Business Combination or otherwise, or passed upon the
adequacy or accuracy of this proxy statement. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

D A

Dr. Donald G. Basile
Co-Chief Executive Officer
Roman DBDR Tech Acquisition Corp.

November 30, 2021
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HOW TO OBTAIN ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

This proxy statement incorporates important business and financial information about Roman DBDR
that is not included or delivered herewith. If you would like to receive additional information or if you want
additional copies of this document, agreements contained in the appendices or any other documents filed by
Roman DBDR with the Securities and Exchange Commission, such information is available without charge
upon written or oral request. Please contact the following:

Roman DBDR Tech Acquisition Corp.
2877 Paradise Rd. #702
Las Vegas, NV 89109
Attn: John Small
Telephone: (650) 618-2524

If you would like to request documents, please do so no later than December 17, 2021 to receive them
before the Special Meeting. Please be sure to include your complete name and address in your request.
Please see “Where You Can Find Additional Information” to find out where you can find more information
about Roman DBDR and CompoSecure. You should rely only on the information contained in this proxy
statement in deciding how to vote on the Business Combination. Neither Roman DBDR, CompoSecure nor
Merger Sub has authorized anyone to give any information or to make any representations other than those
contained in this proxy statement. Do not rely upon any information or representations made outside of this
proxy statement. The information contained in this proxy statement may change after the date of this proxy
statement. Do not assume after the date of this proxy statement that the information contained in this proxy
statement is still correct.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

ROMAN DBDR TECH ACQUISITION CORP.

2877 Paradise Road. #702
Las Vegas, NV 89109
Telephone: (650) 618-2524

NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING OF
ROMAN DBDR TECH ACQUISITION CORP. STOCKHOLDERS
To Be Held on December 23, 2021

To Roman DBDR Tech Acquisition Corp. (“Roman DBDR”) Stockholders:

A special meeting of stockholders of Roman DBDR will be held at
https://www.cstproxy.com/romandbdr/sm2021, on December 23, 2021, at 10:00 a.m., for the following
purposes:

» To approve the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of April 19, 2021 and amended as of
May 25, 2021, (the “Merger Agreement”), by and among Roman DBDR, CompoSecure Holdings,
L.L.C., (“CompoSecure”), Roman Parent Merger Sub, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
and wholly-owned subsidiary of Roman DBDR (the “Merger Sub”) and LLR Equity Partners IV,
L.P., a Delaware limited partnership (“Member Representative”), and the transactions contemplated
thereby, (collectively referred to as the “Business Combination”). This proposal is referred to as the
“Business Combination Proposal” or “Proposal No. 1.”

» To approve, assuming the Business Combination Proposal is approved and adopted, for purposes of
complying with the applicable provisions of Nasdaq Stock Exchange Listing Rule 5635 (each, a
“Nasdaq Listing Rule”), (a) the issuance of up to 49,195,000 (assuming no redemption) or 63,919,627
(assuming maximum redemption) of newly issued shares of Roman DBDR Class B Common Stock,
par value $0.0001 per share (the “Roman DBDR Class B Common Stock”) in the Business
Combination, (b) the issuance and sale of 4,500,000 newly issued shares of Roman DBDR Class A
Common Stock, par value $0.0001 per share (the “Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock”) in a
private placement concurrent with the Business Combination (the “Common PIPE Investment”),

(c) shares of Class A Common Stock at a conversion price of $11.50 per share upon conversion of
the Exchangeable Notes pursuant to the Note Subscription Agreements, (d) up to 7.5 million newly
issued shares of Common Stock as Earnout Consideration to the CompoSecure equityholders, if
earned, and (e) the reservation of up to 9,182,223 shares of Class A Common Stock to be authorized
for issuance under the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan (as described in more detail in “Proposal No. 6:
The Equity Incentive Plan Proposal”). This proposal is referred to as the “Nasdaq Stock Issuance
Proposal” or “Proposal No. 2.”

» To approve, assuming the Business Combination Proposal is approved and adopted, a proposed
second amended and restated certificate of incorporation (the “Proposed Charter”), which will amend
and restate the current Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporate of Roman DBDR, dated
November 5, 2020 (the “Current Charter”) and a proposed second amended and restated bylaws (the
“Proposed Bylaws” and together with the Proposed Charter, the “Proposed Governing Documents™),
which will amend and restated the current bylaws (the “Current Bylaws”), which Proposed Charter
and Proposed Bylaws will be in effect upon the closing of the Business Combination (the “Closing”).
This proposal is referred to as the “Governing Documents Proposal” or “Proposal No. 3.”

» To approve, on a non-binding advisory basis, the following material differences between the
Proposed Charter and the Current Charter, which are being presented in accordance with the
requirements of the SEC as seven separate sub-proposals. This proposal is referred to as the
“Advisory Charter Proposals” or “Proposal No. 4”:

a. Adyvisory Charter Proposal A — to increase the authorized shares of Class A Common Stock to
250,000,000 shares;

b. Advisory Charter Proposal B— to increase the authorized shares of “blank check” preferred
stock that the Combined Entity’s board of directors could issue to raise capital and/or to discourage a
takeover attempt to 10,000,000 shares;
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c. Advisory Charter Proposal C — to provide that amendments to provisions of the Proposed
Charter will require the approval of at least a majority of the Combined Entity’s then-outstanding
shares of capital stock entitled to vote on such amendment;

d. Advisory Charter Proposal D — to provide holders of any then outstanding Preferred Stock the
right, voting separately by class or series, to elect one or more directors;

e. Advisory Charter Proposal E — to limit action required or permitted to be taken by the
stockholders of the Combined Entity only to annual meetings or special meetings by eliminating the
right for actions to be taken by written consent;

f. Advisory Charter Proposal F — (i) to change the corporate name from “Roman DBDR Tech
Acquisition Corp.” to “CompoSecure, Inc.”, (ii) to make the Combined Entity’s corporate existence
perpetual as opposed to Roman DBDR’s corporate existence, which is presently required to be
dissolved and liquidated 18 months following the closing of its initial public offering and to remove
from the Proposed Charter the various provisions applicable only to specified purpose acquisition
corporations contained in the Current Charter, (iii) to remove Delaware as the exclusive forum for
certain stockholder litigation and the United States Federal District Courts as the exclusive forum for
litigation arising out of the Securities Act, (iv) to opt-out of certain provisions of Section 203 of the
DGCL, and (v) to eliminate certain provisions specific to Roman DBDR’s status as a blank check
company that will no longer be applicable upon consummation of the Business Combination; and

g. Advisory Charter Proposal G — to provide that any amendment by stockholders to the Proposed
By-laws will require the approval of at least a majority of the Combined Entity’s then-outstanding
shares of capital stock entitled to vote such amendment.

» To elect, assuming the Business Combination Proposal is approved and adopted, seven directors to
serve staggered terms on the Combined Entity’s board of directors until the 2022, 2023 and 2024
annual meeting of stockholders, respectively, and until their respective successors are duly elected
and qualified. This proposal is referred to as the “Director Election Proposal” or “Proposal No. 5.”

» To approve, assuming the Business Combination Proposal is approved and adopted, the 2021 Equity
Incentive Plan (the “Equity Incentive Plan”), which will become effective the day prior to the
Closing. This proposal is referred to as the “Equity Incentive Plan Proposal” or “Proposal No. 6.”

» To approve, assuming the Business Combination Proposal is approved and adopted, the 2021
Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “ESPP”), which will become effective the day prior to the
Closing. This proposal is referred to as the “Equity Stock Purchase Plan Proposal,” “ESPP Proposal”
or “Proposal No. 7.”

» To approve a proposal to adjourn or postpone the Special Meeting to a later date or dates, if
necessary, to permit further solicitation and vote of proxies if, based upon the tabulated vote at the
time of the Special Meeting, there are not sufficient votes to approve the Business Combination
Proposal, the Nasdaq Stock Issuance Proposal, the Governing Documents Proposal, the Advisory
Charter Proposals, the Director Election Proposal, the Incentive Plan Proposal or the ESPP Proposal,
or we determine that one or more of the closing conditions under the Business Combination is not
satisfied or waived. This proposal is referred to as the “Adjournment Proposal” or “Proposal No. 8.”

Proposals 1 through 8 are sometimes collectively referred to herein as the “Proposals.”

As of November 1, 2021, there were 28,945,000 shares of common stock of Roman DBDR issued and

outstanding and entitled to vote. Only Roman DBDR stockholders who hold common stock of record as of
the close of business on November 1, 2021 are entitled to vote at the Special Meeting or any adjournment or
postponement of the Special Meeting. This proxy statement is first being mailed to stockholders on or about
November 30, 2021. The approval of the Governing Documents Proposal requires the affirmative vote of

(i) a majority of the issued and outstanding shares of Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock voting together
as a single class as of the Record Date and (ii) a majority of the issued and outstanding shares of Roman
DBDR Class B Common Stock voting together as a single class as of the Record Date. Accordingly, a
Roman DBDR stockholder’s failure to vote by proxy or to vote online at the Special Meeting or an
abstention will have the same effect as a vote “AGAINST” the Governing Documents Proposal. The
approval
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of the Business Combination Proposal, the Nasdaq Stock Issuance Proposal, the Advisory Charter
Proposals, the Incentive Plan Proposal, the ESPP Proposal and the Adjournment Proposal each require the
affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the shares of Roman DBDR Common Stock cast by the
stockholders represented virtually or by proxy and entitled to vote thereon at the Special Meeting, voting
together as a single class. A Roman DBDR stockholder’s failure to vote by proxy or to vote online at the
Special Meeting will not be counted towards the number of shares of Roman DBDR Common Stock
required to validly establish a quorum, and if a valid quorum is otherwise established, it will have no effect
on the outcome of the vote on the Business Combination Proposal, the Nasdaq Stock Issuance Proposal, the
Advisory Charter Proposals, the Incentive Plan Proposal, the ESPP Proposal or the Adjournment Proposal.
The approval of the Director Election Proposal requires the affirmative vote of the holders of a plurality of
the shares of Roman DBDR Common Stock cast by the stockholders represented virtually or by proxy and
entitled to vote thereon at the Special Meeting, voting together as a single class. A Roman DBDR
stockholder’s failure to vote by proxy or to vote online at the Special Meeting will not be counted towards
the number of shares of Roman DBDR Common Stock required to validly establish a quorum, and if a valid
quorum is otherwise established, it will have no effect on the outcome of the vote on the Director Election
Proposal.

Attending the Special Meeting either virtually or by proxy and abstaining from voting will have the
same effect as voting against all the proposals and, assuming a quorum is present, broker non-votes will
have no effect on any of the Proposals, except that a broker non-vote will have the same effect as voting
against the Advisory Charter Proposals.

Roman DBDR currently has authorized share capital of 221,000,000 shares consisting of 200,000,000
shares of Class A Common Stock with a par value of $0.0001 per share (“Class A Common Stock™),
20,000,000 shares of Class B Common Stock par value $0.0001 per share (“Class B Common Stock”) and
1,000,000 shares of preferred stock with a par value of $0.0001 per share (“Preferred Stock”).

Holders of Roman DBDR’s Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock will not be entitled to
appraisal rights under Delaware law in connection with the Business Combination.

Whether or not you plan to attend the Special Meeting virtually, please submit your proxy card without
delay. Voting by proxy will not prevent you from voting your shares online if you subsequently choose to
attend the Special Meeting. If you fail to return your proxy card and do not attend the meeting, the effect
will be that your shares will not be counted for purposes of determining whether a quorum is present at the
Special Meeting. You may revoke a proxy at any time before it is voted at the Special Meeting by executing
and returning a proxy card dated later than the previous one, by attending the Special Meeting and casting
your vote by ballot online or by submitting a written revocation that is received by us before we take the
vote at the Special Meeting to Roman DBDR Tech Acquisition Corp., 2877 Paradise Road. #702, Las Vegas,
NV 89109; telephone: (650) 618-2524. If you hold your shares through a bank, broker or other nominee,
you should follow the instructions of your bank, broker or other nominee regarding revocation of proxies.

The Roman DBDR Board unanimously recommends that Roman DBDR stockholders vote “FOR”
approval of each of the Proposals.

By order of the Roman DBDR Board of Directors,

Tl A

Dr. Donald G. Basile
Co-Chief Executive Officer
Roman DBDR Tech Acquisition Corp.

November 30, 2021
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FREQUENTLY USED TERMS

» «

Unless otherwise stated or unless the context otherwise requires, the terms “we,” “us,” “our,” the

“Company” and “Roman DBDR?” refer to Roman DBDR Tech Acquisition Corp.
In this document:

“Ancillary Agreements” means the Registration Rights Agreement, the Tax Receivable Agreement, the
Stockholders Agreement, the Voting Agreement, the Exchange Agreement, the Expense Cap and Waiver
Agreement, the Subscription Agreements, and all other agreements, certificates and instruments executed
and delivered by the Company, Merger Sub, CompoSecure or Member Representative in connection with
the consummation of the Merger and related transactions, and specifically contemplated by the Merger
Agreement.

“ASP” means average selling price, which is determined by dividing net revenues by total unit volume
over a specific period of time.

“Arculus Cold Storage Wallet” refers to the Arculus Key™ card Cold Storage hardware device and
companion Arculus Wallet™ software application.

“Arculus Ecosystem” refers hardware, software, payments, and services for Digital Assets having a
foundation in the secure Arculus Platform technology for providing secure storage of Digital Assets.

“Arculus Key™ card” refers to CompoSecure’s initial Cold Storage hardware device configured to
interface with CompoSecure’s initial Arculus Wallet™ App.

“Arculus Platform” refers to a CompoSecure’s three-factor authentication security platform with broad
industry applicability for use in the Digital Asset marketplace, including the initial Arculus Cold Storage
Wallet products.

“Arculus Wallet™” refers to CompoSecure’s initial Wallet App configured to interface with the Arculus
Key card Cold Storage.

“App” refers to a software application available on a mobile or cellular telephone.

“ATMs” are automated teller machines maintained by banks and third party financial institutions which
enable cardholders to access cash in convenient locations and at hours during which their bank branches
may not be open for business.

“Blockchain” refers generally to databases that maintain information across a network of computers in a
decentralized or distributed manner, which networks often use cryptographic protocols to ensure data
integrity. Blockchains often are used to issue and transfer ownership of Digital Assets.

“Business Combination” means the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement.

“Cashout Options” means those CompoSecure Options outstanding immediately prior to the Merger
Effective Time that are, as of the Merger Effective Time, to be cancelled pursuant to the Merger Agreement
and entitle the holders thereof to receive the cash consideration pursuant to the Merger Agreement.

“Class A Common Stock” means the Class A common stock, par value $0.0001 per share, of Roman
DBDR.

“Class B Common Stock” means the Class B common stock, par value $0.0001 per share, of Roman
DBDR.

“Class B Common Unit Merger Consideration” means a number of Class B Common Units of the
Company equal to (A) (i) the Equity Value minus (ii) the Cash Merger Consideration divided by (B) $10.00.
For the avoidance of doubt, the aggregate number of Roman Class B Common Stock issued as Class B
Common Stock Merger Consideration shall equal the aggregate number of Class B Common Units issued as
Class B Common Unit Merger Consideration.

“Closing” means the closing of the Business Combination.

iii
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“Closing Date” means the date of the Closing.
“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

“Cold Storage” is a method of holding Cryptocurrency assets in an environment that is not connected to
the Internet.

“Combined Entity” means Roman DBDR after the event in which CompoSecure becomes a subsidiary
of Roman DBDR.

“Common PIPE Investment” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the definition of Pipe
Investment below.

“Common Stock” means the Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock.

“Common Subscription Agreements” means the subscription agreements, dated April 19, 2021, between
Roman DBDR and certain investors, pursuant to which such investors have agreed to purchase on the
Closing Date an aggregate amount of 4,500,000 shares of Class A Common Stock at a price per share equal
to $10.00.

“Company Debt Financing” means the debt financing provided for pursuant to that certain Second
Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of November 3, 2020, by and among CompoSecure,
CompoSecure, L.L.C., the lenders party thereto, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent,
or one or a series of debt financings which may serve to replace such arrangement after the entry into the
Merger Agreement and on or prior to the Merger Effective Time.

“CompoSecure” means CompoSecure Holdings, L.L.C., a Delaware limited liability company.

“CompoSecure Second Amended and Restated LL.C Agreement” means the CompoSecure Second
Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement to be entered into by CompoSecure, Roman
DBDR and the other members named therein on the Closing Date.

“CompoSecure Board” means the board of directors of CompoSecure.

“CompoSecure, Inc. Board” means the board of directors of CompoSecure, Inc. (the Combined Entity
f.k.a. Roman DBDR Tech Acquisition Corp.), upon and after the Closing.

“CompoSecure Holders” refers to the holders of CompoSecure Units in CompoSecure as of the time
immediately before the Business Combination.

“CompoSecure, Inc.” means CompoSecure, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the Combined Entity f.k.a.
Roman DBDR Tech Acquisition Corp.), upon and after the Closing.

“CompoSecure Option” means each option to purchase CompoSecure Units that is outstanding under
CompoSecure’s Amended and Restated Equity Compensation Plan.

“CompoSecure Rollover Credit Agreement” means the Second Amended and Restated Credit
Agreement, dated as of November 5, 2020, by and among CompoSecure, CompoSecure, L.L.C., the lenders
party thereto, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent, or one or a series of debt financings
which may serve to replace such agreement after the date hereof and on or prior to the Closing.

“CompoSecure Unit” means each unit of limited liability company membership interests in
CompoSecure as defined in CompoSecure’s Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement,
dated as of June 11, 2020, as amended.

“Cryptocurrency” means any Digital Asset that uses cryptographic technologies to maintain its
operation as a currency or decentralized application, such as Bitcoin, Bitcoin Cash and Ethereum, that is
secured using Blockchain encryption technologies, and includes stablecoins and tokens.

“Current Charter” means Roman DBDR’s current amended and restated certificate of incorporation as
filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware on August 21, 2020.

iv
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“Current CompoSecure LLC Agreement” means CompoSecure’s Amended and Restated Limited
Liability Company Agreement, dated as of June 11, 2020.

“Digital Asset” means an asset that is issued and/or transferred using distributed ledger or Blockchain
technology, including, but not limited to, Cryptocurrencies, and also may be referred to as “virtual
currencies,” “coins” and “tokens.”

“Dual-Interface” (also known as “tap-to-pay”) refers to Payment Cards which contain an embedded
chip that allows for both contact and contactless transaction functionality.

“Earnout Recipients” means all Persons entitled to receive Earnout Consideration, as set forth on the
Merger Consideration Table.

“EMV” (an acronym derived from the names Europay, Mastercard and Visa) is a high-security payment
protocol for Payment Cards which utilizes an embedded microprocessor that, when paired with an EMV®
enabled payment terminal, authenticates cardholder transactions. EMV® cards are often called “chip cards”.

“Exchange Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

“Exchangeable Notes” means the senior notes issued by CompoSecure and guaranteed by
CompoSecure, L.L.C. in an aggregate principal amount of up to $130,000,000 that are exchangeable into
shares of Class A Common Stock at a conversion price of $11.50 per share pursuant to the Note
Subscription Agreements.

“Fiat Currency” refers to currency issued by a nation-state that is not backed by a physical commodity,
but rather by the government that issues it.

“FinTech” is a word formed from the combination of “financial” and “technology” and is used to
describe new technologies to deliver financial services to help businesses and consumers manage their
financial activities.

“Fraud” means a claim for Delaware common law fraud with a specific intent to deceive brought
against a party to the Merger Agreement based on a representation of such party contained in the Merger
Agreement. For the avoidance of doubt, “Fraud” does not include any claim for equitable fraud, promissory
fraud, unfair dealings fraud, or any torts based on negligence or recklessness.

“Hot Storage” is a method of holding Cryptocurrency assets in an environment this is connected to the
Internet.

“ID Security” is an intrusion detection system included in a device or software application.

“Indebtedness” means, without duplication and with respect to CompoSecure and CompoSecure,
L.L.C,, the outstanding principal amount of, accrued and unpaid interest on, fees and expenses arising under
or in respect of (a) indebtedness for borrowed money; (b) obligations for the deferred purchase price of
property or services; (c) long or short-term obligations evidenced by notes, bonds, debentures, other debt
securities, or other similar instruments; (d) obligations under any derivative, interest rate, currency swap,
foreign exchange or other hedging agreement or arrangement; (e) capital lease obligations in accordance
with GAAP; (f) reimbursement and other obligations under any letter of credit, bank guarantees, banker’s
acceptance or similar credit transactions (in each case to the extent drawn); (g) guarantees made by any of
CompoSecure and CompoSecure, L.L.C. on behalf of any third party in respect of obligations of the kind
referred to in the foregoing clauses (a) through (f); and (h) any unpaid interest, prepayment penalties,
premiums, costs and fees that would arise or become due as a result of the prepayment of any of the
obligations referred to in the foregoing clauses (a) through (g); provided, that Indebtedness shall not include
accounts payable to trade creditors or any amounts with respect to the items constituting reimbursable
transaction expenses in accordance with the Merger Agreement.

“Member Representative” means LLR Equity Partners IV, L.P.

“Member Representative Holdback Amount” means the amount of $150,000 to be paid to Member
Representative at Closing for expenses incurred in connection with its performance as Member
Representative.
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“Merger Agreement” means the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of April 19, 2021 and as
amended as of May 25, 2021, by and among Roman DBDR, Merger Sub, CompoSecure and LLR Equity
Partners IV, L.P.

“Merger Consideration Schedule” means a statement to be prepared and delivered to Roman DBDR in
final form setting forth CompoSecure’s calculation of various components of the merger consideration,
together with appropriate supporting calculations and schedules, and other documentation reasonably
requested by Roman DBDR.

“Merger Effective Time” means the time at which the Business Combination becomes effective pursuant
to the terms of the Merger Agreement.

“Merger Sub” means Roman Parent Merger Sub, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and
wholly-owned subsidiary of Roman DBDR.

“Metal Form Factor” is the industry term used to describe Payment Cards made from or including
metal in their construction.

“Minimum Cash” means, as of Closing, (i) all cash in the Trust Account (net of redemptions), plus
(ii) $130.0 million of Note PIPE Investment proceeds, plus (iii) $45.0 million of Common PIPE Investment
proceeds, minus (iv) an aggregate amount of $50,000,000 in certain transaction expenses of both the
Company and CompoSecure.

“Morrow Sodali” means Morrow Sodali LLC, the proxy solicitation firm we have engaged to assist in
the solicitation of proxies for the Special Meeting.

“NFC” refers to the near-field communications protocol which enables RFID communications between
Payment Cards and payment terminals.

“Note PIPE Investment” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the definition of Pipe
Investment below.

“Note Subscription Agreements” means the subscription agreements, dated April 19, 2021, between
Roman DBDR. CompoSecure and certain investors, pursuant to which such investors have agreed to
purchase on the Closing Date senior notes issued by CompoSecure in an aggregate principal amount of
$130,000,000 that are exchangeable into shares of Class A Common Stock at a conversion price of $11.50
per share.

“Payment Cards” are credit and debit cards issued on the network of one of the Payment Networks.

“Payments Industry” refers to the overall market for payments processing, including banks and other
credit and transaction card issuers, card associations, payment processors, and other providers of services
and products to facilitate currency transactions, including Cryptocurrency transactions.

“Payment Networks” refers to the primary credit and debit card payment networks, including the
networks operated by Visa, MasterCard, American Express, Discover, and China Union Pay.

“PCI” refers to the Payment Card Industry.

“PCI Security Standards” refer to the Payment Card Industry Physical Security Requirements and the
Payment Card Industry Logical Security Requirements, established by the PCI Security Standards Council,
which governs the secure handling of Payment Cards during manufacture, storage and shipping.

“Person” means an individual, partnership, corporation, limited liability company, joint stock company,
unincorporated organization or association, trust, joint venture, association or other organization, whether or
not a legal entity, or a governmental authority.

“Personalization” is the process of encoding, programming and embossing or laser engraving a
Financial Card with the cardholder’s name, account number and other information.

“PIPE Investment” means, collectively, the issuance of an aggregate of 4,500,000 shares of Roman
DBDR Class A Common Stock pursuant to the Subscription Agreements with the PIPE Investors
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immediately before the Closing, at a purchase price of $10.00 per share (the “Common Pipe Investment”)
and the issuance by CompoSecure of senior notes in an aggregate principal amount of $130,000,000 that are
exchangeable into shares of Class A Common Stock at a conversion price of $11.50 per share (the “Note
Pipe Investment”).

“PIPE Investors” means the certain investors that have committed to making the PIPE Investment.

“Prelams” refers to pre-laminated, sub-assemblies consisting of a composite of material layers which
are partially laminated to be used as a component in the multiple layers of a final Payment Card or other
card construction.

“Private Keys” refers to codes needed for a user to access their Cryptocurrencies or other Digital
Assets.

“Private Placement Warrants” means the 10,837,400 private placement warrants outstanding as of the
date of this proxy statement that were purchased by our Sponsor in a private placement, 10,375,000 of
which were sold to the Sponsor simultaneously with the closing of the Roman DBDR IPO on November 10,
2020 and 462,400 of which were sold to the Sponsor in connection with the underwriters’ partial exercise of
their over-allotment option on November 17, 2020, at a price of $1.00 per warrant (for an aggregate
purchase price of $10,837,400), which are substantially identical to the Public Warrants sold in the Roman
DBDR IPO, subject to certain limited exceptions.

“Proposals” means the Business Combination Proposal, the Nasdaq Stock Issuance Proposal, the
Governing Documents Proposal, the Advisory Charter Proposals, the Director Election Proposal, the Equity
Incentive Plan Proposal, the ESPP Proposal and the Adjournment Proposal.

“Proposed Charter” means the Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the
Combined Entity, a form of which is attached hereto as Annex B.

“Public Shares” means the shares of Class A Common Stock sold in the Roman DBDR IPO.

“Public Warrants” means the currently outstanding 11,578,000 redeemable warrants to purchase shares
of Class A Common Stock of Roman DBDR that were issued by Roman DBDR in the Roman DBDR IPO.

“Redemption” means the right of the holders of Common Stock to have their shares redeemed in
accordance with the procedures set forth in this proxy statement.

“RFID” refers to radio-frequency identification which uses electronic tags placed on objects to relay
identifying information to an electronic reader through radio waves.

“Roman DBDR” means Roman DBDR Tech Acquisition Corp.
“Roman DBDR Board” means the board of directors of Roman DBDR.

“Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock” means the shares of Class A Common Stock, par value $0.0001
per share, of Roman DBDR.

“Roman DBDR Class B Common Stock” means the shares of Class B Common Stock, par value $0.0001
per share, of Roman DBDR.

“Roman DBDR Common Stock” means, collectively, the Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock and
Roman DBDR Class B Common Stock.

“Roman DBDR IPO” means Roman DBDR’s initial public offering.
“SEC” means the U.S. Securities Exchange Commission or any successor organization.
“Securities Act” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

“Special Meeting” means the virtual special meeting of the stockholders of Roman DBDR, to be held on
December 23, 2021, at 10:00 a.m., Eastern time, via live webcast at the following address
https://www.cstproxy.com/romandbdr/sm2021.
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“Sponsor” means Roman DBDR Tech Sponsor LLC, a Delaware limited liability company.
“Sponsor Shares” means the shares of Class B Common Stock held by Sponsor.

“Stockholders” means the holders of Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock and Class B Common
Stock.

“Stockholders Agreement” means the Stockholders Agreement to be entered into at the Closing of the
Business Combination by CompoSecure, Inc. (f/k/a Roman DBDR), Sponsor and certain CompoSecure
Holders.

“Subscription Agreements” means, collectively, the Common Subscription Agreements and the Note
Subscription Agreements.

“Surviving Entity” means CompoSecure following the merger of Merger Sub with and into
CompoSecure in the Business Combination.

“Tax Receivable Amount” means the aggregate amount of all payments to be made to the holders of
CompoSecure Units prior to the Merger Effective Time pursuant to the Tax Receivables Agreement.

“Trust Account” means the Trust Account of Roman DBDR, which holds the net proceeds of the
Roman DBDR IPO, together with interest earned thereon, less amounts released to pay franchise and
income tax obligations.

“Units” means the units of Roman DBDR, each unit representing one share of Class A Common Stock
and one-half of one Warrant to acquire one share of Class A Common Stock, that were issued and sold by
Roman DBDR in the Roman DBDR IPO and in its concurrent private placement.

“Voting Agreement” means the Voting Agreement entered into by Sponsor and certain CompoSecure
Holders with Roman DBDR and CompoSecure concurrently with the execution of the Merger Agreement,
on April 19, 2021 and included herewith as Annex H.

“Voting Agreement Voting Parties” means Sponsor and certain CompoSecure Holders parties to the
Voting Agreement and the Stockholders Agreement.

“Wallet” means a device or service which enables storage of, and access to, Digital Assets, such as
Cryptocurrency.

“Warrants” means the Public Warrants and the Private Placement Warrants.
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SUMMARY OF THE PROXY STATEMENT

This summary, together with the section titled, “Questions and Answers About the Business
Combination and the Special Meeting” summarizes certain information contained in this proxy statement
and may not contain all of the information that is important to you. To better understand the Business
Combination and the Proposals to be considered at the Special Meeting, you should read this entire proxy
statement carefully, including the annexes. See also the section titled “Where You Can Find More
Information.”

Unless otherwise indicated or the context otherwise requires, references in this Summary of the Proxy
Statement to the “Combined Entity” refer to Roman DBDR and its consolidated subsidiaries after giving
effect to the Business Combination. References to the “Company” or “Roman DBDR” refer to Roman
DBDR Tech Acquisition Corp. prior to the completion of the Business Combination. References to
CompoSecure refer to CompoSecure Holdings, L.L.C. and its consolidated subsidiaries prior to the
completion of the Business Combination.

Unless otherwise specified, all share calculations assume no exercise of redemption rights by the
Company’s public stockholders.

Parties to the Business Combination

Roman DBDR Tech Acquisition Corp.

Roman DBDR is a Delaware corporation formed on August 21, 2020 for the purpose of effecting a
merger, capital stock exchange, asset acquisition, stock purchase, reorganization or similar business
combination involving Roman DBDR and one or more businesses. Upon the Closing, we intend to change
our name from “Roman DBDR Tech Acquisition Corp.” to “CompoSecure, Inc.”

The mailing address of our principal executive office is 2877 Paradise Rd. #702, Las Vegas, NV 89109.

Merger Sub

Roman Parent Merger Sub, LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Roman DBDR, was formed on
March 8, 2021 to consummate the Business Combination. Following the Business Combination,
CompoSecure will merge with Merger Sub, with CompoSecure surviving the merger. As a result,
CompoSecure will become a subsidiary of the Combined Entity.

CompoSecure Holdings, L.L.C.

CompoSecure was formed on May 13, 2020 as a Delaware limited liability company, for the purpose of
implementing a holding company reorganization in June 2020 pursuant to which CompoSecure became the
new parent company of CompoSecure, L.L.C. which otherwise maintained all of the operations that it had
otherwise conducted prior to the reorganization. Following the Business Combination, CompoSecure will
merge with Merger Sub with CompoSecure surviving the merger, As a result, CompoSecure will become a
subsidiary of the Combined Entity.

For additional information about CompoSecure, see the section titled “Summary About CompoSecure’s
Business.”

The Business Combination Proposal

Roman DBDR and CompoSecure have agreed to a Business Combination under the terms of the
Merger Agreement. Pursuant to the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Merger Agreement, at
the closing of the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement, Merger Sub will merge with and into
CompoSecure, with CompoSecure continuing as the surviving entity and becoming a subsidiary of Roman
DBDR. Roman DBDR is asking its stockholders to approve the Merger Agreement, a copy of which is
attached as Annex A (along with Amendment No. 1 thereto, which is attached as Annex G). See the section
titled “Proposal No. 1 — The Business Combination Proposal.”
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The Merger Agreement

On April 19, 2021, Roman DBDR entered into the Agreement and Plan of Merger by and among
Roman DBDR, Merger Sub, CompoSecure and the Member Representative, which was amended on
May 25, 2021 (the “Merger Agreement”). The Merger Agreement provides, among other things, that on the
terms and subject to the conditions set forth therein, Merger Sub will merge with and into CompoSecure,
with CompoSecure surviving as a subsidiary of Roman DBDR (the “Business Combination”). Pursuant to
the Merger Agreement, upon the Closing, Roman DBDR will change its name to “CompoSecure, Inc.”

Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, Roman DBDR has agreed to acquire all of the outstanding equity
interests of CompoSecure in exchange for (i) an amount of cash equal to (A) the amount of cash in Roman
DBDR’s trust account established for the purpose of holding the net proceeds from its initial public offering
and concurrent private placement of warrants ($236.2 million as of April 19, 2021), net of any amounts paid
to Roman DBDR’s shareholders that exercise their redemption rights in connection with the Business
Combination (the “Remaining Trust Cash”), plus (B) the proceeds of the sale of $130 million of
CompoSecure’s Exchangeable Notes and the sale of $45 million of Roman DBDR’s Class A Common
Stock, each in private placements consummated at the Closing of the Business Combination, minus
(C) certain transaction expenses; (ii) equity consideration valued at $10.00 per share in respect of the
remaining portion of CompoSecure’s enterprise value after deducting the cash consideration in clause (i),
and payable in the form of newly-issued Class B Common Units of CompoSecure (and a corresponding
number of shares of newly-issued Roman DBDR’s Class B Common Stock); and (iii) CompoSecure’s equity
holders’ right to receive an aggregate of up to 7,500,000 additional (i) newly issued shares of Roman
DBDR’s Class A Common Stock or (ii) newly-issued Class B Common Units of CompoSecure (and a
corresponding number of shares of newly-issued Roman DBDR’s Class B Common Stock), as applicable, in
Earnout Consideration based on the achievement of certain stock price thresholds, if payable, which amount
will be determined as described in more detail under the heading titled “Proposal No. 1 — The Business
Combination Proposal — The Merger Agreement — Merger Consideration”, to be paid at the Merger
Effective Time.

(a) Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, at the Merger Effective Time:

(i) all of the CompoSecure Units issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Merger
Effective Time, shall be cancelled or converted, into the right to receive the applicable portion of
the Merger Consideration (including the Earnout Consideration, if any) attributable to such
CompoSecure Units as required by CompoSecure’s Amended and Restated Limited Liability
Company Agreement, dated as of June 11, 2020 (as amended, the “Current CompoSecure LL.C
Agreement”) and as provided on the Merger Consideration Schedule (as may be amended from
time to time, and at any time, by the Member Representative acting in good faith);

(ii) the membership interests of Merger Sub issued and outstanding immediately prior to the
Merger Effective Time shall, by virtue of the Merger and without any action on the part of Roman
DBDR, Merger Sub or CompoSecure, be converted into and become an amount of newly issued,
fully paid and non-assessable Class A Common Units of the Surviving Entity equal to the number
of shares of Class A Common Stock of the Combined Entity issued and outstanding immediately
following the Merger Effective Time (after giving effect to the transactions contemplated under
this Agreement and the Ancillary Agreements, including the PIPE Investment and the
cancellations under the Expense Cap and Waiver Agreement (as defined below)); and

(iii) consistent with the terms of this Agreement and the provisions set forth in the
CompoSecure Second Amended and Restated LLC Agreement:

(1) the number of Class A Common Units of the Surviving Entity issued and
outstanding shall equal the number of shares of Class A Common Stock of the Combined
Entity then issued and outstanding; and

(2) the number of Class B Common Units of the Surviving Entity issued and
outstanding shall equal the Class B Common Unit Merger Consideration.
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Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, at the Merger Effective Time, each Cashout Option, whether vested
or unvested, shall, automatically and without any required action on the part of any holder or beneficiary
thereof, be terminated by virtue of the Merger and the holder shall cease to have any rights with respect
thereto, other than the right to receive: (i) a cash payment equal to the difference between (A) the Cash
Merger Consideration (excluding the Tax Receivable Amount) allocable in respect of a CompoSecure Unit
underlying such Cashout Option and (B) the per CompoSecure Unit exercise price of the Cashout Option
(without interest and subject to the deduction and withholding of such amounts) and (ii) the amount of
Earnout Consideration allocable in respect of the Cashout Options as set forth on the Merger Consideration
Schedule. Also at the Merger Effective Time, all of the CompoSecure Options, whether vested or unvested,
outstanding immediately prior to the Merger Effective Time that are not Cashout Options shall,
automatically, be assumed by Roman DBDR and each such CompoSecure Option shall be converted into,
and represent only, an option to purchase shares of Class A Common Stock.

In addition to the consideration to be paid at the Closing, pursuant to the Merger Agreement, the
Earnout Recipients (i.e. CompoSecure equity holders) will have the right to receive an aggregate of up to
7.5 million additional (i) shares of Class A Common Stock or (ii) CompoSecure Units (and a corresponding
number of shares of Class B Common Stock), as applicable, in earn-out consideration based on the
achievement of certain stock price thresholds (collectively, the “Earnout Consideration”).

For additional information and a summary of the terms of the Merger Agreement and the other
agreements executed, or to be executed, in connection with the Business Combination, see the sections titled
“Proposal No. 1 — The Business Combination Proposal — The Merger Agreement” and “Proposal No. 1 —
The Business Combination Proposal — Related Agreements.”

Board of Directors Following the Business Combination

Upon consummation of the Business Combination, the Roman DBDR Board anticipates increasing its
size from six directors to up to seven directors, with each Class I director having a term that expires at the
Combined Entity’s annual meeting of stockholders in 2022, each Class II director having a term that expires
at the Combined Entity’s annual meeting of stockholders in 2023 and each Class III director having a term
that expires at the Combined Entity’s annual meeting of stockholders in 2024. Assuming the Business
Combination Proposal is approved, Roman DBDR’s stockholders are also being asked to elect
seven directors to serve staggered terms on the Combined Entity’s board of directors until the 2022, 2023
and 2024 annual meeting of stockholders, respectively, and until their respective successors are duly elected
and qualified. Please see the sections titled “Proposal No. 5 — The Director Election Proposal” and
“Management of the Combined Entity Following the Business Combination” for additional information.

Conditions to the Closing of the Business Combination

The obligations of Roman DBDR, CompoSecure and the Merger Sub to consummate the Business
Combination are subject to the satisfaction or waiver of various conditions on or prior to the Merger
Effective Time, including the following:

+ the absence of any legal or regulatory restraints enjoining or otherwise prohibiting or making illegal
the consummation of the Merger or causing any of the transactions in the Business Combination to
be rescinded following the completion thereof;

+ the adoption and approval of the Merger Agreement by Roman DBDR’s stockholders;

+ obtaining approval for listing on Nasdaq of the shares of Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock to
be issued in connection with the Common PIPE Investment, subject to official notice of issuance;

+ obtaining the Company Member Vote and the delivery of the Written Consent (which terms are
described in the section titled “Proposal No. 1 — The Business Combination Proposal — Merger
Agreement”);

* expiration or early termination of any applicable waiting period under the Hart-Scott-Rodino
Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, as amended (the “HSR Act” ) (see the section titled “Proposal
No. 1 — The Business Combination Proposal — Regulatory Matters”);
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» consummation immediately prior to the Merger Effective Time of the PIPE Investments in
accordance with the terms set forth in the applicable Subscription Agreements;

* Roman DBDR having net tangible assets (as determined in accordance with Rule 3a51-1(g)(1) of the
Exchange Act) of at least $5,000,001 after giving effect to the transactions contemplated by the
Merger Agreement;

+ the amount of Minimum Cash (which term is described in the section titled “Proposal No. 1 —
Business Combination Proposal — The Merger Agreement”) being not less than $210,000,000,
consisting of $85.0 million from the Trust Account after giving effect to redemptions, if any, plus
$130.0 million of Note PIPE Investment proceeds and $45.0 million of Common PIPE Investment
proceeds minus $50.0 million of transaction expenses of both Roman DBDR and CompoSecure; and

+ the execution and delivery of each Ancillary Agreement (which term is described in the section titled
“Proposal No. 1 — Business Combination Proposal — The Merger Agreement”) by the parties
thereto.

Each party’s obligation to consummate the Merger is also subject to the satisfaction or waiver of

certain additional conditions, including:

* subject to certain materiality and other qualifiers, the accuracy of the representations and warranties
of the other party;

» performance in all material respects by the other party of its obligations under the Merger
Agreement;

* the delivery of a customary closing certificate signed on behalf of the respective party by an officer
of the party certifying certain conditions have been satisfied;

* in the case of Roman DBDR’s and the Merger Sub’s obligations, the absence of a Material Adverse
Effect (which term is described in the section titled “Proposal No. 1 — Business Combination
Proposal — The Merger Agreement — Representations and Warranties”), and in the case of
CompoSecure’s obligations, the absence of a Parent Material Adverse Effect (which term is
described in the section titled “Proposal No. 1 — Business Combination Proposal — The Merger
Agreement — Representations and Warranties”);

* in the case of Roman DBDR’s and the Merger Sub’s obligations, the delivery of a certificate, dated
as of the closing date and signed by an authorized representative of CompoSecure, that certain
conditions to the closing have been satisfied, and in the case of CompoSecure’s obligations, the
delivery of a certificate, dated as of the closing date and signed by an authorized representative of
Roman DBDR, that certain conditions to the closing have been satisfied;

* in the case of Roman DBDR’s and the Merger Sub’s obligations, the Closing Net Indebtedness being
no more than $250,000,000;

* in the case of Roman DBDR’s and the Merger Sub’s obligations, the Closing Cash being no less than
$5,000,000;

* in the case of Roman DBDR’s and the Merger Sub’s obligations, CompoSecure obtaining and
delivering certain consents, authorizations or approvals listed on the disclosure schedules to the
Merger Agreement;

* in the case of CompoSecure’s obligations, the compliance by Roman DBDR in all material respects
with the reporting requirements applicable to it under the Exchange Act; and the delivery of duly
executed signature pages to the Stockholders’ Agreement and the appointment to the Roman DBDR
Board the directors contemplated by the Stockholders’ Agreement; and

+ in the case of CompoSecure’s obligations, the delivery of a duly executed counterpart signature page
of Roman DBDR and Roman DBDR Tech Sponsor LLC to the Stockholders Agreement, and Roman
DBDR shall have appointed to the Roman DBDR Board the directors contemplated by the
Stockholders Agreement.

Before the Closing, each of CompoSecure, Roman DBDR and the Merger Sub may waive any of the

conditions to its obligation to consummate the merger even though one or more of the conditions described
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above has not been met, except where waiver is not permissible under applicable law. Please see the section
of this proxy statement titled “Proposal No. 1 — Business Combination Proposal — The Merger Agreement
— Conditions to Closing.”

Redemption Rights

Roman DBDR is providing its public stockholders with the opportunity to redeem their Public Shares
for cash equal to a pro rata share of the aggregate amount then on deposit in the Trust Account, including
interest earned on the funds held in the Trust Account and not previously released to it to pay Roman
DBDR’s franchise and income taxes, divided by the number of then outstanding Public Shares, upon the
Closing, subject to the limitations described herein. For illustrative purposes, based on the balance of the
Trust Account of $236,291,587.55 as of November 1, 2021, the record date for the special meeting, the
estimated per share redemption price would have been approximately $10.20. For further information, see
the section titled “Special Meeting of Roman DBDR Stockholders — Redemption Rights.”

Dissenter Rights

Dissenter rights are not available to Roman DBDR stockholders or warrantholders in connection with
the Business Combination.

Regulatory Approvals

The consummation of the Business Combination is subject to review under the HSR Act. As described
above in the section titled “— Conditions to the Closing of the Business Combination,” the obligations of
Roman DBDR and CompoSecure to consummate the Merger are subject to expiration or early termination
of any applicable waiting period under the HSR Act. Under the HSR Act and the rules and regulations
promulgated thereunder, the merger may not be completed until notifications have been filed and certain
information has been furnished to the Federal Trade Commission (the “FTC”) and the Antitrust Division of
the Department of Justice (the “D0OJ”) and the specified waiting period has expired or been terminated.
Roman DBDR and CompoSecure each filed or caused to be filed the requisite notification forms under the
HSR Act with the DOJ and the FTC on May 3, 2021, and both requested “early termination” of the waiting
period. Both before and after the expiration or termination of the applicable waiting period, the FTC and the
DOJ retain the authority to challenge the Merger on antitrust grounds.

Related Agreements

This section describes certain additional agreements related to the Business Combination that have
been executed or will be executed in connection with the Closing of the Business Combination. For
additional information, see “Proposal No. 1 — Business Combination Proposal — Related Agreements.”

Registration Rights Agreement

At the Closing of the Business Combination, CompoSecure, Inc. (f/k/a Roman DBDR) will enter into
the Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement (the “Registration Rights Agreement”) with the
LLR Investors (as defined therein), the CompoSecure Investors (as defined therein), the Founder Investors
(as defined therein), and the Additional Investors (as defined therein) (the LLR Investors, the CompoSecure
Investors, the Founder Investors and the Additional Investors, the “Holders”).

Upon the consummation of the Business Combination, the Holders and their permitted transferees will
be entitled to certain registration rights described in the Registration Rights Agreement. Among other
things, pursuant to the Registration Rights Agreement, the LLR Investors and Founder Investors will each
be entitled to require one or more demand registrations, and all Holders will have certain “piggyback”
registration rights with respect to statements filed subsequent to the Business Combination.

Tax Receivable Agreement

At the Closing of the Business Combination, CompoSecure, Inc. (f/k/a Roman DBDR) will enter into
the Tax Receivable Agreement with CompoSecure and the TRA Parties (as defined therein). The Tax
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Receivable Agreement will generally provide for the payment by CompoSecure, Inc. to certain
CompoSecure Holders of 90% of the benefits, if any, that CompoSecure, Inc. is deemed to realize
(calculated using certain assumptions) as a result of (i) CompoSecure, Inc.’s allocable share of existing tax
basis in the assets of CompoSecure and its subsidiaries acquired (A) in the Business Combination and

(B) upon sales or exchanges of CompoSecure Units pursuant to the Exchange Agreement after the Business
Combination, (ii) certain increases in tax basis that occur as a result of (A) the Business Combination and
(B) sales or exchanges of CompoSecure Units pursuant to the Exchange Agreement after the Business
Combination, and (iii) certain other tax benefits, including tax benefits attributable to payments under the
Tax Receivable Agreement. These tax attributes may increase (for tax purposes) CompoSecure, Inc.’s
depreciation and amortization deductions and, therefore, may reduce the amount of tax that CompoSecure,
Inc. would otherwise be required to pay in the future. CompoSecure, Inc. will retain the benefit of the
remaining 10% of these cash savings. For a detailed description of the Tax Receivable Agreement, see
“Certain Relationships and Related Person Transactions — Tax Receivable Agreements.”

Stockholders Agreement

At the Closing of the Business Combination, CompoSecure, Inc. (f/k/a Roman DBDR), Sponsor and
certain CompoSecure Holders (Sponsor and the CompoSecure Holders, collectively, the “Voting Parties”)
will enter into a stockholders agreement (the “Stockholders Agreement”), which provides for certain voting
agreements of the Voting Parties, and, among other things, sets forth certain requirements regarding the
composition of the CompoSecure, Inc. Board following the Closing. Under the Stockholders Agreement, the
Voting Parties (1) agree to vote or cause to be voted all shares of Common Stock, whether at a regular or
special meeting of CompoSecure, Inc. stockholders, in such a manner as may be necessary to elect and/or
maintain the board of directors in accordance with the Stockholders Agreement; and (2) agree to the Lock-
up Period (as defined below).

The Stockholders Agreement also provides that for 180 days following the execution of the
Stockholders Agreement (the “Lock-Up Period”), the Voting Parties agree not to effect any sale or
distribution of any shares of Common Stock held by any of them during the Lock-Up Period as described
therein. For a detailed description of the Stockholders Agreement, see “Proposal No. 1 — Business
Combination Proposal — Related Agreements — Stockholders Agreement.”

Voting Agreement

Concurrently with the execution of the Merger Agreement, on April 19, 2021, the Sponsor and certain
CompoSecure Holders (the “Voting Agreement Voting Parties”) entered into a voting agreement with Roman
DBDR and CompoSecure (the “Voting Agreement”), which is included herewith as Annex H. Under the
Voting Agreement, the Voting Agreement Voting Parties agreed to vote or cause to be voted their respective
equity interests for and against certain matters, including to vote in favor of the Merger Agreement and the
transactions related thereto, among other matters and against any competing proposals or any matters that
would reasonably be expected to impede the timely consummation of the Merger, among other matters.

Exchange Agreement

At the Closing of the Business Combination, Roman DBDR, CompoSecure and CompoSecure Holders
will enter into the Exchange Agreement. Pursuant to the Exchange Agreement, the CompoSecure Holders
and such other holders of Class B Units from time to time party thereto will be entitled to exchange Class B
Units, and surrender shares of Class B Common Stock of Roman DBDR for cancellation, in exchange for, at
the option of Roman DBDR, a number of shares of Class A Common Stock of Roman DBDR or the cash
equivalent of such shares.

Expense Cap and Waiver Agreement

Concurrently with the execution of the Agreement and Plan of Merger, on April 19, 2021, Roman
DBDR, CompoSecure and Sponsor entered into an expense cap and waiver agreement (the “Expense Cap
and Waiver Agreement”). Under the terms of the Expense Cap and Waiver Agreement, Sponsor agreed that
to the extent the Roman’s transaction expenses exceed $35 million, then Sponsor shall, on the Closing Date,
in its sole option, either (i) pay any such amount in excess of $35 million to Roman DBDR in cash, or
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(ii) irrevocably forfeit and surrender to Roman DBDR such number of shares of Class A Common Stock
(valued at $10.00 per share) held by the Sponsor that would, in the aggregate, have a value equal to such
amount in excess of $35 million. In addition, the Sponsor agreed to waive, on behalf of all holders of
Class B Common Stock, any adjustment to the initial conversion ratio in Roman’s certificate of
incorporation resulting from the consummation of the Merger and the transactions contemplated by the
Merger Agreement.

Common Subscription Agreements

Concurrently with the execution of the Merger Agreement, Roman DBDR entered into subscription
agreements for a private placement of Class A Common Stock (the “Common Subscription Agreements”)
with certain investors (the “Common PIPE Investors”). Pursuant to the terms of the Common Subscription
Agreements, Roman DBDR has agreed to issue and sell to the Common PIPE Investors and the Common
PIPE Investors have agreed to purchase on the Closing Date of the Business Combination an aggregate
amount of up to 4,500,000 shares of Class A Common Stock at a purchase price of $10.00 per share for
aggregate gross proceeds of $45,000,000 (the “Common PIPE Investment”). The Common PIPE Investment
is contingent upon, among other things, the Closing of the Business Combination.

Note Subscription Agreements

Concurrently with the execution of the Merger Agreement, Roman DBDR, CompoSecure and
CompoSecure, L.L.C. entered into subscription agreements (the “Note Subscription Agreements”) with
certain investors (the “Note PIPE Investors”) pursuant to which such investors, severally and not jointly,
have agreed to purchase on the Closing Date of the Business Combination, senior notes (the “Exchangeable
Notes”) issued by CompoSecure and guaranteed by CompoSecure, L.L.C. in an aggregate principal amount
of up to $130,000,000 that are exchangeable into shares of Class A Common Stock at a conversion price of
$11.50 per share (the “Note PIPE Investment”). Pursuant to the Note Subscription Agreements,
CompoSecure has agreed to issue and sell to the Note PIPE Investors, and the Note PIPE Investors have
agreed to purchase, severally and not jointly, subject to the terms and conditions of an indenture to be
executed by Roman DBDR, CompoSecure, CompoSecure, L.L.C. and the trustee under the indenture to be
entered into at Closing, the Exchangeable Notes in an aggregate principal amount of up to $130,000,000,
which will bear interest at a rate of 7% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears. The Exchangeable
Notes will mature in five years, and be convertible into shares of Class A Common Stock at a conversion
price of $11.50 per share, in accordance with the terms thereof and subject to customary anti-dilution
adjustments.

CompoSecure Second Amended and Restated LLC Agreement

At the Closing of the Business Combination, CompoSecure, Inc. (the Combined Entity f/k/a Roman
DBDR) and the other CompoSecure Holders will enter into the CompoSecure Second Amended and
Restated LLC Agreement. The operations of CompoSecure, and the rights and obligations of the
CompoSecure Holders, will be set forth in the CompoSecure Second Amended and Restated LL.C
Agreement.

Organizational Structure

The diagrams below depict simplified versions of the current organizational structure of Roman DBDR
and CompoSecure, respectively.
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Existing Roman DBDR Structure
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The following diagram, which is subject to change based upon any redemptions by Roman DBDR’s
public shareholders in connection with the Business Combination, illustrates the ownership structure of the
Combined Entity immediately following the Business Combination:
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The following table depicts the total potential ownership interest of Sponsor in the Combined Entity
immediately following the Business Combination:

Post-Closing Structure

Public

CompoSecure PIPE

Sharcholders

Investors

1 1
1 1
1 Class A Class A Class A 1

: : Common Stock Common Stock Common Stock :

I (59.5%) I (28.0%) (5.4%) (7.0%) 1

1 1 1

1 1 Private Placement 1

' PR oo S . NS Warmants __ |

1 1 !

1 ] L 1

1

1

-------------------------- CompoSecure, Inc,

Class B Class A
Common Units C‘ommorl'Unns
(59.5%) (40.5%)

CompoSecure
Holdings, L.L.C.

CompoSecure,

N

Our organizational structure following the completion of the Business Combination is commonly
referred to as an umbrella partnership-C corporation (or “Up-C”) structure. This organizational structure
will allow the CompoSecure Holders to retain their equity ownership in CompoSecure Holdings, L.L.C., an
entity that is classified as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes, in the form of Class B
Common Units. Those investors who, prior to the Business Combination, held Class A Common Stock or
Sponsor Shares will hold their equity ownership in CompoSecure, Inc., which is a domestic corporation for
U.S. federal income tax purposes. Roman DBDR believes that the CompoSecure Holders will generally find
it advantageous to continue to hold their equity interests in an entity that is not taxable as a corporation for
U.S. federal income tax purposes. Roman DBDR does not believe that the Up-C organizational structure
will give rise to any significant business or strategic benefit or detriment to Roman DBDR.

The PIPE Investors equity interest shown in the post-closing structure depicted above reflects the
Class A Common Stock to be purchased by Common PIPE Investors on the Closing Date of the Business
Combination. It does not include the amount of Class A Common Stock into which the Exchangeable Senior
Notes that are to be purchased and issued upon the Closing Date of the Business Combination may be
converted at a conversion price of $11.50 per share, in accordance with the terms thereof and subject to
customary anti-dilution adjustments.

Background of the Business Combination

A description of the process Roman DBDR undertook that led to the proposed Business Combination,
including Roman DBDR’s discussions with CompoSecure, is included in this proxy statement under the
section titled “Proposal No. 1: The Business Combination — Background of the Business Combination.”
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Roman DBDR Board of Directors’ Reasons for the Business Combination; Recommendation of the Roman DBDR
Board

Roman DBDR was formed for the purpose of entering into a merger, share exchange, asset acquisition,
stock purchase, recapitalization, reorganization or other similar business combination with one or more
businesses or entities. With respect to the proposed Business Combination, the Roman DBDR Board
considered a number of factors as generally supporting its decision to enter into the Business Combination,
including but not limited to the following factors, although not weighted or in any order of significance:

» Compelling Opportunity across markets including Payment Cards, Cryptocurrency and Digital Assets. The
Roman DBDR Board believes that CompoSecure has a deep pipeline that targets large markets with
unmet needs. The Roman DBDR Board further believes that CompoSecure has the ability, if it
executes its plan to build, hire, partner and potentially and selectively acquire assets, to achieve its
growth strategy, including with respect to the Cryptocurrency and Digital Assets markets, as well as
with respect to increasing its market penetration in the Payments Industry.

* Regulatory considerations. The Roman DBDR Board considered that regulatory schemes that could
apply to CompoSecure’s current and future products, including the Arculus™ Platform, have not
been fully explored or developed, and that in some cases, existing laws have been interpreted to
apply to Cryptocurrencies and other Digital Assets, while in other cases, jurisdictions have adopted
laws, regulations or directives that specifically affect Cryptocurrencies and other Digital Assets, and
some jurisdictions have not taken any regulatory stance on Cryptocurrencies and other Digital Assets
and/or have expressly declined to apply regulation to such assets. Accordingly, there may not be a
clear regulatory framework applicable to CompoSecure’s Arculus Cold Storage Wallet, or to Digital
Assets in general, and ongoing and future regulatory actions and laws may alter, perhaps to a
materially adverse extent, the markets for Cryptocurrencies and other Digital Assets, which could
materially adversely affect the ability of the Arculus Platform to continue to operate.

* Development of the Arculus Platform. The Roman DBDR Board considered CompoSecure’s
development of the Arculus Platform, a platform envisioned to solve a chronic industry need for
reliable, trusted and safe storage of Cryptocurrency and other Digital Assets. The Roman DBDR
Board also considered CompoSecure’s expectation that future Arculus-derived revenue streams will
diversify into a combination of hardware sales and recurring revenues from transaction processing
fees, subscription fees, and other sources. Future Arculus Ecosystem products may include solutions
for payments, Digital Assets, eGaming, and insurance that may be developed in-house, with industry
partners and/or through third-party App developers.

» CompoSecure’s Industry Leadership is Expected to Support the Launch of New Revenue Generating
Opportunities. The Roman DBDR Board considered that from 2010 through 2020, CompoSecure
produced and sold 92 million metal Payment Cards worldwide, and that CompoSecure is currently
entering the Cryptocurrency and Digital Asset market through the launch of Arculus Platform. The
Roman DBDR Board also considered the potential timing of CompoSecure’s anticipated launch of
the Arculus Platform in the third quarter of 2021.

* Pioneering. The Roman DBDR Board believes that CompoSecure has proven and experienced
leadership, which has the potential to execute on CompoSecure’s approach to expanding its Payment
Card business and launching the Arculus Platform to provide security solutions for the
Cryptocurrency and Digital Assets markets.

* Vast market opportunity for CompoSecure’s Payment Card solutions and security solutions, including the
three-factor-authentication solutions. The Roman DBDR Board believes that CompoSecure’s
Payment Card products have the potential to serve a greater percentage of the global addressable
market of Payment Cards, as CompoSecure’s total penetration is estimated to be 0.5% of the
4.2 billion Payment Cards issued in 2021. Further the market for three-factor authentication,
including Cryptocurrency and other Digital Assets, represents a billion dollar plus annual revenue
opportunity for CompoSecure. The Cryptocurrency and Digital Asset industries are experiencing
rapid user growth with significant needs for products such as those CompoSecure has demonstrated
with the Arculus Cold Storage Wallet.
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Experienced management team. The Roman DBDR Board believes that CompoSecure has a proven
and experienced management team, led by Jonathan Wilk, that has effectively led CompoSecure and
will be a foundation to build the leadership team of the Combined Entity after the Business
Combination. The Roman DBDR Board believes that CompoSecure’s highly seasoned and
experienced management team has the strong combination of a proven track record and technology
expertise required to position the Combined Entity for success.

Excellent customer relationships. The Roman DBDR Board believes that CompoSecure has trusted,
highly embedded blue chip customer relationships with leading financial institutions for which
CompoSecure has produced nearly 100 million metal Payment Cards worldwide for more than 100
branded and co-branded card programs, including on the Visa®, Mastercard®, American Express®,
and China Union Pay® Payment Networks.

Backed by a top-tier payments investor. CompoSecure’s largest investor is an affiliate of LLR Partners,
which the Roman DBDR Board believes provides additional validation to Roman DBDR’s
assessment of the CompoSecure business opportunity.

Profitable Unit Economics. CompoSecure’s current Payments Card business operates with ASP of
roughly $13.00 and a more than 40% adjusted EBIDTA margin. Roman DBDR Board believes
(based on CompoSecure estimates derived from available market data) the Digital Asset and
Cryptocurrency markets currently have ASP of approximately ninety dollars and that CompoSecure
can produce the Arculus Cold Storage Wallet at costs that are not materially different than its
Payment Cards; providing very compelling unit economics.

Manufacturing Capacity and Expertise. CompoSecure has the ability to produce tens of millions of
additional units within the footprint of its existing facilities, potentially allowing the company to
enter into meaningful supply relationships with additional customer and/or partners. Further,
CompoSecure’s manufacturing facilities receive regular audits for security and compliance from
major Payment Networks and CompoSecure maintains extensive policies, procedures and staff to
assure compliance with the PCI Security Standard, Payment Network and customer requirements.
Roman DBDR Board believes this level of capacity, security and compliance will allow
CompoSecure to win competitive situations in its new business opportunities in Digital Assets and
Cryptocurrencies from companies that value a proven trusted partner to major financial institutions
as their device supplier.

Terms of the Business Combination Agreement. The Roman DBDR Board reviewed and considered
the terms of the Merger Agreement and the other related agreements, including the parties’
conditions to their respective obligations to complete the transactions contemplated therein and their
ability to terminate the Merger Agreement. See “— The Merger Agreement” and “— Related
Agreements” for detailed discussions of the terms and conditions of these agreements.

Results of Due Diligence. The Roman DBDR Board considered the scope of the due diligence
investigation conducted by Roman DBDR and its outside advisors and evaluated the results thereof
and information available to it related to CompoSecure, including:

« diligence regarding CompoSecure’s potential business opportunities in the Payments Industry;

» commercial diligence findings regarding the Cryptocurrency and Digital Asset markets and
CompoSecure’s potential business opportunities in those markets;

+ extensive meetings and calls with CompoSecure’s management team regarding its business,
operations, projections and the proposed Business Combination;

* Goodwin’s findings relating to CompoSecure’s material intellectual property; and

» review of materials related to CompoSecure made available, including with respect to financial
statements, material contracts, key metrics and performance indicators, benefit plans,
intellectual property matters, labor matters, information technology, privacy, litigation
information, environmental matters, export control matters, regulatory matters and other legal
and business diligence matters.

* Financial forecasts. The Roman DBDR Board considered the non-public, internal financial forecasts

regarding CompoSecure’s anticipated future operations for fiscal years 2021 through 2025
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that were prepared by CompoSecure’s management and provided to Roman DBDR in connection
with the Roman DBDR Board’s evaluation of the Business Combination (see the section titled
“Proposal No. 1: The Business Combination — Certain Projected Financial Information.”), and the
relative valuation for the total consideration to be paid by Roman DBDR to CompoSecure
equityholders in the Business Combination compared to the valuations of similar and comparable
FinTech and high-tech industrial manufacturing companies traded in the public markets at such time.

The Roman DBDR Board also identified and considered the following factors and risks weighing
negatively against pursuing the Business Combination, although not weighted or in any order of
significance:

Regulatory risks. While CompoSecure has experience in complying with industry and customer
requirements, handling of data is subject to a variety of laws and regulations, and ongoing and future
regulatory actions may impact the ability of CompoSecure to develop and offer products involving
the use of Cryptocurrencies and other Digital Assets, including the Arculus Cold Storage Wallet, or
may impose additional costs, which may be material, on CompoSecure in connection with such
products, and such impact may be material and adverse.

Exclusivity. The fact that the Merger Agreement includes an exclusivity provision that prohibits
Roman DBDR from soliciting other business combination proposals, which restricts Roman DBDR’s
ability, so long as the Merger Agreement is in effect, to consider other potential business
combinations.

New Product Risks. The risks that CompoSecure will be launching new products for its Arculus
Platform, and that CompoSecure is still developing Arculus Platform technologies.

Benefits Not Achieved. The risk that the potential benefits of the Business Combination may not be
fully achieved, or may not be achieved within the expected timeframe.

Liquidation of Roman DBDR. The risks and costs to Roman DBDR if the Business Combination is
not completed, including the risk of diverting management focus and resources to other businesses
combination opportunities, which could result in Roman DBDR being unable to effect a business
combination by May 10, 2022 and force Roman DBDR to liquidate.

Shareholder Vote. The risk that Roman DBDR’s shareholders may fail to provide the respective
votes necessary to effect the Business Combination.

Limitations of Review. The Roman DBDR Board considered that they were not obtaining an opinion
from any independent investment banking or valuation firm that the consideration to be received by
CompoSecure is fair to Roman DBDR or its shareholders from a financial point of view. While
Roman DBDR’s management performed an extensive due diligence review of CompoSecure, there
may have been relevant CompoSecure information not considered by Roman DBDR’s management.
Accordingly, the Roman DBDR Board considered that Roman DBDR may not have properly valued
CompoSecure.

Closing Conditions. The fact that completion of the Business Combination is conditioned on the
satisfaction of certain closing conditions that are not within Roman DBDR’s control.

Litigation. The Roman DBDR Board considered the possibility of litigation challenging the
Business Combination or that an adverse judgment granting permanent injunctive relief could enjoin
consummation of the Business Combination.

Fees and expenses. The Roman DBDR Board considered the fees and expenses associated with
completing the Business Combination.

Competition. The Roman DBDR Board considered the increased level of competition that
CompoSecure will face in the Cryptocurrency and Digital Assets market for its Arculus Platform
products, including its three-factor authentication security solution.

Digital Payments. The Roman DBDR Board considered the adoption rate of digital payments
including services such as Apple Pay and Samsung Pay that reduce or eliminate the need for a
physical card.
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* Scaling Risks. The Roman DBDR Board considered the size of CompoSecure’s non-manufacturing
staff and recognized that CompoSecure will need to make a substantial number of new hires and/or
enter into partnering relationships to capitalize on the opportunities for its Arculus Platform in the
Cryptocurrency and Digital Asset markets. CompoSecure may be unable to hire or to do so in a
timely manner as the competition for individuals and firms with expertise in the areas required are in
high demand.

* Otherrisks. Various other risks associated with the Business Combination, the business of Roman
DBDR and the business of CompoSecure described in the section titled “Risk Factors.”

For a discussion of the material factors that the Roman DBDR Board considered in determining to
recommend the approval of the Merger Agreement, please see the section of this proxy statement titled
“Proposal No. 1: The Business Combination Proposal — Roman DBDR Board of Directors’ Reasons for the
Business Combination; Recommendation of the Roman DBDR Board.”

Certain Projected Financial Information

A description of the non-public, internal financial forecasts regarding CompoSecure’s anticipated
future operations for fiscal years 2021 through 2025, which incorporated the financial forecasts prepared by
CompoSecure management, that CompoSecure’s management provided to Roman DBDR in connection with
the Roman DBDR Board’s evaluation of the Business Combination is included in this proxy statement under
“Proposal No. 1: The Business Combination — Certain Projected Financial Information.”

Impact of the Business Combination on Roman DBDR’s Public Float

It is anticipated that, upon the Closing of the Business Combination, and assuming no redemptions,
Roman DBDR’s public stockholders (other than the PIPE Investors in the Common PIPE Investment) will
retain an ownership interest of approximately 28% in the Combined Entity, the PIPE Investors in the
Common PIPE Investment will own approximately 5.4% of the Combined Entity (such that public
stockholders, including PIPE Investors in the Common PIPE Investment, will own approximately 33.4% of
the Combined Entity), the Sponsor will retain an ownership interest of approximately 7.1% in the Combined
Entity and the CompoSecure Holders will own approximately 59.5% of the outstanding Common Stock of
the Combined Entity.

The ownership percentage with respect to the Combined Entity following the Business Combination
does not take into account (i) the redemption of any shares by Roman DBDR’s public stockholders; (ii) the
exercise of any Public Warrants or Private Placement Warrants outstanding immediately following Closing
have been exercised; or (iii) any forfeiture and surrender to Roman DBDR of Sponsor Shares pursuant to
the Expense Cap and Waiver Agreement to the extent that Roman DBDR’s transaction expenses exceed
$35 million, but does take into account the assumed cashless net exercise of options to purchase Roman
DBDR Common Stock which will be held by interest holders of CompoSecure immediately following the
Closing. If the actual facts are different than these assumptions (which they are likely to be), the percentage
ownership retained by the Roman DBDR’s existing stockholders in the Combined Entity will be different.

The following tables illustrate varying ownership levels in Roman DBDR assuming the factors
mentioned above:

No Redemption Maximum Redemption”
Stockholder Group Shares i Shares %
Former CompoSecure equity holders 49,195,0001 59.5% 63,919,627V 77.3%
Common PIPE Investment shares 4,500,000 5.4% 4,500,000 5.4%
Roman DBDR Public Shares 23,156,000 28.0% 8,431,373 10.2%
Roman DBDR Sponsor Shares 5,789,000 7.1% 5,789,000 7.1%

82,640,000 100% 82,640,000 100%

(1) This number does not include 7,500,000 earnout shares which may be issued to CompoSecure equity
holders upon the achievement of certain stock price thresholds as described in the Merger Agreement.

xxi



TABLE OF CONTENTS

The Nasdaq Stock Issuance Proposal

As the consideration for the Business Combination, Roman DBDR is obligated to issue up to
49,195,000 (assuming no redemption) or 63,919,627 (assuming maximum redemption) shares of Class B
Common Stock to the CompoSecure Holders, as described in more detail under the heading titled “Proposal
No. 1: The Business Combination Proposal — The Merger Agreement — Merger Consideration”, subject to
certain conditions, including that all conditions precedent to the Closing will have been satisfied or waived
(other than those conditions that are to be satisfied at Closing). In addition, assuming the Business
Combination Proposal is approved, Roman DBDR’s stockholders are also being asked to approve (a) the
issuance and sale of 4,500,000 shares of Class A Common Stock to the PIPE Investors in connection with
the Common Subscription Agreements in the Common PIPE Investment as further described under
“Proposal No. 1: The Business Combination Proposal — PIPE Investment”, (b) shares of Class A Common
Stock at a conversion price of $11.50 per share upon conversion of the Exchangeable Notes, pursuant to the
Note Subscription Agreements under the Note PIPE Investment, as further described under “Proposal No. 1:
The Business Combination Proposal — PIPE Investment”, (c) the issuance of up to 7,500,000 shares of
Common Stock as Earnout Consideration to the CompoSecure equityholders, if earned, as described in more
detail under the heading titled “The Business Combination Proposal — Merger Consideration”, and (d) the
reservation of up to 9,182,223 shares of Class A Common Stock to be authorized for issuance under the
2021 Equity Incentive Plan (as described in more detail in Proposal No. 6: The Equity Incentive Plan
Proposal). Shareholder approval of these items is being requested for purposes of complying with the
applicable provisions of the Nasdaq Stock Exchange Listing Rules (each, a “Nasdaq Listing Rule”) 5635(a),
(b) and (d), to the extent such issuance would require a stockholder vote under Nasdaq Listing Rule
5635(a), (b), or (d).

The Governing Documents Proposal

Roman DBDR stockholders will be asked to approve and adopt, subject to and conditional on (but with
immediate effect therefrom) approval of the Business Combination Proposal, the Nasdaq Stock Issuance
Proposal, the Equity Incentive Plan Proposal, the ESPP Proposal and the Closing, an amendment and
restatement of the Current Charter, as set out in the Proposed Charter appended to this proxy statement as
Annex B and an amendment and restatement of the Current Bylaws, as set out in the Proposed Bylaws
appended to this proxy statement as Annex C. For additional information, see the section titled “Proposal
No. 3— The Governing Documents Proposal.”

The Advisory Charter Proposals

Roman DBDR stockholders will be asked to approve, on a non-binding advisory basis, the following
material differences between the Proposed Charter and the Current Charter, which are being presented in
accordance with the requirements of the SEC as seven separate sub-proposals (the “Advisery Charter
Proposals”):

(a) Advisory Charter Proposal A — to increase the authorized shares of Class A Common Stock to
250,000,000 shares;

(b) Advisory Charter Proposal B— to increase the authorized shares of “blank check” preferred stock
that the Combined Entity’s board of directors could issue to raise capital and/or to discourage a
takeover attempt to 10,000,000 shares;

(c) Advisory Charter Proposal C — to provide that amendments to provisions of the Proposed Charter
will require the approval of at least a majority of the Combined Entity’s then-outstanding shares of
capital stock entitled to vote on such amendment;

(d) Advisory Charter Proposal D — to provide holders of any then outstanding Preferred Stock the
right, voting separately by class or series, to elect one or more directors if specified in the
certificate of designations setting forth the rights and preferences of such class of Preferred Stock;

(e) Advisory Charter Proposal E — to limit action required or permitted to be taken by the
stockholders of the Combined Entity only to annual meetings or special meetings by eliminating
the right for actions to be taken by written consent;
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(f) Advisory Charter Proposal F — (i) to change the corporate name from “Roman DBDR Tech
Acquisition Corp.” to “CompoSecure, Inc.”, (ii) to make the Combined Entity’s corporate
existence perpetual as opposed to Roman DBDR’s corporate existence, which is presently required
to be dissolved and liquidated 24 months following the closing of its initial public offering and to
remove from the Proposed Charter the various provisions applicable only to specified purpose
acquisition corporations contained in the Current Charter, (iii) to remove Delaware as the
exclusive forum for certain stockholder litigation and the United States Federal District Courts as
the exclusive forum for litigation arising out of the Securities Act, (iv) to opt-out of certain
provisions of Section 203 of DGCL, and (v) to eliminate certain provisions specific to Roman
DBDR’s status as a blank check company that will no longer be applicable upon consummation of
the Business Combination; and

(g) Advisory Charter Proposal G — to provide that any amendment by stockholders to the Amended
By-laws will require the approval of at least a majority of the Combined Entity’s then-outstanding
shares of capital stock entitled to vote such amendment.

For additional information, see section titled “Proposal No. 4 — The Advisory Charter Proposals.”

The Director Election Proposal

Upon consummation of the Business Combination, the Roman DBDR Board anticipates increasing its
size from six directors to up to seven directors, with each Class I director having a term that expires at the
Combined Entity’s annual meeting of stockholders in 2022, each Class II director having a term that expires
at the Combined Entity’s annual meeting of stockholders in 2023 and each Class III director having a term
that expires at the Combined Entity’s annual meeting of stockholders in 2024. Assuming the Business
Combination Proposal is approved, Roman DBDR’s stockholders are also being asked to elect
seven directors to serve staggered terms on the Combined Entity’s board of directors until the 2022, 2023
and 2024 annual meeting of stockholders, respectively, and until their respective successors are duly elected
and qualified. Please see the sections titled “Proposal No. 5 — The Director Election Proposal” and
“Management of the Combined Entity Following the Business Combination” for additional information.

The Equity Incentive Plan Proposal

Roman DBDR is proposing that its stockholders approve and adopt the Equity Incentive Plan of the
Combined Entity, which will become effective as of the date immediately preceding the date of the Closing
and will have the following principal features:

» Types of Awards: The Equity Incentive Plan provides for the grant of incentive stock options, non-
qualified stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock awards, restricted stock units, or
collectively, stock awards, all of which may be granted to employees, including officers, non-
employee directors and consultants of the Combined Entity and its affiliates. Incentive stock options
may be granted only to employees. All other awards may be granted to employees, including
officers, and to non-employee directors and consultants.

* Shares Available for Awards: Initially, the aggregate number of shares of Class A Common Stock that
may be issued pursuant to stock awards under the Equity Incentive Plan after the Equity Incentive
Plan becomes effective will not exceed 9,182,223 shares. Additionally, the number of shares of
Class A Common Stock reserved for issuance under the Equity Incentive Plan will automatically
increase on January 1 of each year, beginning on January 1, 2022 by 4% of the total number of
shares of Common Stock outstanding as of the last day of the immediately preceding calendar year,
or a lesser number of shares determined by the administrator of the Equity Incentive Plan.

* Non-Employee Director Compensation: The value of all awards awarded under the Equity Incentive
Plan and all other cash compensation paid by the Combined Entity to any non-employee director in
any calendar year for services as a non-employee director will not exceed $350,000; provided, that,
with respect to the year in which a non-employee director is first appointed or elected to the Board,
the maximum value of all awards awarded under the Equity Incentive Plan and all other cash
compensation paid by the Combined Entity to such non-employee director shall not exceed
$750,000.
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A summary of the Equity Incentive Plan is set forth in the “Proposal No. 6: The Equity Incentive
Plan Proposal” section of this proxy statement and a complete copy of the Equity Incentive Plan is attached
hereto as Annex D.

The Employee Stock Purchase Plan Proposal

Roman DBDR is proposing that its stockholders approve and adopt the ESPP of the Combined Entity,
which will become effective on the day prior to the Closing. The ESPP is designed to allow eligible
employees of the Combined Entity to purchase shares of Class A Common Stock at a discount using
accumulated payroll deductions at a rate set by such employees who elect to participate in the ESPP;
provided, that, the ESPP will have two components: (1) the first, intended to comply with Section 423 of the
Code; and (2) the second, which is not intended to comply with Section 423 of the Code. The purpose of the
ESPP is to assist such employees in acquiring a stock ownership interest in the Combined Entity, to help
such employees provide for their future security and to encourage such employees to remain in the
employment of the Combined Entity.

Initially, the aggregate number of shares of Class A Common Stock reserved for sale pursuant to the
ESPP after the ESPP becomes effective will not exceed 1,686,531 shares. The number of shares of Class A
Common Stock reserved for sale under the ESPP will automatically increase on the first trading day in
January each calendar year during the term of the ESPP, beginning with the 2022 calendar year, by 1% of
the total number of shares of Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock outstanding on the last
trading day in the immediately preceding calendar month, but in no event shall any such annual increase
exceed 1,686,531 shares or a lesser number of shares determined by the administrator of the ESPP.

A summary of the ESPP is set forth in the “Proposal No. 7: The ESPP Proposal” section of this proxy
statement and a complete copy of the ESPP is attached hereto as Annex E.

The Adjournment Proposal

If, based on the tabulated vote, there are not sufficient votes at the time of the Special Meeting to
authorize Roman DBDR to consummate the Business Combination (because any of the Condition Precedent
Proposals have not been approved (including as a result of the failure of any other cross-conditioned
Condition Precedent Proposals to be approved)), the Roman DBDR Board may submit a proposal to adjourn
or postpone the Special Meeting to a later date or dates, if necessary, to permit further solicitation and vote
of proxies. For additional information, see section titled “Proposal No. 8 — The Adjournment Proposal”.

Date, Time and Place of Special Meeting

The Special Meeting will be held on December 23, 2021, at 10:00 a.m., Eastern time, conducted via
live webcast at the following address: https://www.cstproxy.com/romandbdr/sm2021. You will need the 12-
digit meeting control number that is printed on your proxy card to enter the Special Meeting. Roman DBDR
recommends that you log in at least 15 minutes before the Special Meeting to ensure you are logged in when
the Special Meeting starts. Please note that you will not be able to attend the Special Meeting in person.

Record Date; Who Is Entitled to Vote

Only holders of record of issued and outstanding Roman DBDR Common Stock as of the close of
business on November 1, 2021, the Record Date for the Special Meeting, are entitled to notice of, and to
vote at, the Special Meeting or any adjournment or postponement of the Special Meeting. You may cast one
vote for each share of Roman DBDR Common Stock that you owned as of the close of business on the
Record Date.

Revoking Your Proxy

If you give a proxy, you may revoke it at any time before it is exercised by doing any one of the
following:

* You may send another proxy card with a later date;
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» If you are a record holder, you may notify our Corporate Secretary in writing before the Special
Meeting that you have revoked your proxy; or

* You may attend the Special Meeting, revoke your proxy, and vote online, as indicated above.

Who Can Answer Your Questions About Voting Your Shares

If you have any questions about how to vote or direct a vote in respect of your Roman DBDR Common
Stock, you may call Morrow Sodali, our proxy solicitor, at (800) 662-5200 for individuals and (203) 658-
9400 for banks and brokers.

Quorum and Required Vote for Proposals for the Special Meeting

A quorum of Roman DBDR stockholders is necessary to hold a valid meeting. A quorum will be
present at the Special Meeting of stockholders if a majority of the Roman DBDR Common Stock
outstanding and entitled to vote at the Special Meeting is represented live or by proxy at the Special
Meeting. Abstentions will count as present for the purposes of establishing a quorum. Broker non-votes will
not be counted for purposes of establishing a quorum. Our warrants do not have voting rights.

The approval of the Governing Documents Proposal requires the affirmative vote of (i) a majority of
the issued and outstanding Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock voting together as a single class as of the
Record Date and (ii) a majority of the issued and outstanding shares of Class B Common Stock voting
together as a single class as of the Record Date. Accordingly, a Roman DBDR stockholder’s failure to vote
by proxy or to vote at the Special Meeting or an abstention will have the same effect as a vote “AGAINST”
the Governing Documents Proposal.

Approval of the Business Combination Proposal, the Nasdaq Stock Issuance Proposal, the Advisory
Charter Proposals, the Equity Incentive Plan Proposal, the ESPP Proposal and the Adjournment Proposal
each require the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the shares of Roman DBDR Common Stock
cast by the stockholders represented in person, online or by proxy and entitled to vote thereon at the Special
Meeting, voting together a single class. A Roman DBDR stockholder’s failure to vote by proxy or to vote in
person at the Special Meeting will not be counted towards the number of shares of Roman DBDR Common
Stock required to validly establish a quorum, and if a valid quorum is otherwise established, it will have no
effect on the outcome of the vote on the Business Combination Proposal, the Nasdaq Stock Issuance
Proposal, the Advisory Charter Proposals, the Equity Incentive Plan Proposal, the ESPP Proposal and the
Adjournment Proposal.

The approval of the Director Election Proposal requires the affirmative vote of the holders of a
plurality of the shares of Roman DBDR Common Stock cast by the stockholders represented virtually or by
proxy and entitled to vote thereon at the Special Meeting, voting together as a single class.

Approval of the Nasdaq Stock Issuance Proposal, the Governing Documents Proposal, the Director
Election Proposal, the Equity Incentive Plan Proposal and the ESPP Proposal are conditioned on the
approval of the Business Combination Proposal and the Business Combination Proposal is conditioned on
the approval of the Nasdaq Stock Issuance Proposal, the Governing Documents Proposal, the Equity
Incentive Plan Proposal and the ESPP Proposal. Unless the Business Combination Proposal is approved, the
Nasdaq Stock Issuance Proposal, the Director Election Proposal, the Governing Documents Proposal, the
Equity Incentive Plan Proposal and the ESPP Proposal will not be presented to the stockholders of Roman
DBDR at the Special Meeting. The Adjournment Proposal is not conditioned on any other Proposal and
does not require the approval of any other Proposal to be effective. It is important for you to note that in the
event the Business Combination Proposal, the Nasdaq Stock Issuance Proposal, the Director Election
Proposal, the Governing Documents Proposal, the Equity Incentive Plan Proposal and the ESPP Proposal do
not receive the requisite vote for approval, then Roman DBDR will not consummate the Business
Combination. If Roman DBDR does not consummate the Business Combination and fails to complete an
initial business combination by May 10, 2022, it will be required to dissolve and liquidate its Trust Account
by returning the then remaining funds in such account to its public stockholders.
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Recommendation to Roman DBDR Stockholders

The Roman DBDR Board believes that the Proposals to be presented at the Special Meeting are in the best

interests of Roman DBDR and its stockholders and unanimously recommends that Roman DBDR stockholders
vote “FOR” the Proposals.

When you consider the recommendation of the Board in favor of approval of these Proposals, you

should keep in mind that Roman DBDR directors and officers have interests in the Business Combination
that are different from or in addition to (and which may conflict with) your interests as a stockholder. These
interests include, among other things:

* Unless Roman DBDR consummates an initial business combination by May 10, 2022, Roman DBDR
will: (i) cease all operations except for the purpose of winding up, (ii) as promptly as reasonably
possible but no more than ten business days thereafter, redeem the Public Shares, at a per-share
price, payable in cash, equal to the aggregate amount then on deposit in the Trust Account, including
interest earned on the funds held in the Trust Account and not previously released to us to pay
Roman DBDR’s taxes (less up to $100,000 of interest to pay dissolution expenses), divided by the
number of then outstanding Public Shares, which redemption will completely extinguish public
stockholders’ rights as stockholders (including the right to receive further liquidating distributions, if
any), and (iii) as promptly as reasonably possible following such redemption, subject to the approval
of Roman DBDR’s remaining stockholders and the Board, liquidate and dissolve, subject in each
case to Roman DBDR’s obligations under Delaware law to provide for claims of creditors and the
requirements of other applicable law.

+ There will be no liquidating distributions from the Trust Account with respect to the Sponsor Shares
if Roman DBDR fails to complete a business combination within the required period. Roman
DBDR’s initial stockholders purchased the Sponsor Shares prior to the Roman DBDR IPO for an
aggregate purchase price of $25,000.

+ Simultaneously with the closing of the Roman DBDR IPO, Roman DBDR consummated the sale of
10,837,400 Private Placement Warrants (including 462,400 Private Placement Warrants sold in
connection with the underwriters’ partial exercise of their over-allotment option) at a price of
$1.00 per warrant (for an aggregate purchase price of $10,837,400) in a private placement to the
Sponsor, Roman DBDR Tech Sponsor LLC. If Roman DBDR does not consummate a business
combination transaction by May 10, 2022, then the proceeds from the sale of the Private Placement
Warrants will be part of the liquidating distribution to the public stockholders and the shares held by
Roman DBDR’s initial stockholders will be worthless.

* The Sponsor and Roman DBDR’s officers and directors will lose their entire investment in Roman
DBDR if Roman DBDR does not complete a business combination by May 10, 2022. Certain of them
may continue to serve as officers and/or directors of Roman DBDR after the Closing. As such, in the
future they may receive any cash fees, stock options or stock awards that the Board determines to
pay to its directors and/or officers.

» Roman DBDR’s initial stockholders and officers and directors have agreed to waive their rights to
liquidating distributions from the Trust Account with respect to their Sponsor Shares if Roman
DBDR fails to complete a business combination by May 10, 2022.

 In order to protect the amounts held in the Trust Account, the Sponsor has agreed that it will be
liable to Roman DBDR if and to the extent any claims by a third party for services rendered or
products sold to Roman DBDR, or a prospective target business with which Roman DBDR has
entered into a written letter of intent, confidentiality or similar agreement or business combination
agreement, reduce the amount of funds in the Trust Account. This liability will not apply with
respect to any claims by a third party or prospective target business who executed a waiver of any
right, title, interest or claim of any kind in or to any monies held in the Trust Account or to any
claims under Roman DBDR’s indemnity of the underwriters of Roman DBDR’s initial public
offering against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act.

+ In order to fund working capital deficiencies or finance transaction costs in connection with the
Business Combination, the Sponsor or an affiliate of the Sponsor or certain of our directors and
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officers may, but are not obligated to, loan us funds as may be required. Following the Closing, the
Sponsor or an affiliate of the Sponsor or certain of our directors and officers would be entitled to the
repayment of any working capital loans and advances that have been made to Roman DBDR and
remain outstanding, and up to $1,500,000 of such working capital loans or advances may be
convertible into warrants identical to the Private Placement Warrants at a price of $1.00 per warrant
at the option of the Sponsor or an affiliate of the Sponsor or certain of our directors and officers. As
of the date of this proxy statement, no working capital loans or advances have been made to us. If
Roman DBDR does not complete an initial business combination within the required period, Roman
DBDR may use a portion of its working capital held outside the Trust Account to repay the working
capital loans, but no proceeds held in the Trust Account would be used to repay the working capital
loans or advances.

» Following the consummation of the Business Combination, Roman DBDR will continue to
indemnify Roman DBDR’s existing directors and officers and will maintain a directors’ and officers’
liability insurance policy.

* Upon the Closing, subject to the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement, the Sponsor, Roman
DBDR’s officers and directors and their respective affiliates may be entitled to reimbursement for
any reasonable out-of-pocket expenses related to identifying, investigating and consummating an
initial business combination, and repayment of any other loans, if any, and on such terms as to be
determined by Roman DBDR from time to time, made by the Sponsor or certain of our officers and
directors to finance transaction costs in connection with an intended initial business combination.

Stock Exchange Listing

Roman DBDR’s Units, Public Shares and Public Warrants are currently listed on Nasdaq under the
symbols “DBDRU,” “DBDR” and “DBDRW,” respectively. Roman DBDR intends to apply to list the
Roman DBDR Common Stock and Public Warrants of the Combined Entity on Nasdaq under the symbols
“CMPO” and “CMPOW?”, respectively, upon the Closing. The Combined Entity will not have Units listed
for trading following the Closing.

Sources and Uses for Funding the Business Combination

The following tables summarizes the sources and uses for funding the Business Combination based on
(i) the assumption that there will be no redemptions and (ii) the assumption that there will be maximum
redemptions. See section titled “Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information” for
further information.

(i) No redemptions

Sources of Funds Uses
(in millions)
Cash available in Trust Account'”) $ 236 Cash Merger Consideration $ 361
CompoSecure Reimbursable Transaction
Common PIPE Investment proceeds $ 45 Expenses $ 15
Roman DBDR Estimated Transaction
Note PIPE Investment proceeds $ 130 Expenses® $ 35
Net Debt under CompoSecure Rollover Net Debt under CompoSecure Rollover
Credit Agreement $ 250 Credit Agreement $ 250
CompoSecure Rollover Equity $ 492 CompoSecure Rollover Equity $ 492
Sponsor Shares $ 58 Sponsor Shares $ 58
Total Sources® $1,211 Total Uses®® $1,211

(1) Cash available in Trust Account as of September 30, 2021 (a) assumes no shares of Class A Common
Stock are redeemed in connection with the Business Combination and (b) excludes estimated interest
earned by the Closing Date.

(2) The level of redemption also impacts the effective underwriting fee incurred in connection with the
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Roman DBDR IPO. In a no redemption scenario, based on the approximately $236.3 million in the
Trust Account as of September 30, 2021, Roman DBDR's $8,104,600 in deferred underwriting fees
represents an effective deferred underwriting fee of approximately 3.4% as a percentage of cash in the
Trust Account. In a maximum redemption scenario, the effective deferred underwriting fee would be
approximately 9.5% as a percentage of the cash in the Trust Account.

(3) Totals may differ due to rounding.
(4) Includes $150,000 Member Representative Holdback Amount.

(ii) Maximum redemptions

Sources of Funds Uses

(in millions)

Cash available in Trust Account'” $ 85 Cash Merger Consideration $ 210
CompoSecure Reimbursable Transaction

Common PIPE Investment proceeds $ 45 Expenses(z) $ 15
Roman DBDR Estimated Transaction

Note PIPE Investment proceeds $ 130 Expenses $ 35

Net Debt under CompoSecure Rollover Net Debt under CompoSecure Rollover

Credit Agreement $ 250 Credit Agreement $ 250
CompoSecure Rollover Equity $ 643 CompoSecure Rollover Equity $ 643
Sponsor Shares $ 58 Sponsor Shares $ 58

Total Sources® $1,211 Total Uses® $1,211

(1) Cash available in Trust Account as of September 30, 2021 (a) assumes the maximum number of shares
of Class A Common Stock are redeemed in connection with the Business Combination and (b) excludes
estimated interest earned by the Closing Date.

(2) The level of redemption also impacts the effective underwriting fee incurred in connection with the
Roman DBDR IPO. In a no redemption scenario, based on the approximately $236.3 million in the
Trust Account as of September 30, 2021, Roman DBDR’s $8,104,600 in deferred underwriting fees
represents an effective deferred underwriting fee of approximately 3.4% as a percentage of cash in the
Trust Account. In a maximum redemption scenario, the effective deferred underwriting fee would be
approximately 9.5% as a percentage of the cash in the Trust Account.

(3) Assumes a nominal share price of $10.00.
(4) Totals may differ due to rounding.
(5) Includes $150,000 Member Representative Holdback Amount.

Comparison of Stockholder Rights

Following the Closing, the rights of the Combined Entity’s Stockholders will be governed by the
Proposed Charter and the Amended By-laws. See the section titled “Proposal No. 3: The Governing
Documents Proposal.”

Appraisal Rights

Appraisal rights are not available to holders of shares of Roman DBDR Common Stock in connection
with the proposed Business Combination.

Proxy Solicitation

We are soliciting proxies on behalf of the Roman DBDR Board. This solicitation is being made by mail
but also may be made by telephone or in person. Roman DBDR has engaged Morrow Sodali LLC (“Morrow
Sodali”) to assist in the solicitation of proxies for the Special Meeting. Any solicitation made and
information provided in such a solicitation will be consistent with the written proxy statement and proxy
card.
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Roman DBDR will bear the entire cost of the proxy solicitation, including the preparation, assembly,
printing, mailing and distribution of the proxy materials. Roman DBDR will pay Morrow Sodali a fee of
$32,500, plus disbursements, reimburse Morrow Sodali for its reasonable out-of-pocket expenses and
indemnify Morrow Sodali and its affiliates against certain claims, liabilities, losses, damages and expenses
for their services as our proxy solicitor.

If you send in your completed proxy card, you may still vote your shares online during the Special
Meeting if you revoke your proxy before it is exercised at the Special Meeting.

Emerging Growth Company

Section 102(b)(1) of the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012 (the “JOBS Act”) exempts
emerging growth companies from being required to comply with new or revised financial accounting
standards until private companies (that is, those that have not had a registration statement under the
Securities Act declared effective or do not have a class of securities registered under the Exchange Act) are
required to comply with the new or revised financial accounting standards. The JOBS Act provides that a
company can elect to opt out of the extended transition period and comply with the requirements that apply
to non-emerging growth companies but any such an election to opt out is irrevocable. We have elected not to
opt out of such extended transition period which means that when a standard is issued or revised and it has
different application dates for public or private companies, we, as an emerging growth company, can adopt
the new or revised standard at the time private companies adopt the new or revised standard. This may make
comparison of our financial statements with those of another public company that is neither an emerging
growth company nor an emerging growth company that has opted out of using the extended transition period
difficult or impossible because of the potential differences in accounting standards used.

We will remain an emerging growth company until the earlier of: (1) the last day of the fiscal year
(a) following the fifth anniversary of the consummation of our initial public offering, (b) in which we have
total annual gross revenue of at least $1.07 billion, or (c) in which we are deemed to be a large accelerated
filer, which means the market value of our common equity that is held by non-affiliates exceeds
$700 million as of the end of the prior fiscal year’s second fiscal quarter; and (2) the date on which we have
issued more than $1.00 billion in non-convertible debt securities during the prior three-year period.
References herein to “emerging growth company” have the meaning associated with it in the JOBS Act.

Smaller Reporting Company

Additionally, we are a “smaller reporting company” as defined in Item 10(f)(1) of Regulation S-K.
Smaller reporting companies may take advantage of certain reduced disclosure obligations, including,
among other things, providing only two years of audited financial statements. We will remain a smaller
reporting company as long as either (i) the market value of the Combined Entity’s Common Stock held by
non-affiliates is less than $250 million as of the prior June 30, or (ii) the Combined Entity has less than
$100 million in annual revenues and the market value of the Combined Entity’s Common Stock held by
non-affiliates is less than $700 million as of the prior June 30.

U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations of the Exercise of Redemption Rights

For a discussion summarizing the U.S. federal income tax considerations of the exercise of redemption
rights, please see the section titled “Proposal No. 1 — The Business Combination Proposal — The Merger
Agreement — Certain Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations of the Redemption.”

Summary of Risk Factors

Below is a summary of the principal factors that stockholders should considered when deciding
whether to vote or instruct their vote to be cast to approve the Proposals described in this proxy statement.
This summary does not address all of the risks that CompoSecure faces. Additional discussion of the risks
summarized in this risk factor summary, and other risks that CompoSecure faces, can be found below under
the heading “Risk Factors” and should be carefully considered, together with other information in this proxy
statement.
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Risks Related to CompoSecure’s Business

The COVID-19 pandemic and the measures implemented to contain the spread of the virus have had
a negative impact on CompoSecure’s business and result of operations and, if continued, could be
amplified and have a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition and results of
operations.

CompoSecure may not be able to sustain its revenue growth rate in the future.

Failure to retain existing customers or identify and attract new customers could adversely affect
CompoSecure’s business, financial condition and results of operations.

Data and security breaches could compromise CompoSecure’s systems and confidential information,
cause reputational and financial damage, and increase risks of litigation, which could adversely
affect its business, financial condition and results of operations.

System outages, data loss or other interruptions affecting CompoSecure’s operations could adversely
affect its business and reputation.

Disruptions at CompoSecure’s primary production facility may adversely affect its business, results
of operations and/or financial condition.

CompoSecure may not be able to recruit, retain and develop qualified personnel, including for areas
of newer specialized technology which could adversely affect its ability to grow its business.

CompoSecure’s future growth may depend upon its ability to develop, introduce and commercialize
new products, which can be a lengthy and complex process. If CompoSecure is unable to introduce
new products and services in a timely manner, its business could be materially adversely affected.

A disruption in CompoSecure’s operations or supply chain could adversely affect its business and
financial results.

CompoSecure has limited experience in the Cryptocurrency industry and may not succeed in
commercializing the Arculus Platform.

Digital Asset Wallet storage systems, such as the Arculus Cold Storage Wallet, are subject to
potential illegal misuse, risks related to a loss of funds due to theft of Digital Assets, security and
cybersecurity risks, system failures and other operational issues, which could cause damage to
CompoSecure’s reputation and brand.

Regulatory changes or actions may restrict the use of the Arculus Wallet or Digital Assets in a
manner that adversely affects CompoSecure’s business, prospects or operations.

CompoSecure relies on third-party partners to provide certain features of the Arculus Wallet, and any
interruptions in services provided by these third parties may impair our ability to support our
customers.

Production quality and manufacturing process disruptions could adversely affect CompoSecure’s
business.

CompoSecure is dependent on certain distribution partners for distribution of its products and
services. A loss of distribution partners could adversely affect CompoSecure’s business.

CompoSecure faces competition that may result in a loss of its market share and/or a decline in
profitability.
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Risks Related to Our Indebtedness

CompoSecure has, and following completion of the Business Combination the Combined Entity will
have, a substantial amount of indebtedness, which may limit our operating flexibility and could
adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Upon the occurrence of an event of default relating to the CompoSecure credit facility, the lenders
could elect to accelerate payments due and terminate all commitments to extend further credit.

The debt outstanding under CompoSecure’s existing credit facility has a variable rate of interest that
is based on the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) which may have consequences for
CompoSecure that cannot be reasonably predicted and may increase CompoSecure’s cost of
borrowing in the future.

Risks Related to Roman DBDR and the Business Combination

Following the consummation of the Business Combination, our only significant asset will be our
partial ownership of CompoSecure’s business. If CompoSecure’s business is not profitably operated,
we may be unable to pay us dividends or make distributions to enable us to pay any dividends on our
common stock or satisfy our other financial obligations.

Provisions in our charter and Delaware law may inhibit a takeover of us, which could limit the price
investors might be willing to pay in the future for our common stock and could entrench
management.

Nasdaq may not list our securities on its exchange, and if they are listed, we may be unable to satisfy
listing requirements in the future, which could limit investors’ ability to effect transactions in our
securities and subject us to additional trading restrictions.

As an “emerging growth company,” we cannot be certain if the reduced disclosure requirements
applicable to “emerging growth companies” will make our common stock less attractive to investors.

If the Combined Entity’s performance following the Business Combination does not meet market
expectations, the price of our securities may decline.

Even if we consummate the Business Combination, the public warrants may never be in the money,
and they may expire worthless.

We may redeem your unexpired warrants prior to their exercise at a time that is disadvantageous to
you, thereby making your warrants worthless.

Our stockholders will experience immediate dilution due to the issuance of common stock to the
members of CompoSecure as consideration in the Business Combination and the PIPE Investment.
Having a minority share position likely reduces the influence that our current stockholders have on
the management of the Combined Entity.

Our directors and officers have discretion in agreeing to changes or waivers to the terms of the
Merger Agreement and related transactions, which may result in a conflict of interest when
determining whether such changes or waivers are appropriate and in our public stockholders’ best
interest.

The announcement of the proposed Business Combination could disrupt CompoSecure’s
relationships with its members, bank partners, lenders, business partners, enterprise customers, and
others, as well as its operating results and business generally.

Risks Related to the Redemption

Stockholders of Roman DBDR who wish to redeem their shares for a pro rata portion of the Trust
Account must comply with specific requirements for redemption, which may make it difficult for
them to exercise their redemption rights prior to the deadline. If stockholders fail to comply with the
redemption requirements specified in this proxy statement, they will not be entitled to redeem their
shares of Class A Common Stock for a pro rata portion of the funds held in the Trust Account.

If a public stockholder fails to receive notice of Roman DBDR’s offer to redeem its Public Shares in
connection with the Business Combination, or fails to comply with the procedures for tendering its
shares, such shares may not be redeemed.
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* Roman DBDR does not have a specified maximum redemption threshold. The absence of such a
redemption threshold may make it possible for Roman DBDR to complete a business combination
with which a substantial majority of its stockholders do not agree.

+ If you or a “group” of stockholders of which you are a part are deemed to hold an aggregate of more
than 15% of the shares of Class A Common Stock issued in the Roman DBDR IPO, you (or, if a
member of such a group, all of the members of such group in the aggregate) will lose the ability to
redeem all such shares in excess of 15% of the shares of Class A Common Stock issued in the
Roman DBDR IPO.

» There is no guarantee that a stockholder’s decision whether to redeem its shares for a pro rata portion
of the Trust Account will put the stockholder in a better future economic position.
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SUMMARY CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL AND OTHER DATA OF COMPOSECURE

The following tables summarize CompoSecure’s consolidated financial and other data. The summary
consolidated statements of operations data for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 and the
consolidated balance sheet data as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 was derived from its audited
consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this proxy statement. The summary consolidated
statements of operations data for the nine months ended September 30, 2021 and 2020 and the summary
consolidated balance sheet data as of September 30, 2021 was derived from CompoSecure’s unaudited
interim consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this proxy statement. CompoSecure’s
unaudited interim consolidated financial statements were prepared on a basis consistent with its audited
consolidated financial statements and include, in management’s opinion, all adjustments, consisting only of
normal recurring adjustments, that CompoSecure considers necessary for a fair presentation of the financial
information set forth in those statements included elsewhere in this proxy statement. CompoSecure’s
historical results are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected in any future period, and
interim financial results are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the full year.

You should read this data together with CompoSecure’s consolidated financial statements and related
notes included elsewhere in this proxy statement and the sections titled “Selected Consolidated Financial
and Other Data of CompoSecure” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations of CompoSecure.”

Nine Months Ended September 30, Year Ended December 31,

2021 2020 2020 2019
(in thousands)
Statement of Operations Data:
Revenues $192,648 $206,873 $260,586  $243,290
Gross profit 105,574 106,882 132,627 127,863
Total operating expenses 33,348 28,273 48,669 40,937
Adjusted EBITDA 81,163 94,912 115,501 106,845
Net income 63,396 74,890 77,816 81,473
Statement of Cash Flows Data:
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 48,046 $ 73,587 $ 87,062 $ 81,186
Net cash used in investing activities (3,900) (7,199) (7,501) (9,642)
Net cash used in financing activities (45,333) (75,607) (92,867)  (57,840)
As of September 30, As of December 31,
2021 2020 2019
(in thousands)
Balance Sheet Data:
Total assets $ 107,752 $ 81,358 $ 95,525
Total liabilities 258,118 273,911 151,074
Total members’ deficit (150,366) (192,553)  (55,549)
Working Capital 29,885 11,873 33,416

Use of Non-GAAP Financial Measures

This Proxy Statement includes certain non-GAAP financial measures that are not prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“GAAP”) and that may be
different from non-GAAP financial measures used by other companies. Roman and CompoSecure believe
EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA are useful to investors in evaluating CompoSecure’s financial performance.
CompoSecure uses these measures internally to establish forecasts, budgets and operational goals to manage
and monitor its business, as well as evaluate its underlying historical performance and to measure incentive
compensation, as CompoSecure believes that these non-GAAP financial measures depict the true
performance
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of the business by encompassing only relevant and controllable events, enabling CompoSecure to evaluate
and plan more effectively for the future. In addition, CompoSecure’s debt agreements contain covenants that
use a variation of these measures for purposes of determining debt covenant compliance. CompoSecure
believes that investors should have access to the same set of tools that its management uses in analyzing
operating results. EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA should not be considered as measures of financial
performance under U.S. GAAP, and the items excluded from EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA are
significant components in understanding and assessing CompoSecure’s financial performance. Accordingly,
these key business metrics have limitations as an analytical tool. They should not be considered as an
alternative to net income or any other performance measures derived in accordance with U.S. GAAP or as
an alternative to cash flows from operating activities as a measure of CompoSecure’s liquidity, and may be
different from similarly titled non-GAAP measures used by other companies. The following unaudited table
presents the reconciliation of net income to EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA for the periods indicated.

Nine Months Ended September 30, Year Ended December 31,

2021 2020 2020 2019
(in thousands)

Net income $63,396 $74,890 $ 77,816 $ 81,473
Add:

Depreciation 7,813 7,332 9,916 8,606
Interest expense, net 8,830 3,719 6,142 5,454
EBITDA $80,039 $85,942 $ 93,874 $ 95,533
Special management bonus expense — 4,518 15,708 7,631
Equity compensation expense 1,124 1,473 1,848 1,681
Other®"” — 2,979 4,071 2,000
Adjusted EBITDA $81,163 $94,912 $115,501 $106,845

(1) Primarily includes the non-recurring transaction expenses relating to the proposed Business
Combination for the nine months ended September 30, 2020 and the year ended December 31, 2020
and non-recurring litigation costs for the year ended December 31, 2019.
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PROJECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

In connection with Roman’s consideration of the potential Business Combination, CompoSecure
provided Roman with projected financial information for the periods ending December 31, 2021 through
2025. The financial projections do not take into account any circumstances or events occurring after the date
they were prepared (February 2021) including, any changes to CompoSecure’s operations or strategy that
may be implemented after the time that the projections were prepared. The projected financial information
was prepared in good faith by CompoSecure’s management, with assistance from its financial advisor, FT
Partners, for internal use, capital budgeting and other management purposes, and are based on their
reasonable best estimates and facts, circumstances and information available at the time following its
detailed analysis of relevant publicly available market data and internal estimates. The projected financial
information was also used by FT Partners in connection with the review of strategic opportunities on behalf
of CompoSecure. The projected financial information is subjective in many respects and therefore
susceptible to varying interpretations and the need for periodic revision based on actual experience and
business developments, and were not intended for use by potential investors or existing equityholders of
CompoSecure. While all projections are necessarily speculative, CompoSecure believes that a multi-year
forecast is appropriate in order to best reflect the commercial launch and growth over time of the Arculus
Ecosystem, and also believes that the projected financial information covering periods beyond 12 months
from its date of preparation carries increasingly higher levels of uncertainty and should be read in that
context. You are cautioned not to place undue reliance on the projected financial information in making a
decision regarding the Business Combination, as the projected financial information may be materially
different from actual results.

CompoSecure’s projected financial information was not prepared with a view towards public disclosure
or compliance with the published guidelines of the SEC, were not prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP
or the guidelines established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants for preparation and
presentation of prospective financial information. You are cautioned not to place undue reliance on the
CompoSecure projected financial information in making a decision regarding the Business Combination, as
the projections may differ materially from actual results.

The CompoSecure projected financial information reflects numerous assumptions, including economic,
market and operational assumptions, all of which are difficult to predict and many of which are beyond
CompoSecure’ control, such as the risks and uncertainties contained in the sections titled “Risk Factors”,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations of
CompoSecure” and “Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” included elsewhere in this
proxy statement. The financial projections for net revenue and the components thereof, and Adjusted
EBITDA/Adjusted EBITDA Margin provided below are forward-looking statements that are based on
certain assumptions, which are inherently subject to significant uncertainties and contingencies, many of
which are beyond CompoSecure’s control. There will be differences between actual and projected results,
and actual results may be materially greater or materially less than those contained in the CompoSecure
projected financial information. The inclusion of the CompoSecure projected financial information in this
proxy statement should not be regarded as an indication that CompoSecure or its representatives currently
consider the CompoSecure projected financial information to be a reliable prediction of actual future events,
and undue reliance should not be placed on the CompoSecure projected financial information to make a
decision regarding the proposals presented in this proxy statement. You are encouraged to review the
financial statements of CompoSecure included in this proxy statement and not to place undue reliance on
any single financial measure. The financial projections included in this Proxy Statement are included solely
to give shareholders access to certain information that was made available to CompoSecure’s financial
advisor and are not included for the purpose of influencing any shareholder to make any investment
decision with respect to the proposals presented in this Proxy Statement.

The projected financial information reflects numerous assumptions, including assumptions with respect
to general business, economic, market, regulatory and financial conditions, and various other factors, all of
which are difficult to predict and many of which are beyond CompoSecure’s control, such as the risks and
uncertainties contained in the section entitled “Risk Factors.” Furthermore, the projected financial
information does not take into account any circumstances or events occurring after the date on which the
projections were prepared, which was February 2021. The primary assumptions on which CompoSecure’s
management based its projected financial information were:
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» consummation of the Business Combination in the second half of 2021;

+ anticipated market size and growth rate for CompoSecure’s Payment Hardware products and
services, based on CompoSecure management’s review of published data and management estimates:

+ Edgar Dunn & Company, a global financial services and payments consulting firm, estimates
there were approximately 13.7 billion Payment Cards in circulation worldwide in 2020,
expected to grow to approximately 14.4 billion in 2021 and to approximately 18.6 billion by
2025;

» CompoSecure expects to ship approximately 22 million Payment Cards in 2021, and expects
that shipments will grow to 39 million by 2025;

» Accordingly, CompoSecure estimates that it currently has a market share of Payments Cards in
circulation of approximately 0.15%, estimated to grow to approximately 0.21% by 2025
(representing cards shipped in that year relative to total cards in circulation).

+ In addition, the International Card Manufacturers Association (ICMA), the leading global card
industry association, reported that there were approximately 5.2 billion Payment Cards
manufactured in 2020 and management estimates growth in cards manufactured to
approximately 8.0 billion by 2025 (growth estimates based on the ratio of cards manufactured to
total cards in circulation in the base year);

» CompoSecure shipped approximately 20 million Payment Cards in 2020, for a market share of
approximately 0.4%, growing to approximately 0.5% by 2025 (representing cards shipped in
that year relative to total cards manufactured).

» commercial launch of the initial Arculus KeyTM card and related Arculus Wallet™ products,

commenced in the third quarter of 2021;

+ anticipated market size and growth rate for CompoSecure’s emergent Arculus products and services,

based on CompoSecure management’s review of published data and management estimates:

Estimated Crypto Wallets (mm)

2019-25E CAGR: 32% >
34
195
156
120
89
63

4.-’ I

2019 2020 2021E 2022E 2023E 2024E 2025E

* As illustrated above, Blockchain.com, a global Cryptocurrency exchange platform, reported that
there were approximately 63.4 million total Cryptocurrency Wallet users in 2020 and
management estimates that total users will grow to approximately 89 million in 2021 and to
approximately 234 million by 2025 (based on management’s expectation for a modestly slowing
growth rate over that time period);
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Estimated Global Annual Cold Storage Hardware Wallet
Market Revenue (mm)

2019-25E CAGR: 249 -
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As illustrated above, Mordor Intelligence, an independent market research firm, reported the
total dollar volume of Cold Storage Wallets at approximately $202 million in 2020, and
estimated that total dollar volume would grow to approximately $243 million in 2021 and
approximately $661 million by 2025;

CompoSecure estimates that there will be approximately 8 million Cold Storage Wallets sold
cumulative through 2021, expected to grow to approximately 36 million cumulative Cold
Storage Wallets sold through 2025;

CompoSecure estimates that Cold Storage Wallet sales represent approximately 9% of the total
Cryptocurrency Wallet users in 2021 (calculated as approximately 8 million Cold Storage
Wallets out of approximately 89 million total Cryptocurrency Wallet users), estimated to grow
to approximately 16% of the total Cryptocurrency Wallet users by 2025 (calculated as
approximately 36 million Cold Storage Wallets out of approximately 234 million total
Cryptocurrency Wallet users);

Management expects to sell approximately 100,000 Arculus KeyTM cards in 2021, and expects
unit sales to grow to an aggregate of approximately 7 million Arculus KeyTM cards through
2025;

* Accordingly, CompoSecure estimates that Arculus Cold Storage Wallet and Arculus Key™ card:

will have a market share of approximately 0.1% of total Cryptocurrency wallet users in 2021,
estimated to grow to approximately 1.77% by 2025; and

will have a market share of approximately 1% of Cold Storage Wallet sold through 2021,
estimated to grow to approximately 20% through 2025.

+ CompoSecure’s management believes that the current market for Cold Storage Wallets is fragmented
and offers many different solutions, and that by leveraging the scale advantages of its metal Payment
Card business, in combination with its belief that the Arculus Key™ card and Arculus Wallet™ is
more secure and has a better user experience for the consumer, CompoSecure will be able to drive
superior economics as compared to competitors in the market.

» CompoSecure’s market acceptance and market share growth assumptions set forth above are based
on its management’s assessment of the following key drivers:
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 To date, it is estimated that more than $2 billion in Cryptocurrencies have been stolen from user
Wallets (primarily Hot Storage wallets) and Cryptocurrency exchanges. The Arculus Platform is
envisioned to solve a chronic industry need for reliable, trusted and safe storage of digital
Blockchain-based Digital Assets, including Cryptocurrencies.

* As further described in the section “Summary of CompoSecure’s Business — Overview”, the
Arculus Platform’s three-factor authentication system, including the physical Arculus KeyTM
card, is designed to provide a superior level of security and eliminate much of the user
experience friction historically associated with competing legacy Cold Storage Wallet products.

+ CompoSecure expects to be able to leverage its two decades of experience with large-scale,
advanced manufacturing and deep technological expertise in its metal Payment Cards business
to drive adoption and expansion of its Arculus Platform, which uses the same metal form factor
as the Payment Cards business, in the Cold Storage Wallet market. Beginning with the
introduction of the first metal card in 2003, CompoSecure has continued to grow its production
and scale from approximately 5.8 million metal cards in 2015 to over 20 million metal cards in
2020 and has expanded the number of business clients served from approximately 30 in 2016 to
100 in 2020 (adding 44 new clients in 2020 alone), demonstrating widespread market
acceptance and growth.

* As indicated in the Financial Information by Segment table below, CompoSecure has committed
to estimated start-up costs, primarily marketing spending, for the Arculus Platform of
approximately $25 million in 2021 and approximately $50 million in 2022, which CompoSecure
expects will generate significant consumer and business interest in its Arculus Platform products
and services.

CompoSecure’s forecast reflects its management’s estimates of revenues expected to be derived from
several different sources, as shown in the following table:

Projected Net Revenue Evolution

Net Revenue by Solution ($mm)

B Metal Payment Card Solutions

B Crypto & Arculus Payments Salutions

Net Revenue by Type (Smm)

2025E

2%

Digital Assets, eGaming & Insurance

8%

5847
g 42%
11820 CAGR $336-$376 5490 oy <261 u Payments Hordware  ® Crypto Hordware
Sl;’g 2526 520- 560 %93 Subseription W Transaction fees
$243 $261 = Warranty & nsurance
$155 418 5480
243 $276 $316 $363
2018 2019 2020 2021E 2022E 2023E 2024E 2025E

As reflected in the graphs presented above, CompoSecure’s projected net revenues from its Arculus
business are expected to consist primarily of revenues derived from the Arculus Key™ card and Arculus
Wallet™ products and services, including anticipated transaction fees.

In addition, CompoSecure’s projected financial information reflects its management’s assessment of the
potential market opportunity, anticipated net revenues and related operating expenses from the ongoing
development of the Arculus Ecosystem to include additional products and services targeted for the
eGaming, warranty and insurance markets — which are each further described under the “Summary of
CompoSecure’s Business — Growth Opportunities — Arculus” section of this proxy statement.

CompoSecure expects that revenues from its Arculus Ecosystem in calendar years 2023 through 2025
will primarily be derived from business-to-business (“B2B”) and business-to-consumer (“B2C”) sales of
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hardware products (Arculus KeyTM card) and related transaction and/or subscription fees, as further
described under “Summary of CompoSecure’s Business — Growth Opportunities”. As reflected by the
“Digital Assets, eGaming and Insurance” category of the chart above, substantially all of such revenue
growth is expected to be derived from sales in the eGaming market (i.e. online gaming markets), with less
than 2% of revenues in 2025 coming from Warranty and Insurance. Importantly, the type of
Cryptocurrencies or other Digital Assets present or active in the market are not expected to have a material
impact on the market adoption and expansion of Arculus’ products and services in this category, because the
holders of those assets will, CompoSecure believes, need and seek safe, secure and easy-to-use storage
technology to keep those assets safe from fraud, theft or other losses currently being experienced in the
market.

CompoSecure’s expected growth in the eGaming market is based on the following primary
assumptions:

» The eGaming market is well established, with published data (Source: Bloomberg; Mordor; Newzoo0)
showing approximately 2.7 billion users in 2020 (expected to grow to approximately 3 billion by
2023 and management believes this growth will continue through 2025) and approximately
$160 billion dollars spent in 2020 (expected to grow to over $257 billion by 2025).

* CompoSecure expects to be able to leverage its two decades of experience with large-scale, advanced
manufacturing and deep technological expertise in its metal Payment Cards business to drive
adoption and expansion of its Arculus Platform, which uses the same form factor as the Payment
Cards business, in the eGaming market. Beginning with the introduction of the first metal card in
2003, CompoSecure has continued to grow its production and scale from approximately 5.8 million
metal cards in 2015 to over 20 million metal cards in 2020 and has expanded the number of business
clients served from approximately 30 in 2016 to 100 in 2020 (adding 44 new clients in 2020 alone),
demonstrating widespread market acceptance and growth.

» CompoSecure has identified four primary demonstrated needs in the eGaming market, from both
platform providers and users, for increased security, authentication and ease-of-use, which provide
support for CompoSecure to enter this market and achieve meaningful revenues. These include:

* The need for improved authentication for user registrations and logins to the gaming platform;

* The need to reduce fraud and/or eliminate in-game “card not present” transactions, in which the
gaming platform is charged a higher processing fee, in favor of in-game “card present”
transactions, saving the platform significant money in processing fees;

* The need for users to have a safe, secure and easy-to-use Cold Storage device for NFTs and
other Digital Assets purchased within the gaming platform; and

* The need for platform providers to enable users to pay for in-game transactions using
Cryptocurrencies.

» Substantially all of the technology for Arculus’ products and services presently expected by
CompoSecure’s management to be applied to the eGaming market has already been developed.

In addition, CompoSecure’s management based its projected financial information on a detailed
analysis of relevant information and other assumptions, including, among other things:

+ the market acceptance and penetration of CompoSecure’s products and services;

* the expected average selling price of CompoSecure’s products and services;

+ proceeds from revenue share arrangements with current and anticipated future business partners;
+ continued access to key materials and components at the costs projected by CompoSecure;

+ competition within CompoSecure’s markets and the possible pricing pressures which could result
from such competition; and

* the operating expenses CompoSecure expects to incur in order to grow its business, comply with
applicable regulatory obligations and compete effectively with other companies offering Payment
Cards and Cryptocurrency and Digital Asset storage and security solutions, all of which could
change over time.
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CompoSecure’s forecasts include certain assumptions regarding the impact of current and anticipated
regulatory compliance on the products and services expected to be offered through the Arculus Platform and
CompoSecure’s Metal Payment Cards operations. In addition, CompoSecure’s forecasts account for the
impact of regulatory uncertainty associated with the products and services expected to be offered through
the Arculus Platform. As noted elsewhere in this proxy statement, the regulatory environment for
Cryptocurrency, in general, and Cold Storage Wallets, in particular, is still developing and presents a high
degree of uncertainty concerning future regulatory compliance obligations. Accordingly, the Mordor
Intelligence market data from which CompoSecure has extrapolated anticipated future selling volumes of its
Cold Storage Wallet products, includes assumptions reflecting restrained growth in the total dollar volume
of Cold Storage Wallets resulting from uncertainty in the regulatory environment during the projected
periods. Further, in light of the fact that future Arculus Ecosystem products and services targeted for the
eGaming, insurance and warranty markets have not yet been commercialized, there is additional uncertainty
concerning CompoSecure’s regulatory obligations. In addition, regulatory compliance typically increases
operating costs for a business relating to additional personnel, professional fees and other costs to monitor
regulatory changes and adopt and implement processes and procedures to assure compliance. Accordingly,
CompoSecure’s earnings projections take into account increasing professional fees over the projection
period, a component of which reflects increasing personnel and related costs associated with reviewing and
assessing regulatory matters applicable to the Arculus Platform, as well as ongoing regulatory compliance
costs. To the extent that these regulatory assumptions prove to be incorrect, actual results may differ
significantly from the projections included in the CompoSecure forecasts. If significant or unexpected
changes in the regulatory environment occur, our assumptions with respect to such regulatory uncertainty
may prove to be inaccurate, which could cause our actual results to deviate from the projected financial
results.

CompoSecure believes that the assumptions used to derive its projected financial information are both
reasonable and supportable. In preparing the projected financial information, CompoSecure’s management
relied on a number of factors, including the management team’s significant experience in the Payment Cards
industry, the actual historical performance of CompoSecure, as well as its management’s detailed analysis
regarding Payment Cards and Cryptocurrency market trends and available data on other companies selling
products and services to the Cryptocurrency and Digital Asset markets. Although the assumptions and
estimates on which the projected financial information for revenues and costs are based are believed by
CompoSecure’s management to be reasonable and based on the best then currently available information,
the projected financial information are forward-looking statements that are based on assumptions that are
inherently subject to significant uncertainties and contingencies, many of which are beyond CompoSecure’s.
There may be differences between actual and projected financial results, and actual results may be
materially greater or materially less than those contained in the projected financial information. The
inclusion of the projected financial information in this proxy statement should not be regarded as an
indication that CompoSecure, Roman or their respective representatives considered or consider the
projected financial information to be a reliable prediction of future events, and undue reliance should not be
placed on the projected financial information.

EXCEPT AS DESCRIBED BELOW AND EXCEPT AS REQUIRED BY APPLICABLE SECURITIES
LAWS, COMPOSECURE DOES NOT INTEND TO MAKE PUBLICLY AVAILABLE ANY UPDATE OR
OTHER REVISION TO THE COMPOSECURE PROJECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION. THE
COMPOSECURE PROJECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION DOES NOT TAKE INTO ACCOUNT ANY
CIRCUMSTANCES OR EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE DATE THAT SUCH INFORMATION WAS
PREPARED. READERS OF THIS PROXY STATEMENT ARE CAUTIONED NOT TO PLACE UNDUE
RELIANCE ON THE UNAUDITED COMPOSECURE PROJECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION SET
FORTH BELOW. NONE OF ROMAN DBDR, COMPOSECURE, NOR ANY OF THEIR RESPECTIVE
AFFILIATES, OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, ADVISORS OR OTHER REPRESENTATIVES HAS MADE OR
MAKES ANY REPRESENTATION TO ANY ROMAN DBDR STOCKHOLDER OR ANY OTHER
PERSON REGARDING ULTIMATE PERFORMANCE COMPARED TO THE INFORMATION
CONTAINED IN THE COMPOSECURE PROJECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OR THAT
FINANCIAL AND OPERATING RESULTS WILL BE ACHIEVED.
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The following unaudited table presents projected net revenue and Adjusted EBITDA for the years
ending December 31, 2021 through December 31, 2025.

20210 20220 2023M 20240 20250
Low High Low High

Net Revenue

Payments Hardware $276 $276 $316 $316 $363 $418 $ 480
Arculus — 20 20 60 127 429 1,097
Total Net Revenue $276 $296 $336 $376 $490 $847 $1,577
Adj EBITDA $ 95 $110 $100 $110 $160 $271 $ 586
Adj EBITDA Margin % 344% 37.2% 29.8% 29.3% 32.7% 32.0% 37.2%

(1) Estimated amounts.
(2) Includes estimated start-up costs for Arculus of $25 million in 2021 and $50 million in 2022.

(3) CompoSecure launched the Arculus Cold Storage Wallet product in the third quarter of 2021.
CompoSecure is providing a range of potential forecasted operating results for 2021 and 2022 based on
the possible variable timing of receiving orders for these new products.

A summary of the financial forecast information regarding projected revenue ranges for (1) metal
Payment Card solutions and (2) Arculus Crypto & Digital Assets Ecosystem for fiscal years 2021 through
2025 provided to the Roman DBDR Board, as well as the PIPE Investors, is set forth below (dollar amounts
presented below are in millions).

Financial Information by Segment

($ in Millions)
Metal Payment Card Solutions Arculus Crypto & Digital Assets Ecosystem
2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Unit Sales 22 25 29 33 39 0.1 0.3 2 7 17
% growth 7%  15%  14%  15% 15% — 255%  533% 229%  155%
Net Revenue $276 $316 $363 $418 $480 100 § 402 $127 $429 $1,097
% growth 6% 15% 15% 15%  15% — 300% 217% 238%  156%
Operating Expenses® $(156) $(178) $(205) $(237) $(272) $ (3) $(23) $(55) $(161) $ (368)
Marketing Expenses $(0.3) $(0.3) $(0.4) $(0.4) $(0.5 $(225) $(50) $(70) $(175) $ (350)
Adjusted EBITDA $120 $138 $158 $181 $207 $(18)W $(33)® $ 2 $ 93 $ 379
% margin 43%  44%  44%  43%  43% nm nm 1%  22% 35%

(1) Assumes mid-point of Arculus ecosystem revenue range of $0 million — $20 million for fiscal year
2021.

(2) Assumes mid-point of Arculus ecosystem revenue range of $20 million — $60 million for fiscal year
2022.

(3) Operating Expenses excludes depreciation and amortization and marketing expense, but includes cost
of goods sold, personnel costs, commissions, professional fees, rent, non-income taxes, public company
costs, and other expenses.

(4) Assumes mid-point of Arculus ecosystem adjusted EBITDA range of $25 million — $10 million for
fiscal year 2021.

(5) Assumes mid-point of Arculus ecosystem adjusted EBITDA range of $38 million — $28 million for
fiscal year 2022.
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Due to the forward-looking nature of the foregoing projections, specific quantifications of the charges
excluded from the non-GAAP financial measures, including with respect to depreciation, amortization,
interest and taxes, that would be required to reconcile the non-GAAP financial measures included in such
projections to GAAP measures are not available so it is not feasible to provide accurate forecasted non-
GAAP reconciliations without unreasonable effort. Consequently, no disclosure of estimated comparable
GAAP measures is included and no reconciliation of the forward-looking non-GAAP financial measures is
included.

Non-GAAP financial measures should not be considered in isolation from, or as a substitute for,
financial information presented in compliance with GAAP, and may not be comparable to similarly titled
measures used by other companies.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL AND OTHER DATA OF ROMAN DBDR

The following tables present Roman DBDR’s summary financial and other data for the periods
indicated. Roman DBDR has derived the summary statements of operations data for the period indicated
and the balance sheet data as of December 31, 2020 from its audited financial statements included elsewhere
in this proxy statement. The summary statements of operations data for the nine months ended
September 30, 2021 and the summary balance sheet data as of September 30, 2021 was derived from Roman
DBDR’s unaudited interim financial statements included elsewhere in this proxy statement. Roman DBDR’s

unaudited interim financial statements were prepared on a basis consistent with its audited financial
statements and include, in management’s opinion, all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring
adjustments, that Roman DBDR considers necessary for a fair presentation of the financial information set
forth in those statements included elsewhere in this proxy statement. Roman DBDR’s historical results are
not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected in any future period, and interim financial
results are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the full year.

You should read this data together with our financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in
this proxy statement and the section titled “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition

and Results of Operations of Roman DBDR.”

For the period

For the nine from August 21,
months ended 2020 (Inception) to
September 30, 2021 December 31, 2020

Formation and operating costs $ 3,338,138 $ 188,995
Loss from operations (3,338,138) (188,995)

Other Income/(Expense)

Change in FV of Derivative Liability: Private Placement Warrants $ (4,768,456) $(1,842,358)
Change in FV of Derivative Liability: Public Warrants (4,515,420) (1,968,260)
Transaction costs — Private Placement Warrants — (22,475)
Transaction costs — Public Warrants — (692,235)
Compensation expense — (650,244)

Interest earned (expense) on marketable securities 74,485 22,970

Unrealized gain on marketable securities held in Trust Account — 919
Total other income/(expense) (9,209,391) (5,151,683)

Net loss

Basic and diluted weighted average shares outstanding, Class A

$(12,547,529)

$(5,340,678)

Common stock subject to possible redemption 22,290,037 19,250,109
Basic and diluted net loss per share, Class A Common stock subject to

possible redemption $ (0.45) $ (0.21)
Basic and diluted weighted average shares outstanding, Class B

Common stock 5,789,000 5,601,728
Basic and diluted net loss per share, Class B Common stock $ (0.45) $ (0.21)
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Balance Sheet Data:
Working capital (deficiency)
Total assets

Total liabilities
Stockholder’s deficit

September 30, 2021 December 31, 2020

(Restated)
$ (2,247,947) $ 1,021,920
$236,530,120 $237,253,393
$ 47,482,131 $ 35,657,874
$(47,143,210)  $(34,595,681)
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SUMMARY UNAUDITED PRO FORMA
CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following summary unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information has been
derived from the unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet as of September 30, 2021 and the
unaudited pro forma condensed combined statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 2020
and the nine months ended September 30, 2021 included in “Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined
Financial Information.”

The summary unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information should be read in
conjunction with the unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet and the unaudited pro forma
condensed combined statement of operations, and the accompanying notes. In addition, the unaudited
condensed combined pro forma financial information was based on and should be read in conjunction with
the historical financial statements of Roman DBDR and CompoSecure, including the accompanying notes,
which are included elsewhere in this proxy statement.

The Business Combination will be accounted for as a reverse capitalization, with no goodwill or other
intangible assets recorded, in accordance with GAAP. Under this method of accounting, Roman DBDR is
treated as the “acquired” company for financial reporting purposes. Accordingly, for accounting purposes,
the financial statements of the Combined Entity will represent a continuation of the financial statements of
CompoSecure with the Business Combination being treated as the equivalent of CompoSecure issuing stock
for the net assets of Roman DBDR, accompanied by a recapitalization. The net assets of CompoSecure are
stated at historical cost, with no goodwill or other intangible assets recorded. Operations prior to the
Business Combination are those of CompoSecure.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information has been prepared using the below
assumptions with respect to the potential redemption into cash of Roman DBDR’s Class A common stock:

* Assuming No Redemptions: This presentation assumes that no Roman DBDR shareholders exercise
redemption rights with respect to their public shares.

* Assuming Maximum Redemption: This presentation assumes that approximately 64% of Roman
DBDR’s public stockholders exercise redemption rights with respect to their public shares. This
scenario assumes that 14,724,627 public shares are redeemed for an aggregate redemption payment
of approximately $150.2 million, based on approximately $236.3 million in the trust and 23,156,000
public shares outstanding as of September 30, 2021. This is presented as the maximum redemptions
scenario because Roman DBDR is obligated to have an aggregate of at least $210 million in cash
after considering redemptions, proceeds from the PIPE Investment and $50 million of transaction
expenses as a condition to Closing the proposed Business Combination.

1)

No Redemption Maximum Redemption
Stockholder Group Shares % Shares %
Former CompoSecure equity holders 49,195,000  59.5% 63,919,627  77.3%
PIPE shares 4,500,000 5.4% 4,500,000 5.4%
Roman DBDR public common 23,156,000 28.0% 8,431,373 10.2%
Roman DBDR sponsor shares 5,789,000 ﬂ% 5,789,000 ﬂ%

82,640,000 100% 82,640,000 100%

(1) This number does not include 7,500,000 earnout shares which may be issued to CompoSecure equity
holders upon the achievement of certain stock price thresholds as described in the Merger Agreement.

These numbers do not take into account warrants to purchase Roman DBDR Common Stock that will
be outstanding immediately following the completion of the Business Combination.

If the actual facts are different than these assumptions, then the amounts and shares outstanding in the
unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information will be different and those changes could be
material.
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(in thousands, except share and per share amounts) No Redemption = Maximum Redemption

Summary Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statement of

Operations Data
For the nine months ended September 30, 2021
Revenue $ 192,648 $ 192,648
Net income attributable to CompoSecure, Inc. $ 12,403 $ 6,912
Net income per share, basic $ 0.15 $ 0.08
Weighted average shares outstanding, basic 82,640,000 82,640,000
Net income per share, diluted $ 0.14 $ 0.08
Weighted average shares outstanding, diluted 86,179,417 86,179,417
For the year ended December 31, 2020
Revenue $ 260,586 $ 260,586
Net income attributable to CompoSecure, Inc. $ 19,060 $ 10,641
Net income per share — basic $ 0.23 $ 0.13
Weighted average shares outstanding — basic 82,640,000 82,640,000
Net income per share, diluted $ 0.22 $ 0.12
Weighted average shares outstanding, diluted 86,179,417 86,179,417
Summary Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Balance Sheet
As of September 30, 2021
Total assets $ 193,844 $ 140,906
Total liabilities $ 564,663 $ 520,247
Total stockholders’ deficit $ (370,819) $ (379,341)
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COMPARATIVE SHARE INFORMATION

The following table sets forth the per share data of Roman DBDR on a stand-alone basis and the
unaudited pro forma condensed combined per share data for the nine months ended September 30, 2021 and
year ended December 31, 2020 after giving effect to the Business Combination and PIPE Investment
assuming two scenarios:

* Assuming No Redemptions: This presentation assumes that no Roman DBDR shareholders exercise
redemption rights with respect to their public shares.

* Assuming Maximum Redemption: This presentation assumes that approximately 64% of Roman
DBDR’s public stockholders exercise redemption rights with respect to their public shares. This
scenario assumes that 14,724,627 public shares are redeemed for an aggregate redemption payment
of approximately $150.2 million, based on approximately $236.3 million in the trust and 23,156,000
public shares outstanding as of September 30, 2021. This is presented as the maximum redemptions
scenario because Roman DBDR is obligated to have an aggregate of at least $210 million in cash
after considering redemptions, proceeds from the PIPE Investment and $50 million of transaction
expenses as a condition to Closing the proposed business combination.

These numbers do not take into account warrants to purchase Roman DBDR Common Stock that will
be outstanding immediately following the completion of the Business Combination.

You should read the information in the following table in conjunction with the selected historical
financial information summary included elsewhere in this proxy statement, and the historical financial
statements of Roman DBDR and CompoSecure and related notes that are included elsewhere in this proxy
statement. The unaudited Roman DBDR and CompoSecure pro forma combined per share information is
derived from, and should be read in conjunction with, the unaudited pro forma condensed combined
financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this proxy statement.

The unaudited pro forma combined earnings per share information below does not purport to represent
the earnings per share which would have occurred had the companies been combined during the periods
presented, nor earnings per share for any future date or period. The unaudited pro forma combined book
value per share information below does not purport to represent what the value of Roman DBDR and
CompoSecure would have been had the companies been combined during the periods presented.

Pro Forma Combined

Roman DBDR CompoSecure® No Maximum
(Historical) (Historical) Redemption Redemption

As of and for the nine months ended September 30,

2021
Book value per share®” $ (8.14) N/A $ (4.49) $ (4.59)
Basic and diluted net income per share, Class A

Common stock subject to possible redemption®  § (0.45) N/A N/A N/A
Basic and diluted weighted average shares

outstanding, Class A Common stock subject to

possible redemption 22,290,037 N/A N/A N/A
Basic and diluted net loss per share, Class B

Common stock® $ (0.45) N/A N/A N/A
Basic and diluted weighted average shares

outstanding, Class B Common stock 5,789,000 N/A N/A N/A
Net income per share — basic®® N/A N/A $ 0.15 $ 0.08
Weighted average shares outstanding — basic N/A N/A 82,640,000 82,640,000
Net income per share — diluted® N/A N/A $ 0.14 $ 0.08
Weighted average shares outstanding — diluted N/A N/A 86,179,417 86,179,417
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Pro Forma Combined

Roman DBDR  CompoSecure®” No Maximum
(Historical) (Historical) Redemption Redemption

As of and for the year ended December 31, 2020
Basic and diluted net loss per share, Class A

Common stock subject to possible redemption® $ (0.21) N/A N/A N/A
Basic and diluted weighted average shares

outstanding, Class A Common stock subject to

possible redemption 19,250,109 N/A N/A N/A
Basic and diluted net loss per share, Common

stock® $ (021) N/A N/A N/A
Basic and diluted weighted average shares

outstanding, Class B common stock 5,601,728 N/A N/A N/A
Net income per share — basic®® N/A N/A 023 $ 0.13
Weighted average shares outstanding — basic N/A N/A 82,640,000 82,640,000
Net income per share — diluted® N/A N/A $ 022 $ 0.12
Weighted average shares outstanding — diluted N/A N/A 86,179,417 86,179,417

(1) Historical book value per share for Roman DBDR is calculated as (a) permanent equity divided by the
total number of outstanding shares classified in permanent equity. Pro forma book value per share is
calculated as pro forma total stockholders’ equity divided by the total shares of the Combined
Company immediately after the Business Combination and PIPE Investment under each scenario.

(2) There were no cash dividends for either Roman DBDR or CompoSecure in the periods presented.

(3) Given CompoSecure’s historical equity structure, the calculation of EPS membership units is not a
valuable metric, and therefore is omitted.
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QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE BUSINESS COMBINATION AND
THE SPECIAL MEETING

The following questions and answers briefly address some commonly asked questions about the

Proposals to be presented at the Special Meeting of Roman DBDR stockholders. The following questions
and answers do not include all the information that is important to stockholders of Roman DBDR. We urge
the stockholders of Roman DBDR to read carefully this entire proxy statement, including the annexes and
other documents referred to herein.

Q:
A:

Why am I receiving this proxy statement?

Roman DBDR stockholders are being asked to consider and vote upon a proposal to approve the
Merger Agreement, among other proposals. Roman DBDR has entered into the Merger Agreement,
pursuant to which Merger Sub, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Roman DBDR, shall merge with and into
CompoSecure with CompoSecure surviving such merger as a subsidiary of Roman DBDR. We refer to
this Merger and the other transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement as the “Business
Combination.” Roman DBDR urges its stockholders to read the Agreement and Plan of Merger in its
entirety, which is attached to this proxy statement as Annex A (along with Amendment No. 1 thereto,
which is attached as Annex G).

YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT. YOU ARE ENCOURAGED TO SUBMIT YOUR PROXY AS SOON AS
POSSIBLE AFTER CAREFULLY REVIEWING THIS PROXY STATEMENT AND ITS ANNEXES
AND CAREFULLY CONSIDERING EACH OF THE PROPOSALS BEING PRESENTED AT THE
MEETING.

Why is Roman DBDR proposing the Business Combination?

Roman DBDR was formed for the purpose of effecting a merger, capital stock exchange, asset
acquisition, stock purchase, reorganization or other similar business combination with one or more
operating businesses.

Based on its due diligence investigations of CompoSecure and the industries in which it operates,
including the financial and other information provided by CompoSecure in the course of Roman
DBDR’s due diligence investigations, the Board believes that the Business Combination with
CompoSecure is in the best interests of Roman DBDR and its stockholders.

See “Proposal No. 1: The Business Combination Proposal — Roman Board of Directors’ Reasons the
Business Combination” for a discussion of the factors considered by the Board in making its decision.

‘What matters will be considered at the Special Meeting?

The following is a list of proposals upon which Roman DBDR stockholders will be asked to vote at the
Special Meeting:

1. Proposal No. 1 — The Business Combination Proposal — To approve and adopt the Merger
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby (collectively referred to as the “Business
Combination”).

2. Proposal No. 2— The Nasdaq Stock Issuance Proposal — To approve, assuming the Business
Combination Proposal is approved, for purposes of complying with the applicable provisions of
Nasdaq Stock Exchange Listing Rule 5635 (each, a “Nasdaq Listing Rule”), (a) the issuance of up
to 49,195,000 (assuming no redemption) or 63,919,627 (assuming maximum redemption) newly
issued shares of Class B Common Stock in the Business Combination determined as described in
more detail under the heading titled “Proposal No. 1 — The Business Combination Proposal — The
Merger Agreement — Merger Consideration” (b) the issuance and sale of 4,500,000 shares of
Class A Common Stock to the PIPE Investors in connection with the Common Subscription
Agreements in the Common PIPE Investment as further described under “Proposal No. 1: The
Business Combination Proposal — PIPE Investment”, (c) shares of Class A Common Stock at a
conversion price of $11.50 per share upon conversion of the Exchangeable Notes, pursuant to the
Note Subscription Agreements under the Note PIPE Investment, as further described under
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“Proposal No. 1: The Business Combination Proposal — PIPE Investment”, (d) the issuance of up
to 7,500,000 shares of Common Stock as Earnout Consideration to the CompoSecure
equityholders, if earned, as described in more detail under the heading titled “Proposal No. 1: The
Business Combination Proposal — Merger Consideration”, and (e) the reservation of up to
9,182,223 shares of Class A Common Stock to be authorized for issuance under the 2021 Equity
Incentive Plan (as described in more detail in “Proposal No. 6: The Equity Incentive Plan
Proposal”).

Proposal No. 3 — The Governing Documents Proposal — To approve, assuming the Business
Combination Proposal is approved and adopted, a proposed second amended and restated
certificate of incorporation (the “Proposed Charter”), which will amend and restate the Current
Charter, and a proposed second amended and restated bylaws (the “Proposed Bylaws™), which will
amend and restated the Current Bylaws, which Proposed Charter and Proposed Bylaws will be in
effect upon the Closing.

Proposal No. 4 — The Advisory Charter Proposals — To approve, on a non-binding, advisory
basis, assuming the Business Combination Proposal is approved and adopted, the following
material differences between the Proposed Charter and the Current Charter, which are being
presented in accordance with the requirements of the SEC as seven separate sub-proposals:

(a) Advisory Charter Proposal A— to increase the authorized shares of Class A Common Stock
to 250,000,000 shares;

(b) Advisory Charter Proposal B— to increase the authorized shares of “blank check” preferred
stock that the Combined Entity’s board of directors could issue to raise capital and/or to
discourage a takeover attempt to 10,000,000 shares;

(c) Advisory Charter Proposal C — to provide that amendments to provisions of the Proposed
Charter will require the approval of at least a majority of the Combined Entity’s then-
outstanding shares of capital stock entitled to vote on such amendment;

(d) Advisory Charter Proposal D — to provide holders of any then outstanding Preferred Stock
the right, voting separately by class or series, to elect one or more directors if specified in the
certificate of designations setting forth the rights and preferences of such class of Preferred
Stock;

(e) Advisory Charter Proposal E— to limit action required or permitted to be taken by the
stockholders of the Combined Entity only to annual meetings or special meetings by
eliminating the right for actions to be taken by written consent;

(f) Advisory Charter Proposal F — (i) to change the corporate name from “Roman DBDR Tech
Acquisition Corp.” to “CompoSecure, Inc.”, (ii) to make the Combined Entity’s corporate
existence perpetual as opposed to Roman DBDR’s corporate existence, which is presently
required to be dissolved and liquidated 18 months following the closing of its initial public
offering and to remove from the Proposed Charter the various provisions applicable only to
specified purpose acquisition corporations contained in the Current Charter, (iii) to remove
Delaware as the exclusive forum for certain stockholder litigation and the United States
Federal District Courts as the exclusive forum for litigation arising out of the Securities Act,
(iv) to opt-out of certain provisions of Section 203 of DGCL, and (v) to eliminate certain
provisions specific to Roman DBDR’s status as a blank check company that will no longer be
applicable upon consummation of the Business Combination; and

(g) Advisory Charter Proposal G — to provide that any amendment by stockholders to the
Proposed Bylaws will require the approval of at least a majority of the Combined Entity’s
then-outstanding shares of capital stock entitled to vote such amendment.

Proposal No. 5— The Director Election Proposal — to elect, assuming the Business Combination
Proposal is approved and adopted, seven directors to serve staggered terms on the Combined
Entity’s board of directors until the 2022, 2023 and 2024 annual meeting of stockholders,
respectively, and until their respective successors are duly elected and qualified.
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6. Proposal No. 6 — The Equity Incentive Plan Proposal — to approve, assuming the Business
Combination Proposal is approved and adopted, the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan (the “Equity
Incentive Plan”), a copy of which is appended to this proxy statement as Annex D, which will
become effective as of the date immediately preceding the date of the Closing.

7. Proposal No. 7— The Employee Stock Purchase Plan Proposal — to approve, assuming the
Business Combination Proposal is approved and adopted, the 2021 Employee Stock Purchase Plan
(the “ESPP”), a copy of which is appended to this proxy statement as Annex E, which will become
effective the day prior to the Closing.

8. Proposal No. 8 — The Adjournment Proposal — to approve a proposal to adjourn or postpone the
Special Meeting to a later date or dates, if necessary, to permit further solicitation and vote of
proxies if, based upon the tabulated vote at the time of the Special Meeting, there are not sufficient
votes to approve the Business Combination Proposal, the Nasdaq Stock Issuance Proposal, the
Governing Documents Proposal, the Director Election Proposal, the Equity Incentive
Plan Proposal or the ESPP Proposal, or we determine that one or more of the closing conditions
under the Business Combination is not satisfied or waived.

When and where will the Special Meeting take place?

The Roman DBDR Special Meeting will be held virtually on December 23, 2021, at 10:00 a.m. Eastern
Time, via live webcast at the following address: https://www.cstproxy.com/romandbdr/sm2021, or such
other date, time and place to which such meeting may be adjourned or postponed, to consider and vote

upon the Proposals.

Is my vote important?

Yes. The Business Combination cannot be completed unless the Merger Agreement is adopted by the
Roman DBDR stockholders holding a majority of the votes cast on such proposal and the Nasdaq Stock
Issuance Proposal and Director Election Proposal are approved by the Roman DBDR stockholders
holding a majority of the votes cast on such proposals. Only Roman DBDR stockholders as of the close
of business on November 1, 2021, the record date for the Special Meeting (the “Record Date”) are
entitled to vote at the Special Meeting. The Board unanimously recommends that the Roman DBDR
stockholders vote “FOR” the approval of the Business Combination Proposal, “FOR” the approval of
the Nasdaq Stock Issuance Proposal, “FOR” the approval of the Governing Documents Proposal,
“FOR?” the approval, on an advisory basis, of each of the Advisory Charter Proposals, “FOR” the
election of the seven directors pursuant to the Director Election Proposal, “FOR” the approval of the
Equity Incentive Plan Proposal, “FOR” the approval of the ESPP Proposal and “FOR” the approval of
the Adjournment Proposal, if presented.

If my shares are held in “street name,” will my broker, bank or nominee automatically vote my shares for
me?

No. Under the rules of various national and regional securities exchanges, your broker, bank or
nominee cannot vote your shares with respect to non-discretionary matters unless you provide
instructions on how to vote in accordance with the information and procedures provided to you by your
broker, bank or nominee. Roman DBDR believes the Proposals presented to the stockholders will be
considered non-discretionary and therefore your broker, bank or nominee cannot vote your shares
without your instruction. Your bank, broker or other nominee can vote your shares only if you provide
instructions on how to vote. You should instruct your broker to vote your shares in accordance with
directions you provide.

Are the proposals conditioned on one another?

Unless the Business Combination Proposal is approved, the Nasdaq Stock Issuance Proposal, the
Director Election Proposal, the Governing Documents Proposal, the Advisory Charter Proposals, the
Director Election Proposal, the Equity Incentive Plan Proposal and the ESPP Proposal will not be
presented to the stockholders of Roman DBDR at the Special Meeting. The Business Combination
Proposal is subject to and conditioned on the approval of the Nasdaq Stock Issuance Proposal, the
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Governing Documents Proposal, the Director Election Proposal, the Equity Incentive Plan Proposal and
the ESPP Proposal. The Adjournment Proposal is not conditioned on the approval of any other proposal
set forth in this proxy statement. It is important for you to note that in the event the Business
Combination Proposal, the Nasdaq Stock Issuance Proposal, the Director Election Proposal, the
Governing Documents Proposal, the Equity Incentive Plan Proposal and the ESPP Proposal do not
receive the requisite vote for approval, then Roman DBDR will not consummate the Business
Combination. If Roman DBDR does not consummate the Business Combination and fails to complete
an initial business combination by May 10, 2022, it will be required to dissolve and liquidate its Trust
Account by returning the then remaining funds in such account to its public stockholders.

What conditions must be satisfied to complete the Business Combination?

There are a number of closing conditions in the Merger Agreement, including the approval by the
stockholders of Roman DBDR of the Business Combination Proposal, the Nasdaq Issuance Proposal
and the Director Election Proposal. For a summary of the conditions that must be satisfied or waived
prior to the Closing of the Business Combination, see the section titled “Proposal No. 1 — The Business
Combination Proposal — The Merger Agreement.”

‘What will happen in the Business Combination?

At the Closing of the Business Combination, Merger Sub will merge with and into CompoSecure, with
CompoSecure surviving such Merger as the surviving entity. Upon the Closing, CompoSecure will
become a subsidiary of Roman DBDR. In addition, in connection with the Business Combination,

(i) CompoSecure will amend and restate its limited liability company agreement to, among other
things, permit the issuance and ownership of interests in CompoSecure as contemplated in the Merger
Agreement, (ii) the CompoSecure Holders will receive a combination of cash consideration, certain
newly-issued membership units of CompoSecure (each, a “CompoSecure Unit”) and shares of newly-
issued Class B Common Stock, which will have no economic value, but will entitle the CompoSecure
Holder to one vote per issued share and will be issued on a one-for-one basis for each CompoSecure
Unit retained by the CompoSecure Holder following the Merger, (iii) the holders of outstanding options
to purchase CompoSecure equity will receive a combination of cash consideration and options to
purchase shares of Class A Common Stock of Roman DBDR, and (iv) Roman DBDR will acquire
certain newly-issued membership units of CompoSecure. The CompoSecure Second Amended and
Restated LLC Agreement, together with the Exchange Agreement to be entered into at the Closing of
the Business Combination, will provide the CompoSecure Holders the right to exchange the
CompoSecure Units, together with the cancellation of an equal number of shares of Class B Common
Stock, for Class A Common Stock, subject to certain restrictions set forth therein. Following the
Closing, the Combined Entity will be organized in an “Up-C” structure and Roman DBDR will control
CompoSecure by virtue of the fact that each Class A Common Unit shall have ten votes per unit and, as
a result, Roman DBDR will control the election of the board of managers of CompoSecure. At the
Closing, Roman DBDR will change its name to “CompoSecure, Inc.” In connection with the Business
Combination, the cash held in the Trust Account after giving effect to any redemption of shares by
Roman DBDR’s public stockholders and the proceeds from the PIPE Investment will be used to pay
(i) Roman DBDR stockholders who properly exercise their redemption rights, (ii) the underwriters their
deferred underwriting commissions from the Roman DBDR IPO, (iii) certain other fees, costs and
expenses (including regulatory fees, legal fees, accounting fees, printer fees and other professional
fees) that were incurred by Roman DBDR or CompoSecure in connection with the transactions
contemplated by the Business Combination and pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement,

(iv) unpaid franchise and income taxes of Roman DBDR, and (v) the Cash Merger Consideration (as
that term is described under the heading titled “Proposal No. 1 — The Business Combination Proposal
— The Merger Agreement — Merger Consideration”) to be paid to the CompoSecure Holders.

What equity stake will current stockholders of Roman DBDR and CompoSecure Holders hold in the
Combined Entity after the Closing?

As of the date of this proxy statement, there are (i) 23,156,000 shares of Class A Common Stock
outstanding and (ii) 5,789,000 shares of Class B Common Stock outstanding held by the Sponsor. As of
the date of this proxy statement, there is outstanding 10,837,400 Private Placement Warrants held by
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Sponsor and 11,578,000 Public Warrants. Each whole warrant entitles the holder thereof to purchase
one share of Class A Common Stock. Therefore, as of the date of this proxy statement (without giving
effect to the Business Combination and assuming that none of Roman DBDR’s outstanding Public
Shares are redeemed in connection with the Business Combination), Roman DBDR’s fully-diluted
share capital, giving effect to the exercise of all of the Private Placement Warrants and Public Warrants,
would be 28,945,000 shares of Roman DBDR Common Stock.

It is anticipated that, upon completion of the Business Combination, Roman DBDR’s public
stockholders (other than the PIPE Investors) will retain an ownership interest of approximately 28% in
the Combined Entity, the PIPE Investors will own approximately 5.4% of the Combined Entity (such
that public stockholders, including PIPE Investors, will own approximately 33.4% of the Combined
Entity), the Sponsor will retain an ownership interest of approximately 7.1% in the Combined Entity
and the CompoSecure Holders will own approximately 59.5% of the outstanding Common Stock of the
Combined Entity. The ownership percentage with respect to the Combined Entity following the
Business Combination does not take into account (i) the redemption of any shares by Roman DBDR’s
public stockholders, (ii) the issuance of any shares upon Closing of the Business Combination under
the Equity Incentive Plan, which is intended to be adopted following consummation of the Business
Combination, (iii) the exercise of any Public Warrants or Private Placement Warrants outstanding
immediately following Closing have been exercised; (iv) any forfeiture and surrender to Roman DBDR
of Sponsor Shares pursuant to the Expense Cap and Waiver Agreement to the extent that Roman
DBDR’s transaction expenses exceed $35 million, (v) the issuance of up to an aggregate of 7,500,000
newly issued shares of Common Stock as Earnout Consideration to the CompoSecure equityholders, if
earned, or (vi) the conversion of the Exchangeable Notes that are exchangeable into shares of Class A
Common Stock, but does take into account the assumed cashless net exercise of options to purchase
Roman DBDR Common Stock which will be held by interest holders of CompoSecure immediately
following the Closing. If the actual facts are different than these assumptions (which they are likely to
be), the percentage ownership retained by the Company’s existing stockholders in the Combined Entity
will be different.

See the section titled “Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information” for further
information.

Did the Roman DBDR Board obtain a third-party valuation or fairness opinion in determining whether or
not to proceed with the Business Combination?

The Roman DBDR Board did not obtain a third-party valuation or fairness opinion in connection with
its determination to approve the Business Combination. The Roman DBDR Board believes that based
upon the financial skills and background of its directors, it was qualified to conclude that the Business
Combination was fair from a financial perspective to its stockholders. The Roman DBDR Board also
determined, without seeking a valuation from a financial advisor, that CompoSecure’s fair market value
was at least 80% of Roman DBDR’s net assets, excluding any taxes payable on interest earned.
Accordingly, investors will be relying on the judgment of the Roman DBDR Board as described above
in valuing CompoSecure’s business and assuming the risk that the Roman DBDR Board may not have
properly valued such business.

Why is Roman DBDR providing stockholders with the opportunity to vote on the Business Combination?

Under the Current Charter, Roman DBDR must provide all holders of its Public Shares with the
opportunity to have their Public Shares redeemed upon the consummation of Roman DBDR’s initial
business combination either in conjunction with a tender offer or in conjunction with a stockholder
vote. For business and other reasons, Roman DBDR has elected to provide its stockholders with the
opportunity to have their Public Shares redeemed in connection with a stockholder vote rather than a
tender offer. Therefore, Roman DBDR is seeking to obtain the approval of its stockholders of the
Business Combination Proposal in order to allow its public stockholders to effectuate redemptions of
their Public Shares in connection with the closing of its Business Combination.
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Are there any arrangements to help ensure that the Company will have sufficient funds, together with the
proceeds in its Trust Account, to fund the aggregate consideration for the Business Combination?

Yes. On April 19, 2021, Roman DBDR entered into Subscription Agreements with the investors named
therein providing for (i) the issuance by Roman DBDR of 4,500,000 shares of Class A Common Stock
through the Common PIPE Investment subject to certain conditions, including that all conditions
precedent to the Closing will have been satisfied or waived (other than those conditions are to be
satisfied at Closing) for gross proceeds to Roman DBDR of $45,000,000, and (ii) the issuance by
CompoSecure of Exchangeable Notes in an aggregate principal amount of up to $130,000,000.

Roman DBDR will agree that it (or its successor) will file with the SEC a registration statement
registering the resale of the shares purchased in the Common PIPE Investment and use its
commercially reasonable efforts to have the registration statement declared effective as soon as
practicable.

How many votes do I have at the Special Meeting?

Roman DBDR stockholders are entitled to one vote at the Special Meeting for each share of Roman
DBDR Common Stock held of record as of the Record Date. As of the close of business on the Record
Date, there were 28,945,000 outstanding shares of Roman DBDR Common Stock.

What vote is required to approve the proposals presented at the Special Meeting?

The approval of the Governing Documents Proposal requires the affirmative vote of (i) a majority of
the issued and outstanding shares of Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock voting together as a single
class as of the Record Date and (ii) a majority of the issued and outstanding shares of Class B Common
Stock voting together as a single class as of the Record Date. Accordingly, a Roman DBDR
stockholder’s failure to vote by proxy or to vote at the Special Meeting or an abstention will have the
same effect as a vote “AGAINST” the Governing Documents Proposal.

The approval of the Business Combination Proposal, the Nasdaq Stock Issuance Proposal, the Advisory
Charter Proposals, the Equity Incentive Plan Proposal, the ESPP Proposal and the Adjournment
Proposal each require the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the shares of Roman DBDR
Common Stock cast by the stockholders represented online or by proxy and entitled to vote thereon at
the Special Meeting, voting together as a single class. A Roman DBDR stockholder’s failure to vote by
proxy or to vote online at the Special Meeting will not be counted towards the number of shares of
Roman DBDR Common Stock required to validly establish a quorum, and if a valid quorum is
otherwise established, it will have no effect on the outcome of the vote on the Business Combination
Proposal, the Nasdaq Stock Issuance Proposal, the Advisory Charter Proposals, the Equity Incentive
Plan Proposal, the ESPP Proposal or the Adjournment Proposal.

As of the date hereof, the Sponsor holds approximately 20% of Roman DBDR’s issued and outstanding
shares of Common Stock. As described elsewhere in this proxy statement, the Sponsor is party to the
Voting Agreement, under which the Sponsor has agreed to vote its equity interests for and against
certain matters, including to vote in favor of the Merger Agreement and the transactions related thereto,
among other matters and against any competing proposals or any matters that would reasonably be
expected to impede the timely consummation of the Business Combination, among other matters.
Accordingly, it is more likely that the requisite stockholder approval will be received for the Business
Combination than would be the case if the Sponsor, officers and directors agreed to instead vote any
shares of our Common Stock owned by them in accordance with the majority of the votes cast by our
public stockholders. However, to obtain approval, approximately 37.5% of the Company’s public
stockholders need to vote in favor of the Business Combination Proposal.

The approval of the Director Election Proposal requires the affirmative vote of the holders of a
plurality of the shares of Roman DBDR Common Stock cast by the stockholders represented virtually
or by proxy and entitled to vote thereon at the Special Meeting, voting together as a single class. A
Roman DBDR stockholder’s failure to vote by proxy or to vote online at the Special Meeting will not
be counted towards the number of shares of Roman DBDR Common Stock required to validly establish
a quorum, and if a valid quorum is otherwise established, it will have no effect on the outcome of the
vote on the Director Election Proposal.
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May Roman DBDR, the Sponsor or Roman DBDR’s directors, officers, advisors or their affiliates purchase
shares in connection with the Business Combination?

In connection with the stockholder vote to approve the proposed Business Combination, the Sponsor,
directors, officers or advisors or their respective affiliates may privately negotiate transactions to
purchase shares from stockholders who would have otherwise elected to have their shares redeemed in
conjunction with a proxy solicitation pursuant to the proxy rules for a per-share pro rata portion of the
Trust Account. None of Roman DBDR’s Sponsor, directors, officers or advisors or their respective
affiliates will make any such purchases when they are in possession of any material non-public
information not disclosed to the seller or during a restricted period under Regulation M under the
Exchange Act. Such a purchase would include a contractual acknowledgement that such stockholder,
although still the record holder of Roman DBDR shares, is no longer the beneficial owner thereof and
therefore agrees not to exercise its redemption rights, and could include a contractual provision that
directs such stockholder to vote such shares in a manner directed by the purchaser. In the event that the
Sponsor, directors, officers or advisors or their affiliates purchase shares in privately negotiated
transactions from public stockholders who have already elected to exercise their redemption rights,
such selling stockholders would be required to revoke their prior elections to redeem their shares. Any
such privately negotiated purchases may be effected at purchase prices that are below or in excess of
the per-share pro rata portion of the Trust Account.

What constitutes a quorum at the Special Meeting?

Holders of a majority in voting power of Roman DBDR Common Stock issued and outstanding and
entitled to vote at the Special Meeting constitute a quorum. In the absence of a quorum, the chairman
of the meeting has power to adjourn or postpone the Special Meeting. As of the Record Date,
14,434,991 shares of Roman DBDR Common Stock would be required to achieve a quorum.

How will the Sponsor, directors and officers vote?

The Sponsor, as Roman DBDR’s initial stockholder, has agreed to vote its Sponsor Shares (as well as
any Public Shares purchased during or after the Roman DBDR’s IPO) in favor of the Business
Combination. As of the date of this proxy statement, the Sponsor owns approximately 20% of the
issued and outstanding shares of Roman DBDR Common Stock, including all of the Sponsor Shares,
and will be able to vote all such shares at the Special Meeting.

What interests do Roman DBDR’s current officers and directors have in the Business Combination?

The Sponsor, members of the Roman DBDR Board and its executive officers have interests in the
Business Combination that are different from or in addition to (and which may conflict with) your
interest. These interests include:

* Unless Roman DBDR consummates an initial business combination by May 10, 2022 (unless
otherwise extended with approval of Roman DBDR’s stockholders), Roman DBDR will: (i) cease all
operations except for the purpose of winding up, (ii) as promptly as reasonably possible but no more
than ten business days thereafter, redeem the Public Shares, at a per-share price, payable in cash,
equal to the aggregate amount then on deposit in the Trust Account, including interest earned on the
funds held in the Trust Account and not previously released to us to pay Roman DBDR’s taxes (less
up to $100,000 of interest to pay dissolution expenses), divided by the number of then outstanding
Public Shares, which redemption will completely extinguish public stockholders’ rights as
stockholders (including the right to receive further liquidating distributions, if any), and (iii) as
promptly as reasonably possible following such redemption, subject to the approval of Roman
DBDR’s remaining stockholders and the Board, liquidate and dissolve, subject in each case to
Roman DBDR’s obligations under Delaware law to provide for claims of creditors and the
requirements of other applicable law;

» There will be no liquidating distributions from the Trust Account with respect to the Sponsor Shares
if Roman DBDR fails to complete a business combination within the required period. Roman
DBDR’s initial stockholders purchased the Sponsor Shares prior to the Roman DBDR IPO for an
aggregate purchase price of $25,000;
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* The Sponsor and Roman DBDR’s officers and directors will lose their entire investment in Roman
DBDR if Roman DBDR does not complete a business combination by May 10, 2022 (unless
otherwise extended with approval of Roman DBDR’s stockholders). Certain of them may continue to
serve as officers and/or directors of Roman DBDR after the Closing. As such, in the future they may
receive any cash fees, stock options or stock awards that the Board determines to pay to its directors
and/or officers;

* Roman DBDR’s initial stockholders and officers and directors have agreed to waive their rights to
liquidating distributions from the Trust Account with respect to their Sponsor Shares if Roman
DBDR fails to complete a business combination by May 10, 2022 (unless otherwise extended with
approval of Roman DBDR’s stockholders);

» In order to protect the amounts held in the Trust Account, the Sponsor has agreed that it will be
liable to Roman DBDR if and to the extent any claims by a vendor for services rendered or products
sold to Roman DBDR, or a prospective target business with which Roman DBDR has entered into a
transaction agreement, reduce the amount of funds in the Trust Account. This liability will not apply
with respect to any claims by a third party who executed a waiver of any right, title, interest or claim
of any kind in or to any monies held in the Trust Account or to any claims under Roman DBDR’s
indemnity of the underwriters of the offering against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the
Securities Act;

» Following the Closing, the Sponsor would be entitled to the repayment of any working capital loan
and advances that have been made to Roman DBDR and remain outstanding. As of the date of this
proxy statement, the Sponsor has not made any advances to us for working capital expenses. If
Roman DBDR does not complete an initial business combination within the required period, Roman
DBDR may use a portion of its working capital held outside the Trust Account to repay the working
capital loans, but no proceeds held in the Trust Account would be used to repay the working capital
loans;

» Following the Closing, Roman DBDR will continue to indemnify Roman DBDR’s existing directors
and officers and will maintain a directors’ and officers’ liability insurance policy; and

» Upon the Closing, subject to the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement, the Sponsor, Roman
DBDR’s officers and directors and their respective affiliates may be entitled to reimbursement for
any reasonable out-of-pocket expenses related to identifying, investigating and consummating an
initial business combination, and repayment of any other loans, if any, and on such terms as to be
determined by Roman DBDR from time to time, made by the Sponsor or certain of our officers and
directors to finance transaction costs in connection with an intended initial business combination.

These interests may influence Roman DBDR’s directors in making their recommendation that you vote
in favor of the approval of the Business Combination.

What happens if I sell my shares of Roman DBDR Common Stock before the Special Meeting?

The Record Date is earlier than the date of the Special Meeting. If you transfer your shares of Roman
DBDR Common Stock after the Record Date, but before the Special Meeting, unless the transferee
obtains from you a proxy to vote those shares, you will retain your right to vote at the Special Meeting.
However, you will not be able to seek redemption of your shares because you will no longer be able to
deliver them for cancellation upon consummation of the Business Combination. If you transfer your
shares of Roman DBDR Common Stock prior to the Record Date, you will have no right to vote those
shares at the Special Meeting or redeem those shares for a pro rata portion of the proceeds held in our
Trust Account.

What compensation will be payable to the named executive officers of CompoSecure in connection with the
Merger Agreement and the Business Combination?

Under the terms of the Merger Agreement, CompoSecure’s named executive officers will receive
certain compensation payments in connection with the Closing of the Business Combination. For more
information about the compensation payable to CompoSecure’s named executive officers in
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connection with the Merger Agreement, please see the section of this proxy statement entitled
“Executive and Director Compensation of CompoSecure — Impact of the Merger Agreement.”

What happens if I vote against the Business Combination Proposal?

Pursuant to the Current Charter, if the Business Combination Proposal is not approved and Roman
DBDR does not otherwise consummate an alternative business combination by May 10, 2022, Roman
DBDR will be required to dissolve and liquidate its Trust Account by returning the then remaining
funds in such account to the public stockholders.

Do I have redemption rights?

Pursuant to the Current Charter, holders of Public Shares may elect to have their shares redeemed for
cash at the applicable redemption price per share calculated in accordance with Roman DBDR’s
Current Charter. As of November 1, 2021, the record date of the special meeting, based on funds in the
Trust Account of approximately $236,291,587.55, this would have amounted to approximately $10.20
per share. If a holder exercises its redemption rights, then such holder will be exchanging its shares of
Roman DBDR Common Stock for cash. Such a holder will be entitled to receive cash for its Public
Shares only if it properly demands redemption and delivers its Public Shares (either physically or
electronically) to Roman DBDR’s transfer agent prior to the Special Meeting. See the section titled
“Special Meeting of Roman DBDR Stockholders — Redemption Rights” for the procedures to be
followed if you wish to redeem your shares for cash.

Will how I vote affect my ability to exercise redemption rights?

No. You may exercise your redemption rights whether you vote your shares of Roman DBDR Common
Stock “FOR” or “AGAINST” the Business Combination Proposal or any other proposal described by
this proxy statement. As a result, the Merger Agreement can be approved by stockholders who will
redeem their shares and no longer remain stockholders, leaving stockholders who choose not to redeem
their shares holding shares in a company with a potentially less liquid trading market, fewer
stockholders, potentially less cash and the potential inability to meet the listing standards of Nasdaq.

How do I exercise my redemption rights?
If you are a public stockholder and wish to exercise your right to redeem the Public Shares, you must:
(i) affirmatively vote either for or against the Business Combination Proposal;

(ii) (a) hold Public Shares, or (b) if you hold Public Shares through Units, you elect to separate your
Units into the underlying Public Shares and Public Warrants prior to exercising your redemption
rights with respect to the Public Shares;

(iii) check the box on the enclosed proxy card to elect redemption, and

(iv) prior to 5:00 PM, Eastern time, on December 21, 2021 (two business days before the Special
Meeting), tender your shares physically or electronically and submit a request in writing that we
redeem your Public Shares for cash to Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company, our transfer
agent, at the following address:

Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company
One State Street Plaza, 30 Floor
New York, New York 10004
Attn: Mark Zimkind
E-mail: mzimkind@continentalstock.com

Please check the box on the enclosed proxy card marked “Stockholder Certification” if you are not
acting in concert or as a “group” (as defined in Section 13d-3 of the Exchange Act) with any other
stockholder with respect to shares of Roman DBDR Common Stock. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a
holder of the Public Shares, together with any affiliate of his or any other person with whom he is
acting in concert or as a “group” (as defined in Section 13d-3 of the Exchange Act) will be restricted
from
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seeking redemption rights with respect to an aggregate of 15% or more of the shares of Roman DBDR
Common Stock included in the Units sold in the Roman DBDR IPO, which we refer to as the “15%
threshold.” Accordingly, all Public Shares in excess of the 15% threshold beneficially owned by a
public stockholder or group will not be redeemed for cash.

Holders of Units must elect to separate the Units into the underlying Public Shares and Public Warrants
prior to exercising redemption rights with respect to the Public Shares. If holders hold their units in an
account at a brokerage firm or bank, holders must notify their broker or bank that they elect to separate
the units into the underlying Public Shares and Public Warrants, or if a holder holds units registered in its
own name, the holder must contact Continental, our transfer agent, directly and instruct them to do so.

Stockholders seeking to exercise their redemption rights and opting to deliver physical certificates
should allot sufficient time to obtain physical certificates from the transfer agent and time to effect
delivery. It is Roman DBDR’s understanding that stockholders should generally allot at least two weeks
to obtain physical certificates from the transfer agent. However, Roman DBDR does not have any
control over this process and it may take longer than two weeks. Stockholders who hold their shares in
street name will have to coordinate with their bank, broker or other nominee to have the shares
certificated or delivered electronically.

Any demand for redemption, once made, may be withdrawn at any time until the deadline for
exercising redemption requests and thereafter, with Roman DBDR’s consent, until the vote is taken
with respect to the Business Combination. If you delivered your shares for redemption to Roman
DBDR’s transfer agent and decide within the required timeframe not to exercise your redemption
rights, you may request that Roman DBDR’s transfer agent return the shares (physically or
electronically). You may make such request by contacting Roman DBDR’s transfer agent at the phone
number or address listed under the question “Who can help answer my questions?” below.

If you are a holder of Public Shares and you exercise your redemption rights, such exercise will not
result in the loss of any warrants that you may hold.

What are the U.S. federal income tax consequences of exercising my redemption rights?

Roman DBDR stockholders who exercise their redemption rights to receive cash in exchange for their
shares of Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock generally will be required to treat the transaction as a
sale of such shares for U.S. federal income tax purposes and recognize gain or loss upon the
redemption in an amount equal to the difference, if any, between the amount of cash received and the
tax basis of the shares of Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock redeemed. However, it is also possible
that cash received upon the redemption of Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock could be treated as a
distribution for U.S. federal income tax purposes under certain circumstances. The tax consequences of
exercising redemption rights are described in more detail in the section titled “Proposal No. 1 — The
Business Combination Proposal — The Merger Agreement — Certain Material U.S. Federal Income
Tax Considerations of the Exercise of Redemption Rights.” We urge you to consult your tax advisor
regarding the tax consequences of exercising your redemption rights.

Do I have dissenter rights if I object to the proposed Business Combination?

No. Roman DBDR stockholders (and warrantholders) are not entitled to exercise dissenters’ rights
under Delaware law in connection with the Business Combination. Dissenters’ rights are unavailable
under Delaware law in connection with the Business Combination to holders of Roman DBDR Class A
Common Stock because it is currently listed on a national securities exchange and such holders are not
required to receive any consideration (other than continuing to hold their shares of Roman DBDR
Class A Common Stock, which will become an equal number of shares of Common Stock of the
Combined Entity after giving effect to the Business Combination). Holders of Roman DBDR Class A
Common Stock may vote against the Business Combination Proposal or redeem their Public Shares if
they are not in favor of the adoption of the Business Combination. Dissenters’ rights are unavailable
under Delaware law in connection with the Business Combination to holders of Roman DBDR Class B
Common Stock because they have agreed to vote in favor of the Business Combination.
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What happens to the funds held in the Trust Account upon consummation of the Business Combination?

If the Business Combination is consummated, the funds held in the Trust Account will be released to
pay:
* Roman DBDR stockholders who properly exercise their redemption rights;

* the underwriters their deferred underwriting commissions;

« certain other fees, costs and expenses (including regulatory fees, legal fees, accounting fees, printer
fees, and other professional fees) that were incurred by Roman DBDR or CompoSecure in
connection with the transactions contemplated by the Business Combination and pursuant to the
terms of the Merger Agreement;

» unpaid franchise and income taxes of Roman DBDR; and

« for general corporate purposes of the Combined Entity including, but not limited to, working capital
for operations, capital expenditures and future potential acquisitions.

What happens if the Business Combination is not consummated?

There are certain circumstances under which the Merger Agreement may be terminated. See the section
titled “Proposal No. 1 — The Business Combination Proposal — The Merger Agreement” for
information regarding the parties’ specific termination rights.

If, as a result of the termination of the Merger Agreement or otherwise, Roman DBDR is unable to
complete the Business Combination or another initial business combination transaction by May 10,
2022, the Current Charter provides that it will (i) cease all operations except for the purpose of winding
up, (ii) as promptly as reasonably possible, subject to lawfully available funds therefor, redeem 100%
of the Public Shares in consideration of a per-share price, payable in cash, equal to the quotient
obtained by dividing (A) the aggregate amount then on deposit in the Trust Account, including interest
earned on the funds held in the Trust Account and not previously released to it to pay franchise and
income taxes payable (less up to $100,000 interest to pay dissolution expenses), by (B) the total
number of then outstanding Public Shares, which redemption will completely extinguish rights of the
public stockholders (including the right to receive further liquidation distributions, if any), subject to
applicable law, and (iii) as promptly as reasonably possible following such redemptions, subject to the
approval of the remaining stockholders and the board of directors in accordance with applicable law,
dissolve and liquidate, subject (in the case of (ii) and (iii) above) to its obligations under the Delaware
General Corporation Law (“DGCL”) to provide for claims of creditors and other requirements of
applicable law.

Roman DBDR expects that the amount of any distribution its public stockholders will be entitled to
receive upon its dissolution will be approximately the same as the amount they would have received if
they had redeemed their shares in connection with the Business Combination, subject in each case to
Roman DBDR’s obligations under the DGCL to provide for claims of creditors and other requirements
of applicable law. Sponsor has waived any right to any liquidation distribution with respect to Sponsor
Shares.

When is the Business Combination expected to be completed?

The Closing is expected to take place (a) within three days following the satisfaction or waiver of the
conditions described below under the section titled “Proposal No. 1 — The Business Combination
Proposal — The Merger Agreement — Conditions to Closing”; or (b) such other date as agreed to by
the parties to the Merger Agreement in writing, in each case, subject to the satisfaction or waiver of the
closing conditions. The Merger Agreement may be terminated by either Roman DBDR or
CompoSecure if the Closing has not occurred by December 31, 2021, subject to certain exceptions and
extensions.

For a description of the conditions to the consummation of the Business Combination, see the section
titled “The Business Combination Proposal — The Merger Agreement — Conditions to Closing.”
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What do I need to do now?

You are urged to read carefully and consider the information contained in this proxy statement,
including the annexes, and to consider how the Business Combination will affect you as a stockholder
and/or warrantholder. You should then vote as soon as possible in accordance with the instructions
provided in this proxy statement and on the enclosed proxy card or, if you hold your shares through a
brokerage firm, bank or other nominee, on the voting instruction form provided by the broker, bank or
nominee.

How do I vote?

If you were a holder of record of Roman DBDR Common Stock on November 1, 2021, the Record
Date, you may vote with respect to the applicable proposals online at the Special Meeting or by
completing, signing, dating and returning the enclosed proxy card in the postage-paid envelope
provided. If you choose to participate in the Special Meeting, you can vote your shares electronically
during the Special Meeting via live webcast by visiting https://www.cstproxy.com/romandbdr/sm2021.
You will need the 12-digit meeting control number that is printed on your proxy card to enter the
Special Meeting. Roman DBDR recommends that you log in at least 15 minutes before the Special
Meeting to ensure you are logged in when the Special Meeting starts.

If on the Record Date your shares were held, not in your name, but rather in an account at a brokerage
firm, bank, dealer or other similar organization, then you are the beneficial owner of shares held in
“street name” and these proxy materials are being forwarded to you by that organization. As a
beneficial owner, you have the right to direct your broker or other agent on how to vote the shares in
your account. You are also invited to attend the Special Meeting online. However, since you are not the
stockholder of record, you may not vote your shares online at the Special Meeting unless you first
request and obtain a valid legal proxy from your broker or other agent. You must then e-mail a copy (a
legible photograph is sufficient) of your legal proxy to Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company
(“CST”) at proxy@continentalstock.com. Beneficial owners who e-mail a valid legal proxy will be
issued a 12-digit meeting control number that will allow them to register to attend and participate in the
Special Meeting. Beneficial owners who wish to attend the Special Meeting online should contact CST
no later than December 17, 2021 to obtain this information.

What will happen if I abstain from voting or fail to vote at the Special Meeting?

At the Special Meeting, Roman DBDR will count a properly executed proxy marked “ABSTAIN” with
respect to a particular proposal as present for purposes of determining whether a quorum is present.
Abstentions will have the same effect as a vote “AGAINST” the Business Combination Proposal, the
Nasdaq Stock Issuance Proposal, the Governing Documents Proposal, the Equity Incentive

Plan Proposal and the ESPP Proposal. Broker non-votes will not be counted as present for the purposes
of establishing a quorum and will have no effect on any of the Proposals, except that a broker non-vote
will have the same effect as voting against the Advisory Charter Proposals. Additionally, if you abstain
from voting or fail to vote at the Special Meeting, you will not be able to exercise your redemption
rights (as described above).

What will happen if I sign and return my proxy card without indicating how I wish to vote?

Signed and dated proxies received by Roman DBDR without an indication of how the stockholder
intends to vote on a proposal will be voted “FOR” each proposal presented to the stockholders. The
proxyholders may use their discretion to vote on any other matters which properly come before the
Special Meeting. If you fail to indicate how you vote, you will not be able to exercise your redemption
rights.

How can I attend the Special Meeting?

You may attend the Special Meeting and vote your shares online during the Special Meeting via live
webcast by visiting https://www.cstproxy.com/romandbdr/sm2021. As a registered stockholder, you
received a proxy card from CST, which contains instructions on how to attend the Special Meeting
online, including the URL address, along with your 12-digit meeting control number. You will need the
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12-digit meeting control number that is printed on your proxy card to enter the Special Meeting. If you
do not have your 12-digit meeting control number, contact CST at 917-262-2373 or e-mail CST at
proxy@continentalstock.com. Please note that you will not be able to physically attend the Special
Meeting in person, but may attend the Special Meeting online by following the instructions below.

You can pre-register to attend the Special Meeting online. Enter the URL address into your browser,
and enter your 12-digit meeting control number, name and email address. Once you pre-register you
can vote or enter questions in the chat box. Prior to or at the start of the Special Meeting you will need
to re-log in using your 12-digit meeting control number and will also be prompted to enter your 12-
digit meeting control number if you vote online during the Special Meeting. Roman DBDR
recommends that you log in at least 15 minutes before the Special Meeting to ensure you are logged in
when the Special Meeting starts.

If your shares are held in “street name,” you may attend the Special Meeting. You will need to contact
CST at the number or email address above, to receive a 12-digit meeting control number and gain
access to the Special Meeting or otherwise contact your broker, bank, or other nominee as soon as
possible, to do so. Please allow up to 72 hours prior to the Special Meeting for processing your 12-digit
meeting control number.

If you do not have Internet capabilities, you can listen only to the Special Meeting by dialing (888)
965-8995 (within the U.S. and Canada; toll-free) or +1 415-655-0243 (outside of the U.S. and Canada;
standard rates apply), when prompted enter the pin # 57125519. This is listen only, you will not be able
to vote or enter questions during the Special Meeting.

If I am not going to attend the Special Meeting, should I return my proxy card instead?

Yes. Whether you plan to attend the Special Meeting or not, please read this proxy statement carefully,
and vote your shares by completing, signing, dating and returning the enclosed proxy card in the
postage-paid envelope provided.

In order to exercise your redemption rights, you must affirmatively vote either “FOR” or “AGAINST”
the Business Combination Proposal. See “— How do I exercise my redemption rights?” above.

May I change my vote after I have mailed my signed proxy card?

Yes. If you are a stockholder of record of Roman DBDR Common Stock as of the close of business on
the Record Date, you can change or revoke your proxy before it is voted at the meeting in one of the
following ways:

* submit a new proxy card bearing a later date;

 give written notice of your revocation to Roman DBDR’s Corporate Secretary, which notice must be
received by Roman DBDR’s Corporate Secretary prior to the vote at the Special Meeting; or

» vote electronically at the Special Meeting by visiting and entering the control number found on your
proxy card, voting instruction form or notice you previously received. Please note that your
attendance at the Special Meeting will not alone serve to revoke your proxy.

If your shares are held in “street name” by your broker, bank or another nominee as of the close of
business on the Record Date, you must follow the instructions of your broker, bank or other nominee to
revoke or change your voting instructions.

What should I do if I receive more than one set of voting materials?

You may receive more than one set of voting materials, including multiple copies of this proxy
statement and multiple proxy cards or voting instruction cards. For example, if you hold your shares in
more than one brokerage account, you will receive a separate voting instruction card for each brokerage
account in which you hold shares. If you are a holder of record and your shares are registered in more
than one name, you will receive more than one proxy card. Please complete, sign, date and return each
proxy card and voting instruction card that you receive in order to cast your vote with respect to all of
your shares.
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Q: Who will solicit and pay the cost of soliciting proxies?

A: Roman DBDR will pay the cost of soliciting proxies for the Special Meeting. Roman DBDR has
engaged Morrow Sodali as proxy solicitor to assist in the solicitation of proxies for the Special
Meeting. Roman DBDR has agreed to pay Morrow Sodali a fee of $32,500, plus disbursements. Roman
DBDR will reimburse Morrow Sodali for reasonable out-of-pocket expenses and will indemnify
Morrow Sodali and its affiliates against certain claims, liabilities, losses, damages and expenses.
Roman DBDR will also reimburse banks, brokers and other custodians, nominees and fiduciaries
representing beneficial owners of shares of Roman DBDR Common Stock for their expenses in
forwarding soliciting materials to beneficial owners of the Roman DBDR Common Stock and in
obtaining voting instructions from those owners. Roman DBDR’s directors, officers and employees
may also solicit proxies by telephone, by facsimile, by mail, on the Internet or in person. They will not
be paid any additional amounts for soliciting proxies.

Q: Are there any risks that I should consider as a Roman DBDR stockholder in deciding how to vote or
whether to exercise my redemption rights?

A: Yes. You should read and carefully consider the risk factors set forth in the section titled “Risk Factors”
in this proxy statement.

Q: Who can help answer my questions?

A: 1If you have questions about the Proposals or if you need additional copies of this proxy statement or
the enclosed proxy card, please call us at: (650)-618-2524.

You may also contact our proxy solicitor at:

Morrow Sedali LL.C
470 West Avenue
Stamford, CT 06902
Individuals call toll-free: (800) 662-5200
Banks and brokers call: (203) 658-9400
Email: DBDR.info@investor.morrowsodali.com

To obtain timely delivery, Roman DBDR stockholders must request the materials no later than
five (5) business days prior to the Special Meeting.

You may also obtain additional information about Roman DBDR from documents filed with the SEC
by following the instructions in the section titled “Where You Can Find More Information.”

If you intend to seek redemption of your Public Shares, you will need to send a letter demanding
redemption and deliver your stock (either physically or electronically) to Roman DBDR’s transfer
agent prior to the Special Meeting in accordance with the procedures detailed under the question “—
How do I exercise my redemption rights” If you have questions regarding the certification of your
position or delivery of your stock, please contact:

Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company
One State Street Plaza, 30th Floor
New York, New York 10004
Attn: Mark Zimkind
E-mail: mzimkind@continentalstock.com
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RISK FACTORS

The following risk factors will apply to our business and operations following the completion of the
Business Combination. These risk factors are not exhaustive and investors are encouraged to perform their
own investigation with respect to the business, prospects, financial condition and operating results of
CompoSecure and our business, prospects, financial condition and operating results following the
completion of the Business Combination. You should carefully consider the following risk factors in addition
to the other information included in this proxy statement, including matters addressed in the section titled
“Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements,” before deciding how to vote your shares of
Roman DBDR Common Stock. We may face additional risks and uncertainties that are not presently known
to us, or that we currently deem immaterial, which may also impair our business, prospects, financial
condition or operating results. The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our financial
statements and the financial statements of CompoSecure and notes to the financial statements included
herein.

Risks Related to CompoSecure’s Business

The COVID-19 pandemic and the measures implemented to contain the spread of the virus have had a negative
impact on CompoSecure’s business and result of operations and, if continued, could be amplified and have a
material adverse effect on its business, financial condition and results of operations.

Global health concerns relating to the COVID-19 pandemic and related government actions taken to
reduce the spread of the virus have affected the macroeconomic environment, significantly increased
economic uncertainty and reduced economic activity. The pandemic has also led to governmental authorities
implementing numerous measures to try to contain the virus, including travel bans and restrictions,
quarantines, shelter-in-place orders, and business limitations and shutdowns. These measures and the
COVID-19 pandemic have caused economic and financial disruptions that have negatively impacted, and
may continue to negatively impact, CompoSecure’s business, results of operations and financial condition.
The extent to which the pandemic will continue to negatively impact CompoSecure’s business and results of
operations will depend on numerous evolving factors and future developments that CompoSecure is not able
to predict, including the duration and severity of the pandemic; the nature, extent and effectiveness of
containment measures; the extent and duration of the effect on CompoSecure’s customers and suppliers, the
economy, unemployment, consumer confidence and consumer and business spending; and how quickly and
to what extent normal economic and operating conditions resume.

The pandemic and containment measures have caused CompoSecure to modify its operations, and
CompoSecure may take further actions that it determines are in the best interests of its employees,
customers and business partners. If CompoSecure does not respond appropriately to the pandemic, or if
customers or other stakeholders do not perceive its response to be adequate, CompoSecure could suffer
damage to its reputation and brand, which could materially adversely affect CompoSecure’s business.

If the COVID-19 pandemic is prolonged, it could amplify the negative impacts on CompoSecure’s
business and results of operations, and may also heighten many of the other risks described in this “Risk
Factors” section. It is also possible that any adverse effects of the pandemic and containment measures may
continue once the pandemic is controlled and the containment measures are lifted. CompoSecure does not
yet know, nor can it predict, the full extent of how COVID-19 and the containment measures will affect
CompoSecure’s business, results of operations and financial condition, or the global economy as a whole.
However, the continuing effects could have a material adverse impact on CompoSecure’s financial
condition.

CompoSecure may not be able to sustain its revenue growth rate in the future.

CompoSecure’s net revenue increased by 7% from $243.3 million in 2019 to $260.6 million in 2020,
but declined by 21% from $80.4 million during the first quarter of 2020 compared to $63.8 million during
the first quarter of 2021. Accordingly, CompoSecure may not achieve revenue growth in the future and you
should not consider CompoSecure’s revenue growth in fiscal 2020 as indicative of its future performance.
CompoSecure’s growth rate may slow in future periods due to a number of factors, which may include
slowing demand for its products, increased competition, decreasing growth of its overall market, or its
inability to engage and retain customers. If CompoSecure is unable to maintain consistent revenue or
continue its revenue growth, it may be difficult for CompoSecure to maintain profitability.
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Failure to retain existing customers or identify and attract new customers could adversely affect CompoSecure’s
business, financial condition and results of operations.

CompoSecure’s two largest customers are American Express and JPMorgan Chase. Together, these
customers represented approximately 72% and 70% of its net revenue for the year ended December 31,
2020 and nine months ended September 30, 2021, respectively and approximately 74% and 71% for the year
ended December 31, 2019 and nine months ended September 30, 2020, respectively. CompoSecure’s ability
to meet its customers’ high-quality standards in a timely manner is critical to its business success. If
CompoSecure is unable to provide its products and services at high quality and in a timely manner, its
customer relationships may be adversely affected, which could result in the loss of customers.

CompoSecure’s ability to maintain relationships with its customers may be impacted by several factors
beyond its control, including more attractive product offerings from its competitors, pricing pressures or the
financial health of these customers, many of whom operate in competitive businesses and depend on
favorable macroeconomic conditions. In addition, CompoSecure may also be limited in the products it can
offer and the pricing it can receive for such products due to restrictions present in certain of its customer
contracts, which may negatively impact its ability to retain existing customers or attract new customers. If
CompoSecure experiences difficulty retaining customers and attracting new customers, its business,
financial condition and results of operations may be materially and adversely affected.

Data and security breaches could compromise CompoSecure’s systems and confidential information, cause
reputational and financial damage, and increase risks of litigation, which could adversely affect its business,
financial condition and results of operations.

CompoSecure’s information technology (“IT”) infrastructure’s ability to reliably and securely protect
the sensitive confidential information of its customers, which include large financial institutions, is critical
to its business. Security breaches have become more common across many industries. Cyber incidents have
been increasing in sophistication and can include third parties gaining access to employee or customer data
using stolen or inferred credentials, computer malware, viruses, spamming, phishing attacks, ransomware,
card skimming code, and other deliberate attacks and attempts to gain unauthorized access. The occurrence
of these types of incidents in CompoSecure’s computer networks, databases or facilities could lead to the
inappropriate use or disclosure of personal information, including sensitive personal information of
customers and employees, which could harm CompoSecure’s business and reputation, adversely affect
consumers’ confidence in its business and products, result in inquiries and fines or penalties from regulatory
or governmental authorities, cause a loss of customers, pose increased risks of lawsuits and subject
CompoSecure to potential financial losses.

Additionally, it is possible that unauthorized access to sensitive customer and business data may be
obtained through inadequate use of security controls by our customers, suppliers or other vendors. For
example, SolarWinds, an information technology company, was recently the subject of a cyberattack that
created security vulnerabilities for thousands of its clients. While we are not currently aware of any impact
that the SolarWinds supply chain attack had on our business, we may be subject to the risk of similar
cyberattacks on our customers, suppliers and other vendors in the future and there is residual risk that we
may experience a security breach arising from the SolarWinds supply chain attack.

CompoSecure has administrative, technical, and physical security measures in place, and CompoSecure
has policies and procedures in place to both evaluate the security protocols and practices of CompoSecure’s
vendors and to contractually require service providers to whom CompoSecure discloses data to implement
and maintain reasonable privacy and security measures. However, although cybersecurity remains a high
priority, CompoSecure’s activities and investment may not sufficiently protect its system or network against
cyber threats, nor sufficiently prevent or limit the damage from any future security breaches. As these
threats continue to evolve, CompoSecure may be required to expend significant capital and other resources
to protect against these security breaches or to alleviate problems caused by these breaches, including costs
to deploy additional personnel and protection technologies, train employees, and engage third-party experts
and consultants, which could materially and adversely affect its business, financial condition and results of
operations. Although CompoSecure maintains cyber liability insurance, CompoSecure cannot be certain that
its coverage will be adequate for liabilities actually incurred or that insurance will continue to be available
to CompoSecure on economically reasonable terms, or at all. Furthermore, any material breach

16



TABLE OF CONTENTS

of CompoSecure’s security systems could harm its competitive position, result in a loss of customer trust
and confidence, and cause CompoSecure to incur significant costs to mitigate or remedy any damage
resulting from system or network disruptions, whether caused by cyberattacks, security breaches or
otherwise, which could ultimately adversely affect its business, financial condition and results of operations.

System outages, data loss or other interruptions dffecting CompoSecure’s operations could adversely dffect its
business and reputation.

The ability to efficiently execute and operate business functions and systems without interruption is
critical to CompoSecure’s business. A significant portion of the communication between CompoSecure’s
employees, customers, and suppliers rely upon its integrated and complex IT systems. CompoSecure
depends on the reliability of its IT infrastructure and software, and its ability to expand and innovate its
technologies and technological processes in response to changing needs. A system outage or data loss or
interruption could cause damage to CompoSecure’s brand and reputation. Such operational interruptions
could also cause CompoSecure to become liable to third parties, including its customers. CompoSecure
must be able to protect its processing and other systems from interruption to successfully operate its
business. In an effort to do so, CompoSecure has taken preventative actions and adopted protective
procedures to ensure the continuation of core business operations in the event that normal operations could
not be performed because of events outside of its control. These actions and procedures taken and adopted
by CompoSecure may, however, insufficiently prevent or limit the damage from future disruptions, if any,
and any such disruptions could adversely affect CompoSecure’s business, financial condition and results of
operations.

Disruptions at CompoSecure’s primary production facility may adversely affect its business, results of operations
and/or financial condition.

A substantial portion of CompoSecure’s manufacturing capacity is located at its primary production
facility. Any serious disruption at such facility could impair CompoSecure’s ability to manufacture enough
products to meet customer demand, and could increase its costs and expenses and adversely affect its
revenues. CompoSecure’s other facilities may not have the requisite equipment or sufficient capacity, may
have higher costs and expenses, or may experience significant delays to adequately increase production to
satisfactorily meet its customers’ expectations or requirements. Long-term production disruptions may
cause CompoSecure’s customers to modify their Payment Card programs to use plastic cards or to seek
alternative supply of metal cards. Any such production interruptions or disruptions could adversely impact
CompoSecure’s business, financial condition and results of operations.

For example, government-imposed measures in response to the COVID-19 pandemic led CompoSecure
to temporarily limit operations at some of its facilities. As a result, CompoSecure’s credit card production
rate was negatively affected. The continuation of the COVID-19 pandemic and the containment measures
instituted as a result thereof could amplify the negative impact on CompoSecure’s credit card production
and, as a result, have a material adverse effect on CompoSecure’s business, financial condition and results
of operations.

CompoSecure’s future growth may depend upon its ability to develop, introduce and commercialize new products,
which can be a lengthy and complex process. If CompoSecure is unable to introduce new products and services in a
timely manner, its business could be materially adversely affected.

The markets for CompoSecure’s products and services are subject to technological changes, frequent
introductions of new products and services and evolving industry standards. The process for developing
innovative or technologically enhanced products can deplete time, money and resources, and requires the
ability to accurately forecast technological, market and industry trends. In order to achieve successful
technical execution of new products, CompoSecure may need to undertake time-consuming and expensive
research and development activities, which could negatively impact the servicing of its existing customers.
CompoSecure may also experience difficult market conditions that could delay or prevent the successful
research and development, marketing launches and consumer deployment of such newly designed products,
whereby it could incur significant additional cost and expense. In addition, competitors may develop and
commercialize competing products faster and more efficiently than CompoSecure is able to do so, which
could further negatively impact its business.
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CompoSecure’s product and service offerings could be rendered obsolete if it is unable to develop and
introduce innovative products in a cost-effective and timely manner. In particular, the rise in the adoption of
wireless or mobile payment systems may make physical metal cards less attractive as a method of payment,
which could result in less demand for these products. Although to date CompoSecure has not witnessed a
material reduction in card-based payments in the United States resulting from the emergence of wireless or
mobile payment systems, such payment systems offer consumers an alternative method to make purchases
without the need to carry a physical card by relaying on cellular telephones or other technological products
to make payments. If these wireless or mobile payment systems are widely adopted, it could result in a
reduction of the number of physical Payment Cards issued to consumers. Moreover, other developing or
unforeseen technology solutions and products could render CompoSecure’s existing products unpopular,
irrelevant or obsolete altogether.

CompoSecure’s ability to develop and deliver new products and services successfully will depend on
various factors, including its ability to: effectively identify and capitalize upon opportunities in new and
emerging product markets; invest resources in innovation and research and development; complete and
introduce new products and integrated services solutions in a timely manner; license any required third-
party technology or intellectual property rights; qualify for and obtain required industry certification for its
products; and retain and hire talent experienced in developing new products and services. CompoSecure’s
business and growth also depends in part on the success of CompoSecure’s strategic relationships with third
parties, including technology partners or other technology companies whose products are integrated with
CompoSecure’s products. Failure of any of these technology companies to maintain, support or secure their
technology platforms in general, and CompoSecure’s integrations in particular, or errors or defects in their
technologies or products, could adversely affect CompoSecure’s relationships with customers, damage
CompoSecure’s brand and reputation, and could adversely affect CompoSecure’s business, financial
condition and results of operations.

CompoSecure’s ability to enhance its existing products and to develop and introduce innovative new
products that continue to meet the needs of its customers may affect its future success. CompoSecure may
experience difficulties that could delay or prevent the successful development, marketing or deployment of
these products, or its newly enhanced services may not meet market demands or achieve market traction.
CompoSecure’s potential failure to complete or gain market acceptance of new products, services and
technologies could adversely affect its ability to retain existing customers or attract new ones.

A disruption in CompoSecure’s operations or supply chain could adversely affect its business and financial results.

As a company engaged in manufacturing and distribution, CompoSecure is subject to the risks inherent
in such activities, including disruptions or delays in supply chain or information technology, product quality
control, as well as other external factors over which it has no control. Some of the key components for its
products are metals, and EMV chips, which it sources from several key suppliers. CompoSecure obtains its
components from multiple suppliers located in the United States and abroad, on a purchase order basis.
Changes in the financial or business condition of CompoSecure’s suppliers could subject CompoSecure to
losses or adversely affect its ability to bring products to market. Additionally, the failure of CompoSecure’s
suppliers to comply with applicable standards and deliver goods and services in a timely manner in
sufficient quantities could adversely affect its customer service levels and overall business. Any increases in
the costs of goods and services for CompoSecure’s business may also adversely affect its profit margins
particularly if CompoSecure is unable to achieve higher price increases or otherwise increase cost or
operational efficiencies to offset the higher costs.

The COVID-19 pandemic and related government measures in response to the pandemic negatively
affected CompoSecure’s suppliers, which in turn negatively affected CompoSecure’s production and
business. In addition, there is an increased demand for microchips worldwide in various industries and
manufacturers of chips are experiencing shortages in supply, which could adversely affect CompoSecure’s
ability to obtain sufficient chips for its manufacturing operations.

CompoSecure has limited experience in the Cryptocurrency industry and may not succeed in commercializing the
Arculus Platform.

With its business operations historically focused on the Payment Card industry, CompoSecure is a new
entrant into the Cryptocurrency industry. The Arculus Platform was commercially launched in the third
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quarter of 2021. It is possible that consumers of Digital Asset storage products may not be willing to
purchase or use the Arculus products, and CompoSecure may not be able to establish partnerships with its
existing and/or new customers to drive partner-branded versions of the Arculus Key card or other Arculus
Ecosystem products or services. If CompoSecure is unable to successfully establish sufficient consumer
sales, commercial partnerships and/or business-to-business sales channels, that would likely have a material
adverse effect on CompoSecure’s business, financial condition and results of operations. Furthermore, a
significant portion of CompoSecure’s future growth is expected to come from its Arculus Platform business.
If the Arculus Platform fails to gain market acceptance, or the Arculus Platform otherwise fails to be as
successful as CompoSecure expects, CompoSecure’s ability to achieve its currently-forecasted performance
will be significantly impaired.

In addition, CompoSecure must rely on vendors and development partners for certain components of its
Arculus Cold Storage Wallet products, and must source and procure NFC-enabled chips to be embedded in
its Arculus Key cards, as well as other materials used in the manufacture of the Arculus Key card. The
performance of CompoSecure’s vendors and development partners, and the availability of NFC-enabled
chips and other materials, is essential to the success of the Arculus Wallet and Arculus Key card. There is
currently a global shortage of chips due to increased demand and interruptions of production, both resulting
from the COVID-19 pandemic. If CompoSecure’s vendors and development partners do not perform as
expected, or if CompoSecure is not able to source and procure sufficient quantities of NFC-enabled chips
and other materials, the success of its Arculus Cold Storage Wallet and Arculus Key card could be
negatively impacted, which could have a material adverse effect on CompoSecure’s business, financial
condition and results of operations. In addition, changes or delays in supply or pricing of NFC-enabled
chips, or other necessary materials, could materially negatively impact the potential margins and
profitability of CompoSecure’s Arculus business.

Digital Asset Wallet storage systems, such as the Arculus Cold Storage Wallet, are subject to potential illegal misuse,
risks related to a loss of funds due to theft of Digital Assets, security and cybersecurity risks, system failures and
other operational issues, which could cause damage to CompoSecure’s reputation and brand.

Blockchain-related products and services, in particular Digital Assets (including Cryptocurrencies),
have the potential to be used for financial crimes or other illegal activities. Because the Blockchain platform
that CompoSecure is developing is novel, there are uncertainties regarding any legal and regulatory
requirements for preventing Blockchain-related products and services from being put to such unlawful uses,
and there are uncertainties regarding the liabilities and risks to CompoSecure if CompoSecure is unable to
prevent such unlawful uses. Even if CompoSecure complies with all laws and regulations regarding
financial and Blockchain-related products and services, CompoSecure has no ability to ensure that its
customers, partners or others to whom CompoSecure licenses or sells its products and services comply with
all laws and regulations applicable to them and their transactions. Any negative publicity CompoSecure
receives regarding any allegations of unlawful uses of the Arculus Platform, including the Arculus Key card
or the Arculus Wallet product could damage CompoSecure’s reputation and such damage could be material
and adverse, including to aspects of CompoSecure’s business that are unrelated to the Arculus Platform.
More generally, any negative publicity regarding unlawful uses of Blockchain technology or Digital Assets
in the marketplace could materially reduce the demand for CompoSecure’s products and services, including
the Arculus Platform.

The initial Arculus Cold Storage Wallet product is comprised of a Cold Storage device and a mobile
Wallet App. A Cold Storage Wallet uses an architecture where the Private Keys needed to access Digital
Assets, such as Cryptocurrencies, are not connected to the Internet. In the Arculus Platform, the Arculus
Cold Storage Wallet comprises the Arculus Key card, which stores the Private Keys on a secure NFC-
enabled chip embedded in the card, and the Arculus Wallet App configured to communicate via NFC with
the Arculus Key card. A user may choose to store his or her Digital Assets in a Cold Storage Wallet if such
user has no immediate plan to use those Digital Assets because a Cold Storage Wallet potentially may be
safer than a Hot Storage Wallet because the connection of a Hot Storage Wallet to the Internet makes it
potentially more vulnerable to hacking. Through the use of Cold Storage Wallet technology, the Arculus
Platform, with its three-factor authentication technology, may be able to increase the safety of users’ assets
during storage, as compared to storing such Digital Assets in a Hot Storage Wallet. Further, Digital Assets
are controllable only by the possessor of both the unique public and Private Keys relating to the local or
online
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digital Wallet in which they are held, which Wallet’s public key or address is reflected in the network’s
public Blockchain. Notwithstanding the increased security of the Cold Storage Wallet system as compared
to a Hot Storage Wallet system, any loss of Private Keys, or hack or other compromise of, the Cold Storage
Wallets could materially and adversely affect CompoSecure’s customers’ ability to access or swap their
Digital Assets and could cause significant reputational harm to CompoSecure, its Arculus Platform products
and services and the Arculus Platform.

The Arculus Cold Storage Wallet employs security measures common to Blockchain technologies, and
specifically includes an advanced three-factor authentication, including biometric, PIN, and key card
authentication, as well as passcode storage that is separate from the encrypted keys located on the Arculus
Key card. The effectiveness of these and any other security measures to be employed by users of the
Arculus Cold Storage Wallet currently in development have not yet been determined. There is no guarantee
that these security measures or any that CompoSecure may develop in the future will be effective. Any
failure of these security features may result in the loss of customers’ Digital Assets and cause reputational
harm, which may be material to CompoSecure, the occurrence of any of the foregoing could have a material
adverse effect on CompoSecure’s business, financial condition and results of operations.

Regulatory changes or actions may restrict the use of the Arculus Wallet or Digital Assets in a manner that
adversely affects CompoSecure’s business, prospects or operations.

Regulatory Uncertainty Surrounding the Digital Asset Environment, including Cryptocurrencies

As Digital Assets, including cryptocurrencies, have grown in both popularity and market size,
governments around the world have reacted differently to Digital Assets, with certain governments deeming
them illegal and others allowing their use and trade under certain circumstances. In addition, governments
or regulatory authorities may impose new or additional licensing, registration or other compliance
requirements on participants in the Digital Asset industry. Ongoing and future regulatory actions may
impact the ability of CompoSecure to develop and offer products involving the use of Digital Assets,
including the Arculus Wallet, or may impose additional costs, which may be material, on CompoSecure in
connection with such products, and such impact may be material and adverse. For example, the
Commodities Futures Trading Commission (“CFTC”) has designated bitcoin, a form of Digital Asset that
frequently is referred to as a Cryptocurrency, as a commodity, and as such, trades in bitcoin are subject to
the CFTC’s antifraud authority.

Regulatory Risks Resulting from Potential Designation of Certain Digital Assets as Securities

The Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) staff has stated that bitcoin is not a security, but has
asserted that certain other Digital Assets, such as XRP, are securities subject to the SEC’s substantive and
antifraud authority. Further, derivatives on these Digital Assets, tokens that represent certain derivatives,
and certain leveraged transactions on Digital Assets, may be subject to substantive regulation by the CFTC
and/or SEC. In sum, these federal regulators, and various U.S. state and non-U.S. regulators, are still
developing their frameworks for regulating Digital Assets.

There is currently no uniformly applicable legal or regulatory regime governing Digital Assets in
certain jurisdictions, including in the U.S. A particular Digital Asset’s status as a “security” or other
regulatory investment or the treatment of digital currency for tax purposes, in any relevant jurisdiction is
subject to a high degree of uncertainty and potential inconsistency across regulatory regimes, and if
CompoSecure is unable to properly characterize a Digital Asset or assess its tax treatment, CompoSecure
may be subject to regulatory scrutiny, investigations, fines, and other penalties, which may adversely affect
CompoSecure’s business, operating results, and financial condition. Some jurisdictions have taken a broad-
based approach to classifying Digital Assets as “securities,” while other foreign jurisdictions have adopted a
narrower approach. As a result, certain Digital Assets may be deemed to be a “security” under the laws of
some jurisdictions but not others. In the future, jurisdictions may adopt additional heterogeneous laws,
regulations, or directives that affect the characterization of Digital Assets as “securities.”

In order to determine whether a particular Cryptocurrency or other Digital Asset is a security prior to
supporting purchase and swap transactions on the Arculus Platform in such Cryptocurrency or other Digital
Asset, CompoSecure relies upon legal and regulatory analysis of legal counsel with expertise in the Digital
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Asset industry. This legal and regulatory analysis is informed not only by existing U.S. federal securities
law, including case law, but also takes into account relevant U.S. federal and state enforcement actions,
guidance and commentary of relevant U.S. regulators and staff thereof — including speeches and published
securities law frameworks, other published analyses and ratings by market participants, securities litigation,
those digital assets listed by what CompoSecure believes to be respected Digital Asset trading platforms,
published news and other data and materials that may from time to time become available to CompoSecure.
Accordingly, CompoSecure’s determinations concerning which Cryptocurrencies and other Digital Assets
are likely to be securities is updated regularly, in light of ongoing developments, and CompoSecure
expressly reserves the right (as reflected in its terms and conditions) to discontinue support for purchase and
swap transactions for any Cryptocurrencies and other Digital Assets, should CompoSecure determine that
such Cryptocurrencies or other Digital Assets have a meaningful risk of being characterized as securities
(i.e., that there is a current reasonable likelihood that U.S. regulators or judicial authorities definitively
determine, through legislation, rulemaking, case law or enforcement activity, that a particular
Cryptocurrency or other Digital Asset is a security under the federal securities laws). While the
methodology CompoSecure has used, and expects to continue to use, to determine if purchase and swap
transactions in a Cryptocurrency or other Digital Asset will be supported in the Arculus Platform is
ultimately a risk-based assessment, it does not preclude legal or regulatory action based on the presence of a
security. If CompoSecure is found to have supported purchase and swap transactions in its Arculus Platform
for Cryptocurrencies or other Digital Assets which are subsequently determined to be securities, it is
possible that CompoSecure could be viewed as inadvertently acting as an unlicensed broker-dealer which
could subject CompoSecure to, among other things, regulatory enforcement actions, censure, monetary
fines, restrictions on the conduct of its Arculus business operations and/or rescission/damages claims by
customers who use the Arculus Platform. CompoSecure’s failure to comply with applicable laws or
regulations, or the costs associated with defending any action alleging CompoSecure’s noncompliance with
applicable laws or regulations, could materially and adversely affect CompoSecure, its business and its
results of operations.

Because the Arculus Platform may facilitate purchase and swap transactions in Digital Assets that
could be classified as “securities,” CompoSecure’s business may be subject to additional risk because such
Digital Assets are subject to heightened scrutiny including under customer protection, anti-money
laundering, counter terrorism financing and sanctions regulations. To the extent the Arculus Platform
supports purchase and swap transactions in any Digital Assets that are deemed to be securities under any of
the laws of the U.S. or another jurisdiction, or in a proceeding in a court of law or otherwise, it may have
adverse consequences. For instance, all purchase and swap transactions in such supported Digital Assets
would have to be registered with the SEC, or conducted in accordance with an exemption from registration,
which could severely limit its liquidity, usability and transactability. Comparable or other requirements may
be imposed by authorities in other jurisdictions. Further, such limitations could result in negative publicity
and a decline in the general acceptance of Digital Assets and would make it difficult for such purchase and
swap transactions in such supported Digital Assets to be traded, cleared, and custodied as compared to other
Digital Assets that are not considered to be securities. To counter such risks, CompoSecure may have to
remove Arculus Platform support for purchase and swap transactions in certain Digital Assets if and when
such Digital Assets are designated as securities, which could hurt CompoSecure’s business. Alternatively,
CompoSecure may be required to partner with third-party registered securities broker/dealers to facilitate
securities trading by Arculus customers, and CompoSecure may be unsuccessful in efforts to establish such
a partnership.

In addition, CompoSecure does not presently intend to effect or otherwise facilitate trading in securities
by its Arculus customers through the use of its Arculus Wallet if such activities would require the use of a
registered broker-dealer or investment adviser. Although CompoSecure is establishing policies and
procedures to ensure that its Arculus business activities do not result in CompoSecure inadvertently acting
as an unregistered broker-dealer or investment adviser, there can no assurance that such policies and
procedures will be effective. If CompoSecure is found by relevant regulatory agencies to have inadvertently
acted as an unregistered broker-dealer with respect to purchase and swap transactions in particular
Cryptocurrencies, CompoSecure is expected to immediately cease supporting purchase and swap
transactions in those Cryptocurrencies unless and until either the Cryptocurrency at issue is determined by
the SEC or a judicial ruling to not be a security or CompoSecure partners with a third-party registered
broker-dealer or investment adviser, acquires a registered broker-dealer or investment adviser or registers
itself as a securities broker-dealer or investment adviser, any of which CompoSecure may elect not to do or
may not be successful
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in doing. For any period of time during which CompoSecure is found to have inadvertently acted as an
unregistered broker-dealer or investment adviser, CompoSecure could be subject to, among other things,
regulatory enforcement actions, monetary fines, censure, restrictions on the conduct of its Arculus business
operations and/or rescission/damages claims by customers who use the Arculus Platform. CompoSecure’s
failure to comply with applicable laws or regulations, or the costs associated with defending any action
alleging CompoSecure’s noncompliance with applicable laws or regulations, could materially and adversely
affect CompoSecure, its business and its results of operations.

CompoSecure does not believe the storage and peer-to-peer/send & receive functionality provided by
the Arculus WalletTM involves purchases, sales or other transactions effected by CompoSecure (or any
party other than the sender and the recipient). Further, CompoSecure is not compensated for such user-
directed activities. However, it is possible that regulators may determine that user-directed peer-to-peer
transfers using the Arculus WalletTM would require registration and compliance with broker-dealer and/or
securities exchange regulations.

Regulatory Risks of Operating as an Unregistered Exchange or as Part of an Unregistered Exchange
Mechanism

Any venue that brings together purchasers and sellers of Cryptocurrencies or other Digital Assets that
are characterized as securities in the United States is generally subject to registration as a national securities
exchange, or must qualify for an exemption, such as by being operated by a registered broker-dealer as an
alternative trading system (or ATS). To the extent that any venue accessed via the Arculus Platform is not so
registered (or appropriately exempt), CompoSecure may be unable to permit continued support for purchase
and swap transactions for Cryptocurrencies or other Digital Assets that become subject to characterization
as securities. While CompoSecure does not believe that the Arculus Platform, which facilitates purchase and
swap transactions in certain Cryptocurrencies and other Digital Assets, is itself a securities exchange or
ATS, regulators may determine that this is the case, and CompoSecure would then be required to register as
a securities exchange or qualify and register as an ATS, either of which could cause CompoSecure to
discontinue its purchase and swap support for such Cryptocurrencies or other Digital Assets. Any such
discontinuation could negatively impact CompoSecure’s business, operating results, and financial condition.
In addition, to the extent other Cold Storage Wallets continue to provide access to such unregulated
exchanges, the discontinuation of access for users of the Arculus Wallet may be unpopular with users and
may reduce CompoSecure’s ability to attract and retain customers. Further, if CompoSecure is found to be
in violation of the Exchange Act due to operation of an unregistered exchange or as part of an unregistered
exchange mechanism, CompoSecure could be subject to significant monetary penalties, censure or other
actions that may have a material and adverse effect on CompoSecure.

CompoSecure relies on third-party partners to provide certain features of the Arculus Wallet, and any interruptions
in services provided by these third parties may impair our ability to support our customers.

CompoSecure partners with third-party development partners and exchanges to offer customers an
option to trade fiat currency and cryptocurrencies using the Arculus Wallet and companion phone App. For
additional information regarding CompoSecure’s existing Arculus Wallet partner relationships, as well as
CompoSecure’s expectations regarding future partner relationships, please see the section of this proxy
statement entitled, “Summary of CompoSecure’s Business — Overview.” If these third parties experience
operational interference or disruptions, breach their agreements with us, fail to perform their obligations and
meet our expectations, or experience a cybersecurity incident, our operations could be disrupted or
otherwise negatively affected. If CompoSecure is unable to procure alternatives in a timely and efficient
manner and on acceptable terms, or at all, in case of third-party service unavailability, it could result in
customer dissatisfaction, regulatory scrutiny, and damage to our reputation and brand, and other
consequences that materially and adversely affect our business. Furthermore, although the agreements with
CompoSecure’s existing partners contractually allocate liability to the partners for their actions, including
liability relating to anti-money laundering, know your customer and other transaction-related regulatory
compliance requirements, these provisions include limitations on liability. There can be no guarantee that
CompoSecure would not be held liable for the actions of its partners, or that the liabilities would not exceed
the contractual limitations on liability. Any liabilities incurred by CompoSecure for the actions of our third-
party partners could have a material adverse effect on our business operations, financial condition and
results of operations.
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CompoSecure’s inability to safeguard against misappropriation or infringement of its intellectual property may
adversely affect its business.

CompoSecure’s patents, trade secrets and other intellectual property rights are critical to its business.
CompoSecure’s ability to safeguard its proprietary product designs and production processes against
misappropriation by third parties is necessary to maintain its competitive position within its industry.
Therefore, CompoSecure routinely enters into confidentiality agreements with its employees, consultants
and strategic partners to limit and dictate access to, and distribution of, its proprietary information in an
effort to safeguard its proprietary rights and trade secrets. However, such efforts may not adequately protect
CompoSecure’s intellectual property against infringement and misappropriation by unauthorized third
parties. Such third parties could interfere with CompoSecure’s relationships with customers if successful in
attempts to misappropriate CompoSecure’s proprietary information or copy CompoSecure’s products
designs, or portions thereof. Additionally, because CompoSecure’s customers primarily purchase products
on a purchase order basis and not pursuant to a detailed written contract, where CompoSecure does not have
the benefit of written protections with respect to certain intellectual property terms beyond standard terms
and conditions, CompoSecure may be exposed to potential infringement of its intellectual property rights.
Enforcing its intellectual property rights against unauthorized use may be expensive and cause
CompoSecure to incur significant costs, all of which could adversely affect its business, financial condition
and results of operations. There is no assurance that CompoSecure’s existing or future patents will not be
challenged, invalidated or otherwise circumvented. The patents and intellectual property rights
CompoSecure obtains, including CompoSecure’s intellectual property rights which are formally registered
in the United States and abroad, may be insufficient to provide meaningful protection or commercial
advantage. Moreover, CompoSecure may have difficulty obtaining additional patents and other intellectual
property protections in the future. Effective patent, trademark, service mark, copyright and trade secret
protection may not be available in every country in which CompoSecure provides its products or services.
Any of the foregoing factors may have a material adverse effect on CompoSecure’s business.

CompoSecure may incur substantial costs because of litigation or other proceedings relating to patents and other
intellectual property rights.

Companies in CompoSecure’s industry have commenced litigation to properly protect their intellectual
property rights. Any proceedings or litigation that CompoSecure initiates to enforce CompoSecure’s
intellectual property rights, or any intellectual property litigation asserted against CompoSecure, could be
costly and divert the attention of managerial and other personnel and further, could result in an adverse
judgement or other determination that could preclude CompoSecure from enforcing its intellectual property
rights or offering some of its products to its customers. Royalty or other payments arising in settlements
could negatively impact CompoSecure’s profit margins and financial results. If CompoSecure is unable to
successfully defend against claims that it has infringed the intellectual property rights of others,
CompoSecure may need to indemnify some customers and strategic partners related to allegations that its
products infringe the intellectual property rights of others. Additionally, some of CompoSecure’s customers,
suppliers and licensors may not be obligated to indemnify CompoSecure for the full costs and expenses of
defending against infringement claims. CompoSecure may also be required to defend against alleged
infringement of the intellectual property rights of third parties because CompoSecure’s products contain
technologies properly sourced from suppliers or customers. CompoSecure may be unable to determine in a
timely manner or at all whether such intellectual property use infringes the rights of third parties. Any such
litigation or other proceeding could adversely affect CompoSecure’s business, financial condition and
results of operations.

Production quality and manufacturing process disruptions could adversely affect CompoSecure’s business.

CompoSecure’s products and its technological processes are highly complex, require specialized
equipment to manufacture and are subject to strict tolerances and requirements. CompoSecure could
experience production disruptions due to machinery or technology failures, or as a result of external factors
such as delays or quality control issues regarding materials provided by its suppliers. Utilities interruption
or other factors beyond CompoSecure’s control like natural disasters may also cause production disruptions.
Such disruptions can reduce product yields and product quality, or interrupt or halt production altogether. As
a result, CompoSecure may be required to deliver products at a lower quality level in a less timely or
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cost-effective manner, rework or replace products, or may not be able to deliver products at all. Any such
event could adversely affect CompoSecure’s business, financial condition and results of operations.

CompoSecure is dependent on certain distribution partners for distribution of its products and services. A loss of
distribution partners could adversely affect CompoSecure’s business.

A small number of distribution partners currently deliver a significant percentage of CompoSecure’s
products and services to customers. CompoSecure intends to continue devoting resources in support of its
larger distribution partners, but there are no guarantees that these relationships will remain in place over the
short-or long-term. In addition, CompoSecure cannot be assured that any of these distribution partners will
continue to generate current levels of customer demand. A loss of any of these distribution partners could
have a material adverse effect on CompoSecure’s business, financial condition and results of operations.

CompoSecure faces competition that may result in a loss of its market share and/or a decline in profitability.

CompoSecure’s industry is highly competitive and CompoSecure expects it to remain highly
competitive as competitors cut production costs, new product markets develop, and other competitors
attempt to enter the markets in which it operates or new markets in which it may enter. Some of
CompoSecure’s existing competitors have more sales, marketing, specialized manufacturing, and efficient
distribution processes. CompoSecure may also face competition from new competitors that may enter
CompoSecure’s industry or specific product market. Such current or new competitors may develop
technologies, processes or products that are better suited to succeed in the marketplace as a result of
enhanced features and functionality at lower costs, particularly as technological sophistication of such
competitors and the size of the market increase. These factors could lower CompoSecure’s average selling
prices and reduce gross margins. If CompoSecure cannot sufficiently reduce its production costs or develop
innovative technologies or products, it may not be able to compete effective in its product market and
maintain market share therein, which could adversely affect its business, financial condition and results of
operations.

CompoSecure’s long-lived assets represent a significant portion of its total assets, and their full value may never be
realized.

CompoSecure’s long-lived assets recorded as of September 30, 2021 were $23.9 million, representing
approximately 22.2% of its total assets, of which CompoSecure has recorded plant, equipment and leasehold
improvements of $23.3 million, as its operations require significant investments in machinery and
equipment.

CompoSecure reviews other long-lived assets for impairment on an as-needed basis and when
circumstances, alterations, or other events indicate that an asset group or carrying amount of an asset may
not be recoverable. Examples of these other long-lived assets include intangible but identifiable assets and
plant, equipment, and leasehold improvements. If CompoSecure must write-down long-lived assets,
CompoSecure records the appropriate charge, which may adversely affect its operation outcomes, financial
performance, and overall business. Such write-downs of long-lived assets may result from a drop in future
expected cash flows and worsening performance, among other factors.

CompoSecure’s failure to operate its business in compliance with the standards of the PCI Security Standards
Council or other industry standards applicable to its customers, such as Payment Networks certification standards,
could adversely affect its business.

Many of CompoSecure’s customers issue their cards on the Payment Networks that are subject to the
standards of the PCI Security Standards Council or other standards and criteria relating to product
specifications and supplier facility physical and logical security that CompoSecure must satisfy in order to
be eligible to supply products and services to such customers. CompoSecure’s contractual arrangements
with its customers may be terminated if CompoSecure fails to comply with these standards and criteria.

CompoSecure makes significant investments to its facilities in order to meet these industry standards,
including investments required to satisfy changes adopted from time to time in industry standards.
CompoSecure may become ineligible to provide products and services to its customers if it is unable to
continue to meet these standards. Many of the products CompoSecure produces and services it provides are

24



TABLE OF CONTENTS

subject to certification with one or more of the Payment Networks. CompoSecure may lose the ability to
produce cards for or provide services to banks issuing credit or debit cards on the Payment Networks if it
were to lose its certification from one or more of the Payment Networks or PCI certification for one or more
of its facilities. If CompoSecure is not able to produce cards for or provide services to any or all of the
issuers issuing debit or credit cards on such networks, it could lose a substantial number of its customers,
which could have a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition and results of operations.

As consumers and businesses spend less, CompoSecure’s business, operation outcomes, and financial state may be
adversely affected.

Companies that rely heavily on consumer and business spending are exposed to changing economic
conditions and are impacted by changes in consumer confidence, consumer spending, discretionary income
levels or consumer purchasing habits. A continuous decline in general economic condition, particularly in
the United States, or increases in interest rates, may reduce demand for CompoSecure’s products, which
could negatively impact its sales. An economic downturn could cause credit card issuers to switch card
programs to plastic cards, seek lower-priced metal hybrid card suppliers, reduce credit limits, close
accounts, and become more selective with respect to whom they issue credit cards. Such conditions and
potential outcomes could adversely affect CompoSecure’s financial performance, overall business, and
operation outcomes.

Product liability and warranty claims and their associated costs may adversely affect CompoSecure’s business.

The nature of CompoSecure’s products is highly complex. As a result, CompoSecure cannot guarantee
that defects will not occur from time to time. CompoSecure may incur extensive costs as a result of these
defects and any resulting claims. For example, product recalls, writing down defective inventory, replacing
defective items, lost sales or profit, and third-party claims can all give rise to costs incurred by
CompoSecure. CompoSecure may also face liability for judgments and/or damages in connection with
product liability and warranty claims. Damage to CompoSecure’s reputation could occur if defective
products are sold into the marketplace, resulting in further lost sales and profits and additional damages. To
the extent that CompoSecure relies on purchase orders to govern its commercial relationships with its
customers, CompoSecure may not have specifically negotiated the allocation of risk for product liability
obligations. Instead, CompoSecure typically rely on warranties and limitations of liability included in
CompoSecure’s standard forms of order acceptance, invoice and other contract documents with its
customers. Similarly, CompoSecure obtains products and services from suppliers, some of which also use
purchase order documents which may include limitations on product liability obligations with respect to
their products and services. As a result, CompoSecure may bear all or a significant portion of any product
liability obligations rather than transferring this risk to our customers. CompoSecure’s reputation would be
harmed and there could be a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition and results of
operations if any of these risks materialize.

If tariffs and other restrictions on imported goods are imposed by the U.S. government, CompoSecure’s revenue and
operations may be materially and adversely affected.

A portion of the raw materials used by CompoSecure to manufacture its products are obtained, directly
or indirectly, from companies located outside of the United States. Recently, tariffs have been imposed on
imports from certain countries outside of the United States. As a result, further trade restrictions and/or
tariffs may be forthcoming. Certain international trade agreements may also be at risk, as the current U.S.
administration has voiced some opposition in respect thereof. These factors may stagnate the economy,
impact relationships with and access to suppliers, and/or materially and adversely affect CompoSecure’s
business, operation outcomes, and financial state. These and future tariffs, as well as any other global trade
developments, bring with them uncertainty. CompoSecure cannot predict future changes to imports covered
by tariffs or which countries will be included or excluded from such tariffs. The reactions of other countries
and resulting actions on the United States and similarly situated companies could negatively impact
CompoSecure’s business, operation outcomes, and financial state.

CompoSecure’s international sales subject CompoSecure to additional risks that can adversely dffect its business,
operating results and financial condition.

During 2020 and 2019, CompoSecure derived 21% and 18%, respectively, of its revenue from sales to
customers located outside the U.S. CompoSecure’s ability to convince customers to expand their use of its
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products or renew their agreements with CompoSecure is directly correlated to its direct engagement with
such customers. To the extent that CompoSecure is unable to engage with non-U.S. customers effectively
with its limited sales force, CompoSecure may be unable to grow sales to international customers to the
same degree it has experienced in the United States.

CompoSecure’s international operations subject it to a variety of risks and challenges, including:

« fluctuations in currency exchange rates and related effect on its operating results;

+ general economic conditions in each country or region;

« the impact of Brexit; reduction in billings, foreign currency exchange rates, and trade with the EU;
« the effects of a widespread outbreak of an illness or disease, or any other public health crisis,

* including the COVID-19 pandemic, in each country or region;

» economic uncertainty around the world; and

» compliance with U.S. laws and regulations for foreign operations, including the Foreign Corrupt
Practices Act, the U.K. Bribery Act, import and export control laws, tariffs, trade barriers, economic
sanctions and other regulatory or contractual limitations on its ability to sell its products in certain
foreign markets, and the risks and costs of non-compliance.

Any of these risks could adversely affect CompoSecure’s international sales, reduce its international
revenues or increase its operating costs, adversely affecting its business, financial condition and operating
results.

CompoSecure relies on licensing arrangements in production and other fields, and actions taken by any of its
licensing partners could have a material adverse effect on its business.

Many of CompoSecure’s products integrate third-party technologies that CompoSecure licenses or
otherwise obtains the right to use. CompoSecure has entered into licensing agreements that provide access
to technology owned by third parties. The terms of CompoSecure’s licensing arrangements vary. These
different terms could have a negative impact on CompoSecure’s performance to the extent new or existing
licensees demand a greater proportion of royalty revenues under our licensing arrangements. Additionally,
such third parties may not continue to renew their licenses with CompoSecure on similar terms or at all,
which could negatively impact its net sales. If CompoSecure is unable to continue to successfully renew
these agreements, it may lose its access to certain technologies relied upon to develop certain of its
products. The loss of access to those technologies, if not replaced with internally-developed or other
licensed technology, could have a material adverse effect on CompoSecure’s result of operations.

The adoption of new tax legislation could affect our financial performance.

We are subject to income and other taxes in the United States. Our effective tax rate in the future could
be adversely affected by changes in tax laws. More generally, it is possible that U.S. federal income or other
tax laws or the interpretation of tax laws will change. For example, the Biden Administration has proposed
an increase in the U.S. corporate income tax rate and a minimum corporate tax based on book income. It is
difficult to predict whether and when there will be tax law changes having a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Risks Related to Our Indebtedness

CompoSecure has, and following completion of the Business Combination the Combined Entity will have, a
substantial amount of indebtedness, which may limit our operating flexibility and could adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

CompoSecure had approximately $237 million of indebtedness as of September 30, 2021, consisting of
amounts outstanding under its senior secured credit facility. Following the Business Combination and unless
the Combined Entity repays any of such indebtedness, the Combined Entity is expected to have outstanding
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indebtedness in approximately the same amount. This does not give effect to the Exchangeable Notes to be
issued by CompoSecure in the Note PIPE Investment.

The indebtedness of the Combined Entity following the Business Combination could have important
consequences to our investors, including, but not limited to:

* increasing the Combined Entity’s vulnerability to, and reducing its flexibility to respond to, general
adverse economic and industry conditions;

 requiring the dedication of a substantial portion of the Combined Entity’s cash flow from operations
to servicing debt, including interest payments and quarterly excess cash flow prepayment
obligations;

* limiting the Combined Entity’s flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in its business and
the competitive environment; and

« limiting the Combined Entity’s ability to borrow additional funds and increasing the cost of any such
borrowing.

The interest rates in CompoSecure’s, and after the Business Combination, the Combined Entity’s, credit
facility are set based upon stated margins above lender’s base rate and the London Interbank Offered Rate,
an interest rate at which banks can borrow funds, in marketable size, from other banks in the London
interbank market, which is subject to fluctuation. In addition, the interest rate margin applicable to
CompoSecure’s term loans and revolving loans can vary by one hundred (100) basis points depending on
our total leverage ratio. An increase in interest rates would adversely affect the Combined Entity’s
profitability.

Upon the occurrence of an event of default relating to the CompoSecure credit facility, the lenders could elect to
accelerate payments due and terminate all commitments to extend further credit.

Under the Combined Entity’s credit facility, upon the occurrence of an event of default, the lenders will
be able to elect to declare all amounts outstanding under the credit agreement to be immediately due and
payable and terminate all commitments to lend additional funds. If we are unable to repay those amounts,
the lenders under the credit agreement could proceed to foreclose against the collateral of the Combined
Entity that secures that indebtedness. CompoSecure has granted the lenders a security interest in
substantially all of its assets.

The debt outstanding under CompoSecure’s existing credit facility has a variable rate of interest that is based on the
London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) which may have consequences for CompoSecure that cannot be
reasonably predicted and may increase CompoSecure’s cost of borrowing in the future.

CompoSecure’s debt outstanding under its existing credit facility bears interest at a variable rate per
annum that is calculated based upon the LIBOR rate plus the applicable margin, ranging from 2.0% — 3.0%.
The LIBOR benchmark has been the subject of national, international, and other regulatory guidance and
proposals for reform. In July 2017, the U.K. Financial Conduct Authority announced that it intends to stop
compelling banks to submit rates for the calculation of LIBOR after 2021. However, for U.S. dollar LIBOR,
the relevant date was deferred to June 30, 2023 for certain tenors (including overnight and one, three, six
and 12 months), at which time the LIBOR administrator will cease publication of U.S. dollar LIBOR.
Despite this deferral, the LIBOR administrator has advised that no new contracts using U.S. dollar LIBOR
should be entered into after December 31, 2021. These actions indicate that the continuation of U.S. LIBOR
on the current basis cannot be guaranteed after June 30, 2023. Moreover, it is possible that U.S. LIBOR will
be discontinued or modified prior to June 30, 2023. While regulators in various jurisdictions have been
working to replace LIBOR, it is unclear whether new agreed-upon benchmark rates will be established.
Although CompoSecure’s credit facility provides for alternative reference rates, such alternative reference
rates and the consequences of the phase-out of LIBOR cannot be entirely predicted at this time. An
alternative reference rate could be higher or more volatile than LIBOR prior to its discontinuance, which
could result in an increase in the cost of CompoSecure’s indebtedness, adversely impacting CompoSecure’s
financial condition and results of operations. Additionally, the U.S. or global financial markets may be
disrupted as a result of the phase-out of LIBOR, which could also have a material adverse effect on
CompoSecure’s business, financial condition and results of operations.

27



TABLE OF CONTENTS

The Combined Entity’s credit facility will contain restrictive covenants that may impair our ability to conduct
business.

CompoSecure’s credit facility contains, and following the completion of the Business Combination the
Combined Entity’s credit facility will contain, operating covenants and financial covenants that may in each
case limit management’s discretion with respect to certain business matters. CompoSecure must, and
following the Business Combination we will be required to, comply with a maximum total leverage ratio
and a minimum debt service coverage ratio. Among other things, these covenants restrict our and our
subsidiaries’ ability to grant additional liens, consolidate or merge with other entities, purchase or sell
assets, declare dividends, incur additional debt, make advances, investments and loans, transact with
affiliates, issue equity interests, modify organizational documents and engage in other business. As a result
of these covenants and restrictions, we will be limited in how we conduct our business and we may be
unable to raise additional debt or other financing to compete effectively or to take advantage of new
business opportunities. The terms of any future indebtedness we may incur could include more restrictive
covenants. Failure to comply with such restrictive covenants may lead to default and acceleration under our
credit facility and may impair our ability to conduct business. We may not be able to maintain compliance
with these covenants in the future and, if we fail to do so, that we will be able to obtain waivers from the
lenders and/or amend the covenants, which may result in foreclosure of our assets.

See Note 6 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in the Audited Consolidated Financial
Statements of CompoSecure in this Proxy Statement for additional information.

Our guarantees of indebtedness and liabilities could limit the cash flow available for our operations, expose us to
risks that could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations and impair our ability to
satisfy our obligations.

In connection with the Business Combination, CompoSecure intends to issue 7.00% Exchangeable
Notes that are exchangeable into shares of Roman’s Class A Common Stock. The Exchangeable Senior
Notes are guaranteed by CompoSecure, L.L.C. Our guarantees of indebtedness could have significant
negative consequences for our security holders, equity holders and our business, results of operations and
financial condition by, among other things:

* increasing our vulnerability to adverse economic and industry conditions;
+ limiting our ability to obtain additional financing;

* requiring the dedication of a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to service our
guarantees of indebtedness, which reduces the amount of cash available for other purposes;

+ limiting our flexibility to plan for, or react to, changes in our business;

+ diluting the interests of Roman’s stockholders as a result of the issuance shares of Roman’s Class A
Common Stock upon conversion of the Exchangeable Notes; and

» placing us at a possible competitive disadvantage with competitors that are less leveraged than us or
have better access to capital.

Our business may not generate sufficient funds, and we may otherwise be unable to maintain sufficient
cash reserves, to pay amounts that may become due under our guarantees of indebtedness, including in
connection with the Exchangeable Notes, and our cash needs may increase in the future. In addition, any
future indebtedness or guarantees of indebtedness that we may incur may contain financial and other
restrictive covenants that limit our ability to operate our business, raise capital or make payments under our
other indebtedness. If we fail to comply with these covenants or to make payments under our guarantees of
indebtedness if and when due, then we could be in default under those guarantees of indebtedness, which
could, in turn, result in that and our other indebtedness becoming immediately payable in full.

Risks Related to Roman DBDR and the Business Combination

Following the consummation of the Business Combination, our only significant asset will be our partial ownership
of CompoSecure’s business. If CompoSecure’s business is not profitably operated, we may be unable to pay us
dividends or make distributions to enable us to pay any dividends on our common stock or satisfy our other
financial obligations.

Following the consummation of the Business Combination, we will have no direct operations and no
significant assets other than the partial ownership of the Combined Entity, which will operate
CompoSecure’s
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business. We will depend on profits generated by CompoSecure’s business for distributions, debt repayment
and other payments to generate the funds necessary to meet our financial obligations, including our
expenses as a publicly traded company, and to pay any dividends with respect to our capital stock. Legal
and contractual restrictions in agreements governing the indebtedness of the Combined Entity, as well as the
financial condition and operating requirements of the Combined Entity, may limit our ability to receive
distributions from the Combined Entity’s business following the Business Combination.

Provisions in our charter and Delaware law may inhibit a takeover of us, which could limit the price investors might
be willing to pay in the future for our common stock and could entrench management.

Our charter contains provisions that may discourage unsolicited takeover proposals that stockholders
may consider to be in their best interests. These provisions include the ability of the Roman Board to
designate the terms of and issue new series of preferred shares, which may make more difficult the removal
of management and may discourage transactions that otherwise could involve payment of a premium over
prevailing market prices for our securities.

In addition, while we expect to opt out of Section 203 of the DGCL, our charter will contain similar
provisions providing that we may not engage in certain “business combinations” with any “interested
stockholder” for a three-year period following the time that the stockholder became an interested
stockholder, unless:

* prior to such time, the Roman DBDR Board approved either the business combination or the
transaction that resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder;

» upon consummation of the transaction that resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested
stockholder, the interested stockholder owned at least 85% of our voting stock outstanding at the
time the transaction commenced, excluding certain shares; or

* at or subsequent to that time, the business combination is approved by the Roman Board and by the
affirmative vote of holders of at least two-thirds of our outstanding voting stock that is not owned by
the interested stockholder.

These anti-takeover defenses could discourage, delay or prevent a transaction involving a change in
control of the Combined Entity. These provisions could also discourage proxy contests and make it more
difficult for you and other stockholders to elect directors of your choosing and cause us to take corporate
actions other than those you desire.

Nasdaq may not list our securities on its exchange, and if they are listed, we may be unable to satisfy listing
requirements in the future, which could limit investors’ ability to effect transactions in our securities and subject us
to additional trading restrictions.

As a result of the proposed Business Combination, Nasdaq rules require that we apply to continue the
listing of our common stock and warrants. While we will apply to have our common stock and warrants
listed on Nasdaq upon consummation of the Business Combination, we must meet Nasdaq’s initial listing
requirements. We may be unable to meet those requirements. Even if our securities are listed on Nasdaq
following the Business Combination, we may be unable to maintain the listing of our securities in the
future.

If we fail to meet the initial listing requirements and Nasdaq does not list our securities on its
exchange, or if we are delisted, there could be significant material adverse consequences, including:

* a limited availability of market quotations for our securities;
* alimited amount of news and analyst coverage for the Combined Entity; and
» adecreased ability to obtain capital or pursue acquisitions by issuing additional equity or convertible

securities.

We will incur significant costs and obligations as a result of being a public company.

As a privately held company, CompoSecure has not been required to comply with many corporate
governance and financial reporting practices and policies required of a publicly traded company. As a
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publicly traded company, the Combined Entity will incur significant legal, accounting, insurance and other
expenses that CompoSecure was not required to incur in the past. These expenses will increase once the
Combined Entity is no longer an “emerging growth company” as defined under the Jumpstart Our Business
Startups Act of 2012, or the JOBS Act. In addition, new and changing laws, regulations and standards
relating to corporate governance and public disclosure for public companies, including Dodd Frank, the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act, regulations related hereto and the rules and regulations of the SEC and Nasdaq, have
increased the costs and the time that must be devoted to compliance matters. We expect these rules and
regulations will increase our legal and financial costs and lead to a diversion of management time and
attention from revenue-generating activities.

For as long as we remain an “emerging growth company” as defined in the JOBS Act, we may take
advantage of certain exemptions from various reporting requirements that are applicable to other public
companies that are not “emerging growth companies.” We may remain an “emerging growth company” for
up to five years from the consummation of our initial public offering or until such earlier time that we have
$1.07 billion or more in annual revenues, have more than $700.0 million in market value of our common
stock held by non-affiliates, or issue more than $1.0 billion of non-convertible debt over a three-year period.
To the extent we choose not to use exemptions from various reporting requirements under the JOBS Act, or
if we no longer can be classified as an “emerging growth company,” we expect that we will incur additional
compliance costs, which will reduce our ability to operate profitably.

As an “emerging growth company,” we cannot be certain if the reduced disclosure requirements applicable to
“emerging growth companies” will make our common stock less attractive to investors.

As an “emerging growth company,” we may take advantage of certain exemptions from various
reporting requirements that are applicable to other public companies that are not “emerging growth
companies,” including not being required to obtain an assessment of the effectiveness of our internal
controls over financial reporting from our independent registered public accounting firm pursuant to
Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, reduced disclosure obligations regarding executive compensation in
our periodic reports and proxy statements, and exemptions from the requirements of holding a nonbinding
advisory vote on executive compensation and stockholder approval of any golden parachute payments not
previously approved. In addition, the JOBS Act provides that an emerging growth company can take
advantage of an extended transition period for complying with new or revised accounting standards, which
we have elected to do.

We cannot predict if investors will find our common stock less attractive because we will rely on these
exemptions. If some investors find our common stock less attractive as a result, there may be a less active
market for our common stock, our share price may be more volatile and the price at which our securities
trade could be less than if we did not use these exemptions.

If we do not develop and implement all required accounting practices and policies, we may be unable to provide the
financial information required of a United States publicly traded company in a timely and reliable manner.

As CompoSecure is a privately held company, it has not been required to adopt all of the financial
reporting and disclosure procedures and controls required of a United States publicly traded company. We
expect that the implementation of all required accounting practices and policies and the hiring of additional
financial staff will increase the operating costs of the Combined Entity and could require the management of
the Combined Entity to devote significant time and resources to such implementation. If we fail to develop
and maintain effective internal controls and procedures and disclosure procedures and controls, we may be
unable to provide financial information and required SEC reports that are timely and reliable. Any such
delays or deficiencies could harm us, including by limiting our ability to obtain financing, either in the
public capital markets or from private sources and damaging our reputation, which in either cause could
impede our ability to implement our growth strategy. In addition, any such delays or deficiencies could
result in our failure to meet the requirements for continued listing of our common stock on Nasdagq.

If the Combined Entity’s performance following the Business Combination does not meet market expectations, the
price of our securities may decline.

If the Combined Entity’s performance following the Business Combination does not meet market
expectations, the price of our common stock may decline from the price of our common stock prior to the
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closing of the Business Combination. The market value of our common stock at the time of the Business
Combination may vary significantly from the price on the date the Merger Agreement was executed, the
date of this proxy statement, or the date on which our stockholders vote on the Business Combination.
Because the number of shares of our common stock issued as consideration in the Business Combination
will not be adjusted to reflect any changes in the market price of our common stock, the value of the shares
of our common stock issued in the Business Combination may be higher or lower than the value of the same
number of shares of our common stock on earlier dates.

In addition, following the Business Combination, fluctuations in the price of our common stock could
contribute to the loss of all or part of your investment. Prior to the Business Combination, there has not
been a public market for CompoSecure’s stock, and trading in our common stock has not been active.
Accordingly, the valuation ascribed to CompoSecure and our common stock in the Business Combination
may not be indicative of the price that will prevail in the trading market following the Business
Combination. If an active market for our common stock develops and continues, the trading price of our
common stock following the Business Combination could be volatile and subject to wide fluctuations in
response to various factors, some of which are beyond our control. Any of the factors listed below could
have a material adverse effect on your investment in our common stock and our common stock may trade at
prices significantly below the price you paid for them.

Factors affecting the trading price of our common stock following the Business Combination may
include:

« actual or anticipated fluctuations in our quarterly financial results or the quarterly financial results of
companies perceived to be similar to us;

» changes in the market’s expectations about our operating results;
* success of competitors;
» our operating results failing to meet market expectations in a particular period;

+ changes in financial estimates and recommendations by securities analysts concerning us or the
financial payment card industry and market in general;

» operating and stock price performance of other companies that investors deem comparable to us;
 our ability to market new and enhanced products on a timely basis;

» changes in laws and regulations affecting our business;

» commencement of, or involvement in, litigation involving us;

« changes in our capital structure, such as future issuances of securities or the incurrence of additional
debt;

* the volume of shares of our common stock available for public sale;
 any significant change in our board or management;

* sales of substantial amounts of common stock by our directors, executive officers or significant
stockholders or the perception that such sales could occur; and

+ general economic and political conditions such as recessions, interest rates, fuel prices, international
currency fluctuations and acts of war or terrorism.

Broad market and industry factors may depress the market price of our common stock irrespective of
our operating performance. The stock market in general and Nasdaq have experienced price and volume
fluctuations that have often been unrelated or disproportionate to the operating performance of the particular
companies affected. The trading prices and valuations of these stocks, and of our securities, may not be
predictable. A loss of investor confidence in the market for financial technology stocks or the stocks of
other companies which investors perceive to be similar to us could depress our stock price regardless of our
business, prospects, financial conditions or results of operations. A decline in the market price of our
common stock also could adversely affect our ability to issue additional securities and our ability to obtain
additional financing in the future.
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Even if we consummate the Business Combination, the public warrants may never be in the money, and they may
expire worthless.

The exercise price for our warrants is $11.50 per share, which exceeds the market price of our common
stock, which was $10.18 per share based on the closing price on November 10, 2021. There can be no
assurance that the public warrants will ever be in the money prior to their expiration and, as such, the
warrants may expire worthless.

The terms of our warrants may be amended in a manner that may be adverse to the holders. The
warrant agreement between Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company, as warrant agent, and us provides
that the terms of the warrants may be amended without the consent of any holder to cure any ambiguity or
correct any defective provision, but requires the approval by the holders of a majority of the then
outstanding public warrants to make any change that adversely affects the interests of the registered holders.
Accordingly, we may amend the terms of the warrants in a manner adverse to a holder if holders of at least a
majority of the then outstanding public warrants approve of such amendment. Our ability to amend the
terms of the warrants with the consent of at least a majority of the then outstanding public warrants is
unlimited. Examples of such amendments could be amendments to, among other things, increase the
exercise price of the warrants, shorten the exercise period or decrease the number of shares of our common
stock purchasable upon exercise of a warrant.

We may redeem your unexpired warrants prior to their exercise at a time that is disadvantageous to you, thereby
making your warrants worthless.

We have the ability to redeem outstanding warrants (excluding any placement warrants held by our
Sponsor or their permitted transferees) at any time after they become exercisable and prior to their
expiration, at $0.01 per warrant, provided that the last reported sales price (or the closing bid price of our
common stock in the event the shares of our common stock are not traded on any specific trading day) of
the common stock equals or exceeds $18.00 per share on each of 20 trading days within the 30 trading-day
period ending on the third business day prior to the date on which we send proper notice of such
redemption, provided that on the date we give notice of redemption and during the entire period thereafter
until the time we redeem the warrants, we have an effective registration statement under the Securities Act
covering the shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of the warrants and a current prospectus
relating to them is available. If and when the warrants become redeemable by us, we may exercise our
redemption right even if we are unable to register or qualify the underlying securities for sale under all
applicable state securities laws. Redemption of the outstanding warrants could force a warrant holder: (i) to
exercise your warrants and pay the exercise price therefore at a time when it may be disadvantageous for
you to do so, (ii) to sell your warrants at the then-current market price when you might otherwise wish to
hold your warrants or (iii) to accept the nominal redemption price which, at the time the outstanding
warrants are called for redemption, will be substantially less than the market value of your warrants.

Warrants to purchase our common stock will become exercisable following the Business Combination, which could
increase the number of shares eligible for future resale in the public market and result in dilution to our
stockholders.

Outstanding warrants to purchase an aggregate of 22,415,400 shares of our common stock will become
exercisable on the 30" day following the closing of the Business Combination in accordance with the terms
of the warrant agreement governing those securities. These warrants consist of 10,837,400 Private
Placement Warrants originally included in the units issued in our IPO and 11,578,000 Public Warrants
included in the placement units. Each warrant entitles its holder to purchase one share of our common stock
at an exercise price of $11.50 per share and will expire at 5:00 p.m., New York time, five years after the
closing of the Business Combination or earlier upon redemption of our common stock or our liquidation. To
the extent warrants are exercised, additional shares of our common stock will be issued, which will result in
dilution to our then existing stockholders and increase the number of shares eligible for resale in the public
market. Sales of substantial numbers of such shares in the public market could depress the market price of
our common stock.
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Our stockholders will experience immediate dilution due to the issuance of common stock to the members of
CompoSecure as consideration in the Business Combination and the PIPE Investment. Having a minority share
position likely reduces the influence that our current stockholders have on the management of the Combined Entity.

Based on CompoSecure’s current capitalization and following the Business Combination, we anticipate
issuing an aggregate of 49,195,000 (assuming no redemption) or 63,919,627 (assuming maximum
redemption) of newly issued shares of Roman DBDR Class B Common Stock, subject to adjustment as set
forth in the Merger Agreement, to the members of CompoSecure as partial consideration in the Business
Combination. We anticipate that, immediately following completion of the Business Combination, our
existing stockholders will hold in the aggregate approximately 35.1% of our outstanding common stock
(28% held by our public stockholders and 7.1% held by the Sponsor), and the CompoSecure Holders will
hold approximately 59.5% of our outstanding common stock and the PIPE Investors will hold
approximately 5.4% of our outstanding common stock. These ownership percentages do not take into
account:

* any warrants or options to purchase our common stock that will be outstanding following the
Business Combination;

* any equity awards that may be issued under our proposed Equity Incentive Plan following the
Business Combination (See the section entitled “Proposal No. 6 — The Incentive Plan Proposal —
Summary of Material Terms of Equity Incentive Plan” for more information); or

* the earn-out obligations in connection with the Business Combination; or

* the shares of common stock that will be issuable upon conversion of the Exchangeable Notes.

If any shares of our common stock are redeemed in connection with the Business Combination,
the percentage of our outstanding common stock held by our public stockholders will decrease and
the percentages of our outstanding common stock held immediately following the closing of the Business
Combination by the CompoSecure Holders will increase. See the section entitled “Summary — Impact of the
Business Combination on Roman DBDR’s Public Float” and “Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined
Financial Information” for further information. To the extent that any of the outstanding warrants or options
are exercised for shares of our common stock, or awards are issued under the proposed Equity Incentive
Plan, our existing stockholders may experience substantial dilution. Additionally, to the extent that any
shares of Class A Common Stock are issued pursuant to the earn-out contemplated by the Merger
Agreement, current stockholders may experience substantial dilution. Such dilution could, among other
things, limit the ability of our current stockholders to influence our management through the election of
directors following the Business Combination.

Our initial stockholders, directors and officers may have a conflict of interest in determining to pursue the
acquisition of CompoSecure, since certain of their interests are different from or in addition to (and which may
conflict with) the interests of our public stockholders, and such interests may have influenced their decisions to
approve the Business Combination and recommend that our stockholders approve the Business Combination
Proposal.

Our initial stockholders, officers and directors have interests in and arising from the Business
Combination that are different from or in addition to, and which may conflict with, the interests of our
public stockholders, which may result in a conflict of interest, including the following:

» our Sponsor will hold our common stock following the Business Combination, subject to lock-up
agreements;

» our Sponsor will hold placement warrants to purchase shares of our common stock;

» our Sponsor paid an aggregate of $25,000 for their Sponsor Shares and $10,837,400 for their Private
Placement Warrants and that such securities should have a significantly higher value at the time of
the Business Combination and will have little or no value if we do not complete the Business
Combination;

» our Sponsor, officers and directors have waived their redemption rights with respect to the Sponsor
Shares, and Public Shares in connection with the Business Combination, and have waived their
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redemption and liquidation rights with respect to their Sponsor Shares and Public Shares if we are
unable to complete a business combination by May 10, 2022;

« the Sponsor will have the right to appoint a board member of the Combined Entity; and

» our Sponsor may, but is not obligated to, loan us funds for working capital requirements, and if we
are unable to complete a business combination by May 10, 2022 Roman DBDR may use a portion of
its working capital held outside the Trust Account to repay the working capital loans, but no
proceeds held in the Trust Account would be used to repay the working capital loans or advances.

The existence of financial and personal interests of one or more of Roman’s directors may result in a
conflict of interest on the part of such director(s) between what he, she or they may believe is in the best
interests of Roman and its stockholders and what he, she or they may believe is best for himself, herself or
themselves in determining to recommend that stockholders vote for the proposals. In addition, Roman’s
officers have interests in the Business Combination that may conflict with your interests as a stockholder.
See “Proposal No. 1 — The Business Combination Proposal — Interests of Roman’s Directors and Executive
Officers in the Business Combination” for a further discussion of these considerations.

The personal and financial interests of the Sponsor as well as Roman’s directors and officers may have
influenced their motivation in identifying and selecting CompoSecure as a business combination target,
completing an initial business combination with CompoSecure and influencing the operation of the business
following the initial business combination. In considering the recommendations of the Roman Board to vote
for the proposals, its stockholders should consider these interests.

Our directors and officers have discretion in agreeing to changes or waivers to the terms of the Merger Agreement
and related transactions, which may result in a conflict of interest when determining whether such changes or
waivers are appropriate and in our public stockholders’ best interest.

In the period leading up to the closing of the Business Combination, events may occur that, pursuant to
the Merger Agreement, would require us to agree to amend the Merger Agreement, to consent to certain
actions taken by CompoSecure or to waive rights to which we are entitled to under the Merger Agreement.
These events could arise because of changes in CompoSecure’s business, a request by CompoSecure to
undertake actions that would otherwise be prohibited by the terms of the Merger Agreement or the
occurrence of other events that would have a material adverse effect on CompoSecure’s business and would
entitle us to terminate the Merger Agreement. In any of such circumstances, it would be at our discretion,
acting through the Roman Board, to consent to such a request or action or waive such rights. The existence
of the financial and personal interests of the directors described elsewhere in these risk factors may result in
a conflict of interest on the part of one or more of the directors between what he or she may believe is best
for the public stockholders and what he or she may believe is best for himself or herself in determining
whether or not to take the requested action or waive our rights. As of the date of this proxy statement, we do
not believe there will be any requests, actions or waivers that our directors and officers would be likely to
make after stockholder approval of the Business Combination Proposal has been obtained. While certain
changes could be made without further stockholder approval, we will circulate a new or amended proxy
statement and resolicit our stockholders if changes to the terms of the Business Combination and related
transactions that would have a material impact on our stockholders are required prior to the vote on the
Business Combination Proposal.

Our initial stockholders and certain other stockholders have agreed to vote in favor of the Business Combination,
regardless of how our public stockholders vote.

Unlike many other blank check companies in which the founders agree to vote their founder shares in
accordance with the majority of the votes cast by the public stockholders in connection with an initial
business combination, our Sponsor, officers and directors have agreed to vote any shares of our common
stock owned by them in favor of the Business Combination. As of the date hereof, our Sponsor holds
approximately 20% of our issued and outstanding shares of common stock. Accordingly, it is more likely
that the requisite stockholder approval will be received for the Business Combination than would be the
case if our Sponsor, officers and directors agreed to vote any shares of our common stock owned by them in
accordance with the majority of the votes cast by our public stockholders.
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There are risks to undffiliated investors of becoming stockholders of the Combined Entity through the Business
Combination rather than through an underwritten public offering, including no independent due diligence review
by an underwriter.

Stockholders should be aware that there are risks associated with CompoSecure’s equity securities
becoming publicly traded through the Business Combination instead of through an underwritten offering,
including that investors will not receive the benefit of the independent review of CompoSecure’s finances
and operations, including its forecasts, typically undertaken by an investment bank acting as an underwriter
for a public offering.

Underwritten public offerings of securities are subject to a due diligence review of the issuer by the
underwriters to satisfy duties under the Securities Act, the rules of the Financial Industry Regulatory
Authority, Inc. (FINRA) and the rules of the national securities exchange on which such securities will be
listed. Additionally, underwriters conducting such public offerings are subject to liability for any material
misstatements or omissions in a registration statement filed in connection with the public offering.
Stockholders must rely on the information in this proxy statement and will not have the benefit of an
independent review and investigation of the type typically performed by underwriters in a public securities
offering. While sponsors, private investors and management in a business combination undertake financial,
legal and other due diligence, it is not necessarily the same level of review or analysis that would be
undertaken by underwriters in an underwritten public offering and, therefore, there could be a heightened
risk of an inappropriate valuation of the business or material misstatements or omissions in this proxy
statement.

There could also be more volatility in the near-term trading of the Combined Entity’s Class A Common
Stock following the consummation of the Business Combination as compared to an underwritten public
offering of its common stock, including as a result of the lack of a lock-up agreement between an
underwriter and existing equity owners and/or certain investors. For example, the PIPE Investors will not
enter into lock-up agreements restricting the sale of shares of Class A Common Stock acquired by the PIPE
Investors in connection with the consummation of the Business Combination (including, in the case of the
Note PIPE Investment, the shares of Class A Common Stock to be received upon an exchange of the senior
notes). Instead, the PIPE Investors will have the benefit of a resale registration statement that the Combined
Entity is required to file with the SEC within 30 calendar days after the consummation of the Business
Combination and to use commercially reasonable efforts to have such registration statement declared
effective as soon as practicable after the filing thereof, but no later than the earlier of (i) the 60th calendar
day (or 90th calendar day if the SEC notifies the Combined Entity that it will “review” the registration
statement) following the Closing and (ii) the 10th business day after the date the Combined Entity is
notified by the SEC that the registration statement will not be reviewed or will not be subject to further
review. Additionally, certain holders of Class A Common Stock beyond the PIPE Investors will have the
benefit of a resale registration statement that the Combined Entity will be required to file, within 45 days
after the Business Combination. The sale or possibility of sale of the shares owned by the PIPE Investors or
other holders of Class A Common Stock could have the effect of increasing the volatility in the market price
of the Class A Common Stock and/or lead to declines in the market price of the Class A Common stock as
compared to an underwritten public offering.

We expect to incur significant, non-recurring costs in connection with consummating the Business Combination
and related transactions.

We expect to incur significant, non-recurring costs in connection with consummating the Business
Combination and related transactions. We will pay all fees, expenses and costs we incur or incurred on our
behalf in connection with the Merger Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby (including the
Business Combination). Additionally, the Merger Agreement provides that if the Business Combination is
consummated, we will pay all fees, expenses and costs incurred by CompoSecure or on CompoSecure’s
behalf, subject to certain limited exceptions, in connection with the Merger Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereby (including the Business Combination). We currently estimate that transaction
expenses will be approximately $35 million. In addition, we estimate that CompoSecure will incur an
additional approximately $15 million in expenses that will be paid by the Combined Entity.
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The announcement of the proposed Business Combination could disrupt CompoSecure’s relationships with its
members, bank partners, lenders, business partners, enterprise customers, and others, as well as its operating results
and business generally.

Whether or not the Business Combination and related transactions are ultimately consummated, as a
result of uncertainty related to the proposed transactions, risks relating to the impact of the announcement of
the Business Combination on CompoSecure’s business include the following:

« its employees may experience uncertainty about their future roles, which might adversely affect
CompoSecure’s ability to retain and hire key personnel and other employees;

* members, bank partners, lenders, business partners, customers, and other parties with which
CompoSecure maintains business relationships may experience uncertainty about its future and seek
alternative relationships with third parties, seek to alter their business relationships with
CompoSecure or fail to re-enroll or extend an existing relationship with CompoSecure; and

» CompoSecure has expended and the Combined Entity will continue to expend significant costs, fees
and expenses for professional services and transaction costs in connection with the proposed
Business Combination.

If any of the aforementioned risks were to materialize, they could lead to significant costs which may
impact the Combined Entity’s results of operations and cash available to fund its businesses.

If we are unable to complete the Business Combination with CompoSecure or another business combination by
May 10, 2022, we will cease all operations except for the purpose of winding up our affairs, redeem our outstanding
Public Shares and dissolve and liquidate. In such event, third parties may bring claims against us and, as a result,
the proceeds held in the trust account could be reduced and the per-share liquidation price received by our
stockholders could be less than $10.20 per share.

Our charter provides that we must complete the Business Combination or another business combination
by May 10, 2022, or we must cease all operations except for the purposes of winding up, redeem our
outstanding Public Shares and, subject to approval by our remaining stockholders and our board, dissolve
and liquidate. In such event, third parties may bring claims against us for monies we owe for products or
services provided to us. Although we have obtained waiver agreements from CompoSecure and from certain
vendors and service providers that we have engaged and to which we owe money pursuant to which such
parties have waived any right, title, interest or claim of any kind they may have in or to any monies held in
the trust account, there is no guarantee that they or other vendors who did not execute such waivers will not
seek recourse against the trust account notwithstanding such agreements. Furthermore, there is no guarantee
that a court will uphold the validity of such agreements. Accordingly, the proceeds held in the trust account
could be subject to claims which could take priority over those of our public stockholders.

Additionally, if we are forced to file a bankruptcy case or an involuntary bankruptcy case is filed
against us which is not dismissed, or if we otherwise enter compulsory or court supervised liquidation, the
proceeds held in the trust account could be subject to applicable bankruptcy law, and may be included in its
bankruptcy estate and subject to the claims of third parties with priority over the claims of its stockholders.
To the extent any bankruptcy claims deplete the trust account, the per-share distribution from the trust
account may be less than $10.20. Additionally, if we file a bankruptcy petition or an involuntary bankruptcy
petition is filed against us that is not dismissed, any distributions received by stockholders could be viewed
under applicable debtor/creditor and/or bankruptcy laws as either a “preferential transfer” or a “fraudulent
conveyance.” As a result, a bankruptcy court could seek to recover some or all amounts received by our
stockholders.

Our stockholders may be held liable for claims by third parties against us to the extent of distributions received by
them.

If we are unable to complete the Business Combination with CompoSecure or another business
combination within the required time period, we must dissolve and liquidate, subject in each case to our
obligations under Delaware law to provide for claims of creditors and the requirements of other applicable
law. We cannot assure you that we will properly assess all claims that may be potentially brought against us,
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nor can we assure you that third parties will not seek to recover from our stockholders amounts owed to
them by us. As such, our stockholders could potentially be liable for any claims to the extent of distributions
received by them (but no more) and any liability of our stockholders may extend well beyond the third
anniversary of the date of distribution.

If we are forced to file a bankruptcy case or an involuntary bankruptcy case is filed against us which is
not dismissed, any distributions received by stockholders could be viewed under applicable debtor/creditor
and/or bankruptcy laws as either a “preferential transfer” or a “fraudulent conveyance.” As a result, a
bankruptcy court could seek to recover all amounts received by our stockholders. Furthermore, because we
intend to distribute the proceeds held in the trust account to our public stockholders promptly after May 10,
2022, if we do not consummate the Business Combination, this may be viewed or interpreted as giving
preference to our public stockholders over any potential creditors with respect to access to or distributions
from our assets. Moreover, our board may be viewed as having breached its fiduciary duties to our creditors
and/or having acted in bad faith, and thereby exposing the board and us to claims for punitive damages, by
paying public stockholders from the trust account prior to addressing the claims of creditors. We cannot
assure you that claims will not be brought against us or you for these reasons.

Actions taken by the initial stockholders, our officers and directors to increase the likelihood of approval of the
Business Combination Proposal and the other proposals presented in this proxy statement could have a depressive
effect on the price of our common stock.

At any time prior to the special meeting, during a period when they are not then aware of any material
nonpublic information regarding us or our securities, the initial stockholders, our directors, officers and
their respective affiliates may enter into agreements to purchase shares from institutional and other investors
who vote, or indicate an intention to vote, against the Business Combination Proposal, or enter into
transactions with such investors and others to provide them with incentives to acquire shares of our common
stock or vote their shares in favor of the Business Combination Proposal. As of the date of this proxy
statement, one such arrangement has been made with an existing investor. While the exact nature of any
other incentive arrangements that may be entered into in the future has not been determined as of the date of
this proxy statement, they might include, without limitation, arrangements to protect such investors or
holders against potential loss in value of their shares, including the granting of put options and the transfer
to such investors or holders of shares owned by the initial stockholders for nominal value. The purpose of
such purchases and other transactions would be to increase the likelihood that the Business Combination
Proposal is approved and to decrease the likelihood that holders request redemption of Public Shares.
Entering into any such arrangements may have a depressive effect on the price of our common stock. For
example, if as a result of these arrangements an investor or holder purchases shares for nominal value, the
investor or holder may be more likely to sell such shares immediately following the closing of the Business
Combination for a price below market value.

We may not be able to timely and effectively implement controls and procedures required by Section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, which could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Commencing with the Company’s annual report for the year ended December 31, 2021, we are and
following the Business Combination, the Combined Entity will be required to provide management’s
attestation on internal controls. The standards required for a public company under Section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act are significantly more stringent than those required of CompoSecure as a privately-held
company. Management may not be able to effectively and timely implement controls and procedures that
adequately respond to the increased regulatory compliance and reporting requirements that will be
applicable to the Combined Entity after the Business Combination. If we are not able to implement the
additional requirements of Section 404 in a timely manner or with adequate compliance, we may not be able
to assess whether our internal controls over financial reporting are effective, which may subject us to
adverse regulatory consequences and could harm investor confidence and lead to a decrease in the market
price of our common stock.

Pursuant to the JOBS Act, our independent registered public accounting firm will not be required to attest to the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act for
so long as we are an “emerging growth company.”

Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires annual management assessments of the effectiveness of
our internal control over financial reporting, and generally requires in the same report a report by our
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independent registered public accounting firm on the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting. However, under the JOBS Act, our independent registered public accounting firm will not be
required to attest to the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting pursuant to Section 404
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act until we are no longer an “emerging growth company.” We will be an “emerging
growth company” until the earlier of (1) the last day of the fiscal year (a) following November 10, 2025, the
fifth anniversary of the consummation of our initial public offering, (b) in which we have total annual gross
revenue of at least $1.07 billion or (c) in which we are deemed to be a large accelerated filer, which means
the market value of our common stock that is held by non-affiliates exceeds $700 million as of the last
business day of our prior second fiscal quarter, and (2) the date on which we have issued more than

$1.0 billion in non-convertible debt during the prior three-year period. Accordingly, until we cease being an
“emerging growth company” stockholders will not have the benefit of an independent assessment of the
effectiveness of our internal control environment.

Our ability to successfully effect the Business Combination and successfully operate the business thereafter will
depend largely upon the efforts of certain key personnel, including the key personnel of CompoSecure, all of whom
we expect to stay with the Combined Entity following the Business Combination. The loss of such key personnel
could adversely affect the operations and profitability of the post-combination business.

Our ability to recognize certain benefits of the Business Combination and successfully operate
CompoSecure’s business following the Business Combination will depend upon the efforts of certain key
personnel of CompoSecure. Although we expect all of such key personnel to remain with the Combined
Entity following the Business Combination, the unexpected loss of key personnel may adversely affect the
operations and profitability of the Combined Entity. In addition, our future success depends in part on our
ability to identify and retain key personnel to succeed senior management. Furthermore, while we have
closely scrutinized the skills, abilities and qualifications of the key CompoSecure personnel that will be
employed by the Combined Entity, our assessment may not prove to be correct. If such personnel do not
possess the skills, qualifications or abilities we expect or those necessary to manage a public company, the
operations and profitability of the Combined Entity’s business may be negatively impacted.

Neither the Roman Board nor any commiittee thereof obtained a third-party valuation in determining whether or not
to pursue the Business Combination.

Neither the Roman Board nor any committee thereof is required to obtain an opinion that the price that
we are paying for CompoSecure is fair to us from a financial point of view. Neither the Roman Board nor
any committee thereof obtained a third-party valuation in connection with the Business Combination. In
analyzing the Business Combination, the Roman Board and management conducted due diligence on
CompoSecure. The Roman Board reviewed comparisons of selected financial data of CompoSecure with its
peers in the industry and the financial terms set forth in the Merger Agreement, and concluded that the
Business Combination was in the best interest of Roman’s stockholders. Accordingly, investors will be
relying solely on the judgment of the Roman Board and management in valuing CompoSecure, and the
Roman Board and management may not have properly valued such businesses. The lack of a third-party
valuation may also lead an increased number of stockholders to vote against the Business Combination or
demand redemption of their shares, which could potentially impact our ability to consummate the Business
Combination.

Following the Business Combination, our ability to meet expectations and projections in any research or reports
published by securities or industry analysts, or a lack of coverage by securities or industry analysts, could result in a
depressed market price and limited liquidity for our common stock.

The trading market for our common stock will be influenced by the research and reports that industry
or securities analysts may publish about us, our business, our market, or our competitors. If no securities or
industry analysts commence coverage of the Combined Entity, our stock price would likely be less than that
which would obtain if we had such coverage and the liquidity, or trading volume of our common stock may
be limited, making it more difficult for a stockholder to sell shares at an acceptable price or amount. If any
analysts do cover the Combined Entity, their projections may vary widely and may not accurately predict
the results we actually achieve. Our share price may decline if our actual results do not match the
projections of research analysts covering us. Similarly, if one or more of the analysts who write reports on
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us downgrades our stock or publishes inaccurate or unfavorable research about our business, our share price
could decline. If one or more of these analysts ceases coverage of us or fails to publish reports on us
regularly, our share price or trading volume could decline.

Future sales of our common stock issued to CompoSecure legacy members may reduce the market price of our
common stock that you might otherwise obtain.

Under the Merger Agreement, the CompoSecure Holders, the sole member of CompoSecure, L.L.C.,
will have their membership interests in CompoSecure converted into the right to receive, among other
things, cash consideration, payments pursuant to the Tax Receivable Agreement and rollover equity
consideration consisting of Class B Units in CompoSecure and up to 49,195,000 shares (assuming no
redemption of our Common Stock) or 63,919,627 shares (assuming maximum redemption of our Common
Stock) of our Class B common stock, subject to adjustment as provided in the Merger Agreement. Certain
CompoSecure Holders will, together with the Combined Entity and the Sponsor, enter into a stockholders
agreement, which we refer to as the Stockholders Agreement, and will be restricted from transferring any
shares of our common stock that they receive under the Business Combination until 180 days after the
Closing of the Business Combination, subject to certain limited exceptions.

The Merger Agreement provides that, at the closing for the Business Combination, we will enter into
an amended and restated registration rights agreement with certain of our existing stockholders and certain
of the CompoSecure legacy members, which we refer to as the Registration Rights Agreement, with respect
to the shares of our common stock currently held or that will be issued under the Merger Agreement. The
Registration Rights Agreement will require us to, among other things, file a resale shelf registration
statement on behalf of the stockholders promptly after the closing of the Business Combination, which we
refer to as the Shelf Registration Statement. If the Shelf Registration Statement becomes unavailable once it
is declared effective, the stockholders will have certain demand registration rights.

Upon expiration of the lockup period applicable to shares of our common stock held by the
CompoSecure legacy members or effectiveness of the Shelf Registration Statement, these parties may sell
large amounts of our stock in the open market or in privately negotiated transactions. The registration and
availability of such a significant number of shares of common stock for trading in the public market may
increase the volatility in the price of our common stock or put significant downward pressure on the price of
our common stock. In addition, the Combined Entity may use shares of our common stock as consideration
for future acquisitions, which could further dilute our stockholders.

Because certain significant shareholders will control a significant percentage of our common stock following the
Business Combination, such shareholders may influence major corporate decisions of the Combined Entity and its
interests may conflict with the interests of other holders of our common stock.

Upon completion of the Business Combination and based on our estimates of the Common Stock
Merger Consideration to be issued and including founders shares to be transferred to CompoSecure
Holdings in connection with the Business Combination, LLR Equity Partners IV, L.P. and Michele D. Logan
and any trust, entity or other similar vehicle or account, in each case affiliated with Michele D. Logan and
her affiliates (the “Logan Parties”), will beneficially own approximately 31% and 21%, respectively
(assuming no shares of Class A Common Stock are redeemed in connection with the Business Combination)
or 40% and 28%, respectively (assuming the maximum number of shares of Class A Common Stock are
redeemed in connection with the Business Combination) of the voting power of our outstanding common
stock. As a result of this control, LLR Equity Partners IV, L.P. and the Logan Parties will be able to
influence matters requiring approval by our stockholders and/or the Roman Board, including the election of
directors and the approval of business combinations or dispositions and other extraordinary transactions.
LLR Equity Partners IV, L.P. and the Logan Parties may also have interests that differ from the interests of
other holders of our common stock and may vote in a way with which you disagree and which may be
adverse to your interests. The concentration of ownership may have the effect of delaying, preventing or
deterring a change of control of the Combined Entity and may materially and adversely affect the market
price of our common stock. In addition, LLR Equity Partners IV, L.P. or the Logan Parties may in the future
own businesses that directly compete with the business of the Combined Entity. See the section entitled
“Proposal No. 1 The Business Combination Proposal — Related Agreements — The Stockholders
Agreement” for more information.
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Under the Merger Agreement we have no right to seek indemnification from CompoSecure and the members of
CompoSecure following the Business Combination.

The representations, warranties and covenants made by CompoSecure in the Merger Agreement do not
survive closing and are not subject to indemnification. As a result, if CompoSecure is found to have
breached any of its representations, warranties or covenants contained in the Merger Agreement, other than
those covenants that by their terms apply or are to be performed in whole or in part at or after the closing of
the Business Combination, we will have no recourse against CompoSecure, CompoSecure L.L.C.’s sole
member, and the members of CompoSecure other than for Fraud.

Our Proposed Charter renounces any expectancy in or right to be offered an opportunity to participate in certain
transactions or matters that may be investment, corporate or business opportunities and that are presented to the
Company or its officers, directors or stockholders.

Our Proposed Charter provides that, to the fullest extent permitted by Delaware law, each of the
Members of CompoSecure, their respective affiliates (other than the Company and its subsidiaries) and, to
the extent any Member is a series limited liability company, any series thereof and all of their respective
partners, principals, directors, officers, members, managers, equity holders and/or employees, including any
of the foregoing who serve as officers or directors of the Company (each, an “Excluded Party”), shall have
any duty to refrain from (a) directly or indirectly engaging in any opportunity in which we, directly or
indirectly, could have an interest or expectancy or (b) otherwise competing with us. Our Proposed Charter
also renounces, to the fullest extent permitted by Delaware law, any interest or expectancy that we have in
any opportunity in which any Excluded Party engages, even if the opportunity is one in which we, directly
or indirectly, could have had an interest or expectancy. To the fullest extent permitted by Delaware law, in
the event that any Excluded Party acquires knowledge of an opportunity that may be an opportunity for
itself, himself or herself and for us, such party shall have no duty to communicate or present such
opportunity to us and shall not be liable to us or any of our stockholders for breach of any fiduciary duty as
our stockholder, director or officer solely for having pursued or acquired such opportunity or for offering or
directing such opportunity to another person. To the fullest extent permitted by Delaware law, no business
opportunity will be deemed to be a potential corporate opportunity for us unless we would be permitted to
undertake the opportunity under our Proposed Charter, we have sufficient financial resources to undertake
the opportunity and the opportunity would be in line with our business.

The Proposed Bylaws designate the courts of the Court of Chancery in the State of Delaware as the sole and
exclusive forum for certain types of actions and proceedings that may be initiated by stockholders, which could limit
the ability of stockholders to obtain a favorable judicial forum for disputes.

The Proposed Bylaws provide that, unless the Combined Entity consents in writing to the selection of
an alternative forum, (a) any derivative action or proceeding brought on behalf of the Combined Entity,
(b) any action asserting a claim of breach of fiduciary duty owed by any director, officer or employee of the
Combined Entity to the Combined Entity or the Combined Entity’s stockholders, (c) any action asserting a
claim against the Combined Entity, its directors, officers or employees arising pursuant to any provision of
the DGCL or the Proposed Governing Documents or (d) any action asserting a claim against the Combined
Entity, its directors, officers or employees governed by the internal affairs doctrine.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, these provisions of the Proposed Bylaws will not apply to any claim as
to which the Court of Chancery determines that there is an indispensable party not subject to the jurisdiction
of the Court of Chancery (and the indispensable party does not consent to the personal jurisdiction of the
Court of Chancery within ten days following such determination), which is vested in the exclusive
jurisdiction of a court or forum other than the Court of Chancery (including suits brought to enforce any
liability or duty created by the Exchange Act or any other claim for which the federal district courts of the
United States of America are the sole and exclusive forum), or for which the Court of Chancery does not
have subject matter jurisdiction. While this exclusive provision applies to claims under the Securities Act,
we note, however, that there is uncertainty as to whether a court would enforce this provision and that
stockholders cannot waive compliance with the federal securities laws and the rules and regulations
thereunder. Section 22 of the Securities Act creates concurrent jurisdiction for state and federal courts over
all suits brought to enforce any duty or liability created by the Securities Act or the rules and regulations
thereunder.
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This choice-of-forum provision may limit a stockholder’s ability to bring a claim in a judicial forum
that it finds favorable for disputes with the Combined Entity, which may discourage such lawsuits.
Alternatively, if a court were to find this provision of our Proposed Bylaws inapplicable or unenforceable
with respect to one or more of the specified types of actions or proceedings, the Combined Entity may incur
additional costs associated with resolving such matters in other jurisdictions, which could materially and
adversely affect its business, financial condition and results of operations and result in a diversion of the
time and resources of its management and board of directors.

Subsequent to the consummation of the Business Combination, the Combined Entity may be required to take write-
downs or write-offs, restructuring and impairment or other charges that could have a significant negative effect on
our financial condition, results of operations and stock price, which could cause you to lose some or all of your
investment.

Although we have conducted a due diligence examination of CompoSecure, we cannot assure you that
this examination revealed all material issues that may be present in CompoSecure’s business, or that factors
outside of our and CompoSecure’s control will not later arise. As a result, we may be forced to later write
down or write off assets, restructure the Combined Entity’s operations, or incur impairment or other charges
that could result in losses. Even if our due diligence successfully identifies certain risks, unexpected risks
may arise and previously known risks may materialize in a manner not consistent with our preliminary risk
analysis. Even though these charges may be non-cash items and not have an immediate impact on our
liquidity, the fact that we report charges of this nature could contribute to negative market perceptions about
the Combined Entity or its securities. In addition, charges of this nature may cause us to be unable to obtain
future financing on favorable terms or at all.

The Combined Entity may be subject to securities litigation, which is expensive and could divert management
attention.

Following the Business Combination, our share price may be volatile and, in the past, companies that
have experienced volatility in the market price of their stock have been subject to securities class action
litigation. The Combined Entity may be the target of this type of litigation in the future. Litigation of this
type could result in substantial costs and diversion of management’s attention and resources, which could
have a material adverse effect on business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects. Any
adverse determination in litigation could also subject the Combined Entity to significant liabilities.

Following the consummation of the Business Combination, our only significant asset will be our ownership interest
in CompoSecure and such ownership may not be sufficient to pay dividends or make distributions or loans to enable
us to pay any dividends on our Common Stock or satisfy our other financial obligations, including our obligations
under the Tax Receivable Agreement.

Following the consummation of the Business Combination, we will have no direct operations and no
significant assets other than our ownership interest in CompoSecure. We and certain investors, certain of the
Selling Equityholders, and directors and officers of CompoSecure and its affiliates will become stockholders
of the Combined Entity at that time. We will depend on CompoSecure for distributions, loans and other
payments to generate the funds necessary to meet our financial obligations, including our expenses as a
publicly traded company, to pay any dividends with respect to our Common Stock, and to satisfy our
obligations under the Tax Receivable Agreement. The financial condition and operating requirements of
CompoSecure may limit our ability to obtain cash from CompoSecure. The earnings from, or other available
assets of, CompoSecure may not be sufficient to pay dividends or make distributions or loans to enable us to
pay any dividends on our Common Stock or satisfy our other financial obligations, including our obligations
under the Tax Receivable Agreement.

The ability of CompoSecure to make distributions, loans and other payments to us for the purposes
described above and for any other purpose will be governed by the terms of the CompoSecure Rollover
Credit Agreement, and will be subject to the negative covenants set forth therein. Any loans or other
extensions of credit will be subject to the investment covenants under the CompoSecure Rollover Credit
Agreement, which provide for several exceptions including, among others (i) a general investment basket
equal to the greater of a fixed dollar amount and a percentage of EBITDA and (ii) an unlimited investment
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basket based on satisfying a total net leverage ratio on a pro forma basis. Similarly, any dividends,
distributions or similar payments will be subject to the dividends and distributions covenant under the
CompoSecure Rollover Credit Agreement, which also provide for several exceptions including, among
others (i) for payment of overhead and certain fees and expenses of parent companies, (ii) for tax
distributions, subject to certain limitations, (iii) a general dividend and distribution basket equal to the
greater of a fixed dollar amount and a percentage of EBITDA and (iv) an unlimited dividend and
distribution basket based on satisfying a total net leverage ratio of a pro forma basis.

If our dividend policy is materially different than the distribution policy of CompoSecure, upon the exchange of any
Class B Units, the members of CompoSecure could receive a disproportionate interest in the aggregate distributions
by the Combined Entity that have not been distributed by us.

Both Roman and the CompoSecure legacy members are members of CompoSecure. To the extent
CompoSecure distributes to its members a greater share of income received from the Combined Entity than
we distribute to our stockholders, then any of the CompoSecure legacy members who participate in such
distribution by CompoSecure and subsequently exercise their rights to exchange membership units in
CompoSecure for Class A Common Stock may receive a disproportionate interest in the aggregate
distributions by the Combined Entity that have not been distributed by us. The reason is that such
CompoSecure legacy member could receive both (i) the benefit of a distribution by CompoSecure to its
members, including such CompoSecure legacy member, and (ii) the benefit of a distribution by Roman to
the holders of Class A Common Stock, including such CompoSecure legacy member. Consequently, if our
dividend policy does not match the distribution policy of CompoSecure, other holders of Class A Common
Stock as of the date of an exchange could experience a reduction in their interest in the profits previously
distributed by the Combined Entity that have not been distributed by us. Our current dividend policy could
result in distributions to our common stockholders that are different from the distributions made by
CompoSecure to its members.

We may be required to pay certain CompoSecure Holders for most of the benefits relating to any additional tax
depreciation or amortization deductions that we may claim as a result of CompoSecure, Inc.’s allocable share of
existing tax basis acquired in this offering, CompoSecure, Inc.’s increase in its allocable share of existing tax basis,
and anticipated tax basis adjustments CompoSecure, Inc. receives in connection with sales or exchanges of Class B
Units after this offering, and certain other tax attributes.

At the Closing of the Business Combination, CompoSecure, Inc. will enter into the Tax Receivable
Agreement with CompoSecure and the TRA Parties (as defined therein). The Tax Receivable Agreement
will provide for the payment by CompoSecure, Inc. to certain CompoSecure Holders of 90% of the benefits,
if any, that CompoSecure, Inc. is deemed to realize (calculated using certain assumptions) as a result of
(i) CompoSecure, Inc.’s allocable share of existing tax basis in the assets of CompoSecure and its
subsidiaries acquired (A) in the Business Combination and (B) upon sales or exchanges of CompoSecure
Units pursuant to the Exchange Agreement after the Business Combination, (ii) certain increases in tax basis
that occur as a result of (A) the Business Combination and (B) sales or exchanges of CompoSecure Units
pursuant to the Exchange Agreement after the Business Combination, and (iii) certain other tax benefits,
including tax benefits attributable to payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement. These tax attributes
may increase (for tax purposes) CompoSecure, Inc.’s depreciation and amortization deductions and,
therefore, may reduce the amount of tax that CompoSecure, Inc. would otherwise be required to pay in the
future, although the IRS may challenge all or part of the validity of such tax attributes, and a court could
sustain such a challenge. Such tax basis may also decrease gains (or increase losses) on future dispositions
of certain capital assets to the extent tax basis is allocated to those capital assets. Actual tax benefits
realized by CompoSecure, Inc. may differ from tax benefits calculated under the Tax Receivable Agreement
as a result of the use of certain assumptions in the Tax Receivable Agreement, including the use of an
assumed weighted-average state and local income tax rate to calculate tax benefits. The payment obligations
under the Tax Receivable Agreement are an obligation of CompoSecure, Inc., but not of CompoSecure.
CompoSecure, Inc. expects to benefit from the remaining 10% of realized cash tax benefits. While the
amount of existing tax basis, the anticipated tax basis adjustments, and the actual amount and utilization of
tax attributes, as well as the amount and timing of any payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement, will
vary depending upon a number of factors, including the timing of exchanges, the price of shares of our
Class A Common Stock at the time of exchanges, and the amount and timing of our income, we expect that
as a result of the size of
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the transfers and increases in the tax basis of the tangible and intangible assets of CompoSecure and our
possible utilization of tax attributes, including existing tax basis acquired at the time of this offering, the
payments that CompoSecure, Inc. may make under the Tax Receivable Agreement will be substantial. We
expect that if there were an exchange of all of the outstanding CompoSecure Units (other than those held by
CompoSecure Inc.) immediately after the Business Combination, the estimated tax benefits to CompoSecure
Inc. subject to the Tax Receivable Agreement would be approximately $189.98 million, based on certain
assumptions, including but not limited to a $10.00 per share trading price of Class A Common Stock, a 21%
U.S. federal corporate income tax rate and estimated applicable state and local income tax rates, no material
change in U.S. federal income tax law and that CompoSecure Inc. will have sufficient taxable income to
utilize such estimated tax benefits. The foregoing amount is merely an estimate and the actual tax benefits
could differ materially. The payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement are not conditioned upon
continued ownership of us by the exchanging holders of Class B Units. See “Certain Relationships and
Related Person Transactions — Tax Receivable Agreement.”

In certain cases, payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement may be accelerated and/or significantly exceed the
actual benefits CompoSecure, Inc. realizes in respect of the tax attributes subject to the Tax Receivable Agreement.

CompoSecure, Inc.’s payment obligations under the Tax Receivable Agreement may be accelerated in
the event of certain changes of control and will be accelerated in the event it elects to terminate the Tax
Receivable Agreement early. The accelerated payments will relate to all relevant tax attributes that would
subsequently be available to CompoSecure, Inc.. The accelerated payments required in such circumstances
will be calculated by reference to the present value (at a discount rate equal to the lesser of (i) 6.5% per
annum and (ii) one year LIBOR, or its successor rate, plus 100 basis points) of all future payments that
holders of Class B Units or other recipients would have been entitled to receive under the Tax Receivable
Agreement, and such accelerated payments and any other future payments under the Tax Receivable
Agreement will utilize certain valuation assumptions, including that the CompoSecure, Inc. will have
sufficient taxable income to fully utilize the deductions arising from the increased tax deductions and tax
basis and other benefits related to entering into the Tax Receivable Agreement and sufficient taxable income
to fully utilize any remaining net operating losses subject to the Tax Receivable Agreement on a straight
line basis over the shorter of the statutory expiration period for such net operating losses and the five-year
period after the early termination or change of control. In addition, recipients of payments under the Tax
Receivable Agreement will not reimburse us for any payments previously made under the Tax Receivable
Agreement if such tax basis and CompoSecure, Inc.’s utilization of certain tax attributes is successfully
challenged by the IRS (although any such detriment would be taken into account in future payments under
the Tax Receivable Agreement). CompoSecure, Inc.’s ability to achieve benefits from any existing tax basis,
tax basis adjustments or other tax attributes, and the payments to be made under the Tax Receivable
Agreement, will depend upon a number of factors, including the timing and amount of our future income.
As aresult, even in the absence of a change of control or an election to terminate the Tax Receivable
Agreement, payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement could be in excess of 90% of CompoSecure,
Inc.’s actual cash tax benefits.

Accordingly, it is possible that the actual cash tax benefits realized by CompoSecure, Inc. may be
significantly less than the corresponding Tax Receivable Agreement payments or that payments under the
Tax Receivable Agreement may be made years in advance of the actual realization, if any, of the anticipated
future tax benefits. There may be a material negative effect on our liquidity if the payments under the Tax
Receivable Agreement exceed the actual cash tax benefits that CompoSecure, Inc. realizes in respect of the
tax attributes subject to the Tax Receivable Agreement and/or payments to CompoSecure, Inc. by
CompoSecure are not sufficient to permit CompoSecure, Inc. to make payments under the Tax Receivable
Agreement after it has paid taxes and other expenses. Based upon certain assumptions described in greater
detail below under “Certain Relationships and Related Person Transactions — Tax Receivable Agreement,”
we estimate that if CompoSecure, Inc. were to exercise its termination right immediately following this
offering, the aggregate amount of these termination payments would be approximately $205.92 million
(assuming LIBOR plus 100 basis point discount rate). The foregoing number is merely an estimate and the
actual payments could differ materially. We may need to incur additional indebtedness to finance payments
under the Tax Receivable Agreement to the extent our cash resources are insufficient to meet our obligations
under the Tax Receivable Agreement as a result of timing discrepancies or otherwise, and these obligations
could
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have the effect of delaying, deferring, or preventing certain mergers, asset sales, other forms of business
combinations, or other changes of control.

The acceleration of payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement in the case of certain changes of control may
impair our ability to consummate change of control transactions or negatively impact the value received by owners
of our Class A Common Stock.

In the case of certain changes of control, payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement may be
accelerated and may significantly exceed the actual benefits CompoSecure, Inc. realizes in respect of the tax
attributes subject to the Tax Receivable Agreement. We expect that the payments that we may make under
the Tax Receivable Agreement in the event of a change of control will be substantial. As a result, our
accelerated payment obligations and/or the assumptions adopted under the Tax Receivable Agreement in the
case of a change of control may impair our ability to consummate change of control transactions or
negatively impact the value received by owners of our Class A Common Stock in a change of control
transaction.

A significant portion of our total outstanding shares are restricted from immediate resale but may be sold into the
market in the near future. This could cause the market price of our Class A Common Stock to drop significantly,
even if our business is doing well.

Sales of a substantial number of shares of Class A Common Stock in the public market could occur at
any time. These sales, or the perception in the market that the holders of a large number of shares intend to
sell shares, could reduce the market price of our Class A Common Stock. After the Business Combination,
our Sponsor, as well as CompoSecure legacy members will hold approximately 66.6% of our Common
Stock, including approximately 7.1% of our Common Stock and 59.5% of our Common Stock. Pursuant to
the terms of the Stockholders Agreement, the Voting Parties will be bound by restrictions on the transfer of
their shares of Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock for at least six months following the
closing of the Business Combination. In addition, our Sponsor entered into a letter agreement with us,
pursuant to which they agreed that the Sponsor Shares (which will be converted into shares of Class A
Common Stock at the closing of the Business Combination) may not be transferred until six months after
the closing of the Business Combination.

The future exercise of registration rights may adversely affect the market price of our Common Stock.

Certain of our stockholders will have registration rights for restricted securities. We are obligated to
register certain securities, including all of the shares of Common Stock held by the Sponsor, shares of
Common Stock received by certain CompoSecure Holders as part of the Business Combination, and the
shares of Class A Common Stock to be issued pursuant to the PIPE Investment. We are obligated to (i) file a
resale “shelf” registration statement to register such securities (and any shares of CompoSecure, Inc.
Common Stock into which they may be exercised following the consummation of the Business
Combination) within 30 business days after of the Closing Date and (ii) use commercially reasonable best
efforts to cause such registration statement to be declared effective by the SEC as soon as reasonably
practicable after the filing. Sales of a substantial number of shares of Common Stock pursuant to the resale
registration statement in the public market could occur at any time the registration statement remains
effective. In addition, certain registration rights holders can request underwritten offerings to sell their
securities. These sales, or the perception in the market that the holders of a large number of shares intend to
sell shares, could reduce the market price of our Common Stock.

Risks Related to the Redemption

Stockholders of Roman DBDR who wish to redeem their shares for a pro rata portion of the Trust Account must
comply with specific requirements for redemption, which may make it difficult for them to exercise their redemption
rights prior to the deadline. If stockholders fail to comply with the redemption requirements specified in this proxy
statement, they will not be entitled to redeem their shares of Class A Common Stock for a pro rata portion of the
funds held in the Trust Account.

Roman DBDR public stockholders who wish to redeem their shares for a pro rata portion of the Trust
Account must, among other things, (i) submit a request in writing and (ii) tender their certificates to the
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Transfer Agent or deliver their shares to the Transfer Agent electronically through the DWAC system at
least two business days prior to the special meeting. To obtain a physical stock certificate, a stockholder’s
broker and/or clearing broker, DTC and the Transfer Agent will need to act to facilitate this request.
Stockholders should generally allot at least two weeks to obtain physical certificates from the Transfer
Agent. However, because Roman DBDR does not have any control over this process or over DTC, it may
take significantly longer than two weeks to obtain a physical stock certificate. If it takes longer than
anticipated to obtain a physical certificate, stockholders who wish to redeem their shares may be unable to
obtain physical certificates by the deadline for exercising their redemption rights and thus will be unable to
redeem their shares.

Stockholders electing to redeem their shares will a receive per share price, payable in cash, equal to the
aggregate amount then on deposit in the Trust Account calculated as of two business days prior to the
completion of the Business Combination, including interest earned on the funds held in the Trust Account
and not previously released to Roman DBDR to pay its taxes, divided by the number of then outstanding
Public Shares. Please see the section entitled “Special Meeting of Roman DBDR Stockholders — Redemption
Rights” for additional information on how to exercise your redemption rights.

If a public stockholder fails to receive notice of Roman DBDR’s offer to redeem its Public Shares in connection with
the Business Combination, or fails to comply with the procedures for tendering its shares, such shares may not be
redeemed.

Roman DBDR will comply with the proxy rules when conducting redemptions in connection with the
Business Combination. Despite Roman DBDR’s compliance with these rules, if a public stockholder fails to
receive Roman DBDR’s tender offer or proxy materials, as applicable, such stockholder may not become
aware of the opportunity to redeem its shares. In addition, the proxy materials, as applicable, that Roman
DBDR will furnish to holders of its Public Shares in connection with the Business Combination will
describe the various procedures that must be complied with to validly redeem Public Shares. If a
stockholder fails to comply with these procedures, its shares may not be redeemed.

Roman DBDR does not have a specified maximum redemption threshold. The absence of such a redemption
threshold may make it possible for Roman DBDR to complete a business combination with which a substantial
majority of its stockholders do not agree.

Roman DBDR’s Current Charter does not provide a specified maximum redemption threshold, except
that in no event will Roman DBDR redeem its Public Shares in an amount that would cause its net tangible
assets to be less than $5,000,001, such that Roman DBDR is not subject to the SEC’s “penny stock” rules.
This minimum net tangible asset amount is also required as an obligation to each party’s obligation to
consummate the Business Combination under the Merger Agreement. In addition, the Merger Agreement
provides that each party’s obligation to consummate the Business Combination is conditioned on the amount
in the Trust Account (net of the amount of any Roman DBDR public stockholder redemptions) and the
proceeds from the Private Placement, equaling or exceeding $210,000,000 as of the closing of the Business
Combination. As a result, Roman DBDR may be able to complete the Business Combination even though a
substantial portion of its public stockholders do not agree with the transaction and have redeemed their
shares or have entered into privately negotiated agreements to sell their shares to our Sponsor or Roman
DBDR’s officers, directors, advisors or their affiliates.

If the aggregate cash consideration Roman DBDR would be required to pay for all shares of Class A
Common Stock that are validly submitted for redemption plus any amount required to satisfy cash
conditions pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement exceeds the aggregate amount of cash available
to Roman DBDR, Roman DBDR will not complete the Business Combination or redeem any shares, all
shares of Class A Common Stock submitted for redemption will be returned to the holders thereof, and
Roman DBDR instead may search for an alternate business combination.

If you or a “group” of stockholders of which you are a part are deemed to hold an aggregate of more than 15% of
the shares of Class A Common Stock issued in the Roman DBDR IPO, you (or, if a member of such a group, all of
the members of such group in the aggregate) will lose the ability to redeem all such shares in excess of 15% of the
shares of Class A Common Stock issued in the Roman DBDR IPO.

A public stockholder, together with any of his, her or its affiliates or any other person with whom it is
acting in concert or as a “group” (as defined under Section 13 of the Exchange Act), will be restricted from
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redeeming in the aggregate his, her or its shares or, if part of such a group, the group’s shares, in excess of
15% of the shares of Class A Common Stock included in the units sold in the Roman DBDR IPO without
the prior consent of Roman DBDR. Any beneficial holder of shares of Class A Common Stock on whose
behalf a redemption right is being exercised must identify itself to Roman DBDR in connection with any
redemption election in order to validly elect to redeem such shares of Class A Common Stock. To determine
whether a stockholder is acting in concert or as a group with another stockholder, Roman DBDR will
require each public stockholder seeking to exercise redemption rights to certify to Roman DBDR whether
such stockholder is acting in concert or as a group with any other stockholder. Such certifications, together
with other public information relating to share ownership available to Roman DBDR at that time, such as
Section 13D, Section 13G and Section 16 filings under the Exchange Act, will be the sole basis on which
Roman DBDR makes the above-referenced determination. Your inability to redeem any such excess shares
will reduce your influence over Roman DBDR’s ability to consummate the Business Combination and you
could suffer a material loss on your investment in Roman DBDR if you sell such excess shares in open
market transactions. Additionally, you will not receive redemption distributions with respect to such excess
shares if Roman DBDR consummates the Business Combination. As a result, you will continue to hold that
number of shares aggregating to more than 15% of the shares sold in the Roman DBDR IPO and, to dispose
of such excess shares, you would be required to sell your shares of Class A Common Stock in open market
transactions, potentially at a loss. There is no assurance that the value of such excess shares will appreciate
over time following the Business Combination or that the market price of the shares of Class A Common
Stock will exceed the per share redemption price. Notwithstanding the foregoing, stockholders may
challenge Roman DBDR’s determination as to whether a stockholder is acting in concert or as a group with
another stockholder in a court of competent jurisdiction.

Roman DBDR’s stockholders’ ability to vote all of their shares (including such excess shares) for or
against the Business Combination is not restricted by this limitation on redemption.

There is no guarantee that a stockholder’s decision whether to redeem its shares for a pro rata portion of the Trust
Account will put the stockholder in a better future economic position.

There is no assurance as to the price at which a Roman DBDR stockholder may be able to sell its
Public Shares in the future following the completion of the Business Combination or any alternative
business combination. Certain events following the consummation of any initial business combination,
including the Business Combination, may cause an increase in the share price, and may result in a lower
value realized now than a stockholder of Roman DBDR might realize in the future had the stockholder not
redeemed its shares. Similarly, if a stockholder does not redeem its shares, the stockholder will bear the risk
of ownership of the Public Shares after the consummation of any initial business combination, and there can
be no assurance that a stockholder can sell its shares in the future for a greater amount than the redemption
price set forth in this proxy statement. A stockholder should consult the stockholder’s tax and/or financial
advisor for assistance on how this may affect his, her or its individual situation.

A stockholder’s decision as to whether to redeem his, her, its shares for a pro rata portion of the trust account may
not put the stockholder in a better future economic position.

We can give no assurance as to the price at which a stockholder may be able to sell his, her or its Public
Shares in the future following the completion of the Business Combination. Certain events following the
consummation of any business combination, such as the Business Combination, may cause an increase in
our share price, and may result in a lower value realized upon redemption than a stockholder might realize
in the future had the stockholder not redeemed his, her or its shares. Similarly, if a stockholder does not
redeem his, her or its shares, the stockholder will bear the risk of ownership of the Public Shares after the
consummation of the Business Combination, and the risk that the stockholder may not be able, in the future
to sell his, her or its shares, for a greater amount than the redemption price described in this proxy
statement. A stockholder should consult his, her or its tax and/or financial advisor for assistance on how this
may affect his, her or its individual situation.

If our stockholders fail to comply with the redemption requirements specified in this proxy statement, they will not
be entitled to redeem their shares of our common stock for a pro rata portion of the funds held in our trust account.

In order to exercise redemption rights, holders of Public Shares are required to, among other
requirements, submit a request in writing and deliver their stock (either physically or electronically) to our
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transfer agent at least two business days prior to the special meeting. Stockholders electing to redeem their
Public Shares will receive their pro rata portion of the amount on deposit in the trust account as of two
business days prior to the anticipated consummation of the Business Combination. See the section titled
“Special Meeting of Roman DBDR Stockholders — Redemption Rights” for additional information on how to
exercise your redemption rights. If you do not timely submit your redemption request and deliver your
common stock and comply with the other redemption requirements, you will not be entitled to redeem your
common stock.

General Risk Factors

A market for our securities may not continue, which would adversely affect the liquidity and price of our securities.

Following the Business Combination, the price of our securities may fluctuate significantly due to the
market’s reaction to the Business Combination and general market and economic conditions. An active
trading market for our securities following the Business Combination may never develop or, if it develops,
it may not be sustained.

CompoSecure’s business and financial results may be materially and adversely affected by various legal and
regulatory proceedings.

From time to time, CompoSecure may be subject to legal proceedings, lawsuits and other claims in the
ordinary course of its business, some of which could be material. An adverse ruling, settlement or
unfavorable development could result in monetary damages owed that could materially and adversely affect
CompoSecure’s business, operating results or financial condition. Furthermore, litigation can be costly, and
the expenses and damages arising from any liability could harm CompoSecure’s results of operations.
Additionally, CompoSecure’s insurance may not sufficiently cover adverse claims or any liability arising
therefrom.

CompoSecure cannot predict its operating outcomes, which may not match expectations and may significantly differ
from quarter to quarter and year to year.

CompoSecure’s business is affected by numerous factors, any of which could adversely affect its
operational outcomes, financial performance and revenue. These factors include, but are not limited to, the
cycles of financial card and electronic payment industries, competition, capital requirements, inventory
management, funding availability, the development of new products, changes in technology, and production
issues.

CompoSecure must comply with a complex framework of laws and regulations in the United States and other
countries, in which its products are sold, including in the UK, EU and Asia.

CompoSecure must comply with a complex framework of laws and regulations that apply, among other
things, to corporate governance, financial reporting standards, tax, trade regulations, data privacy,
environmental regulations and permit requirements, export controls, competitive practices, and labor and
health and safety laws and regulations. CompoSecure may not be in full compliance with the laws and
regulations to which it is subject at all times. Furthermore, CompoSecure may not have obtained the
permits, authorizations, or licenses that it needs to maintain such compliance. Fines or sanctions may result
from any failure to comply with applicable laws or regulations. Such fines or sanctions, to the extent they
arise, could have a material and adverse effect on CompoSecure’s business, financial condition and results
of operations.

CompoSecure’s handling of data is subject to a variety of laws and regulations. Our data handling also
is subject to contractual obligations and industry standards. The scope and interpretation of the laws that are
or may be applicable to us are often uncertain and may be conflicting, as a result of the rapidly evolving
regulatory framework for privacy issues worldwide. As a result of the laws that are or may be applicable to
us, we have implemented policies and procedures to preserve and protect our data and our clients’ and client
customers’ data against loss, misuse, corruption, misappropriation caused by systems failures, or
unauthorized access. If our policies, procedures, or measures relating to privacy, data protection, marketing,
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or client communications fail to comply with laws, regulations, policies, legal obligations, or industry
standards, we may be subject to governmental enforcement actions, litigation, regulatory investigations,
fines, penalties, and negative publicity, and could cause our application providers, clients and partners to
lose trust in us, and have an adverse effect on our business, operating results, and financial condition.

Liability exposure from environmental, health and safety laws and regulations may adversely affect CompoSecure’s
business.

Environmental, health, and safety laws and regulations, including licensing and permitting
requirements, apply to CompoSecure in all jurisdictions in which CompoSecure operates. These regulations
are applicable to several areas including, but not limited to, waste disposal, wastewater discharges, pollutant
emissions in the air, soil and groundwater contamination, the investigation and remediation of such soil and
groundwater contamination, and employee health and safety. CompoSecure may not always be able to
maintain complete compliance with these laws, and/or regulations, or with permits issued thereunder. If
CompoSecure violates or fails to comply with these laws, regulations or permits, it could be subject to
significant fines or sanctions or face increased costs of operation. As environmental, health and safety laws
or regulations (or the interpretation of enforcement thereof) change, the costs associated with compliance
may materially and adversely affect CompoSecure’s business, operations and financial state.

Under various environmental laws, companies that own or operate real property may be liable for the
cost of investigating, removing or remediating hazardous substances on, under or migrating from such real
property. Such laws may impose strict and/or joint and several liability. In addition, third parties may sue
the owner or operator of a property for damages based on personal injury, natural resource or property
damage or other costs, including investigation and clean-up costs, resulting from the environmental
contamination. CompoSecure may face such liabilities at its production facilities.

Climate change may also impact CompoSecure’s business. As rules and regulations evolve, energy
prices may rise and carbon or energy taxes may be impose which will increase CompoSecure’s cost of
production. For example, regulatory developments restricting or managing carbon dioxide, methane and
other greenhouse gas emissions could have a negative impact on CompoSecure’s business and operations.
Climate change developments and related legislation may increase the cost of production and adversely
affect CompoSecure’s business, operations and financial state.

We may issue additional shares of common stock or other equity securities without your approval, which would
dilute your ownership interest in us and may depress the market price of our common stock.

We may issue additional shares of common stock or other equity securities in the future in connection
with, among other things, the earn-out obligations in connection with the Business Combination, future
acquisitions, repayment of outstanding indebtedness or grants under the Equity Incentive Plan without
stockholder approval, growth capital, or other opportunities to accelerate our business. As described
elsewhere in this proxy statement, the cash in the Trust Account and the cash proceeds of the PIPE
Investment will be used to fund the Cash Merger Consideration and the payment of expenses related to the
Business Combination, and will not be retained by the Combined Entity.

Our issuance of additional common stock or other equity securities could have one or more of the
following effects:
 our existing stockholders’ proportionate ownership interest in us will decrease;

« the amount of cash available per share, including for payment of dividends in the future, may
decrease;

« the relative voting strength of each previously outstanding share of common stock may be
diminished; and

* the market price of our common stock may decline.
The historical financial results of CompoSecure and unaudited pro forma financial information included elsewhere

in this proxy statement may not be indicative of what the Combined Entity’s actual financial position or results of
operations would have been.

The historical financial results of CompoSecure included in this proxy statement do not reflect the
financial condition, results of operations or cash flows they would have achieved had the Business
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Combination been completed on the dates indicated or those the Combined Entity will achieve in the future.
This is primarily the result of the following factors: (i) the Combined Entity will incur additional ongoing
costs as a result of the Business Combination, including costs related to public company reporting, investor
relations and compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act; and (ii) the Combined Entity’s capital structure will
be different from that reflected in CompoSecure’s historical financial statements. The Combined Entity’s
financial condition and future results of operations could be materially different from amounts reflected in
its historical financial statements included elsewhere in this proxy statement, so it may be difficult for
investors to compare the Combined Entity’s future results to historical results or to evaluate its relative
performance or trends in its business.

Similarly, the unaudited pro forma financial information in this proxy statement is presented for
illustrative purposes only and has been prepared based on a number of assumptions including, but not
limited to, Roman being treated as the “acquired” company for financial reporting purposes in the Business
Combination, the total debt obligations and the cash and cash equivalents of CompoSecure on the Closing
Date and the number of shares of Class A Common Stock that are redeemed in connection with the Business
Combination. Accordingly, such pro forma financial information may not be indicative of the Combined
Entity’s future operating or financial performance and the Combined Entity’s actual financial condition and
results of operations may vary materially from the Combined Entity’s pro forma results of operations and
balance sheet contained elsewhere in this proxy statement, including as a result of such assumptions not
being accurate. See “Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information”.

In certain circumstances, CompoSecure will be required to make pro rata distributions to us and the holders of the
Class B Units of CompoSecure with respect to the taxes of its holders, and the distributions that CompoSecure will
be required to make may be substantial and in excess of our tax liabilities and obligations under the Tax Receivable
Agreement. To the extent we do not distribute such excess cash to the holders of our Class A Common Stock or
contribute such excess cash to CompoSecure in exchange for the issuance of additional Class A Units and a
corresponding stock dividend of Class A Common Stock to the holders of our Class A Common Stock, the holders of
Class B Units of CompoSecure would benefit from any value attributable to such cash balances as a result of their
ownership of Class A Common Stock following an exchange of their Class B Units.

CompoSecure is treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes and, as such, is not
subject to any entity-level U.S. federal income tax. Instead, taxable income is allocated to holders of
CompoSecure’s equity interests, including us. Accordingly, we incur income taxes on our allocable share of
any net taxable income of CompoSecure. Under the CompoSecure Second Amended and Restated LLC
Agreement, CompoSecure is generally required from time to time to make pro rata distributions in cash to
us and the holders of Class B Units of CompoSecure in amounts that are intended to be sufficient to cover
the taxes on our and the other holders of Class B Units of CompoSecure respective allocable shares of the
taxable income of CompoSecure, based on certain assumptions contained in the CompoSecure Second
Amended and Restated LLC Agreement. As a result of (i) potential differences in the amount of net taxable
income allocable to us and the holders of Class B Units of CompoSecure, (ii) the lower tax rate applicable
to corporations as compared to individuals and (iii) the favorable tax benefits that we anticipate receiving
from acquisitions of Class B Units in connection with taxable exchanges of Class B Units for shares of our
Class A Common Stock, we expect that these tax distributions will be in amounts that exceed our tax
liabilities and obligations to make payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement. The Roman Board will
determine the appropriate uses for any excess cash so accumulated, which may include, among other uses,
any potential dividends, the payment of obligations under the Tax Receivable Agreement and the payment
of other expenses. We have no obligation to distribute such cash (or other available cash other than any
declared dividend) to our stockholders. No adjustments to the exchange ratio of Class B Units for shares of
Class A Common Stock will be made as a result of either (i) any cash distribution by CompoSecure or
(ii) any cash that we retain and do not distribute to our stockholders. To the extent that we do not distribute
such excess cash as dividends on our Class A Common Stock or contribute such excess cash to
CompoSecure in exchange for the issuance of additional Class A Units and a corresponding stock dividend
of Class A Common Stock to the holders of our Class A Common Stock, and instead, for example, hold such
cash balances or lend them to CompoSecure, the holders of Class B Units of CompoSecure would benefit
from any value attributable to such cash balances as a result of their ownership of Class A Common Stock
following an exchange of their Class B Units.
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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This proxy statement contains forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements provide Roman
DBDR’s and CompoSecure’s current expectations or forecasts of future events. Forward-looking statements
include statements about Roman DBDR’s and CompoSecure’s expectations, beliefs, plans, objectives,
intentions, assumptions and other statements that are not historical facts. The words “anticipates,”
“believe,” “continue,” “could,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intends,” “may,” “might,” “plan,” “possible,”
“potential,” “predicts,” “project,” “should,” “would” and similar expressions may identify forward-looking
statements, but the absence of these words does not mean that a statement is not forward-looking. Forward-
looking statements relating to Roman DBDR in this proxy statement include, but are not limited to,
statements about Roman DBDR’s:

2« 3« <« » « 2«

* benefits from the Business Combination;
« ability to complete an initial business combination, including the Business Combination;

« ability to meet the Closing conditions to the Business Combination, including approval by the
stockholders of Roman DBDR and the availability of at least $210 million of cash, consisting of
$85.0 million from the Trust Account after giving effect to redemptions, if any, plus $130.0 million
of Note PIPE Investment proceeds and $45.0 million of Common PIPE Investment proceeds minus
$50.0 million of transaction expenses of both Roman DBDR and CompoSecure;

« future financial performance following the Business Combination;

* success in retaining or recruiting, or changes required in, our officers, key employees or directors
following an initial business combination;

« officers and directors allocating their time to other businesses and potentially having conflicts of
interest with CompoSecure’s business or in approving our initial business combination, as a result of
which they would then receive expense reimbursements;

» public securities’ potential liquidity and trading;

« the occurrence of any event, change or other circumstances that could give rise to the termination of
the Merger Agreement;

« use of proceeds not held in the Trust Account;
» impact from the outcome of any known and unknown litigation; and

« other risks and uncertainties indicated in this proxy statement, including those under “Risk Factors”
herein, and other filings that have been made or will be made with the SEC.

Forward-looking statements relating to CompoSecure and the Combined Entity following the Closing
in this proxy statement, and some factors that could cause the Combined Entity’s actual results to differ
from those described in this proxy statement, include, but are not limited to, statements about:

« the occurrence of any event, change or other circumstances that could give rise to the termination of
the Business Combination;

+ the outcome of any legal proceedings that may be instituted against Roman DBDR, CompoSecure or
others following announcement of the Business Combination and the transactions contemplated
therein;

« the inability to complete the transactions contemplated by the Business Combination due to the
failure to obtain approval of the stockholders of Roman DBDR or CompoSecure or other conditions
to closing contemplated in the Merger Agreement;

« the risk that the proposed Business Combination disrupts CompoSecure’s current plans and
operations as a result of the announcement and/or the Closing;

« the ability to recognize the anticipated benefits of the Business Combination, which may be affected
by, among other things, the ability of the Combined Entity to grow and manage growth profitably,
maintain relationships with customers, compete within its industry and retain its key employees;
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 costs related to the proposed Business Combination;

« the possibility that Roman DBDR or CompoSecure may be adversely impacted by other economic,
business, and/or competitive factors;

 future exchange and interest rates; and

 other risks and uncertainties indicated in this proxy statement, including those under “Risk Factors”
herein, and other filings that have been made or will be made with the SEC.

These forward-looking statements are based on information available as of the date of this proxy
statement, and current expectations, forecasts and assumptions, and involve a number of risks and
uncertainties. Accordingly, forward-looking statements should not be relied upon as representing our views
as of any subsequent date, and we do not undertake any obligation to update forward-looking statements to
reflect events or circumstances after the date they were made, whether as a result of new information, future
events or otherwise, except as may be required under applicable securities laws.

In addition, statements that Roman DBDR or CompoSecure “believes” and similar statements reflect
such parties’ beliefs and opinions on the relevant subject. These statements are based upon information
available to such party as of the date of this proxy statement, and while such party believes such information
forms a reasonable basis for such statements, such information may be limited or incomplete, and these
statements should not be read to indicate that either Roman DBDR or CompoSecure has conducted an
exhaustive inquiry into, or review of, all potentially available relevant information. These statements are
inherently uncertain and investors are cautioned not to unduly rely upon these statements.

You should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements in deciding how to grant your
proxy or instruct how your vote should be cast or vote your shares on the proposals set forth in this proxy
statement. As a result of a number of known and unknown risks and uncertainties, our actual results or
performance may be materially different from those expressed or implied by these forward-looking
statements.
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SPECIAL MEETING OF ROMAN DBDR STOCKHOLDERS

General

Roman DBDR is furnishing this proxy statement to its stockholders as part of the solicitation of proxies
by the Board for use at the Special Meeting to be held virtually on December 23, 2021 and at any
adjournment or postponement thereof. This proxy statement provides Roman DBDR’s stockholders with
information they need to know to be able to vote or direct their vote to be cast at the Special Meeting.

Date, Time and Place

The Special Meeting will be held on December 23, 2021, at 10:00 a.m. Eastern Time, via live webcast
at the following address: https://www.cstproxy.com/romandbdr/sm2021. In light of the COVID-19 pandemic
and to support the well-being of Roman DBDR’s stockholders, directors and management, the Special
Meeting will be completely virtual.

Voting Power; Record Date

You will be entitled to vote or direct votes to be cast at the Special Meeting if you owned shares of
Roman DBDR Common Stock at the close of business on November 1, 2021, which is the Record Date. You
are entitled to one vote for each share of Roman DBDR Common Stock that you owned as of the close of
business on the Record Date. If your shares are held in “street name” or are in a margin or similar account,
you should contact your broker, bank or other nominee to ensure that votes related to the shares you
beneficially own are properly counted. On the Record Date, there were 28,945,000 shares of Roman DBDR
Common Stock outstanding, of which 23,080,980 are Public Shares and 5,789,000 are Sponsor Shares held
by the Sponsor. To obtain approval, approximately 37.5% of the Company’s public stockholders need to
vote in favor of the Business Combination Proposal.

Vote of the Sponsor, Directors and Officers

In connection with the Roman DBDR IPO, Roman DBDR entered into agreements with each of its
Sponsor, directors and officers pursuant to which each agreed to vote any shares of Roman DBDR Common
Stock owned by it in favor of the Business Combination Proposal and for all other Proposals presented at
the Special Meeting. These agreements apply to the Sponsor as it relates to the Sponsor Shares and the
requirement to vote such shares in favor of the Business Combination Proposal and for all other Proposals
presented to Roman DBDR stockholders in this proxy statement.

Roman DBDR’s Sponsor, directors and officers have waived any redemption rights, including with
respect to shares of Roman DBDR Common Stock issued or purchased in the Roman DBDR IPO or in the
aftermarket, in connection with Business Combination.

Quorum and Required Vote for the Proposals

A quorum of Roman DBDR stockholders is necessary to hold a valid meeting. A quorum will be
present at the Special Meeting if a majority of the Roman DBDR Common Stock outstanding and entitled to
vote at the Special Meeting is represented in person or by proxy at the Special Meeting.

The approval of the Governing Documents Proposal requires the affirmative vote of (i) a majority of
the issued and outstanding Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock as of the Record Date for the Special
Meeting, voting together as a single class, and (ii) a majority of the issued and outstanding shares of Class B
Common Stock as of the Record Date for the Special Meeting, voting together as a single class. The
approval of the Business Combination Proposal, the Nasdaq Stock Issuance Proposal, the Equity Incentive
Plan Proposal, the ESPP Proposal, the Advisory Charter Proposals and the Adjournment Proposal each
require the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the shares of Roman DBDR Common Stock cast
by the stockholders represented in person or by proxy and entitled to vote thereon at the Special Meeting,
voting together as a single class. The approval of the Director Election Proposal requires the affirmative
vote of the holders of a plurality of the shares of Roman DBDR Common Stock cast by the stockholders
represented virtually or by proxy and entitled to vote thereon at the Special Meeting, voting together as a
single class.
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If the Business Combination Proposal is not approved, the Nasdaq Stock Issuance Proposal, the
Director Election Proposal, the Governing Documents Proposal, the Advisory Charter Proposals, the Equity
Incentive Plan Proposal and the ESPP Proposal will not be presented to the Roman DBDR stockholders for
a vote. The approval of the Business Combination Proposal, the Nasdaq Stock Issuance Proposal, the
Governing Documents Proposal, the Director Election Proposal, the Equity Incentive Plan Proposal and the
ESPP Proposal are preconditions to the Closing. The Nasdaq Stock Issuance Proposal, the Governing
Documents Proposal, the Advisory Charter Proposal, the Equity Incentive Plan Proposal and the ESPP
Proposal are conditioned on the approval of the Business Combination Proposal (and the Business
Combination Proposal is conditioned on the approval of the Nasdaq Stock Issuance Proposal, the Director
Election Proposal, the Governing Documents Proposal, the Equity Incentive Plan Proposal and the ESPP
Proposal). The Adjournment Proposal is not conditioned on the approval of any other proposal set forth in
this proxy statement.

It is important for you to note that in the event the Business Combination Proposal does not receive the
requisite vote for approval, then Roman DBDR will not consummate the Business Combination. If Roman
DBDR does not consummate the Business Combination and fails to complete an initial business
combination by May 10, 2022 (unless otherwise extended with approval of Roman DBDR’s stockholders),
Roman DBDR will be required to dissolve and liquidate its Trust Account by returning the then remaining
funds in such account to the public stockholders.

Abstentions and Broker Non-Votes

At the Special Meeting, Roman DBDR will count a properly executed proxy marked “ABSTAIN” with
respect to a particular proposal as present for purposes of determining whether a quorum is present.
Abstentions will have the same effect as a vote “AGAINST” the Business Combination Proposal, the
Nasdaq Stock Issuance Proposal, the Governing Documents Proposal, the Equity Incentive Plan Proposal
and the ESPP Proposal. Broker non-votes will not be counted as present for the purposes of establishing a
quorum and will have no effect on any of the Proposals, except that a broker non-vote will have the same
effect as voting against the Advisory Charter Proposals. Additionally, if you abstain from voting or fail to
vote at the Special Meeting, you will not be able to exercise your redemption rights (as described above).

Recommendation of the Board

The Board has unanimously determined that each of the Proposals is fair to and in the best interests of
Roman DBDR and its stockholders, and has unanimously approved such proposals. The Board unanimously
recommends that stockholders:

» vote “FOR” the Business Combination Proposal;

« vote “FOR” the Nasdaq Stock Issuance Proposal;

» vote “FOR” the Governing Documents Proposal;

» vote “FOR” each of the Advisory Charter Proposals;

» vote “FOR” the Director Election Proposal;

» vote “FOR” the Equity Incentive Plan Proposal;

* vote “FOR” the ESPP Proposal; and

« vote “FOR” the Adjournment Proposal, if it is presented to the meeting.

When you consider the recommendation of the Board in favor of approval of the Proposals, you should
keep in mind that the Sponsor, members of the Board and officers of Roman DBDR have interests in the
Business Combination that are different from or in addition to (or which may conflict with) your interests as
a stockholder.

See “Proposal Number 1: The Business Combination Proposal — Interests of Roman DBDR’s Directors
and Officers in the Business Combination” for additional information on interests of Roman DBDR’s
directors and executive officers.
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Voting Your Shares

Each share of Roman DBDR Common Stock that you own in your name entitles you to one vote. Our
warrants do not have voting rights. If you are a record owner of your shares, there are two ways to vote your
shares of Roman DBDR Common Stock at the Special Meeting:

* You Can Vote By Signing and Returning the Enclosed Proxy Card. If you vote by proxy card, your
“proxy,” whose name is listed on the proxy card, will vote your shares as you instruct on the proxy
card. If you sign and return the proxy card but do not give instructions on how to vote your shares,
your shares will be voted as recommended by the Board “FOR” the Business Combination Proposal,
the Nasdaq Stock Issuance Proposal, the Director Election Proposal, the Governing Documents
Proposal, the Advisory Charter Proposals, the Equity Incentive Plan Proposal, the ESPP Proposal
and the Adjournment Proposal (if presented). Votes received after a matter has been voted upon at
the Special Meeting will not be counted.

* You Can Attend the Special Meeting and Vote Through the Internet. You will be able to attend the
Special Meeting online and vote during the meeting by visiting and entering the control number
included on your proxy card or on the instructions that accompanied your proxy materials, as
applicable.

If your shares are held in “street name” or are in a margin or similar account, you should contact your
broker to ensure that votes related to the shares you beneficially own are properly counted. If you wish to
attend the meeting and vote online and your shares are held in “street name,” you must obtain a legal proxy
from your broker, bank or nominee. That is the only way Roman DBDR can be sure that the broker, bank or
nominee has not already voted your shares.

Revoking Your Proxy

If you are a record owner of your shares and you give a proxy, you may change or revoke it at any time
before it is exercised by doing any one of the following:

* submit a new proxy card bearing a later date;

» give written notice of your revocation to Roman DBDR’s Corporate Secretary, which notice must be
received by Roman DBDR’s Corporate Secretary prior to the vote at the Special Meeting; or

« vote electronically at the Special Meeting by visiting and entering the control number found on your
proxy card, voting instruction form or notice you previously received. Please note that your
attendance at the Special Meeting will not alone serve to revoke your proxy.

If your shares are held in “street name” by your broker, bank or another nominee as of the close of
business on the Record Date, you must follow the instructions of your broker, bank or other nominee to
revoke or change your voting instructions.

Who Can Answer Your Questions About Voting Your Shares

If you are a stockholder and have any questions about how to vote or direct a vote in respect of your
Roman DBDR Common Stock, you may call Morrow Sodali, Roman DBDR’s proxy solicitor, at (800) 662-
5200 (Individuals) or (203) 658-9400 (banks and brokers) or email
DBDR.info@investor.morrowsodali.com.

No Additional Matters May Be Presented at the Special Meeting

The Special Meeting has been called only to consider the approval of the Business Combination
Proposal, the Nasdaq Stock Issuance Proposal, the Governing Documents Proposal, the Director Election
Proposal, the Equity Incentive Plan Proposal, the ESPP Proposal, the Advisory Charter Proposals and the
Adjournment Proposal. Under the Current Bylaws, other than procedural matters incident to the conduct of
the Special Meeting, no other matters may be considered at the Special Meeting if they are not included in
this proxy statement, which serves as the notice of the Special Meeting.
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Redemption Rights

Pursuant to the Current Charter, any holders of Public Shares may demand that such shares be
redeemed in exchange for a pro rata share of the aggregate amount on deposit in the Trust Account, less
franchise and income taxes payable. If you hold Public Shares through Units, you must elect to separate
your Units into the underlying Public Shares and Public Warrants prior to exercising your redemption rights
with respect to the Public Shares;

If demand is properly made and the Business Combination is consummated, these shares, immediately
prior to the Business Combination, will cease to be outstanding and will represent only the right to receive a
pro rata share of the aggregate amount on deposit in the Trust Account which holds the proceeds of the
Roman DBDR IPO (including interest earned on the funds held in the Trust Account and not previously
released to it to pay the Company’s franchise and income taxes). For illustrative purposes, based on funds in
the Trust Account of approximately $236,291,587.55 on November 1, 2021, the record date for the special
meeting, the estimated per share redemption price would have been approximately $10.20.

In order to exercise your redemption rights, you must:
« affirmatively vote either for or against the Business Combination Proposal;
» check the box on the enclosed proxy card to elect redemption;

 check the box on the enclosed proxy card marked “Stockholder Certification” if you are not acting in
concert or as a “group” (as defined in Section 13d-3 of the Exchange Act) with any other stockholder
with respect to shares of Roman DBDR Common Stock;

 prior to 5:00 PM Eastern time on December 21, 2021 (two (2) business days before the Special
Meeting), tender your shares physically or electronically and submit a request in writing that we
redeem your Public Shares for cash to Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company, Roman
DBDR’s transfer agent, at the following address:

Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company
One State Street Plaza, 30! Floor
New York, New York 10004
Attn: Mark Zimkind
E-mail: mzimkind@continentalstock.com

» and deliver your Public Shares either physically or electronically through DTC to Roman DBDR’s
transfer agent at least two (2) business days before the Special Meeting. Stockholders seeking to
exercise their redemption rights and opting to deliver physical certificates should allot sufficient time
to obtain physical certificates from the transfer agent and time to effect delivery. It is Roman
DBDR’s understanding that stockholders should generally allot at least two weeks to obtain physical
certificates from the transfer agent. However, Roman DBDR does not have any control over this
process and it may take longer than two weeks. Stockholders who hold their shares in street name
will have to coordinate with their bank, broker or other nominee to have the shares certificated or
delivered electronically. If you do not submit a written request and deliver your Public Shares as
described above, your shares will not be redeemed.

Any demand for redemption, once made, may be withdrawn at any time until the deadline for
exercising redemption requests (and submitting shares to the transfer agent) and thereafter, with Roman
DBDR’s consent, until the vote is taken with respect to the Business Combination. If you delivered your
shares for redemption to Roman DBDR’s transfer agent and decide within the required timeframe not to
exercise your redemption rights, you may request that Roman DBDR’s transfer agent return the shares
(physically or electronically). You may make such request by contacting Roman DBDR’s transfer agent at
the phone number or address listed above.

Prior to exercising redemption rights, stockholders should verify the market price of Roman DBDR
Class A Common Stock as they may receive higher proceeds from the sale of their Class A Common Stock
in the public market than from exercising their redemption rights if the market price per share is higher than
the redemption price. We cannot assure you that you will be able to sell your shares of Roman DBDR
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Class A Common Stock in the open market, even if the market price per share is higher than the redemption
price stated above, as there may not be sufficient liquidity in Roman DBDR Common Stock when you wish
to sell your shares.

If you exercise your redemption rights, your shares of Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock will
cease to be outstanding immediately prior to the Business Combination and will only represent the right to
receive a pro rata share of the aggregate amount on deposit in the Trust Account. You will no longer own
those shares and will have no right to participate in, or have any interest in, the future growth of the
Combined Entity, if any. You will be entitled to receive cash for these shares only if you properly and timely
demand redemption.

Holders of the warrants will not have redemption rights with respect to the warrants.

Dissenter Rights

Roman DBDR stockholders and warrantholders do not have dissenter rights in connection with the
Business Combination or the other proposals.

Proxy Solicitation

Roman DBDR is soliciting proxies on behalf of the Roman DBDR Board. This solicitation is being
made by mail but also may be made by telephone or in person. Roman DBDR and its directors, officers and
employees may also solicit proxies in person. Roman DBDR will file with the SEC all scripts and other
electronic communications as proxy soliciting materials. Roman DBDR will bear the cost of the solicitation.

Roman DBDR has hired Morrow Sodali to assist in the proxy solicitation process. Roman DBDR will
pay that firm a fee of $32,500, plus disbursements.

Roman DBDR will ask banks, brokers and other institutions, nominees and fiduciaries to forward the
proxy materials to their principals and to obtain their authority to execute proxies and voting instructions.
Roman DBDR will reimburse them for their reasonable expenses.
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UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet as of September 30, 2021 and
the unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2020
and for the nine months ended September 30, 2021 present the combination of the financial information of
Roman DBDR and CompoSecure after giving effect to the Business Combination, PIPE Investment and
related adjustments described in the accompanying notes. Roman DBDR and CompoSecure are collectively
referred to in this section as the “Companies,” and the Companies, subsequent to the Business Combination
and the PIPE Investment, are referred to herein as “New CompoSecure” or “Combined Entity.”

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of operations for the year ended December 31,
2020 and for the nine months ended September 30, 2021 gives pro forma effect to the Business Combination
and PIPE Investment as if they had occurred on January 1, 2020. The unaudited pro forma condensed
combined balance sheet as of September 30, 2021 gives pro forma effect to the Business Combination and
PIPE Investment as if they were completed on September 30, 2021.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information is based on and should be read in
conjunction with:

* the accompanying notes to the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements;

« the historical financial statements of Roman DBDR as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020,
included elsewhere in this proxy statement;

« the interim historical financial statements of Roman DBDR as of and for the nine months ended
September 30, 2021, included elsewhere in this proxy statement;

« the historical financial statements of CompoSecure as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020,
included elsewhere in this proxy statement;

« the interim historical financial statements of CompoSecure as of and for the nine months ended
September 30, 2021, included elsewhere in this proxy statement;

« the sections entitled “Roman DBDR Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations” and “CompoSecure Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” included elsewhere in this proxy statement.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements have been presented for illustrative
purposes only and do not necessarily reflect what New CompoSecure’s financial condition or results of
operations would have been had the Business Combination and PIPE Investment occurred on the dates
indicated. Further, the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information also may not be
useful in predicting the future financial condition and results of operations of New CompoSecure. The
actual financial position and results of operations may differ significantly from the pro forma amounts
reflected herein due to a variety of factors. The unaudited pro forma adjustments represent management’s
estimates based on information available as of the date of these unaudited pro forma condensed combined
financial statements and are subject to change as additional information becomes available and analyses are
performed.

Description of the Business Combination

Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, the Merger Sub of Roman DBDR will merge with and into
CompoSecure with CompoSecure surviving as a wholly owned subsidiary of Roman DBDR. Upon
consummation of the Business Combination, CompoSecure will amend and restate its limited liability
company agreement (CompoSecure Second Amended and Restated LLC Agreement) to, among other
things, permit the issuance and ownership of interests in CompoSecure as contemplated by the Merger
Agreement; the holders of issued and outstanding equity of CompoSecure will receive a combination of
cash consideration, certain newly-issued membership units of CompoSecure (CompoSecure Unit) and
shares of newly-issued Class B Common Stock of the Company (Class B Common Stock), which will have
no economic value, but will entitle the holder to one vote per issued share and will be issued on a one-for-
one basis for each CompoSecure Unit retained by the holder following the Merger; the holders of
outstanding options to purchase CompoSecure equity will receive a combination of cash consideration and
options to purchase
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shares of Class A Common Stock of the Company (Class A Common Stock), and Roman DBDR will
acquire certain newly-issued membership units of CompoSecure. The CompoSecure Second Amended and
Restated LLC Agreement, together with an Exchange Agreement to be entered into at the closing of the
transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement (Closing), will provide the holders of CompoSecure
Units the right to exchange the CompoSecure Units, together with the cancellation of an equal number of
shares of Class B Common Stock, for Class A Common Stock, subject to certain restrictions set forth
therein.

Following the Closing, the Combined Entity will be organized in an “Up-C” structure with a Board of
Managers controlling CompoSecure in accordance with the terms of the CompoSecure Second Amended
and Restated LLC Agreement. Upon the Closing, it is anticipated that the Company will change its name to
“CompoSecure, Inc.”

The aggregate consideration to be paid to the holders of CompoSecure equity pursuant to the Merger
Agreement is based on an equity value of CompoSecure of approximately $853 million and will consist of:

i.  an amount of cash equal to (A) the amount of cash in the Company’s trust account established for
the purpose of holding the net proceeds from its initial public offering and concurrent private
placement of warrants, approximately $236.3 million at September 30, 2021, net of any amounts
paid to the Company’s shareholders that exercise their redemption rights in connection with the
Merger, plus (B) the proceeds of the sale of $130.0 million of CompoSecure’s senior exchangeable
notes and the sale of $45.0 million of the Company’s Class A Common Stock, each in private
placements to be consummated at the Closing (together, the “PIPE Investment”, as described
below), minus (C) certain transaction expenses; plus

ii. equity consideration valued at $10.00 per share in respect of the remaining portion of
CompoSecure’s enterprise value after deducting the cash consideration in clause (i); plus

iii. the Earnout Consideration (as defined below), if payable.

The terms of the Merger provide for a pro forma combined company enterprise value of approximately
$1.2 billion.

In addition to the consideration to be paid at Closing as described in (i) and (ii) above, CompoSecure
equity holders will have the right to receive an aggregate of up to 7.5 million additional (i) shares of Class A
Common Stock or (ii) CompoSecure Units (and a corresponding number of shares of Class B Common
Stock), as applicable, in earn-out consideration based on the achievement of certain stock price thresholds
(collectively, the “Earnout Consideration”).

Concurrent with Closing, the Company will enter into a tax receivable agreement (the “Tax Receivable
Agreement”) with CompoSecure and holders of interests in CompoSecure. Pursuant to the Tax Receivable
Agreement, the Company will be required to pay to participating holders of interests in CompoSecure 90%
of the amount of savings, if any, in U.S. federal, state and local income tax that the Company actually
realizes as a result of the utilization of certain tax attributes. In addition, concurrent with the Closing, the
Company will enter into a stockholders agreement with certain equity holders of the Company relating to
the voting for directors of the Company and containing certain lock-up restrictions, as well as a registration
rights agreement that will provide customary registration rights to certain equity holders of the Company.

Anticipated sources and uses of proceeds are summarized in the below table:

Sources and uses (no redemption scenario, in thousands)

Sources Uses

Roman DBDR cash in trust $236,290 Cash merger consideration $361,290

Common PIPE Investment proceeds 45,000 Estimated fees and expenses 50,000

Note PIPE Investment proceeds 130,000 Cash to redeeming shareholders —
$411,290 $ 411,290
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Sources and uses (maximum redemption scenario, in thousands)

Sources Uses

Roman DBDR cash in trust $236,290 Cash merger consideration $ 211,000
Common PIPE Investment proceeds 45,000 Estimated fees and expenses 50,000
Note PIPE Investment proceeds 130,000 Cash to redeeming shareholders 150,290

$411,290 $ 411,290

Basis of Pro Forma Presentation

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information has been prepared in accordance
with Article 11 of Regulation S-X, Pro Forma Financial Information, as amended by the final rule,
Amendments to Financial Disclosures about Acquired and Disposed Businesses, as adopted by the SEC in
May 2020 (“Article 11”). The amended Article 11 is effective on January 1, 2021. The unaudited pro forma
condensed combined financial information is provided for illustrative purposes only, does not necessarily
reflect what the actual consolidated results of operations would have been had the acquisition occurred on
the dates assumed and may not be useful in predicting the future consolidated results of operations or
financial position. New CompoSecure’s results of operations and actual financial position may differ
significantly from the pro forma amounts reflected herein due to a variety of factors.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information has been prepared using the below
assumptions with respect to the potential redemption into cash of Roman DBDR’s Class A common stock:

* Assuming No Redemptions: This presentation assumes that no Roman DBDR shareholders exercise
redemption rights with respect to their public shares.

* Assuming Maximum Redemption: This presentation assumes that approximately 64% of Roman
DBDR’s public stockholders exercise redemption rights with respect to their public shares. This
scenario assumes that 14,724,627 public shares are redeemed for an aggregate redemption payment
of approximately $150.2 million, based on approximately $236.3 million in the trust and 23,156,000
public shares outstanding as of September 30, 2021. This is presented as the maximum redemptions
scenario because Roman DBDR is obligated to have an aggregate of at least $210 million in cash
after considering redemptions, proceeds from the PIPE Investment and $50 million of transaction
expenses as a condition to Closing the proposed Business Combination.

No Redemption Maximum Redemption®
Stockholder Group Shares % Shares %
Former CompoSecure equity holders 49,195,000 59.5% 63,919,627 77.3%
PIPE shares 4,500,000 5.4% 4,500,000 5.4%
Roman DBDR public common 23,156,000 28.0% 8,431,373 10.2%
Roman DBDR sponsor shares 5,789,000 Ll% 5,789,000 E%

82,640,000 100% 82,640,000 100%

(1) This number does not include 7,500,000 earnout shares which may be issued to CompoSecure equity
holders upon the achievement of certain stock price thresholds as described in the Merger Agreement.

The level of redemption also impacts the effective underwriting fee incurred in connection with the
Roman DBDR IPO. In a no redemption scenario, based on the approximately $236.3 million in the Trust
Account as of September 30, 2021, Roman DBDR’s $8,104,600 in deferred underwriting fees represents an
effective deferred underwriting fee of approximately 3.4% as a percentage of cash in the Trust Account. In a
maximum redemption scenario, the effective deferred underwriting fee would be approximately 9.5% as a
percentage of the cash in the Trust Account.

These numbers do not take into account warrants to purchase Roman DBDR Common Stock that will
be outstanding immediately following the completion of the Business Combination.
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If the actual facts are different than these assumptions, the ownership percentage retained by the
Roman DBDR public stockholders post-combination will be different from the above stated
ownership percentage.

The following unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet as of September 30, 2021 and
unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2020
and the nine months ended September 30, 2021, are based on the historical financial statements of Roman
DBDR and CompoSecure. The unaudited pro forma adjustments are based on information currently
available, assumptions, and estimates and are described in the accompanying notes. Actual results may
differ materially from the assumptions and estimates used to present the accompanying unaudited pro forma
condensed combined financial information.
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Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Balance Sheet

September 30, 2021
(in thousands)
Assuming No Redemption Assuming Maximum
Scenario Redemption Scenario
Roman Transaction Transaction
DBDR CompoSecure Accounting Pro Forma Accounting Pro Forma
(Historical)  (Historical) Adjustments Combined Adjustments Combined
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 15 $ 12,236 $ 45,000 a $ 17,413 $ 45,000 a $ 17,413
130,000 b 130,000 b
(361,290) «c (211,000) ¢
236,290 d — d
(8,273) e (8273) e
(2,064) f (2,064) f
(34,501) h (34,501) h
— 1 86,000 1
Accounts receivable, net — 33,368 — 33,368 — 33,368
Inventory — 26,489 — 26,489 — 26,489
Prepaid and other current assets 225 861 — 1,086 — 1,086
Total current assets 240 72,954 5,162 78,356 5,162 78,356
Property and equipment 23,947 — 23,947 — 23,947
Right of use asset — 5,511 — 5,511 — 5,511
Marketable securities held in trust 236,290 — (236,290) d — (236,290) 1 —
Deferred tax asset — — 86,020 i 86,020 33,082 i 33,082
Deposits and other assets — 5,340 (5,330) g 10 (5330) g 10
Total assets $236,530 $107,752 $(150,438) $193,844  $(203,376) $140,906
LIABILITIES, REDEEMABLE STOCK AND
STOCKHOLDERS’’MEMBERS’ EQUITY/(DEFICIT)
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ = $ 4,147 $ = $ 4147 $ — $ 4,147
Accrued expenses 2,470 13,817 (2,064) f 14,223 (2,064) f 14,223
Advance from related parties 168 — (168) e — (168) e —
Current portion of lease liabilities — 1,105 — 1,105 — 1,105
Current portion of long-term debt — 24,000 — — 24,000 — — 24,000
Total current liabilities 2,638 43,069 (2,232) 43,475 (2,232) 43,475
Long-term debt, net of deferred finance costs 195,054 157,000 b 347,454 157,000 b 347,454
Long-term debt, net of deferred finance costs (2,000) b (2,000) b
(2,600) (2,600) h
Line of credit — 15,000 — 15,000 — 15,000
Warrant liability 36,739 — — 36,739 — 36,739
Deferred underwriting fees 8,105 — (8,105) e — (8,105) e —
Lease liabilities — 4,995 — 4,995 — 4,995
Other liabilities — — 69,556 i 117,000 25,140 i 72,584
47,444k 47,444  k
Total liabilities 47,482 258,118 259,063 564,663 214,647 520,247
Class A common stock subject to possible redemption 236,191 — (236,191) d — (236,191) 1 —
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Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Balance Sheet

September 30, 2021
(in thousands)
Assuming No Redemption Assuming Maximum
Scenario Redemption Scenario
Roman Transaction Transaction
DBDR CompoSecure  Accounting Pro Forma Accounting Pro Forma
(Historical)  (Historical)  Adjustments Combined Adjustments Combined
Members’ capital
Member’s contributions — — — —
Accumulated deficit — (150,366) (25,000) b (175,366) (25,0000 b (175,366)
Total members’ capital — (150,366) 215,558 65,192 280,046 129,680
Non-controlling interest — — (240,558) j (240,558) (305,046) j (305,046)
Shareholders’ equity (deficit)
Class A common stock — — 1 a 3 1 a 1
2 d 1 1
@1 n
Class B common stock 1 — — 5 — 7
4 n 6 n
Additional paid-in-capital — — 44,999 a 149,365 44,999 a (925)
236,189 d
(5,330) g (5,330) g
(31,901) h (31,901) h
(47,444)  k (47,444)  k
= 1 85900 1
(47,144) m (47,144) m
4 n G) n
Accumulated deficit (47,144) — (361,290) ¢ (344,826)  (211,000) ¢  (203,058)
16,464 i 7942 i
47,144 m 47,144 m
Total stockholder’s/member’s equity (deficit) (47,143) (150,366) (173,310) (370,819) (181,831) (379,341)
Total liabilities, redeemable stock and stockholders’/
members’ equity/(deficit) $236,530  $ 107,752 $(150,438) $ 193,844  $(203,376) $ 140,906
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Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined

Statement of Operations for the Year Ended
December 31, 2020
(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Assuming No Redemption Scenario Assuming Maximum Redemption Scenario

Roman Transaction Transaction
DBDR CompoSecure Accounting Pro Forma Accounting Pro Forma
(Historical) (Historical)  Adjustments Combined Adjustments Combined
Net Sales
Net sales $ — $260,586 $ — $ 260,586 $ — $ 260,586
Cost of sales — 127,959 — 127,959 — 127,959
Gross profit — 132,627 — 132,627 — 132,627
Operating expenses:
Selling, general and administrative — 48,669 — 48,669 — 48,669
Operation and formation costs 189 — — 189 — 189
Total operating expenses 189 48,669 — 48,858 — 48,858
(Loss) income from operations (189) 83,958 — 83,769 — 83,769
Other (expense) income
Interest income (expense) — (5,266) (10,045) a (15,311) (10,045) a (15,311)
Interest income on marketable
securities held in Trust Account 23 — — 23 — 23
Unrealized gain on marketable
securities held in Trust Account 1 — — 1 — 1
Unrealized loss on change in fair value
of warrant liabilities (3,811) — — (3,811) — (3,811)
Unrealized loss on change in fair value
of warrant liabilities (715) — — (715) — (715)
Transaction costs — warrants (650) — — (650) — (650)
Amortization of deferred financing
costs — (877) (904) a (1,781) (904) a (1,781)
Other income, net — — — — — —
Total other (expense) income (5,152) (6,143) (10,949) (22,244) (10,949) (22,244)
(Loss) income before income taxes (5,341) 77,815 (10,949) 61,525 (10,949) 61,525
Income tax (expense) benefit — — (5,858) b (5,858) (3,325) b (3,325)
Net (loss) income (5,341) 77,815 (16,807) 55,667 (14,274) 58,200
Net income attributable to non-
controlling interests — — 36,607 ¢ 36,607 47,559 d 47,559
Net (loss) income attributable to
CompoSecure, Inc. $ (5,341) $ 77,815 $(53,415) $ 19,060 $(61,833) $ 10,641
Income (loss) per share
Weighted average shares outstanding,
basic 5,601,728 82,640,000 82,640,000
Basic net income (loss) per share $ (0.21) $ 0.23 $ 0.13
Weighted average shares outstanding,
diluted 5,601,728 86,179,417 86,179,417
Diluted net income (loss) per share $ (0.21) $ 0.22 $ 0.12

Weighted average shares outstanding,
basic and diluted Class A common
Stock subject to possible
redemption 19,250,109

Basic and diluted net loss per share,
Class A common Stock subject to
possible redemption $ (0.21)
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Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined

Statement of Operations for the Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2021
(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Assuming No Redemption Scenario Assuming Maximum Redemption Scenario

Roman Transaction Transaction
DBDR CompoSecure Accounting Pro Forma Accounting Pro Forma
(Historical) (Historical) Adjustments Combined Adjustments Combined
Net Sales
Net sales $ — $192,648 $ — $ 192,648 $ — $ 192,648
Cost of sales — 87,074 — 87,074 — 87,074
Gross profit — 105,574 — 105,574 — 105,574
Operating expenses:
Selling, general and administrative — 33,347 — 33,347 — 33,347
Operation and formation costs 3,338 — — 3,338 — 3,338
Total operating expenses 3,338 33,347 — 36,685 — 36,685
Loss (income) from operations (3,338) 72,227 — 68,889 — 68,889
Other (expense) income
Interest income (expense) — (7,635) (7,534) a (15,169) (7,534) a (15,169)
Interest income on marketable
securities held in Trust Account 75 — — 75 — 75

Unrealized gain on marketable
securities held in Trust Account — — — — — _

Unrealized gain (loss)loss on change
in fair value of warrant liabilities (9,284) — — (9,284) — (9,284)

Unrealized gain (loss)loss on change
in fair value of warrant liabilities — — — — — —

Transaction costs — warrants — — — — — _
Amortization of deferred financing

costs — (1,195) (718) a (1,913) (718) a (1,913)
Other income, net — — — — — —
Total other (expense) income (9,209) (8,830) (8,252) (26,291) (8,252) (26,291)
(Loss) income before income
taxes (12,547) 63,397 (8,252) 42,598 (8,252) 42,598
Income tax (expense) benefit — — (4,849) b (4,849) (2,758) b (2,758)
Net (loss) income (12,547) 63,397 (13,101) 37,749 (11,064) 39,840
Net income attributable to non-
controlling interests — — 25,346 C 25,346 32,928 C 32,928
Net (loss) income attributable to
CompoSecure, Inc. $ (12,547) $ 63,397 $(38,447) $ 12,403  $(43,992) $ 6,912

(Loss) income per share
Weighted average shares outstanding,

basic 5,789,000 82,640,000 82,640,000
Basic net (loss) income per share $ (0.45) $ 0.15 $ 0.08
Weighted average shares outstanding,

diluted 5,789,000 86,179,417 86,179,417
Diluted net (loss) income per share $ (0.45) $ 0.14 $ 0.08

Weighted average shares outstanding,
basic and diluted Class A common
Stock subject to possible
redemption 22,290,037

Basic and diluted net loss per share,
Class A common Stock subject to
possible redemption $ (0.45)
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Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information
(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)
1. Basis of Presentation

The Business Combination will be accounted for as a reverse recapitalization in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”). Under this method of
accounting, Roman DBDR has been treated as the “acquired” company for financial reporting purposes.
This determination was primarily based on existing CompoSecure equity holders comprising a relative
majority of the voting power of the Combined Entity, CompoSecure’s operations prior to the acquisition
comprising the only ongoing operations of New CompoSecure, the majority of New CompoSecure’s board
of directors being appointed by CompoSecure, and CompoSecure’s senior management comprising a
majority of the senior management of New CompoSecure. Accordingly, for accounting purposes, the
financial statements of the Combined Entity will represent a continuation of the financial statements of
CompoSecure with the Business Combination being treated as the equivalent of CompoSecure issuing
membership units for the net assets of Roman DBDR, accompanied by a recapitalization. The net assets of
Roman DBDR will be stated at historical costs, with no goodwill or other intangible assets recorded.

CompoSecure’s management has made significant estimates and assumptions in its determination of the
pro forma adjustments based on information available as of the date of this proxy statement. As the
unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information has been prepared based on these
preliminary estimates, the final amounts recorded may differ materially from the information presented as
additional information becomes available. Management considers this basis of presentation to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

2.  Adjustments to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information

Balance sheet

A. Reflects the proceeds of $45,000 from the issuance and sale of 4,500,000 shares of Class A
Common Stock at a price of $10.00 per share, to be consummated concurrently with the Closing
pursuant to the Common Subscription Agreement entered into in connection with the PIPE
Investment.

B. Prior to the Business Combination, CompoSecure will increase and borrow $27,000 under its debt
facilities to fund the distribution of $25,000 to its common unit holders and $2,000 of debt
financing costs. In addition, and as part of the PIPE Investment, 7% convertible notes with a face
value of $130,000 will be issued.

Represents merger consideration distributed to CompoSecure members.

D. Reflects the liquidation and reclassification of approximately $236,290 of marketable securities
held in the Roman DBDR Trust Account to cash and cash equivalents that becomes available for
general corporate use by the Combined Entity following the Closing of the Business Combination
and the related reclassification of common stock subject to possible redemption to permanent
equity.

E. Represents the payment of Roman DBDR’s deferred underwriting fees of $8,105 and advance
from related parties of $168 that become payable upon the Closing of the Business Combination.

F. Represents the payment of $2,064 of transaction costs accrued by Roman DBDR at September 30,
2021.

G. Reflects the elimination of $5,330 of transaction costs incurred by CompoSecure through
September 30, 2021. The transaction costs are recorded as a reduction of the net assets of Roman
DBDR received upon the Business Combination and offset against additional paid-in capital.

H. Represents preliminary additional estimated direct and incremental transaction costs of $34,501 to
be incurred by Roman DBDR and CompoSecure and payable contingent upon the Closing of
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Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

the Business Combination. The transaction costs are recorded as a reduction of the net assets of

Roman DBDR received upon the Business Combination and offset against additional paid-in

capital.
The estimated transaction costs consist of the following:

Roman DBDR transaction costs:

2% Original issuance discount on Exchangeable Notes $ 2,600

Third-party legal, advisory and other professional fees 4,295

Deferred underwriter’s fees (see (e) above) 8,105
Total Roman DBDR transaction costs 15,000
CompoSecure transaction costs:

Third-party legal, advisory and other professional fees 15,000
Shared transaction costs 20,000
Total estimated costs to be paid at Closing 50,000
Less deferred underwriters fee (see (e) above) (8,105)
Less fees accrued by Roman DBDR at September 30, 2021 (see (f) above) (2,064)
Less fees accrued by CompoSecure at September 30, 2021 (see (g) above) (5,330)
Total estimated costs to be paid at Closing excluding deferred underwriters fee and costs

already incurred $34,501

Represents adjustments to reflect applicable deferred taxes. The deferred taxes are primarily
related to the difference between the financial statement and tax basis in CompoSecure LLC
interests. This basis difference primarily results from the Business Combination where Roman
DBDR recorded a carryover basis on all assets for financial accounting purposes and a fair value
step-up on a portion of the assets for income tax purposes. The impact of the Business
Combination on the deferred tax asset will be $97,299 offset by a $11,279 valuation allowance,
assuming: (1) the GAAP balance sheet as of September 30, 2021 adjusted for the pro forma entries
described herein, (2) estimated tax basis as of September 30, 2021 adjusted for the pro forma
entries described herein, (3) a valuation allowance of $11,279, (4) a constant federal income tax
rate of 21.0% and a state tax rate of 0.04%, and (5) no material changes in tax law. The recorded
valuation allowance relates to a portion of Roman DBDR’s tax basis in excess of GAAP basis in
its CompoSecure LLC interests for which Roman DBDR believes it is not more likely than not that
it will realize a tax benefit in the future. In case of Maximum Redemptions by holders of common
stock, the impact of the Business Combination on the deferred tax asset will be $43,001 offset by a
$9,919 valuation allowance.

Upon the completion of the Business Combination, the Company will be a party to a tax receivable
agreement (the “Tax Receivable Agreement”). Under the terms of that agreement, the Company
will be required to pay to participating holders of interests in CompoSecure 90% of the amount of
savings, if any, in U.S. federal, state and local income tax that the Company actually realizes as a
result of the utilization of certain tax attributes. A liability of $69,556 assuming no redemptions
and $25,140 assuming maximum redemption was recorded to reflect estimated amounts due under
the Tax Receivable Agreement.

Non-controlling interests represent direct interests held in CompoSecure LLC, other than by
CompoSecure, Inc. immediately after the Business Combination. Adjustments for the non-
controlling interest in the Business Combination under no and maximum redemption scenarios are
as follows:
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Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

No Redemption Scenario Maximum Redemption Scenario
Controlling Controlling
Total NCI interest Total NCI interest
Equity @59.50% @ 40.50% Equity @77.30% @ 22.70%
Historical CompoSecure member’s
capital $(150,366) $ (89,468) $ (60,898) $(150,366) $(116,233) $(34,133)
Historical Roman DBDR
stockholder’s equity (47,143)  (28,050) (19,093) (47,143) (36,442) (10,701)
Pro forma adjustments
Distribution to existing
CompoSecure equity holders (25,000)  (25,000) — (25,000)  (25,000) —
Reclassification of redeemable stock
to permanent equity 236,191 140,534 95,657 85,901 66,401 19,500
PIPE investors’ equity 45,000 26,775 18,225 45,000 34,785 10,215
Cash to existing CompoSecure equity
holders at Closing (361,290) (214,968) (146,322) (211,000) (163,103) (47,897)
Payment of transaction costs (37,231)  (22,152)  (15,079) (37,231) (28,780) (8,451)
Liability classified earnout shares (47,444)  (28,229) (19,215) (47,444) (36,674) (10,770)
Deferred taxes, net of tax receivable
agreement 16,464 — 16,464 7,942 — 7,942
Shareholders’ equity/members’
equity/(deficit) $(370,819) $(240,558) $(130,261) $(379,341) $(305,046) $(74,295)
K. Upon achievement of certain stock price thresholds as described in the Merger Agreement,
7,500,000 shares may be issued to CompoSecure Equity Holders. The estimated fair value of the
total Earnout Consideration as of September 30, 2021 is $52,150. Of this amount, $47,444 is
payable to CompoSecure Equity Holders who are investors and $4,706 to CompoSecure Equity
Holders who are employees and received their shares for services previously provided. The
amount payable to the investors is liability classified, and the liability will be re-measured on a
quarterly basis through the earnout settlement date with changes therein recorded in the statement
of operations. The amount payable to employees will be charged to the statement of operations
over the term of the earnout.
L. Reflects the maximum redemption of 14,724,627 public shares for aggregate redemption payments
of $150,290. After redemption, $86,000 is available for the Combined Company.
Represents the elimination of Roman DBDR’s historical accumulated deficit.
N. To adjust the par value of Series A and Series B to agree to the par value of shares outstanding
after the Closing.
Statement of operations
A. Represents interest expense and amortization of original issuance discount on the additional
borrowings under the debt facilities and PIPE Investment (see (b) above).
B. Adjustment to eliminate the historical tax expense (benefit) of Roman DBDR and CompoSecure

and to record the tax provisions of the Combined Entity on a pro forma basis using a pro forma
effective tax rate of 9.52% for the year ended December 31, 2020 and 11.38% for the nine months
ended September 20, 2021, which was applied to the income attributable to the controlling interest
as the income attributable to the non-controlling interest is pass-through income. However, the
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Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information
(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)
effective tax rate of the Combined Entity could be different depending on post-Business
Combination activities.

See below rate reconciliation of U.S. federal income tax rate to the Pro forma effective tax rate:

For the Nine months For the
ended Year ended
September 30, 2021 December 31, 2020
U.S. federal statutory tax rate 21.00% 21.00%
State taxes 0.03% 0.03%
Valuation allowances 0.00% 0.00%
NCI adjustment -15.72% -13.20%
Permanent differences 6.07% _1.69%
Effective Pro forma tax rate ﬂ% ﬂ%

C. Represents the adjustment for the non-controlling interest in the Business Combination:

Nine months Ended Year Ended
September 30, 2021 December 31, 2020
59.50% 77.3% 59.50% 77.30%
No redemption = Maximum Redemption = No redemption Maximum
scenario Scenario scenario Redemption
Pro forma income before taxes $42,598 $42,598 $61,525 $61,525
Non-controlling interest pro forma
adjustment $25,346 $32,928 $36,607 $47,559
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PROPOSAL NO. 1: THE BUSINESS COMBINATION PROPOSAL

Holders of Roman DBDR Common Stock are being asked to approve and adopt the Merger Agreement
and the transactions contemplated thereby, including the Business Combination. Roman DBDR stockholders
should read carefully this proxy statement in its entirety for more detailed information concerning the
Agreement and Plan of Merger, which is attached as Annex A (along with Amendment No. 1 thereto, which
is attached as Annex G) to this proxy statement. Please see the section titled “— Merger Agreement” below,
for additional information and a summary of certain terms of the Merger Agreement. You are urged to read
carefully the Merger Agreement in its entirety before voting on this proposal.

Because Roman DBDR is holding a stockholder vote on the Business Combination, Roman DBDR may
consummate the Business Combination only if it is approved by the affirmative vote of the holders of a
majority of the issued and outstanding shares of Roman DBDR Common Stock as of the Record Date for
the Special Meeting.

The Merger Agreement

The subsections that follow this subsection describe the material provisions of the Merger Agreement,
but do not purport to describe all of the terms of the Merger Agreement. The following summary is qualified
in its entirety by reference to the complete text of the Agreement and Plan of Merger, a copy of which is
attached as Annex A hereto (along with Amendment No. 1 thereto, which is attached as Annex G), which is
incorporated herein by reference. Stockholders and other interested parties are urged to read the Merger
Agreement carefully and in its entirety (and, if appropriate, with the advice of financial and legal counsel)
because it is the primary legal document that governs the Business Combination.

The Merger Agreement contains representations, warranties and covenants that the respective parties
made to each other as of the date of the Merger Agreement or other specific dates, which may be updated
prior to the Closing of the Business Combination. The assertions embodied in those representations,
warranties and covenants were made for purposes of the contract among the respective parties and are
subject to important qualifications and limitations agreed to by the parties in connection with negotiating
the Merger Agreement. The representations, warranties and covenants in the Merger Agreement are also
modified in important part by the disclosure schedules which are not filed publicly and which are subject to
a contractual standard of materiality different from that generally applicable to stockholders. The disclosure
schedules were used for the purpose of allocating risk among the parties rather than establishing matters as
facts. We do not believe that the disclosure schedules contain information that is material to an investment
decision.

General Description of the Merger Agreement

On April 19, 2021, Roman DBDR, Merger Sub, CompoSecure and LLR Equity Partners IV, L.P,, in its
capacity as the Member Representative, entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger, which was amended
on May 25, 2021, which provides, among other things, that, on the Closing Date, the parties to the Merger
Agreement will cause a certificate of merger to be executed and filed with the Secretary of State of the State
of Delaware, pursuant to which Merger Sub will merge with and into CompoSecure (the “Merger”), with
CompoSecure as the surviving entity in the Merger and, after giving effect to such Merger, becoming a
subsidiary of Roman DBDR.

The terms of the Business Combination provide for a pro forma combined company enterprise value of
approximately $1.2 billion. The aggregate consideration to be paid to the CompoSecure Holders pursuant to
the Merger Agreement is based on an equity value of CompoSecure of approximately $853 million.

The Merger Agreement also provides that (i) CompoSecure will amend and restate its limited liability
company agreement (the “CompoSecure Second Amended and Restated LL.C Agreement”) to, among other
things, permit the issuance and ownership of interests in CompoSecure as contemplated by the Merger
Agreement; (ii) the CompoSecure Holders will receive a combination of cash consideration, certain newly-
issued membership units of CompoSecure (the “Class B Common Units”) and shares of newly-issued
Class B Common Stock of the Company, which will have no economic value, but will entitle the
CompoSecure Holder to one vote per issued share and will be issued on a one-for-one basis for each Class B
Common Unit
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issued to the CompoSecure Holder following the Merger; (iii) the holders of outstanding options to purchase
CompoSecure equity will receive a combination of cash consideration and options to purchase shares of
Class A Common Stock of the Company, and (iv) the Company will acquire certain newly-issued
membership units of CompoSecure. The CompoSecure Second Amended and Restated LLC Agreement,
together with an Exchange Agreement to be entered into at the Closing of the Business Combination, will
provide the CompoSecure Holders of Class B Common Units the right to exchange the Class B Common
Units, together with the cancellation of an equal number of shares of Class B Common Stock, for Class A
Common Stock, subject to certain restrictions set forth therein.

At the effective time of the Merger (the “Merger Effective Time”), the Company will change its name to
“CompoSecure, Inc.” Following the Closing, the combined company will be organized in an “Up-C”
structure and CompoSecure will be managed by a board of managers in accordance with the terms of the
CompoSecure Second Amended and Restated LLC Agreement.

Structure of the Merger Agreement

Prior to the closing of the Business Combination contemplated by the Merger Agreement, the parties
will undertake the following transactions (i) Merger Sub will merge with and into CompoSecure, with
CompoSecure surviving as a subsidiary of the Company (the “Merger”), (ii) CompoSecure will amend and
restate its limited liability company agreement (the “CompoSecure Second Amended and Restated LL.C
Agreement”) to, among other things, permit the issuance and ownership of interests in CompoSecure as
contemplated by the Merger Agreement; (ii) the CompoSecure Holders will receive a combination of cash
consideration, certain newly-issued membership units of CompoSecure (the “Class B Common Units”) and
shares of newly-issued Class B Common Stock of the Company, which will have no economic value, but
will entitle the CompoSecure Holder to one vote per issued share and will be issued on a one-for-one basis
for each Class B Common Unit retained by the CompoSecure Holder following the Merger; (iii) the holders
of outstanding options to purchase CompoSecure equity will receive a combination of cash consideration
and options to purchase shares of Class A Common Stock of the Company, and (iv) the Company will
acquire certain newly-issued membership units of CompoSecure. The CompoSecure Second Amended and
Restated LLC Agreement, together with an Exchange Agreement to be entered into at the Closing of the
Business Combination, will provide the CompoSecure Holders of Class B Common Units the right to
exchange the Class B Common Units, together with the cancellation of an equal number of shares of
Class B Common Stock, for Class A Common Stock, subject to certain restrictions set forth therein.

At the Merger Effective Time, by virtue of the Merger and without any action on the part of Roman
DBDR, Merger Sub, CompoSecure or the CompoSecure Holders:

« all of the CompoSecure Units issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Merger Effective
Time, shall, by virtue of the Merger and upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the
Merger Agreement, be cancelled or converted, as the case may be, and automatically deemed for all
purposes to represent the right to receive the applicable portion of the Cash Merger Consideration,
the Equity Merger Consideration and the Earnout Consideration, if any, attributable to the
CompoSecure Units as required by the Current CompoSecure LLC Agreement and as provided on
the Merger Consideration Schedule;

» the membership interests of Merger Sub issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Merger
Effective Time shall, by virtue of the Merger and without any action on the part of Roman DBDR,
Merger Sub or CompoSecure, be converted into and become an amount of newly issued, fully paid
and non-assessable Class A Common Units of CompoSecure equal to the number of shares of Roman
DBDR Class A Common Stock issued and outstanding immediately following the Merger Effective
Time;

* the number of Class A Common Units of CompoSecure issued and outstanding shall equal the
number of shares of Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock then issued and outstanding; and

* the number of Class B Common Units of CompoSecure issued and outstanding shall equal the
Class B Common Unit Merger Consideration (as defined below).
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Merger Consideration

The aggregate consideration to be paid to the CompoSecure Holders pursuant to the Merger Agreement
is based on an equity value of CompoSecure of $852,991,200, as adjusted for certain transaction expenses
of the Company (the “Equity Value”), and will consist of:

(i) an amount of cash equal to (A) the amount of cash in the Company’s Trust Account
established for the purpose of holding the net proceeds from its initial public offering and concurrent
private placement of warrants (currently $236.2 million), net of any amounts paid to the Company’s
Stockholders that exercise their redemption rights in connection with the Business Combination, plus
(B) the proceeds of Common PIPE Investment and Note PIPE Investment minus (C) certain transaction
expenses (the “Cash Merger Consideration”); plus

(ii) equity consideration consisting of the Class B Common Units (the “Class B Common Unit
Merger Consideration”) and Class B Common Stock valued at $10.00 per share (the “Class B Common
Stock Merger Consideration”) in respect of the remaining portion of CompoSecure’s Equity Value after
deducting the Cash Merger Consideration (the “Equity Merger Consideration”); plus

(iii) the Earnout Consideration (as defined below), if payable.

In addition to the consideration to be paid at Closing as described in (i) and (ii) above, the
CompoSecure Holders and the holders of outstanding options to purchase CompoSecure that are not
Cashout Options will have the right to receive (A) 3,750,000 additional (x) shares of Class A Common
Stock with respect to holders of outstanding options to purchase CompoSecure that are not Cashout Options
or (y) Class B Common Units (and a corresponding number of shares of Class B Common Stock) with
respect to CompoSecure Holders, as applicable, in earn-out consideration in the event the stock price of the
CompoSecure, Inc. Class A Common Stock equals or exceeds $15.00 per share for any 20 trading days
within any 30 consecutive trading day period ending on or prior to the three-year anniversary of the Closing,
and (B) 3,750,000 additional (x) shares of Class A Common Stock with respect to holders of outstanding
options to purchase CompoSecure that are not Cashout Options or (y) Class B Common Units (and a
corresponding number of shares of Class B Common Stock) with respect to CompoSecure Holders, as
applicable, in earn-out consideration in the event the stock price of the CompoSecure, Inc. Class A Common
Stock equals or exceeds $20.00 per share for any 20 trading days within any 30 consecutive trading day
period ending on or prior to the four-year anniversary of the Closing (collectively, the “Earnout
Consideration”).

Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, at the Merger Effective Time, each Cashout Option, whether vested
or unvested, shall, automatically and without any required action on the part of any holder or beneficiary
thereof, be terminated by virtue of the Merger and the holder shall cease to have any rights with respect
thereto, other than the right to receive: (i) a cash payment equal to the difference between (A) the Cash
Merger Consideration (excluding the Tax Receivable Amount) allocable in respect of a CompoSecure Unit
underlying such Cashout Option and (B) the per CompoSecure Unit exercise price of the Cashout Option
(without interest and subject to the deduction and withholding of such amounts) and (ii) the amount of
Earnout Consideration allocable in respect of the Cashout Options as set forth on the Merger Consideration
Schedule. Also at the Merger Effective Time, all of the CompoSecure Options, whether vested or unvested,
outstanding immediately prior to the Merger Effective Time that are not Cashout Options shall,
automatically, be assumed by Roman DBDR and each such CompoSecure Option shall be converted into,
and represent only, an option to purchase shares of Class A Common Stock.

Closing

The Closing of the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement, including the Merger, will take
place on such date mutually agreed upon by Roman DBDR and CompoSecure, falling within three (3) days
following the satisfaction or waiver of all of the conditions described below under the subsection entitled
“Conditions to Closing”, unless Roman DBDR and CompoSecure shall mutually agree in writing.

Representations and Warranties

Under the Merger Agreement, CompoSecure made various representations and warranties to Roman
DBDR that are subject, in some cases, to specified exceptions and qualifications contained in the Merger
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Agreement or in the disclosure schedule that CompoSecure delivered to Roman DBDR in connection with
the Merger Agreement. These representations and warranties relate to, among other things:

 organization and qualification;
¢ subsidiaries;

« the authorization, performance and enforceability of the Merger Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereby;

* board approval;

* capitalization;

« financial statements;

e the absence of undisclosed liabilities;
» absence of certain changes or events;
« title; real property;

» condition and sufficiency of assets;
* intellectual property;

 privacy and data security;

» systems and IT;

 contracts;

« litigation;

» compliance with laws; permits;

» environmental matters;

» employee benefit matters;

* taxes

» employee relations;

* insurance

* transactions with related parties;

* brokers;

« exchange act;

« Roman DBDR Common Stock; and

» Information supplied.

Under the Merger Agreement, Roman DBDR and Merger Sub made various representations and
warranties to CompoSecure that are subject, in some cases, to specified exceptions and qualifications
contained in the Merger Agreement or in the disclosure schedule that Roman DBDR delivered to
CompoSecure in connection with the Merger Agreement. These representations and warranties relate to,
among other things:

* corporate organization;

« the authorization, performance and enforceability of the Merger Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereby;

« no conflict;
« consents;

« brokers;
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« SEC filings;

* capitalization;

« litigation;

» compliance with laws;

+ stock exchange listing;

* capitalization of Roman DBDR post-closing;
* transactions with related parties;

* board approval;

« stockholder vote;

¢ Trust Account;

*+ taxes;

* information supplied;

» organization and operations of Roman DBDR and Merger Sub; and

 independent investigation.

Pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement each of the representations and warranties of
CompoSecure, Merger Sub and Roman DBDR shall not survive the Closing.

Material Adverse Effect

Under the Merger Agreement, certain representations and warranties of CompoSecure and Roman
DBDR are qualified in whole or in part by materiality. In addition, certain representations and warranties of
Roman DBDR, Merger Sub and CompoSecure are qualified in whole or in part by certain “material adverse
effect” standards for purposes of determining whether a breach of such representations and warranties has
occurred.

Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, a “Material Adverse Effect” means any event, occurrence, fact,
condition or change that (a) has had, or would reasonably be expected to have, individually or in the
aggregate, a material adverse effect on the business, results of operations, financial condition or assets of
CompoSecure or (b) does or would reasonably be expected to, individually or in the aggregate, prevent the
ability of CompoSecure to consummate the Merger; provided, however, “Material Adverse Effect” shall not
include, either alone or in combination, any event, occurrence, fact, condition or change, directly or
indirectly, arising out of or attributable to: (i) general economic or political conditions or conditions
generally affecting the capital, credit or financial markets; (ii) conditions generally affecting the industries
in which CompoSecure operates; (iii) acts of war (whether or not declared), armed hostilities or terrorism,
or the escalation or worsening thereof; (iv) acts of God, including any earthquakes, hurricanes, tornadoes,
floods, tsunami, pandemics (including COVID-19) or other natural disasters; (v) any failure of
CompoSecure to meet its financial projections, budgets or estimates (provided that the underlying causes of
such failures, subject to the other provisions of this definition, shall not be excluded), (vi) any action
required or permitted by the Merger Agreement, or any action taken (or not taken) with the written consent
of or at the request of Roman DBDR or Merger Sub; (vii) any changes in applicable laws or accounting
rules or principles, including GAAP, or any interpretations thereof; or (viii) the announcement or execution
of the Merger Agreement, pendency or completion of the transactions contemplated thereby; provided,
however, that any effect resulting from a matter described in any of the foregoing clauses (i) through (iv) or
(vii) may be taken into account in determining whether a Material Adverse Effect has occurred or is
reasonably likely to occur to the extent such effect has a disproportionate adverse effect on CompoSecure
relative to other participants operating in the industries or markets in which CompoSecure operates.

Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, a Roman DBDR Material Adverse Effect means any event,
occurrence, fact, condition or change that has had, or would reasonably be expected to have, individually or
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in the aggregate, a material adverse effect on (a) the business, results of operations, financial condition or
assets of Roman DBDR, or (b) the ability of Roman DBDR to consummate the transactions contemplated by
the Merger Agreement; provided, however, Roman DBDR Material Adverse Effect shall not include, either
alone or in combination, any event, occurrence, fact, condition or change, directly or indirectly, arising out
of or attributable to: (i) general economic or political conditions or conditions generally affecting the
capital, credit or financial markets; (ii) conditions generally affecting the industries or markets in which
Roman DBDR operates; (iii) acts of war (whether or not declared), armed hostilities or terrorism, or the
escalation or worsening thereof; (iv) acts of God, including any earthquakes, hurricanes, tornadoes, floods,
tsunami, pandemic (including COVID-19) or other natural disasters; (v) any action required or permitted by
the Merger Agreement, or any action taken (or not taken) with the written consent of or at the request of
CompoSecure; (vi) any changes in applicable laws or accounting rules or principles, including GAAP, or
any interpretations thereof; or (vii) the announcement or execution of the Merger Agreement, pendency or
completion of the transactions contemplated thereby; provided, however, that any effect resulting from a
matter described in any of the foregoing clauses (i) through (iv) or (vi) may be taken into account in
determining whether a Roman DBDR Material Adverse Effect has occurred or is reasonably likely to occur
to the extent such effect has a disproportionate adverse effect on Roman DBDR relative to other “SPACs”
operating in the industries in which Roman DBDR operates.

Covenants and Agreements

Each of CompoSecure and Roman DBDR have made certain covenants under the Merger Agreement to
take certain actions or refrain from taking certain actions from the date of the Merger Agreement until the
earlier of the termination of the Merger Agreement or the Closing.

CompoSecure Covenants

CompoSecure has agreed that from the date of the Merger Agreement until the earlier of the
termination of the Merger Agreement or the Closing, subject to certain exceptions, it will conduct its
business in all material respects in the ordinary course of business and in a manner consistent with past
practice. In addition to the foregoing general covenant, CompoSecure has agreed that until the earlier of the
termination of the Merger Agreement or the Closing, it will not:

» amend or change in any way its certificate of formation, operating agreement or other organizational
documents;

* (i) issue, sell, pledge, dispose, grant or encumber, or authorize the issuance, sale, pledge, disposal,
grant or encumbrance of, any equity interests of CompoSecure or any of its subsidiaries, or any
options, warrants, convertible securities or other rights of any kind to acquire any equity interests
(including, without limitation, any phantom interest), of CompoSecure or any of its subsidiaries; or
(ii) sell, assign, transfer, convey, lease or otherwise dispose of any material assets or properties of
CompoSecure or any of its subsidiaries, except for transactions in the ordinary course;

» form any subsidiary or acquire any equity interest or other interest in any other entity or enter into a
joint venture with any other entity; provided, however, that CompoSecure remains entitled to form
subsidiaries in connection with the development of the Arculus business line;

 other than the payment of tax distributions in accordance with Section 7.3 of the CompoSecure
Second Amended and Restated LLC Agreement, any distributions between CompoSecure and
CompoSecure, L.L.C., and certain agreed permitted distributions in connection with the amendment
of the Company Debt Financing, declare, set aside, make or pay any dividend or other distribution,
payable in cash, stock, property or otherwise, with respect to any of CompoSecure’s equity interests;

« reclassify, combine, split, recapitalize, subdivide or redeem, or purchase or acquire, directly or
indirectly, any of CompoSecure’s equity interests or otherwise amend any terms of CompoSecure’s
equity interests;

* incur, assume or guarantee of any Indebtedness by CompoSecure (other than ordinary course trade
payables or draw-downs under CompoSecure debt documents and the exchangeable notes);
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impose any material encumbrance upon CompoSecure’s properties, capital stock or assets, tangible
or intangible;

(i) except in the ordinary course and with respect to the employment agreements, grant any material
bonuses, whether monetary or otherwise, or material increase in any wages, salary, severance,
pension or other compensation or benefits in respect of its current or former employees, officers,
managers or consultants, except as required by applicable law, or (ii) materially change the terms of
employment of any employee or terminate any employees, in each case for which the aggregate costs
in connection with such changes or terminations for any one employee exceed $250,000;

other than with respect to the employment agreements, the Equity Incentive Plan, the Employee
Stock Purchase Plan, or as required by applicable law or in the ordinary course, adopt, amend,
modify or terminate any: (i) benefit plan or (ii) collective bargaining or other agreement with a
union;

(i) make any loan to, (ii) forgive any loan of, or (iii) except as contemplated by the Merger
Agreement, enter into any contract with, any of its holders or current or former members, managers,
officers and employees;

enter into a new line of business that is unrelated to the current business or abandon or discontinue
an existing line of business;

except for the Merger, adopt any plan of merger, consolidation, reorganization, liquidation or
dissolution or file a petition in bankruptcy under any provisions of federal or state bankruptcy law or
consent to the filing of any bankruptcy petition against it under any similar law;

acquire by merger or consolidate with, or purchase a substantial portion of the assets or stock of, or
by any other manner (including, without limitation, by merger, consolidation or acquisition of stock
or substantially all of the assets or any other business combination), any business or any Person or
any division thereof;

materially amend (other than reasonable and usual amendments in the ordinary course) the
accounting policies or procedures of CompoSecure, other than as required by GAAP;

amend any material contract in a manner that is material and adverse to CompoSecure;

waive, release, assign; settle, compromise or otherwise resolve any legal proceeding, other than
waivers, releases, assignments, settlements or compromises that are solely monetary in nature and do
not exceed $1,000,000 individually or $2,000,000 in the aggregate;

(i) make, change or rescind any material tax election, (ii) amend any material tax return, (iii) settle
any income or other material tax proceeding or consent to any extension or waiver of the limitation
period applicable to any material tax claim or assessment (it being understood that any tax
proceeding, or tax claim or assessment that are solely monetary in nature and relate to tax liabilities
of CompoSecure that do not exceed $1,000,000 shall not be considered material purposes of this
clause (iii)), (iv) surrender any right to claim a tax refund, (v) adopt (inconsistent with past practices)
or change any method of accounting with respect to taxes, or (vi) enter into any tax indemnity, tax
sharing or tax allocation agreement (excluding any agreement entered into in the ordinary course, the
primary purpose of which is not related to taxes);

acquire any ownership interest in any real property, other than in the ordinary course;

limit the right of CompoSecure to engage in any line of business or in any geographic area, to
develop, market or sell products or services, or to compete with any Person, in each case, except
where such limitation does not, and would not be reasonably likely to, individually or in the
aggregate, materially and adversely affect, or materially disrupt, the operation of the business, taken
as a whole, in the ordinary course;

grant to, or agree to grant to, any Person rights to any intellectual property that is material to
CompoSecure or sell, lease, license (other than licenses to intellectual property granted by
CompoSecure in the ordinary course), abandon or permit to lapse or become subject to a
encumbrance (other than a permitted encumbrance) or otherwise dispose of, any rights to any
intellectual property that is material to CompoSecure, except for the expiration of CompoSecure’s
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intellectual property registrations in accordance with the applicable statutory term (or in the case of
domain names, applicable registration period) or in the reasonable exercise of CompoSecure’s
business judgment as to the costs and benefits of maintaining the item;

disclose or agree to disclose to any Person (other than Roman DBDR or any of its representatives)
any material trade secret or any other material confidential or proprietary information, know-how or
process of CompoSecure other than in the ordinary course or pursuant to obligations to maintain the
confidentiality thereof;

make or commit to make capital expenditures outside of the ordinary course other than in an amount
not in excess of $2,000,000 or as contemplated by CompoSecure’s annual budget, in the aggregate;
or

enter into any contract or other binding commitment to do any of the foregoing.

Roman DBDR Covenants

Roman DBDR has agreed that from the date of the Merger Agreement until the earlier of the
termination of the Merger Agreement or the Closing, subject to certain exceptions, it will conduct its
business in all material respects in the ordinary course of business and in a manner consistent with past
practice. In addition to the foregoing general covenant, Roman DBDR has agreed that until the earlier of the
termination of the Merger Agreement or the Closing, it will not:

other than as contemplated in the Merger Agreement, amend or alter the certificate of incorporation,
bylaws or other organizational documents of Roman DBDR, or form any new subsidiary;

(i) make or declare any dividend or distribution to the Roman DBDR stockholders or make any other
distributions in respect of any of Roman DBDR’s or any of its subsidiary’s capital stock, except for
dividends by any of Roman DBDR’s wholly-owned subsidiaries, (ii) split, combine, reclassify or
otherwise amend any terms of any shares or series of Roman DBDR’s or any of its subsidiary’s
capital stock or (iii) purchase, repurchase, redeem or otherwise acquire any issued and outstanding
share capital, outstanding shares of capital stock, membership interests, warrants or other equity
interests of Roman DBDR or its subsidiaries, other than a redemption of shares of Roman DBDR
Class A Common Stock in connection with the Merger in accordance with the terms set forth in this
proxy statement;

incur or assume any indebtedness or guarantee any indebtedness of another Person, issue or sell any
debt securities or warrants or other rights to acquire any debt securities of Roman DBDR or any
subsidiary or guaranty any debt securities of another Person, other than any indebtedness or
guarantee incurred between Roman DBDR and any of its wholly-owned subsidiaries or between any
of such wholly-owned subsidiaries;

(i) issue any Roman DBDR securities or securities exercisable for or convertible into capital stock,
other than the issuance of the Class B Common Stock issuable pursuant to the Merger Agreement or
in connection with the Note Subscription Agreements, or (ii) grant any additional options, warrants
or stock appreciation rights with respect to Roman DBDR securities not outstanding on the date
hereof;

make any loans, advances or capital contributions to, or investments in, any other Person;

grant any material encumbrances on any property or assets (whether tangible or intangible) of
Roman DBDR;

except as required by changes in GAAP, change any of its methods of accounting in any manner;

purchase or otherwise acquire (whether by merger or otherwise), or lease or license, any property or
assets;

enter into any joint venture with a third party; or

enter into any agreement, or otherwise become obligated, to take any action prohibited under
Section 6.19 of the Merger Agreement.
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Mutual Covenants of CompoSecure and Roman DBDR

Except as provided in the Merger Agreement, all content of all public announcements regarding any
aspect of the Merger Agreement, the Merger and the other transactions contemplated thereby, shall
be mutually agreed upon in advance by CompoSecure and Roman DBDR;

cooperate and use their respective commercially reasonable efforts to give all notices to, and obtain
all consents from, all third parties described in the disclosure schedules of CompoSecure;

Roman DBDR and CompoSecure shall cooperate in good faith with respect to the preparation of a
Form 8-K announcing the Closing;

Roman DBDR and CompoSecure will use their reasonable best efforts to make all pre-merger
notification filings required under the HSR Act within 10 business days following the date of the
Merger Agreement. Roman DBDR and CompoSecure will cooperate with each other and shall
furnish to the other such necessary information and reasonable assistance as the other may
reasonably request in connection with its preparation of any filings under the HSR Act.

Covenants of Roman DBDR

At least 5 days prior to the Closing, Roman DBDR shall prepare a draft current report on Form 8-K
announcing the Closing;

as promptly as reasonably practicable after the date of the Merger Agreement, Roman DBDR, shall
prepare and file this proxy statement;

upon satisfaction or waiver of the conditions to closing and upon notice to the Trustee of the Trust
Account, Roman DBDR will cause the Trustee to (i) pay all amounts due and payable to redeeming
Roman DBDR Stockholders and (ii) pay all remaining amounts then available in the Trust Account
to Roman DBDR for immediate use;

Roman DBDR shall deliver to CompoSecure written resignations, effective as of the Merger
Effective Time, of the officers and directors of Roman DBDR;

Roman DBDR shall not amend, modify or replace any of, or waive any provision under the
Subscription Agreements, in a manner adverse to CompoSecure without CompoSecure’s prior
written consent; and

Roman DBDR shall take commercially reasonable efforts to cooperate with CompoSecure to obtain
the consent or an amendment as may be reasonably required pursuant to the terms of the Company
Debt Financing in connection with the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement,
including the issuance of the Exchangeable Notes.

Covenants of CompoSecure

CompoSecure shall use its reasonable best efforts to obtain and deliver to Roman DBDR a true and
correct copy of the written consent with the affirmative vote or consent of CompoSecure’s voting
members on or prior to the date that was five (5) business days following the execution of the Merger
Agreement; and

CompoSecure shall cause all notices to be timely provided to each participant under CompoSecure’s
Amended and Restated Equity Compensation Plan as required thereunder.

Conditions to Closing

General Conditions

Consummation of the Merger is conditioned upon, among other things:

no order, writ, judgment, injunction, decree, stipulation, determination or award, in each case,
entered by or with any governmental authority that is and has the effect of making the transactions
contemplated by the Merger Agreement, illegal, otherwise restraining or prohibiting the
consummation of such transactions;
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* Roman DBDR stockholder approval;

« the shares of Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock shall have been issued with the Common PIPE
Investment and be approved for listing on Nasdaq;

« the early termination or expiration of the waiting period under the HSR Act;
¢ the PIPE Investments shall have been consummated;
» Roman DBDR having at least $5,000,001 of net tangible assets remaining;

* the amount of Minimum Cash shall not be less than $210,000,000, consisting of $85.0 million from
the Trust Account after giving effect to redemptions, if any, plus $130.0 million of Note PIPE
Investment proceeds and $45.0 million of Common PIPE Investment proceeds minus $50.0 million
of transaction expenses of both Roman DBDR and CompoSecure; and

» each Ancillary Agreement shall have been executed.

Roman DBDR and Merger Sub Conditions

The obligations of Roman DBDR and Merger Sub to consummate the Merger are conditioned upon,
among other things:

* the accuracy of the representations and warranties of CompoSecure (subject to customary bring-
down standards);

* the covenants of CompoSecure and the Member Representative having been performed in all
material respects;

* no Material Adverse Effect shall have occurred;

* the delivery by CompoSecure of an officer’s certificate;

+ the closing net indebtedness shall be no more than $250,000,000;
* closing cash shall be no less than $5,000,000; and

* CompoSecure shall have obtained the necessary consents, authorizations or approvals.

CompoSecure Conditions

The obligations of CompoSecure to consummate the Merger are conditioned upon, among other things:

« the accuracy of the representations and warranties of Roman DBDR and Merger Sub (subject to
customary bring-down standards);

* the covenants of Roman DBDR and Merger Sub having been performed in all material respects;
* the delivery by Roman DBDR of an officer’s certificate;

* Roman DBDR shall be in compliance in all material respects with the reporting requirements under
the Exchange Act;

* Roman DBDR shall have delivered a duly executed signature page of Roman DBDR and Sponsor to
the Stockholders Agreement, and Roman DBDR shall have appointed to its board the directors
contemplated in such agreement; and

* no Material Adverse Effect shall have occurred.

Survival of Representations, Warranties and Covenants

The representations, warranties, agreements and covenants in the Merger Agreement terminate at the
Merger Effective Time, except for the covenants and agreements that by their explicit terms apply or are to
be performed in whole or in part after the Closing. Except in the case of Fraud, there are no remedies
available to the parties under the Merger Agreement with respect to breaches of the representations,
warranties,
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covenants or agreements of the parties to the Merger Agreement after the Closing, except for those
covenants and agreements explicitly to be performed in whole or in part after the Closing.

Termination

The Merger Agreement may be terminated at any time prior to the Closing Date:

(a) by mutual written consent of Roman DBDR and CompoSecure;

(b) by either Roman DBDR or the CompoSecure:

(©

(d)

(e)

(i) if the Closing has not occurred on or before December 31, 2021 (the “Outside Date”), subject
to certain exceptions; provided, that if, on the Outside Date, the approvals pursuant to the
HSR Act shall not have been satisfied and all other conditions to Closing shall have been
satisfied, CompoSecure or Roman DBDR shall have the right to extend the Outside Date to a
date that is not later than January 31, 2022;

(ii) if a Governmental Authority shall have enacted, issued, promulgated, enforced or entered any
Law which has become final and non-appealable, and which permanently restrains, enjoins or
otherwise prohibits the transactions contemplated hereby; or

(iii) if, Roman DBDR Stockholders’ Meeting has been held (including any adjournment or
postponement thereof), has concluded, Roman DBDR Stockholders have duly voted and the
Roman DBDR Stockholder Approval is not obtained;

by Roman DBDR, if neither it nor Merger Sub is in material breach of their obligations under the
Merger Agreement and if (i) at any time any of the representations and warranties of
CompoSecure become untrue or inaccurate such that the Closing conditions with respect to
CompoSecure’s representations and warranties could not be satisfied; or (ii) there has been a
breach on the part of CompoSecure of any of its covenants or agreements such that the Closing
conditions with respect to CompoSecure’s agreements and covenants could not be satisfied and,
such breach has not been cured;

by CompoSecure, if CompoSecure is not in material breach of its obligations under the Merger
Agreement and if (i) at any time any of the representations and warranties of Parent and Merger
Sub become untrue or inaccurate such that the Closing conditions with respect to Roman DBDR’s
representations and warranties could not be satisfied; or (ii) there has been a breach on the part of
Parent or Merger Sub of any of their covenants or agreements such that the Closing Conditions
with respect to the agreements and covenants of Roman DBDR could not be satisfied, and such
breach has not been cured; or

by Roman DBDR, if CompoSecure does not deliver, or cause to be delivered to Roman DBDR, the
affirmative vote or consent of CompoSecure’s voting members pursuant to a written consent on or
prior to the date that was five (5) business days following the execution of the Merger Agreement.

If the Merger Agreement is validly terminated, the Merger Agreement will become void and all further
obligations and liabilities of the parties under the Merger Agreement will terminate and become void and of
no force and effect, except for any confidentiality obligations, obligations with respect to public
announcements, in the case of termination subsequent to a willful material breach of the Merger Agreement,
or as otherwise set forth in the Merger Agreement.

Waiver; Amendments

At any time prior to the Closing Date, the parties may (i) extend the time for the performance of any of
the obligations under the Merger Agreement, (ii) waive any inaccuracies in the representations and
warranties, or (iii) waive compliance with any of the agreements or conditions contained in the Merger
Agreement. Any such extension or waiver must be set forth in a written instrument signed on behalf of such

party.
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The Merger Agreement may be amended, at any time prior to the Merger Effective Time, by an
instrument in writing signed on behalf of Roman DBDR, Merger Sub and CompoSecure; provided,
however, that after the Roman DBDR stockholder approval is obtained, there shall be no amendment or
waiver that, pursuant to applicable law, requires further approval of the Roman DBDR stockholders, without
the receipt of such further approvals.

Fees and Expenses

Regardless of whether the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement are consummated and
except as provided in the Merger Agreement, each party shall pay its own expenses with respect to the
Merger Agreement, the Ancillary Agreements and the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement;
provided, that if the Closing shall occur, Roman DBDR shall pay or cause to be paid all unpaid
CompoSecure transaction expenses and all Roman DBDR transaction expenses in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the Merger Agreement.

Governing Law

The Merger Agreement is governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of
Delaware, without giving effect to any choice of law or conflict of law provision or rule (whether of the
State of Delaware or any other jurisdiction) that would cause the application of the law of any jurisdiction
other than the State of Delaware. Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, the parties irrevocably and
unconditionally submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the United States District Court for the District of
Delaware or, if such court does not have jurisdiction, the Delaware state courts located in Wilmington,
Delaware, in any action arising out of or relating to the Merger Agreement.

Related Agreements

This section describes certain material terms of additional agreements entered into or to be entered into
pursuant to the Merger Agreement.

Registration Rights Agreement

At the Closing of the Business Combination, CompoSecure, Inc. (f/k/a Roman DBDR) will enter into
the Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement (the “Registration Rights Agreement”), with the
LLR Investors (as defined therein), the CompoSecure Investors (as defined therein), the Founder Investors
(as defined therein), and the Additional Investors (as defined therein) (the LLR Investors, the CompoSecure
Investors, the Founder Investors and the Additional Investors, the “Holders”).

Upon the consummation of the Business Combination, the Holders and their permitted transferees will
be entitled to certain registration rights described in the Registration Rights Agreement. Among other
things, pursuant to the Registration Rights Agreement, the LLR Investors and Founder Investors will each
be entitled to require one or more demand registrations, and all Holders will have certain “piggyback”
registration rights with respect to statements filed subsequent to the Business Combination.

Tax Receivable Agreement

At the Closing of the Business Combination, CompoSecure, Inc. (f/k/a Roman DBDR) will enter into
the Tax Receivable Agreement with CompoSecure and the TRA Parties (as defined therein). The Tax
Receivable Agreement will provide for the payment by CompoSecure, Inc. to certain CompoSecure Holders
of 90% of the benefits, if any, that CompoSecure, Inc. is deemed to realize (calculated using certain
assumptions) as a result of (i) CompoSecure, Inc.’s allocable share of existing tax basis in the assets of
CompoSecure and its subsidiaries acquired (A) in the Business Combination and (B) upon sales or
exchanges of CompoSecure Units pursuant to the Exchange Agreement after the Business Combination,

(ii) certain increases in tax basis that occur as a result of (A) the Business Combination and (B) sales or
exchanges of CompoSecure Units pursuant to the Exchange Agreement after the Business Combination, and
(iii) certain other tax benefits, including tax benefits attributable to payments under the Tax Receivable
Agreement. These tax attributes may increase (for tax purposes) CompoSecure, Inc.’s depreciation and
amortization
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deductions and, therefore, may reduce the amount of tax that CompoSecure, Inc. would otherwise be
required to pay in the future. CompoSecure, Inc. will retain the benefit of the remaining 10% of these cash
savings.

We expect that if there were an exchange of all of the outstanding CompoSecure Units (other than those
held by CompoSecure Inc.) immediately after the Business Combination, the estimated tax benefits to
CompoSecure Inc. subject to the Tax Receivable Agreement would be approximately $189.98 million, based
on certain assumptions, including but not limited to a $10.00 per share trading price of Class A Common
Stock, a 21% U.S. federal corporate income tax rate and estimated applicable state and local income tax
rates, no material change in U.S. federal income tax law and that CompoSecure Inc. will have sufficient
taxable income to utilize such estimated tax benefits. The foregoing amount is merely an estimate and the
actual tax benefits could differ materially. There may be a material negative effect on our liquidity if, as a
result of timing discrepancies or otherwise, the payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement exceed the
actual cash tax benefits that CompoSecure, Inc. realizes in respect of the tax attributes subject to the Tax
Receivable Agreement and/or distributions to CompoSecure, Inc. by CompoSecure are not sufficient to
permit CompoSecure, Inc. to make payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement after it has paid taxes.
Certain late payments under the Tax Receivable Agreement generally will accrue interest at an uncapped
rate equal to one year LIBOR (or its successor rate) plus 500 basis points. The payments under the Tax
Receivable Agreement are not conditioned upon continued ownership of us by the exchanging holders of
CompoSecure Units.

For a detailed description of the Tax Receivable Agreement, see “Certain Relationships and Related
Person Transactions-Tax Receivable Agreements.”

Stockholders Agreement

At the Closing of the Business Combination, CompoSecure, Inc. (f/k/a Roman DBDR), Sponsor and
certain CompoSecure Holders (Sponsor and the CompoSecure Holders, collectively, the “Voting Parties”)
will enter into a stockholders agreement (the “Stockholders Agreement”), which provides for certain voting
agreements of the Voting Parties, and, among other things, sets forth certain requirements regarding the
composition of the CompoSecure, Inc. Board following the Closing. Under the Stockholders Agreement, the
Voting Parties (1) agree to vote or cause to be voted all shares of Common Stock, whether at a regular or
special meeting of CompoSecure, Inc. stockholders, in such a manner as may be necessary to elect and/or
maintain the board of directors in accordance with the Stockholders Agreement; and (2) agree to the Lock-
up Period (as defined below).

Pursuant to the Stockholders Agreement, the members of the CompoSecure, Inc. Board appointed at the
Closing will be, subject to certain exceptions, comprised of up to seven members, divided into three classes,
comprised of:

(i) the Chief Executive Officer of the CompoSecure, Inc.;

(ii) one person designated by LLR Equity Partners IV, L.P. (“LLR”) or its affiliate, who shall serve as
the chair of the Board (the “LLR Designee”);

(iii) one person designated by the Sponsor or its affiliate (the “Sponsor Designee”);

(iv) one person designated by Michele D. Logan (“Logan” and the designee, the “Logan Designee”);
and

(v) three persons that each qualify as an “independent director” under the Exchange Act and the rules
of Nasdaq (the “Independent Directors”), as mutually agreed upon by Logan, LLR and the Sponsor
and designated by CompoSecure. Inc.’s nominating committee;

The initial CompoSecure, Inc. Board will be divided into three classes as follows:
(a) Class I: the Chief Executive Officer and one Independent Director;

(b) Class II: the Logan Designee and one Independent Director; and
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(c) Class III: the LLR Designee, one Independent director and the Sponsor Designee.

Sponsor, LLR, and Logan, and their respective affiliates, will continue to have the right to designate
directors for election or re-election to the CompoSecure, Inc. Board and agree on Independent Directors in
accordance with the Stockholders Agreement so long as each owns 2.5% or more of the outstanding shares
of Common Stock.

The Stockholders Agreement also provides that for 180 days following the execution of the
Stockholders Agreement (the “Lock-Up Period”), the Voting Parties agree not to effect any sale or
distribution of any shares of Common Stock held by any of them during the Lock-Up Period as described
therein.

The Stockholders Agreement shall terminate (i) on the date on which no person initially designated to
the CompoSecure, Inc. Board continues to serve on the CompoSecure, Inc. Board, and (ii) with respect to
any Voting Party, at such time as such Voting Party ceases to own or otherwise hold the power to direct the
vote of any Common Stock.

Voting Agreement

Concurrently with the execution of the Agreement and Plan of Merger, on April 19, 2021, the Sponsor
and certain CompoSecure Holders (the “Voting Agreement Voting Parties”) entered into a voting agreement
with Roman DBDR and CompoSecure (the “Voting Agreement”) which is included herewith as Annex H.
Under the Voting Agreement, the Voting Agreement Voting Parties agreed to vote or cause to be voted their
respective equity interests for and against certain matters, including to vote in favor of the Merger
Agreement and the transactions related thereto, among other matters and against any competing proposals or
any matters that would reasonably be expected to impede the timely consummation of the Merger, among
other matters.

The Voting Agreement prohibits the Voting Agreement Voting Parties from depositing any securities in
a voting trust, grant any proxies with respect to the securities or subject any of the securities to an
arrangement with respect to the voting of the securities or otherwise in respect of the securities other than in
accordance with the Voting Agreement or the Merger Agreement. The Voting Agreement Voting Parties
acknowledge and agree under the Voting Agreement that they shall not acquire any additional equity
securities of Roman DBDR after the date of the Voting Agreement if as a result of such acquisition, such
Voting Agreement Voting Party would beneficially own more than 9.9% of the equity securities of Roman
DBDR, after giving effect to the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement.
The Voting Agreement shall terminate upon the earliest to occur of (i) the Merger Effective Time and
(ii) the date on which the Merger Agreement is terminated in accordance with its terms.

Exchange Agreement

At the Closing of the Business Combination, Roman DBDR, CompoSecure and CompoSecure Holders
will enter into the Exchange Agreement. Pursuant to the Exchange Agreement, the CompoSecure Holders
and such other holders of Class B Units from time to time party thereto will be entitled to exchange Class B
Units, and surrender shares of Class B Common Stock of Roman DBDR for cancellation, in exchange for, at
the option of Roman DBDR, a number of shares of Class A Common Stock of Roman DBDR or the cash
equivalent of such shares.

Expense Cap and Waiver Agreement

Concurrently with the execution of the Agreement and Plan of Merger, on April 19, 2021, Roman
DBDR, CompoSecure and Sponsor entered into an expense cap and waiver agreement (the “Expense Cap
and Waiver Agreement”). Under the terms of the Expense Cap and Waiver Agreement, Sponsor agreed that
to the extent the Roman’s transaction expenses exceed $35 million, then Sponsor shall, on the Closing Date,
in its sole option, either (i) pay any such amount in excess of $35 million to Roman DBDR in cash, or
(ii) irrevocably forfeit and surrender to Roman DBDR such number of shares of Class A Common Stock
(valued at $10.00 per share) held by the Sponsor that would, in the aggregate, have a value equal to such
amount in excess of $35 million. In addition, the Sponsor agreed to waive, on behalf of all holders of
Class B Common Stock, any adjustment to the initial conversion ratio in Roman’s certificate of
incorporation
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resulting from the consummation of the Merger and the transactions contemplated by the Merger
Agreement. The Expense Cap and Waiver Agreement shall automatically terminate upon the earlier of
(i) the Merger Effective Time; (b) the termination of the Merger Agreement in accordance with its terms;
and (c) the mutual written agreement of CompoSecure and the Sponsor.

PIPE Investment

Common Subscription Agreements

Concurrently with the execution of the Merger Agreement, Roman DBDR entered into subscription
agreements for a private placement of Class A Common Stock (the “Common Subscription Agreements”)
with certain investors (the “Commeon PIPE Investors”). Pursuant to the terms of the Common Subscription
Agreements, Roman DBDR has agreed to issue and sell to the Common PIPE Investors and the Common
PIPE Investors have agreed to purchase on the Closing Date of the Business Combination an aggregate
amount of up to 4,500,000 shares of Class A Common Stock at a purchase price of $10.00 per share for
aggregate gross proceeds of $45,000,000 (the “Common Pipe Investment”). The Common PIPE Investment
is contingent upon, among other things, the Closing of the Business Combination. The shares of Class A
Common Stock to be issued pursuant to the Common Subscription Agreements have not been registered
under the Securities Act in reliance upon the exemption provided in Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act.
Roman DBDR will grant the Common PIPE Investors certain registration rights in connection with the
Common PIPE Investment.

The Common Subscription Agreements will terminate upon the earlier to occur of (i) the termination of
the Merger Agreement in accordance with its terms, (ii) the mutual written agreement of the parties thereto,
(iii) if any of the conditions to the Closing are not satisfied on or prior to the Closing and which make the
consummation of the Business Combination fail to occur, or (iv) January 31, 2022 if the Closing is not
consummated on or prior to such date. Each of the Common PIPE Investors waived any interest in, and any
claim it may have against, any monies held in the Trust Account as a result of its Common Subscription
Agreement.

The Class A Common Stock to be purchased by the Common PIPE Investors is the same class of stock
as was received by investors in the Roman DBDR IPO. However, the Common PIPE Investors will purchase
shares of Class A Common Stock at a purchase price of $10.00 per share, whereas investors in the Roman
DBDR IPO purchased units comprising one share of Class A Common Stock and one-half of one
redeemable warrant, for a purchase price of $10.00 per unit.

Note Subscription Agreements

In addition, concurrently with the execution of the Merger Agreement, Roman DBDR, CompoSecure
and CompoSecure, L.L.C. entered into subscription agreements (the “Note Subscription Agreements”) with
certain investors (the “Note PIPE Investors”) pursuant to which such investors, severally and not jointly,
have agreed to purchase on the Closing Date of the Business Combination, the Exchangeable Notes issued
by CompoSecure and guaranteed by CompoSecure, L.L.C. in an aggregate principal amount of up to
$130,000,000 that are exchangeable into shares of Class A Common Stock at a conversion price of $11.50
per share (the “Note Pipe Investment”).

Pursuant to the Note Subscription Agreements, CompoSecure has agreed to issue and sell to the Note
PIPE Investors, and the Note PIPE Investors have agreed to purchase, severally and not jointly, subject to
the terms and conditions of an indenture to be executed by Roman DBDR, CompoSecure, CompoSecure,
L.L.C. and the trustee under the indenture to be entered into at Closing, the Exchangeable Notes in an
aggregate principal amount of up to $130,000,000, which will bear interest at a rate of 7% per annum,
payable semi-annually in arrears. The Exchangeable Notes will mature in five years, and be convertible into
shares of Class A Common Stock at a conversion price of $11.50 per share, in accordance with the terms
thereof and subject to customary anti-dilution adjustments. CompoSecure may redeem the Exchangeable
Notes after the third anniversary of the Closing Date, if the trading price Class A Common Stock exceeds
130% of the conversion price for at least 20 trading days (whether or not consecutive) during any 30
consecutive trading day period. Upon conversion of the Exchangeable Senior Notes into shares of Class A
Common Stock, the holders of Class A Common Stock (at the time of such conversion) will be subject to
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dilution pursuant to the issuance thereof. The current shareholders of Roman DBDR that do not redeem
their shares in connection with the Business Combination, and continue to hold Class A Common Stock
through the conversion of the Exchangeable Senior Notes, will be subject to such dilution. The conversion
of the Note PIPE Investment principal amount, subject to customary anti-dilution adjustments in the future,
would result in basic shares outstanding increasing by a total of 11,304,348 shares. The percentage dilution
upon such conversion will depend on the number of shares of Class A Common Stock outstanding at the
time of conversion; however, if the capitalization of the Combined Entity remains the same as immediately
following Closing, the conversion of the Exchangeable Senior Notes would result in dilution of
approximately 13.7% to the holders of Class A Common Stock. Other than the potential dilutive impact on
ownership, non-redeeming shareholders will have a liquidation preference junior to the Exchangeable
Senior Notes until such time that they are converted to Class A Common Stock. The Note PIPE Investment
is contingent upon, among other things, the Closing of the Business Combination. Subject to the condition
that the Note PIPE Investment is funded in full on the Closing Date, the Exchangeable Senior Notes will be
guaranteed by CompoSecure, L.L.C. and each other direct or indirect current and future (i) material U.S.
domestic subsidiary of Roman DBDR and (ii) U.S. domestic subsidiary of Roman DBDR holding any
equity interests in any foreign subsidiary. The conversion of the Note PIPE Investment principal amount,
subject to customary anti-dilution adjustments in the future, would result in basic shares outstanding
increasing by a total of 11,304,348 shares. This equals 13.7% of basic shares anticipated to be outstanding
upon the Closing of the Business Combination. Other than the potential dilutive impact on ownership, non-
redeeming shareholders will have a liquidation preference junior to the Exchangeable Senior Notes until
such time that they are converted to Class A Common Stock.

The Exchangeable Notes to be issued pursuant to the Note Subscription Agreements have not been
registered under the Securities Act in reliance upon the exemption provided in Section 4(a)(2) of the
Securities Act. There will be customary resale registration rights with respect to the Class A Common Stock
issuable upon conversion of the Exchangeable Notes.

The Note Subscription Agreements will terminate upon the earlier to occur of (i) the termination of the
Merger Agreement in accordance with its terms, (ii) the mutual written agreement of the parties thereto,
(iii) if any of the conditions to the Closing are not satisfied on or prior to the Closing and which make the
consummation of the Business Combination fail to occur, or (iv) January 31, 2022 if the Closing is not
consummated on or prior to such date. Each of the Note PIPE Investors waived any interest in, and any
claim it may have against, any monies held in the Trust Account as a result of its Note Subscription
Agreement.

CompoSecure Second Amended and Restated LLC Agreement

At the Closing of the Business Combination, CompoSecure, Inc. (f/k/a Roman DBDR) and the other
CompoSecure Holders will enter into the CompoSecure Second Amended and Restated LLC Agreement.
The operations of CompoSecure, and the rights and obligations of the CompoSecure Holders, will be set
forth in the CompoSecure Second Amended and Restated LLC Agreement.

Management of CompoSecure

The business and affairs of the CompoSecure are managed, operated and controlled by or under the
direction of a Board of Managers, which shall initially be comprised of three members, elected by a vote of
the members of CompoSecure. Except for the limited matters expressly requiring the vote of the members
(or a certain subset of members), the Board of Managers has the exclusive right, power and authority in the
management of the business and affairs of the CompoSecure.

Capital Structure

The interests in CompoSecure are represented by two classes of units: Class A Units and Class B Units.
Subject to limited exceptions, Class A Units may only be issued to CompoSecure, Inc., and Class B Units
may only be issued to persons who were members of CompoSecure prior to Closing and their respective
“Permitted Transferees.” The Class A Units and Class B Units have identical rights and privileges except
that Class A Units are entitled to ten (10) votes per Class A Unit and the Class B Units are entitled to one
(1) vote per Class B Unit. Class B Units are convertible into Class A Units, on a one-for-one basis. At any
time shares of Class A Common Stock are issued or sold by CompoSecure, Inc., CompoSecure shall issue to
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CompoSecure, Inc. a number of Class A Units equal to the number of shares of Class A Common Stock
issued or sold, and the proceeds received, if any, by CompoSecure, Inc. shall be contributed to or used by
CompoSecure.

Allocations and Distributions

Profits and losses of the CompoSecure are allocated among the members of CompoSecure, subject to
certain exceptions (including with respect to tax), in accordance with their respective percentage interests.
CompoSecure may make distributions of “Distributable Cash” to the members, in proportion to their
respective percentage interests, at such times and in such amounts as the Board of Managers may determine
from time to time. CompoSecure may also make distributions in property or assets in kind at the discretion
of the Board of Managers, provided that any distribution in kind shall be made to the members in proportion
to their respective percentage interests.

Dissolution

For so long as the Exchange Agreement is in effect, CompoSecure shall not be dissolved. Following
such time, CompoSecure shall be dissolved only (i) upon the written consent of the Board of Managers and,
so long as any Class B Units are outstanding, the members holding a majority of the Class B Units, (ii) at
any time there are no members of the Company or (iii) upon the entry of a decree of judicial dissolution of
CompoSecure. Upon the dissolution of CompoSecure, the Board of Managers shall wind up CompoSecure’s
affairs. The proceeds of liquidation shall be distributed first to creditors of CompoSecure and second to the
members in accordance with their respective percentage interests.

The foregoing description of the CompoSecure Second Amended and Restated LLC Agreement is
qualified by reference to the complete text of the form of CompoSecure Second Amended and Restated LLC
Agreement, a copy of which is attached as Annex F to this proxy statement. All stockholders are encouraged
to read the CompoSecure Second Amended and Restated LLC Agreement in its entirety for a more complete
description of the terms and conditions thereof.

Background of the Business Combination

General

The terms of the Merger Agreement are the result of extensive, arm’s length, negotiations between
representatives of Roman DBDR and CompoSecure. The following is a brief description of the background
of these negotiations and the resulting Business Combination.

Roman DBDR is a blank check company incorporated as a Delaware corporation on August 21, 2020,
for the purpose of entering into a merger, share exchange, asset acquisition, stock purchase, recapitalization,
reorganization or other similar business combination, with one or more businesses or entities. The Business
Combination with CompoSecure is a result of an extensive search for a potential transaction capitalizing on
the network and investing and transaction experience of the Roman DBDR Board and management team to
identify, acquire, and operate a business in the technology, media and telecom industries.

The following chronology summarizes the key meetings and events that led to the signing of the
Merger Agreement. The following chronology does not purport to catalogue every conversation among
representatives of Roman DBDR, CompoSecure and other parties.

Prior to the consummation of its initial public offering (the “IPO”) on November 10, 2020, neither
Roman DBDR, nor anyone on its behalf, contacted any prospective target businesses or had any substantive
discussions, formal or otherwise, with respect to a transaction with Roman DBDR.

From the date of the consummation of the IPO, members of Roman DBDR’s management and Board
commenced a wide-spread search for potential target businesses in the technology, media and telecom
industries. Roman DBDR’s search was further focused on established companies with large and growing
revenues and diversified customer bases selling well-developed and/or mature technologies and services
into new market segments that have been created as part of the technology trends combining security, cloud
computing and cloud data storage, and are category leaders in those sectors. During the course of this search
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process, representatives of Roman DBDR contacted, and were contacted by, a number of individuals and
entities with respect to business combination opportunities. Roman DBDR considered, evaluated, conducted
preliminary due diligence on, and engaged in various levels of discussions with, over 100 potential
acquisition targets. Roman DBDR evaluated illustrative transaction structures to effect a potential business
combination with six of those potential acquisition targets that the Roman DBDR management team
believed were most likely to yield an attractive entry valuation and opportunity to create shareholder value
by leveraging the Roman DBDR management and board’s relevant industry operating experience and
networks, including CompoSecure. In connection with this evaluation, Roman DBDR entered into
customary non-disclosure agreements with each of the six companies, including CompoSecure, and
representatives of Roman DBDR had discussions regarding potential transaction structures with the
respective agents, members of management and/or the boards of directors of certain of these potential
acquisition targets, including CompoSecure.

Roman DBDR ultimately decided to pursue the Business Combination with CompoSecure because of
its position as a premier provider of payments technology and security solutions, deep customer
relationships with leading financial institutions, significant existing base of revenue and profitability,
readiness of its preparedness, including accounting practices, for listing as a public company, and
substantial additional addressable markets Roman DBDR identified across payments, security,
Cryptocurrency, and Digital Assets. Once Roman DBDR identified CompoSecure as a potential target, it
decided not to pursue alternative acquisition targets generally as the result of Roman DBDR’s determination
that the business of each of the other targets was not as attractive in comparison to CompoSecure due to a
combination of business prospects, strategy, management, structure of the transaction, likelihood of
execution, financial performance, public company readiness, valuation and other considerations.

Transaction Chronology

On December 9, 2020, Melissa Wasser, a representative of Financial Technology Partners ( “FT
Partners™), an investment bank representing CompoSecure in its consideration of strategic opportunities and
alternatives, spoke telephonically with Roman DBDR’s Co-Chief Executive Officer, Dixon Doll, Jr., and
introduced CompoSecure on a non-confidential basis as a potential business combination opportunity. They
also discussed the execution of a non-disclosure agreement and initial due diligence matters.

On December 10, 2020, Roman DBDR and CompoSecure entered into a customary non-disclosure
agreement, which did not include a standstill provision or a “don’t-ask-don’t-waive” provision.

On December 11, 2020, representatives of FT Partners spoke telephonically with Mr. Doll, Jr.,
Dr. Donald G. Basile, Roman DBDR’s Chairman and Co-Chief Executive Officer, and John C. Small,
Roman DBDR’s Chief Financial Officer. They further discussed CompoSecure’s business and the business
combination opportunity.

On December 12, 2020, FT Partners sent Roman DBDR preliminary materials describing
CompoSecure’s business, financial performance, and growth plans.

On December 15, 2020, representatives of Roman DBDR attended a management presentation
delivered by CompoSecure via videoconference. Mr. Doll, Jr., Dr. Basile and Mr. Small, attended for Roman
DBDR. Jon Wilk, Chief Executive Officer, Tim Fitzsimmons, Chief Financial Officer, and Lewis Rubovitz,
Vice President and Head of Strategy and Business Development, attended for CompoSecure. The parties
discussed CompoSecure’s confidential business overview and financial projections for CompoSecure’s
metal Payments Cards business.

On December 16, 2020, Mr. Doll, Jr. sent an e-mail to Mr. Wilk to express Roman DBDR’s interest in
further evaluating the business combination opportunity and outlined initial areas of anticipated due
diligence to be performed by Roman DBDR and its representatives.

On December 17, 2020, Roman DBDR, led by Mr. Doll, Jr., Dr. Basile and Mr. Small held a
teleconference with representatives of FT Partners to discuss Roman DBDR’s interest in pursuing a
potential business combination and discussed a potential business combination timeline.
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On December 18, 2020, Michael Cavanagh, a representative of B. Riley Securities, Inc. (“B. Riley”),
Roman DBDR’s IPO underwriter and capital markets advisor, spoke with Josh Sandberg, a representative of
FT Partners, to discuss CompoSecure’s business and next steps for a potential business combination.

On December 21, 2020, Arun Abraham, a member of the Roman DBDR Board, after consultation with
and approval by Roman DBDR’s management team, sent an e-mail to FT Partners to communicate an initial
valuation range for CompoSecure based on Roman DBDR’s professional judgement, due diligence and
evaluation of the proposed busines combination through that date. Also on this date, FT Partners sent
representatives of B. Riley CompoSecure’s confidential business overview and financial projections
previously shared with Roman DBDR. CompoSecure’s financial projections included CompoSecure
management projections for its established metal Payments Cards business, but did not specifically address
projections for CompoSecure’s emerging Arculus Platform, a significant future growth business identified
in the business overview and by CompoSecure management.

On December 22, 2020, Roman DBDR attended via videoconference a CompoSecure management
presentation and due diligence session to further evaluate and discuss CompoSecure’s existing business and
growth plans and to more deeply review CompoSecure’s plans for its Arculus Platform, including the
ongoing development of products for the Cryptocurrency and Digital Asset markets. Dr. Basile and Messrs.
Doll, Jr., Small, and Abraham attended for Roman DBDR. Messrs. Wilk, Fitzsimmons, and Rubovitz and
Adam Lowe, Chief Innovation Officer, attended for CompoSecure. Representatives from B. Riley and FT
Partners also attended. On this date, FT Partners also shared with Roman DBDR a confidential financial
model prepared by the CompoSecure management with assistance from FT Partners underlying
CompoSecure’s financial projections previously provided to Roman DBDR. Later that evening, a
representative of FT Partners spoke with Mr. Abraham to further discuss the possibility of a business
combination and answer certain business and financial questions relevant to Roman DBDR’s evaluation of
CompoSecure.

On January 3, 2021, Mr. Abraham sent an e-mail to representatives of FT Partners informing them that
Roman DBDR was aware of at least one other SPAC in advanced business combination discussions with
CompoSecure and Roman DBDR was prepared to move forward on a business combination proposal
valuing the combined companies at a $1.5 billion fully diluted post-transaction enterprise value.

On January 4, 2021, Dr. Basile, Mr. Doll, Jr. and Mr. Wilk spoke via videoconference regarding the
merits of a business combination between Roman DBDR and CompoSecure. Later that day, Mr. Abraham
and representatives of FT partners spoke telephonically to discuss the potential business combination
timeline and preview the terms of the business combination proposal that Roman DBDR was planning to
submit to CompoSecure. On January 5, 2021, Roman DBDR delivered to CompoSecure a draft letter of
intent (the “LOI”) and supplemental information about Roman DBDR and the proposed business
combination structure and timeline. The draft LOI proposed a fully-diluted post-transaction enterprise value
of the combined companies of $1.503 billion in addition to certain other transaction terms, including the
size of the proposed PIPE Investment and adoption of a tax receivable agreement, post-closing board
composition, minimum cash requirements and lock-up agreements.

Between January 6, 2021, and January 12, 2021, CompoSecure and Roman DBDR exchanged drafts of
the LOI with negotiations focused on terms relating to the structure of the earnout, transaction expenses,
governance, conditions of, and timeline to, signing of definitive documentation and closing of the business
combination, including the minimum cash provision.

On January 11, 2011, a videoconference was held between Dr. Basile, Mr. Doll, Jr., Mr. Wilk, and
Mitchell Hollin, a partner at LLR Partners, the pre-transaction majority owner of CompoSecure, to discuss
key terms in advance of Roman DBDR and CompoSecure seeking approval from their respective boards of
directors/managers to enter into the LOI. Representatives of FT Partners communicated to Mr. Abraham that
CompoSecure’s board of managers was expected to approve the LOI at CompoSecure’s board meeting
scheduled to be held on January 12, 2021.

Dr. Basile and Mr. Doll, Jr., as Co-CEOs, regularly briefed the Roman DBDR Board members during
the process leading up to the submission of the draft LOI and solicited the Board’s members’ input and
guidance. The Roman DBDR Board highlighted the audited financials and readiness of CompoSecure to go
public as key differentiators. In addition, the Roman DBDR management and Roman DBDR Board
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members viewed CompoSecure as a platform company that was highly profitable and would be an excellent
launching pad to enter the Cryptocurrency markets with existing predictable revenue. The Roman DBDR
Board asked Roman DBDR’s management about its ability to help build and scale CompoSecure into the
Cryptocurrency and Digital Assets markets and felt the Roman DBDR management team was uniquely
qualified to leverage its network to help launch the Arculus Platform. The Co-CEO’s laid out a strategy that
would allow CompoSecure to potentially use its ability to issue publicly traded securities as consideration to
make acquisitions and greatly expand the existing product offerings and several members of the Roman
DBDR Board offered to make introductions to key strategic global partners and end user customers that
could benefit the Arculus Platform.

In parallel with the negotiation of the LOI, Roman DBDR considered the selection of placement agents
for the PIPE Investment that would be required for the potential business combination and financial
advisors for the potential business combination, which resulted in the eventual engagement of J.P. Morgan
Securities LLC (“J.P. Morgan”), Barclays Capital Inc. (“Barclays”), and B. Riley Securities, Inc. as
placement agents with respect to the PIPE Investment (in such capacity, the “placement agents™), and J.P.
Morgan and The Klein Group, LLC (“M. Klein”) as financial advisors to Roman DBDR.

On January 12, 2021, following telephonic discussions by Dr. Basile and Mr. Doll, Jr. with the Roman
DBDR Board members, Roman DBDR signed the final form non-binding LOI and delivered it to FT
Partners. Separately, on the same date, CompoSecure’s board of managers approved the terms of the LOI,
and it was countersigned by Mr. Wilk. The executed LOI set forth a summary of the material terms of a
potential business combination between Roman DBDR and CompoSecure valuing the combined companies
at fully-diluted post-transaction enterprise and equity values of approximately $1.508 billion and
approximately $1.258 billion, respectively, and provided for, among other things, (i) a private placement of
Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock in a target amount of $250 million, (ii) the appointment of one
representative of the Sponsor to the board of directors of the post-closing company, (iii) a condition to the
Closing of the Business Combination providing that Roman DBDR’s cash at closing (after giving effect to
stockholder redemptions) would equal or exceed $200 million, (iv) a tax receivable agreement providing for
the post-Closing Combined Entity to make annual payments to the pre-Closing CompoSecure Holders in an
amount equal to 90% of savings, if any, in U.S. federal, state and local income tax that the post-Closing
Combined Entity actually realizes as a result of the utilization of certain tax attributes, and (iv) that the
entry into definitive agreements with respect to the proposed Business Combination would be subject to the
completion of due diligence. The execution of the LOI initiated a period of mutual exclusivity of 60 days
with automatic extension for an additional 30 days if both Roman DBDR and CompoSecure continued to
work in good faith to diligently pursue the Business Combination.

Separately, on January 12, 2021, subsequent to the execution of the LOI, a representative of FT
Partners and a representative of J.P. Morgan spoke telephonically to discuss the potential transaction
timeline and workstreams.

From the date of the execution of the LOI through the approval of the Merger Agreement by the Roman
DBDR Board, Roman DBDR’s management team reviewed telephonically and by video conference the
status of the transaction process with members of the Roman DBDR Board, including discussions with
CompoSecure and its representatives, the due diligence process and results and the status of the transaction
documents.

On January 13, 2021, Dr. Basile, Mr. Doll Jr. and Mr. Abraham further updated other Roman DBDR
Board members, via video conference, on the status of the transaction process, diligence to-date and next
steps. Separately on January 13, 2021, CompoSecure provided representatives of Roman DBDR with access
to a digital data room containing certain detailed financial and legal materials of CompoSecure. From
January 13, 2021, through April 19, 2021 (the date on which the Merger Agreement was signed), various
representatives of each of Roman DBDR, J.P. Morgan, Barclays, B. Riley, M. Klein, Goodwin Procter LLP
(“Goodwin”), Roman DBDR’s legal counsel, and Simpson Thacher & Bartlett LLP (“Simpson Thacher”),
legal counsel to the placement agents, conducted due diligence of CompoSecure through document review
and numerous telephonic conferences with representatives of CompoSecure, including Morgan, Lewis &
Bockius LLP (“Morgan Lewis”), CompoSecure’s legal counsel, covering various areas, including, but not
limited to, commercial operations, manufacturing, financial, accounting, tax, information technology,
employee benefits, executive compensation, litigation, regulatory compliance, intellectual property, data

88



TABLE OF CONTENTS

privacy, real estate, environmental, general corporate matters, insurance, tax, and Payments Industry and
Cryptocurrency and Digital Asset industry trends. The due diligence process also included:

« requests for follow-up data and information from CompoSecure, including CompoSecure
management responses to due diligence questions;

* meetings, videoconferences and calls with CompoSecure management team, including Messrs. Wilk,
Lowe, Fitzsimmons and Steven J. Feder, Esq., General Counsel of CompoSecure, among others,
regarding CompoSecure’s business and product offerings and product candidates, operations,
projections and technical diligence matters, as well as tax and legal matters, including those related
to intellectual property and information technology matters, regulatory matters, corporate matters
(including material contracts, capitalization and other customary corporate matters), labor and
employment matters, environmental matters, and privacy and data security matters;

 review of publicly available industry data;

« financial analysis, including review and analysis of certain financial information provided by
CompoSecure and Grant Thornton LLP, CompoSecure’s independent auditors; and

« review of the PIPE Investment investor presentation and supporting documentation in support of
such presentation provided in the digital data room.

On January 14, 2021, Roman DBDR, CompoSecure, and representatives of both parties’ financial
advisors, J.P. Morgan, B. Riley, M. Klein and FT Partners, met via teleconference to formally kick-off the
transaction process, including introductions of key people at each organization, discussion of the proposed
business combination timeline, including the timeline for the anticipated PIPE Investment offering,
allocation of key responsibilities among the parties and their advisors, discussion of the definitive
documentation and SEC and antitrust filings necessary to complete the proposed Business Combination and
discussion of investor relations activities expected during the transaction process.

On January 15, 2021 and January 19, 2021, representatives of CompoSecure including Messrs. Wilk
and Lowe conducted product demonstrations of the Arculus Cold Storage Wallet via videoconference for
representatives of Roman DBDR including Dr. Basile, Mr. Doll, Jr., and technology consultants engaged by
Roman DBDR to support their evaluation of CompoSecure’s Arculus Platform. These demonstrations
included discussions of the function and security features of the Arculus Cold Storage Wallet.

On January 20, 2021, representatives of CompoSecure led by Messrs. Wilk, Fitzsimmons, Rubovitz,
and Lowe conducted via videoconference a business due diligence session addressing CompoSecure’s
business strategy, commercial operations, performance, and growth plans. This videoconference was
attended by representatives of Roman DBDR, J.P. Morgan, B. Riley, M. Klein, Barclays, Simpson Thacher,
Morgan Lewis, Goodwin and FT Partners.

On January 20, 2021, Morgan Lewis delivered to Goodwin an initial draft of the Merger Agreement.
Between January 20, 2021 and April 19, 2021, representatives of Morgan Lewis and Goodwin periodically
had extensive discussions with respect to the Merger Agreement.

On January 21, 2021, representatives of CompoSecure, including Messrs. Wilk, Fitzsimmons,
Rubovitz, and Lowe held videoconference sessions for financial and legal due diligence. The due diligence
sessions were attended by representatives of Roman DBDR, Simpson Thacher, Goodwin, J.P. Morgan,
Barclays, M. Klein, B. Riley, FT Partners, and Morgan Lewis.

On January 25, 2021, Goodwin delivered to Morgan Lewis an initial draft of the Common Subscription
Agreement. Between January 25, 2021 and February 25, 2021, Goodwin, Morgan Lewis, and Simpson
Thacher finalized the form of Common Subscription Agreement. The form of Common Subscription
Agreement was made available to potential PIPE Investors through a digital data room on February 25,
2021.

On January 27, 2021, Morgan Lewis delivered to Goodwin an initial draft of the disclosure schedules
to the Merger Agreement. Between January 27, 2021 and April 19, 2021, the parties, with the advice of their
respective counsel and financial advisors, negotiated the disclosure schedules.
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On January 28, 2021, Morgan Lewis delivered to Goodwin initial drafts of five ancillary agreements
including the Parent Stockholders Agreement, Escrow Agreement and Second Amended and Restated
Certificate of Incorporation of Roman DBDR. Between January 28, 2021 and April 19, 2021, the parties,
with the advice of their respective counsel and financial advisors, negotiated the terms and conditions of
such ancillary agreements.

From January 28, 2021 through February 17, 2021, representatives from Roman DBDR, CompoSecure
and their various advisors convened numerous sessions via videoconference to evaluate CompoSecure’s
financial projections for its emerging Arculus Platform for Cryptocurrency and Digital Asset solutions,
including key assumptions underlying the projections.

Separately on January 28, 2021, representatives of M. Klein, J.P. Morgan, Barclays, B. Riley, FT
Partners and Mr. Feder attended an accounting due diligence session via videoconference with
representatives of Grant Thornton LLP, CompoSecure’s auditor.

On February 1, 2021, Morgan Lewis delivered to Goodwin initial drafts of five additional ancillary
agreements: Voting Agreement, Exchange Agreement, Parent Second A&R Bylaws, Registration Rights
Agreement, and Second A&R LLC Agreement of CompoSecure Holdings. Between February 1, 2021 and
April 19, 2021, the parties, with the advice of their respective counsel and financial advisors, negotiated the
terms and conditions of such ancillary agreements.

On February 2, 2021, representatives from Roman DBDR, including Dr. Basile, Mr. Doll, Jr.,
Mr. Small, and representatives from CompoSecure, including Mr. Wilk, Mr. Fitzsimmons and Mr. Lowe,
met via videoconference for a diligence session reviewing CompoSecure’s Arculus Platform for emerging
Cryptocurrency and Digital Asset solutions. Topics covered included the addressable market, technology,
go-to-market strategy, partners, and regulatory compliance. Also attending were representatives from J.P.
Morgan, Barclays, B. Riley, M. Klein, Goodwin, Simpson Thacher, Morgan Lewis, and FT Partners.

On February 3, 2021, Dr. Basile led a meeting via videoconference to present Roman DBDR’s outlook
on the market for Cryptocurrency and Digital Asset solutions and the opportunity envisioned for the
business combination of CompoSecure and Roman DBDR. Various representatives from Roman DBDR,
CompoSecure, and their advisors attended the session.

On February 4, 2021, representatives from J.P. Morgan, M. Klein, B. Riley, Barclays and FT Partners
met via videoconference to commence assisting Roman DBDR with the drafting of the PIPE Investment
marketing materials. CompoSecure and FT Partners arranged to upload the PIPE Investment marketing
materials in the digital dataroom for potential investors.

Separately, on February 4, 2021, Morgan Lewis shared with Goodwin a preliminary projection of future
payments associated with the contemplated tax receivable agreement. The projection was prepared by
representatives of KPMG US LLP (“KPMG”), CompoSecure’s tax advisor. A revised version of KPMG’s
tax receivable payment projections was shared with representatives of Roman DBDR on February 7, 2021.

On February 5, 2021, Morgan Lewis delivered to Goodwin the initial draft of the Tax Receivable
Agreement providing for the post-Closing Combined Entity to make annual payments to the pre-Closing
CompoSecure Holders in an amount equal to 90% of savings, if any, in U.S. federal, state and local income
tax that the post-Closing Combined Entity actually realizes as a result of the utilization of certain tax
attributes. Between February 5, 2021 and April 19, 2021, the parties, with the advice of their respective
counsel and tax and financial advisors, negotiated the terms and conditions of the Tax Receivable
Agreement.

On February 8, 2021, CompoSecure engaged ICR, LLC as its public relations and investor relations
advisors.

Separately, on February 8, 2021, Goodwin sent to Morgan Lewis a revised draft of the Merger
Agreement. Goodwin’s revisions addressed several areas of Merger Agreement terms including but not
limited to: (i) the mechanism for imputing Equity Merger Consideration, (ii) representations and warranties
of CompoSecure and the Merger Sub, (iii) employee matters and (iv) the conduct of CompoSecure’s
business between signing and Closing of the Business Combination.
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On February 17, 2021, a financial model due diligence meeting was held via videoconference between
Roman DBDR, its various advisors, and CompoSecure to evaluate CompoSecure’s consolidated financial
projections for both CompoSecure’s metal Payment Cards business and its Arculus Platform.

Separately, on February 17, 2021, in a videoconference led by representatives from J.P. Morgan,
Barclays, and B. Riley and attended by representatives from Roman DBDR, CompoSecure, and FT Partners,
the parties discussed the list of potential institutional investors who have a track record of long-term
investments and an interest in investing in similar transactions, and whom the PIPE Investment placement
agents proposed to contact in the PIPE Investment marketing process.

Also on February 17, 2021, a teleconference was held among representatives of Goodwin, intellectual
property counsel to CompoSecure, and Mr. Feder to review information related to CompoSecure’s registered
intellectual property.

From February 17, 2021 through February 19, 2021, Dr. Basile and Mr. Wilk convened for multiple
presentation rehearsals and recording sessions for an online roadshow presentation for the PIPE Investment
marketing process. Other representatives from Roman DBDR, CompoSecure, and their respective advisors
attended these rehearsals and recording sessions.

Beginning on February 18, 2021, J.P. Morgan, Barclays, and B. Riley contacted potential institutional
investors to arrange for investor meetings with Roman DBDR and CompoSecure.

On February 19, 2021, Morgan Lewis delivered to Goodwin a revised draft of the Merger Agreement.
Morgan Lewis’ revisions addressed several areas of Merger Agreement terms including but not limited to:
(i) the mechanism for calculating Cash Merger Consideration, (ii) the consideration to be paid upon the
achievement of the earnout and (iii) representations and warranties of CompoSecure, the Merger Sub and
Roman DBDR.

On February 22, 2021, a teleconference was held among representatives of Goodwin, Morgan Lewis
and Messrs. Lowe and Feder to discuss regulatory compliance of the Arculus Cold Storage Wallet.

From February 22, 2021, through mid-April 2021, Roman DBDR and CompoSecure, together with J.P.
Morgan, Barclays, and B. Riley, held over 75 investor meetings with potential institutional investors in the
PIPE Investment marketing process. Dr. Basile attended investor meetings on behalf of Roman DBDR and
one or more of Messrs. Wilk, Fitzsimmons, and Lowe attended various investor meetings on behalf of
CompoSecure. CompoSecure and FT Partners arranged to provide certain financial and commercial
materials of CompoSecure in the digital dataroom to prospective PIPE Investors who agreed to access such
materials. During this time period, representatives of Roman DBDR, CompoSecure and the PIPE
Investment placement agents spoke telephonically multiple times per week to discuss updates in the PIPE
Investment marketing process.

On March 1, 2021, responding to Morgan Lewis’s Merger Agreement revisions dated February 19,
2021, Goodwin delivered to Morgan Lewis a revised draft of the Merger Agreement. Goodwin’s revisions
addressed several areas of Merger Agreement terms including but not limited to: (i) representations and
warranties of CompoSecure and the Merger Sub, (ii) employee matters and (iii) the conduct of
CompoSecure’s business between signing and Closing of the Business Combination.

On March 4, 2021, Morgan Lewis delivered to Goodwin initial drafts of the Equity Incentive Plan and
various forms of grant agreements. Between March 4, 2021 and April 19, 2021, the parties, with the advice
of their respective counsel and financial advisors, negotiated the terms and conditions of the plan and such
agreements.

On March 9, 2021, Morgan Lewis delivered to Goodwin a revised draft of the Merger Agreement.
Morgan Lewis’ revisions addressed several areas of Merger Agreement terms including but not limited to:
(i) representations and warranties of CompoSecure and the Merger Sub and (ii) employee matters.

On March 12, 2021, in response to feedback from potential PIPE Investment investors and following
discussion among representatives of Roman DBDR, CompoSecure, the placement agents and certain
investors, representatives of Roman DBDR, CompoSecure, and the placement agents agreed to revise the
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transaction structure proposed to potential PIPE Investors to reflect an approximately $1.206 billion fully-
diluted post-transaction enterprise value and a target $150 million to $175 million of total PIPE Investment,
in each case, to optimize the opportunity to complete the contemplated PIPE Investment.

Also on March 12, 2021, Morgan Lewis delivered to Goodwin an initial draft of the Employee Stock
Purchase Plan. Between March 12, 2021 and April 19, 2021, the parties, with the advice of their respective
counsel and financial advisors, negotiated the terms and conditions of the plan.

From March 17, 2021 through April 6, 2021, multiple potential institutional investors submitted term
sheets proposing PIPE investments through securities featuring a combination of fixed income and equity-
linked returns. From April 6, 2021 to April 9, 2021, such term sheets for PIPE investments were reviewed
by Roman DBDR and CompoSecure.

On April 9, 2021, after a review of the various potential PIPE Investment financing alternatives,
representatives from Roman DBDR, CompoSecure, and their respective advisors selected a prospective
PIPE Investor proposal featuring a combination of senior exchangeable notes and Roman DBDR’s Class A
common stock as the preferred PIPE Investment financing structure on the basis of the proposal’s relatively
favorable cost of capital, attractiveness to potential PIPE Investors, and implicit indication of the
attractiveness of Roman DBDR’s Class A common stock to investors.

On April 13, 2021, King & Spalding LLP (“King & Spalding”), as counsel to a lead prospective PIPE
Investor, provided to Goodwin and Morgan Lewis comments to the Common Subscription Agreement and
delivered an initial draft of the Note Subscription Agreement. From April 13, 2021 through April 19, 2021,
representatives of King & Spalding, Morgan Lewis, Goodwin, Simpson Thacher, Roman DBDR,
CompoSecure, potential PIPE Investors and their legal counsel negotiated and finalized the Subscription
Agreements.

On April 15, 2021, CompoSecure held a special meeting of its board of managers to discuss the merits
and considerations of the proposed Business Combination. CompoSecure’s board of managers also reviewed
the proposed the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement, the ancillary agreements and the PIPE
Investment. Approval of the Business Combination by the CompoSecure board of managers was deferred
until resolution of certain terms of the Business Combination. The following date, on April 16, 2021, the
CompoSecure board of managers unanimously approved the Business Combination and CompoSecure’s
entry into the Merger Agreement and ancillary agreements, subject to final negotiations and modifications,
and the CompoSecure board of managers determined to recommend the approval of the Merger Agreement
to the equity holders of CompoSecure.

On April 16, 2021, Goodwin delivered to Morgan Lewis a revised draft of the Merger Agreement.
Goodwin’s revisions addressed several terms of the Merger Agreement including but not limited to: (i) the
terms of the expected PIPE Investment comprised of the Common Stock Investment and Convertible Note
Investment; (ii) adjusted equity value; (iii) employee and tax matters; and (iv) closing conditions.

On April 17, 2021 and April 18, 2021, Dr. Basile held telephonic conference calls with members of the
Roman DBDR Board to review the status of its discussions with CompoSecure concerning the Business
Combination, including the status of negotiations and material terms of the transaction documents, and
answer questions raised by individual board members concerning the Business Combination.

In the evening of April 18, 2021, Roman DBDR held a telephonic special meeting of the Roman DBDR
Board with representatives of Goodwin present to discuss the merits and considerations of the proposed
Business Combination, including the factors discussed in the “— Roman DBDR Board of Directors’
Reasons for the Business Combination” section of this proxy statement. At the meeting, Dr. Basile provided
an overview of the proposed Business Combination and CompoSecure as the proposed Business
Combination target (including the rationale for the combined business) and updated the Roman DBDR
Board regarding the final negotiations of the proposed terms of the Business Combination. A representative
of Goodwin provided the Roman DBDR Board an overview of the fiduciary duties of directors under
Delaware law in this context and on the terms of the final proposed Merger Agreement. The Roman DBDR
Board, with the assistance of Goodwin, discussed the proposed terms of the Business Combination,
including CompoSecure as the proposed Business Combination target, the terms and conditions of the
Merger Agreement, the PIPE Investment and the related agreements, including the Subscription Agreements
(copies of all of which were
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provided to all of the members of the Roman DBDR Board in advance of the meeting), the potential benefits
of, and risks relating to, the Business Combination and the reasons for entering into the Merger Agreement
and the proposed timeline for finalizing the Merger Agreement and related agreements, including the
Subscription Agreements, and announcing the Business Combination. Following discussion on these and
related matters, the Roman DBDR Board unanimously approved and determined that the Merger
Agreement, the related agreements and the transactions contemplated thereby, including the Merger, are
advisable to, and in the best interests of, Roman DBDR and its stockholders and recommended that its
stockholders approve the Merger Agreement, the related agreements and the transactions contemplated
thereby, including the Merger.

Separately, between April 16, 2021 and April 19, 2021, the parties finalized negotiations of the terms
and conditions of the Merger Agreement, the ancillary agreements and the Subscription Agreements.

On April 19, 2021, Roman DBDR, CompoSecure, Merger Sub and the Member Representative
executed the Merger Agreement. Concurrent with the execution of the Merger Agreement, Roman DBDR
and CompoSecure also entered into (i) the Voting Agreement (along with the Sponsor and certain
CompoSecure Holders), (ii) the Expense Cap and Waiver Agreement (along with the Sponsor and other
parties thereto), and (iii) the Subscription Agreements (with the PIPE Investors thereto).

Also, on April 19, 2021, and prior to the commencement of trading of Roman DBDR securities on the
Nasdaq, Roman DBDR and CompoSecure issued a joint press release publicly announcing the proposed
Business Combination, hosted a pre-recorded joint investor conference call available to Roman DBDR
stockholders and the general public. Roman DBDR filed a Current Report on Form 8-K on April 19, 2021
with the Merger Agreement, the Voting Agreement, the Expense Cap and Waiver Agreement, the Form of
Subscription Agreements for the PIPE Investment, the joint press release, an investor presentation providing
information on CompoSecure and used in connection with meetings with potential investors regarding
CompoSecure, the transcript of the joint conference call, and the forms of e-mail notices provided to
CompoSecure employees, customers, vendors and equity holders in connection with CompoSecure’s entry
into the Merger Agreement.

The parties have continued and expect to continue regular discussions regarding the timing to
consummate the Business Combination.

On May 25, Roman DBDR, CompoSecure, and Merger Sub entered into Amendment No. 1 to the
Agreement and Plan of Merger, which provided solely for a revised form of the CompoSecure Holdings,
L.L.C. Second Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement to be attached as Annex J to
the Merger Agreement.

Roman DBDR Board of Directors’ Reasons for the Business Combination; Recommendation of the Roman
DBDR Board

Roman DBDR was formed for the purpose of effecting a merger, capital stock exchange, asset
acquisition, stock purchase, reorganization or similar business combination with one or more businesses.
Roman DBDR sought to do this by utilizing the networks and industry experience of both its management
team and the Roman DBDR Board to identify, acquire and operate one or more businesses within or outside
of the United States.

The Roman DBDR Board met via teleconference on April 18, 2021 to, among other things, discuss a
potential business combination with CompoSecure and unanimously approved the Business Combination
and the Merger Agreement. Prior to reaching the decision to approve the Business Combination and the
Merger Agreement, the Roman DBDR Board consulted extensively with Roman DBDR management, as
well as with Roman DBDR’s legal and financial advisors, over a period of several months. See the section
titled “Proposal No. 1: The Business Combination — Background of the Business Combination” for
additional information regarding the approval of the Merger Agreement and related transactions.

In addition, the Roman DBDR Board reviewed various industry data, including, but not limited to,
CompoSecure’s existing business model, CompoSecure’s pipeline, and reviewed the results of Roman
DBDR management’s due diligence review of CompoSecure which took place over a four-month period
beginning in January of 2021 and continuing through the signing of the Merger Agreement on April 19,
2021. That due
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diligence included extensive meetings and calls with CompoSecure’s management team, calls with
CompoSecure’s largest equityholder, LLR Partners, calls with customers of CompoSecure, review of
CompoSecure’s material contracts, intellectual property matters, labor matters, operations, financial and
accounting due diligence, tax due diligence, engaging and consulting financial advisors including, but not
limited to, The Klein Group, LLC, J.P. Morgan Securities LLC, and B. Riley Securities Inc. and other legal
due diligence with assistance from its legal counsel before determining that the Business Combination was
in the best interest of Roman DBDR. The Roman DBDR Board also determined, after a thorough review of
other business combination opportunities reasonably available, that the Business Combination represents the
best potential business combination based upon the process utilized to evaluate and assess other potential
acquisition targets.

The Roman DBDR Board considered a wide variety of factors in connection with its evaluation of the
Business Combination. In light of the complexity of those factors, the Roman DBDR Board as a whole did
not consider it practicable to, nor did it attempt to, quantify or otherwise assign relative weights to the
specific factors it took into account in reaching its decision. Individual members of the Roman DBDR
Board may have given different weight to different factors. This explanation of Roman DBDR’s reasons for
the Roman DBDR Board’s approval of the Business Combination, and all other information presented in
this section, is forward-looking in nature and, therefore, should be read in light of the factors discussed
under the section titled “Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements.”

In particular, the Roman DBDR Board considered the following factors, although not weighted or in
any order of significance:

* Compelling Opportunity across markets including payments, Cryptocurrency and Digital Assets. The
Roman DBDR Board believes that CompoSecure has a deep pipeline that targets large markets with
unmet needs. The Roman DBDR Board further believes that CompoSecure has the ability, if it
executes its plan to build, hire, partner and potentially and selectively acquire assets, to achieve its
growth strategy, including with respect to the Cryptocurrency and Digital Assets markets, as well as
with respect to increasing its market penetration in the Payments Industry.

* Regulatory considerations. The Roman DBDR Board considered that regulatory schemes that could
apply to CompoSecure’s current and future products, including the Arculus Platform, have not been
fully explored or developed, and that in some cases, existing laws have been interpreted to apply to
Cryptocurrencies and other Digital Assets, while in other cases, jurisdictions have adopted laws,
regulations or directives that specifically affect Cryptocurrencies and other Digital Assets, and some
jurisdictions have not taken any regulatory stance on Cryptocurrencies and other Digital Assets
and/or have expressly declined to apply regulation to such assets. Accordingly, there may not be a
clear regulatory framework applicable to CompoSecure’s Arculus Cold Storage Wallet, or to Digital
Assets in general, and ongoing and future regulatory actions and laws may alter, perhaps to a
materially adverse extent, the markets for Cryptocurrencies and other Digital Assets, which could
materially adversely affect the ability of the Arculus Platform to continue to operate.

* Development of the Arculus Platform. The Roman DBDR Board considered CompoSecure’s
development of the Arculus Platform, a platform envisioned to solve a chronic industry need for
reliable, trusted and safe storage of Cryptocurrency and other Digital Assets. The Roman DBDR
Board also considered CompoSecure’s expectation that future Arculus-derived revenue streams will
diversify into a combination of hardware sales and recurring revenues from transaction processing
fees, subscription fees, and other sources. Future Arculus Ecosystem products may include solutions
for payments, Digital Assets, eGaming, and insurance that may be developed in-house, with industry
partners and/or through third-party App developers.

* CompoSecure’s Industry Leadership is Expected to Support the Launch of New Revenue Generating
Opportunities. The Roman DBDR Board considered that from 2010 through 2020, CompoSecure
produced and sold 92 million metal Payment Cards worldwide, and that CompoSecure is currently
entering the Cryptocurrency and Digital Asset market through the launch of Arculus Platform. The
Roman DBDR Board also considered the potential timing of CompoSecure’s anticipated launch of
the Arculus Platform in the third quarter of 2021.
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* Pioneering. The Roman DBDR Board believes that CompoSecure has proven and experienced

leadership, which has the potential to execute on CompoSecure’s approach to expanding its Payment
Card business and launching the Arculus Platform to provide security solutions for the
Cryptocurrency and Digital Assets markets.

Vast market opportunity for CompoSecure’s Payment Card solutions and security solutions, including the
three-factor-authentication solutions. The Roman DBDR Board believes that CompoSecure’s
Payment Card products have the potential to serve a greater percentage of the global addressable
market of Payment Cards, as CompoSecure’s total penetration is estimated to be 0.5% of the

4.2 billion Payment Cards issued in 2021. Further the market for three-factor authentication,
including Cryptocurrency and other Digital Assets, represents a billion dollar plus annual revenue
opportunity for CompoSecure. The Cryptocurrency and Digital Asset industries are experiencing
rapid user growth with significant needs for products such as those CompoSecure has demonstrated
with the Arculus Cold Storage Wallet.

Experienced management team. The Roman DBDR Board believes that CompoSecure has a proven
and experienced management team, led by Jonathan Wilk, that has effectively led CompoSecure and
will be a foundation to build the leadership team of the Combined Entity after the Business
Combination. The Roman DBDR Board believes that CompoSecure’s highly seasoned and
experienced management team has the strong combination of a proven track record and technology
expertise required to position the Combined Entity for success.

Excellent customer relationships. The Roman DBDR Board believes that CompoSecure has trusted,
highly embedded blue chip customer relationships with leading financial institutions for which
CompoSecure has produced nearly 100 million metal Payment Cards worldwide for more than 100
branded and co-branded card programs, including on the Visa®, Mastercard®, American Express®,
and China Union Pay® Payment Networks.

Backed by a top-tier payments investor. CompoSecure’s largest investor is an affiliate of LLR Partners,
which the Roman DBDR Board believes provides additional validation to Roman DBDR’s
assessment of the CompoSecure business opportunity.

Profitable Unit Economics. CompoSecure’s current Payments Card business operates with an ASP of
roughly $13.00 and a more than 40% adjusted EBIDTA margin. Roman DBDR Board believes the
Digital Asset and Cryptocurrency markets currently have ASP of approximately ninety dollars (based
on CompoSecure estimates derived from available market data) and that CompoSecure can produce
the Arculus Cold Storage Wallet at costs that are not materially different than its Payment Cards;
providing very compelling unit economics.

Manufacturing Capacity and Expertise. CompoSecure has the ability to produce tens of millions of
additional units within the footprint of its existing facilities, potentially allowing the company to
enter into meaningful supply relationships with additional customer and/or partners. Further,
CompoSecure’s manufacturing facilities receive regular audits for security and compliance from
major Payment Networks and CompoSecure maintains extensive policies, procedures and staff to
assure compliance with the PCI Security Standard, Payment Network and customer requirements.
Roman DBDR Board believes this level of capacity, security and compliance will allow
CompoSecure to win competitive situations in its new business opportunities in Digital Assets and
Cryptocurrencies from companies that value a proven trusted partner to major financial institutions
as their device supplier.

Terms of the Business Combination Agreement. The Roman DBDR Board reviewed and considered
the terms of the Merger Agreement and the other related agreements, including the parties’
conditions to their respective obligations to complete the transactions contemplated therein and their
ability to terminate the Merger Agreement. See “— The Merger Agreement” and “— Related
Agreements” for detailed discussions of the terms and conditions of these agreements.

Results of Due Diligence. The Roman DBDR Board considered the scope of the due diligence
investigation conducted by Roman DBDR and its outside advisors and evaluated the results thereof
and information available to it related to CompoSecure, including:
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« diligence regarding CompoSecure’s potential business opportunities in the Payments Industry;

» commercial diligence findings regarding the Cryptocurrency and Digital Asset markets and
CompoSecure’s potential business opportunities in those markets;

» extensive meetings and calls with CompoSecure’s management team regarding its business,
operations, projections and the proposed Business Combination;

* Goodwin’s findings relating to CompoSecure’s material intellectual property; and

» review of materials related to CompoSecure made available, including with respect to financial
statements, material contracts, key metrics and performance indicators, benefit plans,
intellectual property matters, labor matters, information technology, privacy, litigation
information, environmental matters, export control matters, regulatory matters and other legal
and business diligence matters.

Financial forecasts. The Roman DBDR Board considered the non-public, internal financial forecasts
regarding CompoSecure’s anticipated future operations for fiscal years 2021 through 2025 that were
prepared by CompoSecure’s management and provided to Roman DBDR in connection with the
Roman DBDR Board’s evaluation of the Business Combination (see the section titled “Proposal No.
1: The Business Combination — Certain Projected Financial Information.”), and the relative
valuation for the total consideration to be paid by Roman DBDR to CompoSecure equityholders in
the Business Combination compared to the valuations of similar and comparable FinTech and high-
tech industrial manufacturing companies traded in the public markets at such time.

The Roman DBDR Board also identified and considered the following factors and risks weighing
negatively against pursuing the Business Combination, although not weighted or in any order of
significance:

Regulatory risks. While CompoSecure has experience in complying with industry and customer
requirements, handling of data is subject to a variety of laws and regulations, and ongoing and future
regulatory actions may impact the ability of CompoSecure to develop and offer products involving
the use of Cryptocurrencies and other Digital Assets, including the Arculus Cold Storage Wallet, or
may impose additional costs, which may be material, on CompoSecure in connection with such
products, and such impact may be material and adverse.

Exclusivity. The fact that the Merger Agreement includes an exclusivity provision that prohibits
Roman DBDR from soliciting other business combination proposals, which restricts Roman DBDR’s
ability, so long as the Merger Agreement is in effect, to consider other potential business
combinations.

New Product Risks. The risks that CompoSecure will be launching new products for its Arculus
Platform, and that CompoSecure is still developing its Arculus Platform technologies.

Benefits Not Achieved. The risk that the potential benefits of the Business Combination may not be
fully achieved, or may not be achieved within the expected timeframe.

Liquidation of Roman DBDR. The risks and costs to Roman DBDR if the Business Combination is
not completed, including the risk of diverting management focus and resources to other businesses
combination opportunities, which could result in Roman DBDR being unable to effect a business
combination by May 10, 2022 and force Roman DBDR to liquidate.

Shareholder Vote. The risk that Roman DBDR’s shareholders may fail to provide the respective
votes necessary to effect the Business Combination.

Limitations of Review. The Roman DBDR Board considered that they were not obtaining an opinion
from any independent investment banking or valuation firm that the consideration to be received by
CompoSecure is fair to Roman DBDR or its shareholders from a financial point of view. While
Roman DBDR’s management performed an extensive due diligence review of CompoSecure, there
may have been relevant CompoSecure information not considered by Roman DBDR’s management.
Accordingly, the Roman DBDR Board considered that Roman DBDR may not have properly valued
CompoSecure.

Closing Conditions. The fact that completion of the Business Combination is conditioned on the
satisfaction of certain closing conditions that are not within Roman DBDR’s control.
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« Litigation. The Roman DBDR Board considered the possibility of litigation challenging the
Business Combination or that an adverse judgment granting permanent injunctive relief could enjoin
consummation of the Business Combination.

» Fees and expenses. The Roman DBDR Board considered the fees and expenses associated with
completing the Business Combination.

* Competition. The Roman DBDR Board considered the increased level of competition that
CompoSecure will face in the Cryptocurrency and Digital Assets market for its Arculus Platform
products, including its three-factor authentication security solution.

* Digital Payments. The Roman DBDR Board considered the adoption rate of digital payments
including services such as Apple Pay and Samsung Pay that reduce or eliminate the need for a
physical card.

* Scaling Risks. The Roman DBDR Board considered the size of CompoSecure’s non-manufacturing
staff and recognized that CompoSecure will need to make a substantial number of new hires and/or
enter into partnering relationships to capitalize on the opportunities for its Arculus Platform in the
Cryptocurrency and Digital Asset markets. CompoSecure may be unable to hire or to do so in a
timely manner as the competition for individuals and firms with expertise in the areas required are in
high demand.

e Otherrisks. Various other risks associated with the Business Combination, the business of Roman
DBDR and the business of CompoSecure described in the section titled “Risk Factors,” including
CompoSecure’s need to raise additional capital to finance its operations.

Based on its review of the forgoing considerations, the Roman DBDR Board concluded that the
potentially negative factors associated with the Business Combination were outweighed by the potential
benefits that it expects Roman DBDR shareholders to receive as a result of the Business Combination. The
Roman DBDR Board noted that there can be no assurance about future results, including results considered
or expected as disclosed in the foregoing reasons.

The preceding discussion of the information and factors considered by the Roman DBDR Board is not
intended to be exhaustive but includes the material factors considered by the Roman DBDR Board. In view
of the complexity and wide variety of factors considered by the Roman DBDR Board in connection with its
evaluation of the Business Combination, the Roman DBDR Board did not consider it practical to, nor did it
attempt to, quantify, rank or otherwise assign relative weights to the different factors that it considered in
reaching its decision. In addition, in considering the factors described above, individual members of the
Roman DBDR Board may have given different weight to different factors. The Roman DBDR Board
considered this information as a whole and overall considered the information and factors to be favorable to,
and in support of, its determinations and recommendations.

This explanation of the Roman DBDR Board’s reasons for its approval of the Business Combination,
and all other information presented in this section, is forward-looking in nature and, therefore, should be
read in light of the factors discussed under the section titled “Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking
Statements.”

Advisory Fees

In connection with the services provided by J.P. Morgan Securities LLC (“J.P. Morgan”) as Roman
DBDR’s financial advisor in connection with the Business Combination, Roman DBDR will pay J.P.
Morgan a fee of $5,000,000, which will be payable upon the Closing. In addition, Roman DBDR has agreed
to reimburse J.P. Morgan for certain of its reasonable costs and expenses in connection with its engagement
and to indemnify J.P. Morgan and related persons against various potential liabilities, including certain
liabilities that may arise in connection with J.P. Morgan’s engagement. In connection with the services
provided by The Klein Group, LLC (“M. Klein”) as Roman DBDR’s financial advisor in connection with the
Business Combination, Roman DBDR will pay M. Klein a fee of $5,000,000, which will also be payable
upon the Closing of the Business Combination. In addition, Roman DBDR has agreed to reimburse M. Klein
for certain of its reasonable costs and expenses in connection with its engagement and to indemnify
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M. Klein and related persons against various potential liabilities, including certain liabilities that may arise
in connection with M. Klein’s engagement.

Roman DBDR is party to an engagement letter by and among J.P. Morgan, Barclays Capital Inc.
(“Barclays”) and B. Riley Securities, Inc. (“B. Riley”) pursuant to which each of J.P. Morgan, Barclays and
B. Riley is acting as a private placement agent to Roman DBDR in connection with the PIPE Investment.
J.P. Morgan, Barclays and B. Riley will receive fees of $3,850,000, $2,800,000, and $350,000, respectively,
for serving as placement agents for the PIPE Investment, each payable upon the closing of the PIPE
Investment. In addition, Roman DBDR is required to reimburse each of J.P. Morgan, Barclays and B. Riley
for certain of their reasonable costs and expenses incurred in connection with the placement agent services.
Roman DBDR has also agreed to indemnify each of J.P. Morgan, Barclays and B. Riley as is customary with
respect to placement agent arrangements.

Certain Projected Financial Information

In connection with the Roman DBDR Board’s evaluation of the Business Combination, CompoSecure’s
management provided to Roman DBDR non-public, internal financial forecasts prepared by CompoSecure
management regarding CompoSecure’s anticipated future operations on a standalone basis for fiscal years
2021 through 2025, a summary of which is included in the table below and is more fully described,
including material assumptions and basis of assumptions used by CompoSecure's management, in
“Summary of the Proxy Statement — Projected Financial Information.” This information was a component
considered by the Roman DBDR Board in its overall evaluation of CompoSecure and the Business
Combination and to assist Roman DBDR’s Board and management in their decision-making processes in
determining to approve the Business Combination. Inclusion of summary information regarding the
financial forecasts in this proxy statement is not intended to influence your decision whether to vote for the
Proposals.

These unaudited forecasts were not prepared by CompoSecure’s management with a view toward
public disclosure, nor were they prepared with a view toward complying with published guidelines of the
SEC, the guidelines established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants for the
preparation and presentation of prospective financial information, or GAAP, but, in the view of
CompoSecure’s management, were prepared on a reasonable basis and based on assumptions
CompoSecure’s management believed to be reasonably achievable.

However, this information is not fact and should not be relied upon as being necessarily indicative of
future results, and readers of this proxy statement are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these
forecasts. These unaudited forecasts do not take into account any circumstances or events occurring after the
date they were prepared and should not be relied upon as being necessarily indicative of future results. The
Combined Entity will not refer back to these unaudited forecasts in future periodic reports filed under the
Exchange Act.

The unaudited forecasts included in this proxy statement has been prepared by, and are the
responsibility of, CompoSecure’s management. Grant Thornton LLP has not audited, reviewed, examined,
compiled nor applied agreed-upon procedures with respect to the accompanying unaudited forecasts and,
accordingly, Grant Thornton LLP does not express an opinion or any other form of assurance with respect
thereto. The Grant Thornton LLP report included in this document relates to CompoSecure’s previously
issued financial statements. It does not extend to these unaudited forecasts and should not be read to do so.

You are encouraged to review the financial statements of CompoSecure included in this proxy
statement, as well as the financial information in the sections titled “Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations of CompoSecure” and “Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed
Combined Financial Information” in this proxy statement, and to not place undue reliance on any single
financial measure.

While presented with numerical specificity, the unaudited forecasts set forth below reflect numerous
variables, estimates and assumptions made by CompoSecure’s management with respect to industry
performance, competition, general business, economic, market and financial conditions and matters specific
to CompoSecure’s business, all of which are inherently subjective and difficult to predict and many of
which are beyond CompoSecure’s control. The inclusion of the CompoSecure unaudited forecasts in this
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proxy statement should not be regarded as an indication that CompoSecure or its representatives currently
consider the CompoSecure unaudited forecasts to be a reliable prediction of actual future events, and undue
reliance should not be placed on the CompoSecure unaudited forecasts to make a decision regarding the
proposals presented in this proxy statement. You are encouraged to review the financial statements of
CompoSecure included in this proxy statement and to not place undue reliance on any single financial
measure.

The assumptions and estimates underlying the unaudited forecasts are inherently uncertain and are
subject to a wide variety of significant business, economic and competitive risks and uncertainties that
could cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in the unaudited forecasts, including,
among others, risks and uncertainties set forth under “Risk Factors” and “Cautionary Note Regarding
Forward-Looking Statements” contained elsewhere in this proxy statement. Accordingly, there can be no
assurance that the unaudited forecasts are indicative of the future performance of Roman DBDR or
CompoSecure or that actual results will not differ materially from those presented in the unaudited
forecasts. Inclusion of the unaudited forecasts in this proxy statement should not be regarded as a
representation by any person that the results contained in the unaudited forecasts will be achieved.

Considering that the Special Meeting will be held months after the date the unaudited forecasts set
forth below were prepared, as well as the uncertainties inherent in any forecasted information, stockholders
are cautioned not to place undue reliance on the set forth below. This information constitutes “forward-
looking statements” and actual results likely will differ from it and the differences may be material. See the
section titled “Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements.”

Neither Roman DBDR nor CompoSecure generally publishes its business plans and strategies or makes
external disclosures of its anticipated financial condition or results of operations. Roman DBDR and
CompoSecure have not updated, and do not intend to update or otherwise revise, the unaudited forecasts to
reflect circumstances existing since their preparation, including any changes in general economic or
industry conditions, or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events. Neither Roman DBDR,
CompoSecure nor any of their respective representatives or advisers makes any representation to any person
with regard to the ultimate performance of Roman DBDR, CompoSecure or the Combined Entity.

A summary of the unaudited forecasts regarding CompoSecure’s anticipated future operations for
fiscal years 2021 through 2025 provided to the Roman DBDR Board, as well as the PIPE Investors, is set
forth below (dollar amounts presented below are in millions).

2021? 20220@ 2023 2024 2025°
Low High Low High

Net Revenue

Payments Hardware $276 $276 $316 $316 $363 $418 $ 480
Arculus — 20 20 60 127 429 1,097
Total Net Revenue $276  $296 $336 $376 $490 $847 $1,577
Adj EBITDA $95 $110 $100 $110 $160 $271 $ 586

(1) Estimated amounts.

(2) Includes estimated start-up costs for the Arculus Platform of $25 million in 2021 and $50 million in
2022.

(3) CompoSecure expects to launch the Arculus Cold Storage Wallet product in the third quarter of 2021.
CompoSecure is providing a range of potential forecasted operating results for 2021 and 2022 based on
the possible variable timing of receiving orders for these new products.

Due to the forward-looking nature of the foregoing projections, specific quantifications of the charges
excluded from the non-GAAP financial measures, including with respect to depreciation, amortization,
interest and taxes, that would be required to reconcile the non-GAAP financial measures included in such
projections to GAAP measures are not available so it is not feasible to provide accurate forecasted non-
GAAP reconciliations without unreasonable effort. Consequently, no disclosure of estimated comparable
GAAP measures is included and no reconciliation of the forward-looking non-GAAP financial measures is
included.
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Non-GAAP financial measures should not be considered in isolation from, or as a substitute for,
financial information presented in compliance with GAAP, and may not be comparable to similarly titled
measures used by other companies.

A summary of the financial forecast information regarding projected revenue ranges for (1) metal
Payment Card solutions and (2) Arculus Crypto & Digital Assets Ecosystem for fiscal years 2021 through
2025 provided to the Roman DBDR Board, as well as the PIPE Investors, is set forth below (dollar amounts
presented below are in millions).

Financial Information by Segment

($ in Millions)
Metal Payment Card Solutions Arculus Crypto & Digital Assets Ecosystem

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Unit Sales 22 25 29 33 39 01 03 2 7 17
% growth 7%  15% @ 14%  15% = 15% — 255%  533% 229%  155%
Net Revenue $276 $316 $363 $418 $480 §100 $ 402 $127 $429 $1,097
% growth 6% 15% 15%  15%  15% — 300% 217% 238%  156%
Operating Expenses® $(156) $(178) $(205) $(237) $(272) $ 3) $(23) $(55) $(161) $ (368)
Marketing Expenses $(0.3) $(0.3) $(0.4) $(0.4) $(0.5 $(25) $(0) $(70) $(175) $ (350)
Adjusted EBITDA $120 $138 $158 $181 $207 $U8)® $33)®$ 2 § 93 § 379
% margin 43%  44%  44%  43%  43% nm nm 1%  22% 35%

(1) Assumes mid-point of Arculus ecosystem revenue range of $0 million — $20 million for fiscal year
2021.

(2) Assumes mid-point of Arculus ecosystem revenue range of $20 million — $60 million for fiscal year
2022.

(3) Operating Expenses excludes depreciation and amortization and marketing expense, but includes cost
of goods sold, personnel costs, commissions, professional fees, rent, non-income taxes, public company
costs, and other expenses.

(4) Assumes mid-point of Arculus ecosystem adjusted EBITDA range of $25 million — $10 million for
fiscal year 2021.

(5) Assumes mid-point of Arculus ecosystem adjusted EBITDA range of $38 million — $28 million for
fiscal year 2022.

The unaudited forecasts set forth above include financial measures that were not calculated in
accordance with GAAP, namely net revenue and adjusted EBITDA. Non-GAAP measures are not
necessarily calculated the same way by different companies and should not be considered a substitute for or
superior to GAAP results. CompoSecure is not able to reconcile its forward-looking non-GAAP measures
because CompoSecure cannot predict the timing and amounts of discrete items, which could significantly
impact GAAP results.

Satisfaction of 80% Test

The Roman DBDR Board concluded that that CompoSecure has a fair market value equal to at least
80% of the balance of the funds in the Trust Account (excluding the deferred underwriting commissions and
taxes payable on the interest earned on the Trust Account) at the time of the execution of the Merger
Agreement.

Interests of Roman’s Directors and Executive Officers in the Business Combination

When you consider the recommendation of the Board in favor of approval of the Business Combination
Proposal and the other proposals, you should keep in mind that the Sponsor and Roman DBDR’s directors
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and officers, have interests in such proposals that are different from, or in addition to, your interests as a
stockholder. These interests include, among other things:

» If we are unable to complete our initial business combination by May 10, 2022 (unless otherwise
extended with approval of Roman DBDR’s stockholders), we will: (i) cease all operations except for
the purpose of winding up, (ii) as promptly as reasonably possible but no more than ten business
days thereafter, redeem the Public Shares, at a per-share price, payable in cash, equal to the
aggregate amount then on deposit in the Trust Account, including interest earned on the funds held in
the Trust Account and not previously released to us to pay our taxes (less up to $100,000 of interest
to pay dissolution expenses), divided by the number of then outstanding Public Shares, which
redemption will completely extinguish public stockholders’ rights as stockholders (including the
right to receive further liquidating distributions, if any), and (iii) as promptly as reasonably possible
following such redemption, subject to the approval of our remaining stockholders and the Board,
liquidate and dissolve, subject in each case to our obligations under Delaware law to provide for
claims of creditors and the requirements of other applicable law.

* There will be no liquidating distributions from the Trust Account with respect to the Sponsor Shares
if we fail to complete a business combination within the required period. In August 2020, the
Sponsor purchased 7,906,250 Sponsor Shares prior to our initial public offering for an aggregate
purchase price of $25,000, or approximately $0.003 per share. In October 2020, the Sponsor returned
to us, at no cost, an aggregate of 1,581,250 Sponsor Shares which we cancelled, resulting in an
aggregate of 6,325,000 Sponsor Shares outstanding and held by the Sponsor. At the time of closing
our initial public offering, Sponsor forfeited another 536,000 Sponsor Shares, resulting in 5,789,000
Sponsor Shares, all held by the Sponsor. Upon the Closing, all Sponsor Shares will convert into
5,789,000 shares of Class A Common Stock.

« Simultaneously with the closing of its initial public offering, Roman DBDR consummated the sale of
10,375,000 Private Placement Warrants to the Sponsor, at a price of $1.00 per Private Placement
Warrant, generating gross proceeds of $10,375,000. On November 17, 2020, in connection with the
underwriters’ partial exercise of their over-allotment option, Roman DBDR consummated the sale of
an additional 462,400 Private Placement Warrants to the Sponsor, at $1.00 per Private Placement
Warrant, generating total gross proceeds of $462,400. If we do not consummate a business
combination transaction by May 10, 2022 (unless otherwise extended with approval of Roman’s
stockholders), then the proceeds from the sale of the Private Placement Warrants will be part of the
liquidating distribution to the public stockholders and the Private Placement Warrants held by the
Sponsor will be worthless.

» The Sponsor will lose its entire investment in us if we do not complete a business combination by
May 10, 2022 (unless otherwise extended with approval of Roman’s stockholders). Certain of them
may continue to serve as officers and/or directors of Roman DBDR after the Closing. As such, in the
future they may receive any cash fees, stock options or stock awards that the Board determines to
pay to its directors and/or officers.

» The Sponsor and officers and directors of Roman DBDR have agreed to waive their rights to
liquidating distributions from the Trust Account with respect to its Sponsor Shares if Roman DBDR
fails to complete a business combination by May 10, 2022 (unless otherwise extended with approval
of Roman’s stockholders).

* In order to protect the amounts held in the Trust Account, the Sponsor has agreed that it will be
liable to us if and to the extent any claims by a vendor for services rendered or products sold to us, or
a prospective target business with which we have entered into a transaction agreement, reduce the
amount of funds in the Trust Account. This liability will not apply with respect to any claims by a
third party who executed a waiver of any right, title, interest or claim of any kind in or to any monies
held in the Trust Account or to any claims under our indemnity of the underwriters of the offering
against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act.

Each of the officers and directors of Roman DBDR presently has fiduciary or contractual obligations to
other entities pursuant to which such officer or director is required to present a business combination
opportunity to such entity. Our current certificate of incorporation provides that we renounce our interest
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in any corporate opportunity offered to any director or officer unless such opportunity is expressly offered
to such person solely in his or her capacity as a director or officer of Roman DBDR and such opportunity is
one we are legally and contractually permitted to undertake and would otherwise be reasonable for us to
pursue, and to the extent the director or officer is permitted to refer that opportunity to us without violating
another legal obligation. We do not believe, however, that the fiduciary duties or contractual obligations of
our officers or directors, nor the waiver of the corporate opportunities doctrine in our certificate of
incorporation, materially impacted our search for an acquisition target nor will materially impact our ability
to complete the proposed transaction described herein. In fact, as described elsewhere in this proxy
statement, we were able to identify CompoSecure as an acquisition target shortly after our November 2020
initial public offering and signed a letter of intent with CompoSecure approximately two months after our
initial public offering.

Sponsor will own securities of the Combined Entity upon the Closing of the Business Combination
consisting of 5,789,000 shares of Class A Common Stock and 10,837,400 Warrants with an exercise price of
$11.50 that expire five years from the Closing Date. Sponsor paid a total of $10,862,400 for these securities.
Therefore, assuming the Warrants are never exercised or sold, Sponsor has a cost basis of $1.88 in the
shares of the Combined Entity. The equity consideration in the Business Combination will be valued at
$10.00 per share, and the PIPE Investors will be purchasing shares of Class A Common Stock at a purchase
price of $10.00 per share. Sponsor may earn a positive rate of return on its investment, even if other
stockholders experience a negative rate of return in the Combined Entity. For example, if the price of the
Combined Entity’s Class A Common Stock were to fall to $8.00 per share, the value of the investment by
investors in the Roman DBDR IPO and PIPE Investors that purchased shares in the Common PIPE
Investment would decrease by 20%, while Sponsor’s value on its investment would have increased by
approximately 425%.

» Following the Closing, the Sponsor would be entitled to the repayment of any working capital loan
and advances that have been made to Roman DBDR and remain outstanding. As of the date of this
proxy statement, the Sponsor has not made any advances to us for working capital expenses. If we do
not complete an initial business combination within the required period, we may use a portion of our
working capital held outside the Trust Account to repay the working capital loans, but no proceeds
held in the Trust Account would be used to repay the working capital loans.

» Following the Closing, we will continue to indemnify our existing directors and officers and will
maintain a directors’ and officers’ liability insurance policy.

» Upon the Closing, subject to the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement, the Sponsor, our
officers and directors and their respective affiliates may be entitled to reimbursement for any
reasonable out-of-pocket expenses related to identifying, investigating and consummating an initial
business combination, and repayment of any other loans, if any, and on such terms as to be
determined by Roman from time to time, made by the Sponsor or certain of our officers and directors
to finance transaction costs in connection with an intended initial business combination.

Total Shares to be Issued in the Business Combination

It is anticipated that, upon completion of the Business Combination, the Company’s public stockholders
(other than investors in the PIPE Investment) will retain an ownership interest of approximately 28.0% in
the Combined Entity, the PIPE Investors will own approximately 5.4% of the outstanding Common Stock of
the Combined Entity (such that public stockholders, including PIPE Investors, will own approximately
33.4% of the Combined Entity), the Sponsor will retain an ownership interest of approximately 7.1% in the
Combined Entity and the CompoSecure Holders will own approximately 59.5% of the outstanding Common
Stock of the Combined Entity. This ownership interest assumes that no shares are elected to be redeemed.
These ownership percentages take into account the assumed cashless net exercise of options to purchase
Roman DBDR Common Stock which will be held by interest holders of CompoSecure immediately
following the Closing.

Sources and Uses for the Business Combination

The following table summarizes the sources and uses for funding the Business Combination (all
amounts in millions).
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(i) No redemptions

Sources of Funds

Uses

Cash available in Trust Account
Common PIPE Investment proceeds

Note PIPE Investment proceeds

Net Debt under CompoSecure Rollover
Credit Agreement

CompoSecure Rollover Equity

Sponsor Shares

Total Sources®

(in millions)

$ 236

$ 45

$ 130

250
492
58
1,211

@ &

@&

Cash Merger Consideration

CompoSecure Reimbursable Transaction
Expenses

Roman DBDR Estimated Transaction
Expenses(z)

Net Debt under CompoSecure Rollover
Credit Agreement

CompoSecure Rollover Equity

Sponsor Shares

Total Uses®®

$ 361
$ 15
$ 35

250
492
58
1,211

@ &hH A

&

(1) Cash available in Trust Account as of September 30, 2021 (a) assumes no shares of Class A Common
Stock are redeemed in connection with the Business Combination and (b) excludes estimated interest

earned by the Closing Date.

(2) The level of redemption also impacts the effective underwriting fee incurred in connection with the
Roman DBDR IPO. In a no redemption scenario, based on the approximately $236.3 million in the
Trust Account as of September 30, 2021, Roman DBDR’s $8,104,600 in deferred underwriting fees
represents an effective deferred underwriting fee of approximately 3.4% as a percentage of cash in the
Trust Account. In a maximum redemption scenario, the effective deferred underwriting fee would be
approximately 9.5% as a percentage of the cash in the TrustAccount.

(3) Totals may differ due to rounding.

(4) Includes $150,000 Member Representative Holdback Amount.

(i) Maximum redemptions

Sources of Funds

Uses

Cash available in Trust Account™
Common PIPE Investment proceeds

Note PIPE Investment proceeds

Net Debt under CompoSecure Rollover
Credit Agreement

CompoSecure Rollover Equity

Sponsor Shares

Total Sources®

(in millions)

$ 85

$ 45

&~

130

250
643

@ A o

&~

1,211

Cash Merger Consideration

CompoSecure Reimbursable Transaction
Expenses

Roman DBDR Estimated Transaction
Expenses(z)

Net Debt under CompoSecure Rollover
Credit Agreement

CompoSecure Rollover Equity
Sponsor Shares
Total Uses¥®

$ 210
$ 15
$ 35

$ 250
$ 643
$ 58

$1,211

(1) Cash available in Trust Account as of September 30, 2021 (a) assumes the maximum number of shares
of Class A Common Stock are redeemed in connection with the Business Combination and (b) excludes
estimated interest earned by the Closing Date.

(2) The level of redemption also impacts the effective underwriting fee incurred in connection with the
Roman DBDR IPO. In a no redemption scenario, based on the approximately $236.3 million in the
Trust Account as of September 30, 2021, Roman DBDR’s $8,104,600 in deferred underwriting fees
represents an effective deferred underwriting fee of approximately 3.4% as a percentage of cash in the
Trust Account. In a maximum redemption scenario, the effective deferred underwriting fee would be
approximately 9.5% as a percentage of the cash in the Trust Account.
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(3) Assumes a nominal share price of $10.00.
(4) Totals may differ due to rounding.
(5) Includes $150,000 Member Representative Holdback Amount.

Certificate of Incorporation; Bylaws

Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, upon the closing of the Business Combination, Roman’s bylaws
will be amended and restated promptly to:

« reflect necessary changes and to be consistent with the Proposed Charter (for a full description of the
proposed amendments to the Current Charter see “Proposal No. 3 — The Governing Documents
Proposal”); and

« make certain other changes that the board of directors deems appropriate for a public operating
company.

Name; Headquarters

The name of the Combined Entity will be CompoSecure, Inc. and its headquarters will be located at
Somerset, New Jersey.

Certain Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations of the Exercise of Redemption Rights

This section describes certain material U.S. federal income tax considerations to holders of Roman
DBDR Class A Common Stock of electing to have their Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock redeemed
pursuant to the Current Charter. This discussion applies only to holders with respect to shares of Roman
DBDR Class A Common Stock, as the case may be, that hold such shares as “capital assets” within the
meaning of Section 1221 of the Code (generally, property held for investment).

The following discussion does not address the effects of other U.S. federal tax laws, such as estate and
gift tax laws, and any applicable state, local or non-U.S. tax laws are not discussed. This discussion is based
on the Code, Treasury regulations promulgated thereunder, judicial decisions, and published rulings and
administrative pronouncements of the U.S. Internal Revenue Service (the “IRS”), in each case in effect as of
the date hereof. These authorities may change or be subject to differing interpretations. Any such change or
differing interpretation may be applied retroactively in a manner that could adversely affect the tax
consequences discussed below. We have not sought and will not seek any rulings from the IRS regarding the
matters discussed below. There can be no assurance the IRS or a court will not take a contrary position to
that discussed below regarding the tax consequences discussed below.

This discussion does not address all U.S. federal income tax consequences relevant to a holder’s
particular circumstances, including the alternative minimum tax or the impact of the Medicare contribution
tax on net investment income. In addition, it does not address consequences relevant to holders subject to
special rules, including, without limitation:

 banks, insurance companies, and certain other financial institutions;
 regulated investment companies and real estate investment trusts;

« brokers, dealers or traders in securities;

« traders in securities that elect to mark to market;

* tax-exempt organizations or governmental organizations;

» U.S. expatriates and former citizens or long-term residents of the United States;

 persons subject to special tax accounting rules as a result of any item of gross income with respect to
Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock, as the case may be, being taken into account in an applicable
financial statement;

 persons that actually or constructively own 10% or more of our voting stock by vote or value;

104



TABLE OF CONTENTS

» S corporations, partnerships or other entities or arrangements treated as partnerships or other flow-
through entities for U.S. federal income tax purposes (and investors therein);

« U.S. Holders having a functional currency other than the U.S. dollar;

 persons who hold or received Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock, as the case may be, pursuant to
the exercise of any employee stock option or otherwise as compensation;

* tax-qualified retirement plans; and

» “qualified foreign pension funds” as defined in Section 897(1)(2) of the Code and entities all of the
interests of which are held by qualified foreign pension funds.

For purposes of this discussion, a “U.S. Holder” is any beneficial owner of shares of Roman DBDR
Class A Common Stock that is for U.S. federal income tax purposes:

« an individual who is a citizen or resident of the United States;
* a domestic corporation;
* an estate, the income of which is subject to U.S. federal income tax regardless of its source; or

« atrust that (1) is subject to the primary supervision of a U.S. court and the control of one or more
“United States persons” (within the meaning of Section 7701(a)(30) of the Code), or (2) has a valid
election in effect to be treated as a United States person for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

For purposes of this discussion, a “Non-U.S. Holder” is any beneficial owner of shares of Roman
DBDR Class A Common Stock that is for U.S. federal income tax purposes:

* anon-resident alien individual,

« a foreign corporation or any other foreign organization taxable as a corporation for U.S. federal
income tax purposes; or

« a foreign estate or trust, the income of which is not subject to U.S. federal income tax on a net
income basis.

If an entity or arrangement treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes holds Roman
DBDR Class A Common Stock, the tax treatment of an owner of such entity will depend on the status of the
owners, the activities of the entity and certain determinations made at the owner level. Accordingly, entities
and arrangements treated as partnerships for U.S. federal income tax purposes and the partners in such
partnerships should consult their tax advisors regarding the U.S. federal income tax consequences to them
of the redemption of their Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock, as applicable.

HOLDERS OF ROMAN DBDR CLASS A COMMON STOCK SHOULD CONSULT THEIR TAX
ADVISORS WITH RESPECT TO THE APPLICATION OF THE U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX LAWS TO
THEIR PARTICULAR SITUATIONS AS WELL AS ANY TAX CONSEQUENCES ARISING UNDER THE
U.S. FEDERAL ESTATE OR GIFT TAX LAWS OR UNDER THE LAWS OF ANY STATE, LOCAL OR
NON-U.S. TAXING JURISDICTION OR UNDER ANY APPLICABLE INCOME TAX TREATY.

Treatment of Redemption of Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock

In the event that a holder’s Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock is redeemed pursuant to the
redemption provisions described in this proxy statement under the section entitled “—Treatment of
Redemption of Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock” the treatment of the transaction for U.S. federal
income tax purposes will depend on whether the redemption qualifies as an exchange of Roman DBDR
Class A Common Stock under Section 302 of the Code with respect to such holder or whether the
redemption is treated as a distribution to which section 301 of the Code applies. Whether a redemption
qualifies for exchange treatment will depend largely on the total number of shares of our stock treated as
held by the holder (including any stock constructively owned by the holder as a result of owning warrants)
relative to all of our shares outstanding both before and after the redemption. The redemption of Roman
DBDR Class A Common Stock generally will be treated as an exchange of the Roman DBDR Class A
Common
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Stock for cash (rather than a corporate distribution) if the redemption or purchase by us (i) is “substantially
disproportionate” with respect to the holder, (ii) results in a “complete termination” of the holder’s interest
in us or (iii) is “not essentially equivalent to a dividend” with respect to the holder. These tests are explained
more fully below.

In determining whether any of the foregoing tests are satisfied, a holder takes into account not only
stock actually owned by the holder, but also shares of our stock that are constructively owned by it. A
holder may constructively own, in addition to stock owned directly, stock owned by certain related
individuals and entities in which the holder has an interest or that have an interest in such holder, as well as
any stock the holder has a right to acquire by exercise of an option, which would generally include Roman
DBDR Class A Common Stock that could be acquired pursuant to the exercise of the warrants.

In order to meet the substantially disproportionate test, the percentage of our outstanding voting stock
actually and constructively owned by the holder immediately following the redemption of Roman DBDR
Class A Common Stock must, among other requirements, be less than 80% of the percentage of our
outstanding voting stock actually and constructively owned by the holder immediately before the
redemption.

There will be a complete termination of a holder’s interest if either (i) all of the shares of Roman
DBDR Class A Common Stock actually and constructively owned by the holder are redeemed or (ii) in the
case of an individual holder, all of the shares of Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock actually owned by
the holder are redeemed and the holder is eligible to waive, and effectively waives in accordance with
specific rules, the attribution of stock owned by certain family members and the holder does not
constructively own any other stock.

The redemption of Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock will not be essentially equivalent to a
dividend if a holder’s conversion results in a “meaningful reduction” of the holder’s proportionate interest
in Roman DBDR. Whether the redemption will result in a meaningful reduction in a holder’s proportionate
interest in us will depend on the particular facts and circumstances. However, the IRS has indicated in a
published ruling that even a small reduction in the proportionate interest of a small minority stockholder in
a publicly held corporation who exercises no control over corporate affairs may constitute such a
“meaningful reduction.” A holder should consult with its own tax advisors as to the tax consequences of a
redemption or purchase by us.

If none of the foregoing tests is satisfied, then the redemption us will be treated as a corporate
distribution and the tax consequences to a U.S. Holder will be as described below under “— U.S. Holders
— Taxation of Redemption Treated as a Distribution” and the tax consequences to a Non-U.S. Holder will
be as described below under “— U.S. Holders — Taxation of Redemption Treated as a Distribution.” After
the application of those rules, any remaining tax basis of a holder in the redeemed Roman DBDR Class A
Common Stock will be added to the holder’s adjusted tax basis in its remaining stock, or, if it has none, to
the holder’s adjusted tax basis in its warrants or possibly in other stock constructively owned by it.

U.S. Holders

Taxation of Redemption Treated as an Exchange of Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock. If the
redemption qualifies as an exchange of Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock as described above under “—
Treatment of Redemption of Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock,” a U.S. Holder generally will recognize
capital gain or loss in an amount equal to the difference between the amount realized and the U.S. Holder’s
adjusted tax basis in its Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock. Any such capital gain or loss generally will
be long-term capital gain or loss if the U.S. Holder’s holding period for the Roman DBDR Class A Common
Stock so disposed of exceeds one year. It is unclear, however, whether the redemption rights with respect to
Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock may suspend the running of the applicable holding period for this
purpose. Long-term capital gains recognized by non-corporate U.S. Holders will be eligible to be taxed at
reduced rates. The deductibility of capital losses is subject to limitations.

Generally, the amount of gain or loss recognized by a U.S. Holder is an amount equal to the difference
between (i) the sum of the amount of cash and the fair market value of any property received in such
disposition and (ii) the U.S. Holder’s adjusted tax basis in its Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock so
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disposed of. A U.S. Holder’s adjusted tax basis in its Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock generally will
equal the U.S. Holder’s adjusted cost less any prior distributions treated as a return of capital for U.S.
federal income tax purposes.

Taxation of Redemption Treated as a Distribution. If the redemption does not qualify as an exchange of
Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock, a U.S. Holder will generally be treated as receiving a distribution in
respect of its Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock. Such a distribution generally will be includable in a
U.S. Holder’s gross income as dividend income to the extent that such distributions are paid out of our
current (as measured through the end of our taxable year that includes the distribution) or accumulated
earnings and profits as determined under U.S. federal income tax principles. Dividends will be taxable to a
corporate U.S. Holder at regular rates and will generally be eligible for the dividends-received deduction if
the requisite holding period is satisfied.

For non-corporate U.S. Holders, if the U.S. Holder satisfies certain holding period requirements and the
U.S. Holder is not under an obligation to make related payments with respect to positions in substantially
similar or related property, dividends are “qualified dividend income” taxed at the preferential applicable
long-term capital gain rate. It is unclear whether the redemption rights with respect to Roman DBDR
Class A Common Stock may prevent a U.S. Holder from satisfying the applicable holding period
requirements with respect to the dividends received deduction or the preferential tax rate on qualified
dividend income, as the case may be. If the holding period requirements are not satisfied, then non-
corporate U.S. Holders may be subject to tax on such dividends at regular ordinary income tax rates instead
of the preferential rate that applies to qualified dividend income.

Distributions in excess of such earnings and profits generally will be applied against and reduce a U.S.
Holder’s basis in its Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock (but not below zero) and, to the extent in excess
of such basis, will be treated as gain from the sale or exchange of such Roman DBDR Class A Common
Stock in the manner described above under “— Taxation of Redemption Treated as an Exchange of Roman
DBDR Class A Common Stock.”

U.S. Information Reporting and Backup Withholding. Distributions with respect to Roman DBDR
Class A Common Stock to a U.S. Holder, whether or not such distributions qualify as dividends for U.S.
federal income tax purposes, and proceeds from the sale, exchange or redemption of Roman DBDR Class A
Common Stock by a U.S. Holder generally are subject to information reporting to the IRS and possible U.S.
backup withholding, unless the U.S. Holder is an exempt recipient. Backup withholding may apply to such
payments if a U.S. Holder fails to furnish a correct taxpayer identification number, a certification of exempt
status or has been notified by the IRS that it is subject to backup withholding (and such notification has not
been withdrawn).

Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Amounts withheld as backup withholding may be credited
against a U.S. Holder’s U.S. federal income tax liability, and such holder may obtain a refund of any excess
amounts withheld under the backup withholding rules by timely filing the appropriate claim for refund with
the IRS and furnishing any required information.

Non-U.S. Holders

Redemption of Common Stock. The characterization for U.S. federal income tax purposes of the
redemption of a Non-U.S. Holder’s Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock pursuant to the redemption
provisions described in the section of this proxy statement entitled “Certain Material U.S. Federal Income
Tax Considerations of the Redemption” generally will follow the U.S. federal income tax characterization of
such a redemption as described under “— Treatment of Redemption of Roman DBDR Class A Common
Stock” above. It is possible that because the applicable withholding agent may not be able to determine the
proper characterization of a redemption of a Non-U.S. Holder’s Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock, the
withholding agent might treat the redemption as a distribution subject to withholding tax.

Taxation of Redemption Treated as an Exchange of Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock. A Non-U.S.
Holder generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income or withholding tax in respect of any gain
realized upon the redemption of Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock unless:
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« the gain is effectively connected with the Non-U.S. Holder’s conduct of a trade or business within
the United States (and, if required by an applicable income tax treaty, the Non-U.S. Holder maintains
a permanent establishment in the United States to which such gain is attributable);

+ the Non-U.S. Holder is a nonresident alien individual present in the United States for 183 days or
more during the taxable year of the disposition and certain other requirements are met; or

* Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock constitutes a U.S. real property interest by reason of Roman
DBDR’s status as a U.S. real property holding corporation (“USRPHC”) for U.S. federal income tax
purposes.

Gain described in the first bullet point above generally will be subject to U.S. federal income tax on a
net income basis at the regular graduated rates applicable to a U.S. Holder, unless an applicable tax treaty
provides otherwise. A Non-U.S. Holder that is a corporation also may be subject to a branch profits tax at a
rate of 30% (or such lower rate specified by an applicable income tax treaty) on such effectively connected
gain, as adjusted for certain items.

Gain described in the second bullet point above will be subject to U.S. federal income tax at a rate of
30% (or such lower rate specified by an applicable income tax treaty), which may be offset by U.S. source
capital losses of the Non-U.S. Holder (even though the individual is not considered a resident of the United
States), provided the Non-U.S. Holder has timely filed U.S. federal income tax returns with respect to such
losses.

With respect to the third bullet above, Roman DBDR believes that it is not and has not been at any time
since its formation, and does not expect to be immediately after the Business Combination is completed, a
USRPHC.

Non-U.S. Holders should consult their tax advisors regarding potentially applicable income tax treaties
that may provide for different rules.

Taxation of Redemption Treated as a Distribution. If the redemption does not qualify as an exchange
of Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock, with respect to a Non-U.S. Holder, such holder will generally be
treated as receiving a distribution in respect of its Common Stock. Such a distribution to the extent paid out
of our current or accumulated earnings and profits (as determined under U.S. federal income tax principles)
will constitute a dividend, first, for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Amounts not treated as a dividend for
U.S. federal income tax purposes will constitute a return of capital and be applied against and reduce a Non-
U.S. Holder’s adjusted tax basis in its Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock, but not below zero, and
thereafter as capital gain and will be treated as described above under “— Non-U.S. Holders — Taxation of
Redemption Treated as an Exchange of Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock.”

Subject to the discussion below on effectively connected income, dividends paid to a Non-U.S. Holder
of Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock will be subject to U.S. federal withholding tax at a rate of 30% of
the gross amount of the dividends (or such lower rate specified by an applicable income tax treaty, provided
the Non-U.S. Holder furnishes a valid IRS Form W-8BEN or W-8BEN-E (or other applicable
documentation) certifying qualification for the lower treaty rate). A Non-U.S. Holder that does not timely
furnish the required documentation, but that qualifies for a reduced treaty rate, may obtain a refund of any
excess amounts withheld by timely filing an appropriate claim for refund with the IRS.

If dividends paid to a Non-U.S. Holder are effectively connected with the Non-U.S. Holder’s conduct
of a trade or business within the United States (and, if required by an applicable income tax treaty, the Non-
U.S. Holder maintains a permanent establishment in the United States to which such dividends are
attributable), the Non-U.S. Holder will be exempt from the U.S. federal withholding tax described above. To
claim the exemption, the Non-U.S. Holder must furnish to the applicable withholding agent a valid IRS
Form W-8ECI, certifying that the dividends are effectively connected with the Non-U.S. Holder’s conduct
of a trade or business within the United States.

Any such effectively connected dividends will be subject to U.S. federal income tax on a net income
basis at the regular graduated rates. A Non-U.S. Holder that is a corporation also may be subject to a branch
profits tax at a rate of 30% (or such lower rate specified by an applicable income tax treaty) on such
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effectively connected dividends, as adjusted for certain items. Non-U.S. Holders should consult their tax
advisors regarding any applicable tax treaties that may provide for different rules.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding. Payments of dividends on Roman DBDR Class A
Common Stock will not be subject to backup withholding, provided the applicable withholding agent does
not have actual knowledge or reason to know the holder is a United States person and the holder either
certifies its non-U.S. status, such as by furnishing a valid IRS Form W-8BEN, W-8BEN-E or W-8ECI, or
otherwise establishes an exemption. However, information returns are required to be filed with the IRS in
connection with any dividends on Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock paid to the Non-U.S. Holder,
regardless of whether any tax was actually withheld. In addition, proceeds from a sale or other taxable
disposition of Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock within the United States or conducted through certain
U.S.-related brokers generally will not be subject to backup withholding or information reporting if the
applicable withholding agent receives the certification described above and does not have actual knowledge
or reason to know that such holder is a United States person, or the holder otherwise establishes an
exemption. Proceeds from a disposition of Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock conducted through a non-
U.S. office of a non-U.S. broker generally will not be subject to backup withholding or information
reporting.

Copies of information returns that are filed with the IRS may also be made available under the
provisions of an applicable treaty or agreement to the tax authorities of the country in which the Non-U.S.
Holder resides or is established. Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Any amounts withheld under
the backup withholding rules may be allowed as a refund or a credit against a Non-U.S. Holder’s U.S.
federal income tax liability, provided the required information is timely furnished to the IRS.

Additional Withholding Tax on Payments Made to Foreign Accounts. Withholding taxes may be
imposed under Sections 1471 to 1474 of the Code (such Sections commonly referred to as the Foreign
Account Tax Compliance Act, or “FATCA”) on certain types of payments made to non-U.S. financial
institutions and certain other non-U.S. entities. Specifically, a 30% withholding tax may be imposed on
dividends on, or (subject to the proposed Treasury Regulations discussed below) gross proceeds from the
sale or disposition of Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock paid to a “foreign financial institution” or a
“non-financial foreign entity” (each as defined in the Code), unless (1) the foreign financial institution
undertakes certain diligence and reporting obligations, (2) the non-financial foreign entity either certifies it
does not have any “substantial United States owners” (as defined in the Code) or furnishes identifying
information regarding each substantial United States owner, or (3) the foreign financial institution or non-
financial foreign entity otherwise qualifies for an exemption from these rules. If the payee is a foreign
financial institution and is subject to the diligence and reporting requirements in (1) above, it must enter
into an agreement with the U.S. Department of the Treasury requiring, among other things, that it undertake
to identify accounts held by certain “specified United States persons” or “United States-owned foreign
entities” (each as defined in the Code), annually report certain information about such accounts, and
withhold 30% on certain payments to non-compliant foreign financial institutions and certain other account
holders. Foreign financial institutions located in jurisdictions that have an intergovernmental agreement
with the United States governing FATCA may be subject to different rules.

Under the applicable Treasury regulations and administrative guidance, withholding under FATCA
generally applies to payments of dividends on Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock. While withholding
under FATCA would have applied also to payments of gross proceeds from the sale or other disposition of
Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock on or after January 1, 2019, proposed Treasury Regulations
eliminate FATCA withholding on payments of gross proceeds entirely. Taxpayers generally may rely on
these proposed Treasury Regulations until final Treasury Regulations are issued.

Non-U.S. Holders should consult their tax advisors regarding the potential application of withholding
under FATCA.

Regulatory Matters

Under the HSR Act and the rules that have been promulgated thereunder by the U.S. Federal Trade
Commission (“FTC”), certain transactions may not be consummated unless information has been furnished
to the Antitrust Division of the Department of Justice (“Antitrust Division”) and the FTC and certain waiting
period requirements have been satisfied. The Business Combination is subject to these requirements and
may not be completed until the expiration of a 30-day waiting period following the filing of the
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required Notification and Report Forms with the Antitrust Division and the FTC or until early termination is
granted. On May 3, 2021, the CompoSecure and Roman DBDR filed the required forms under the HSR Act
with the Antitrust Division and the FTC and both requested “early termination” of the waiting period. The
required waiting period is scheduled to expire at 11:59 p.m. Eastern time on June 2, 2021, unless earlier
terminated or if the FTC or the Antitrust Division extends that period by issuing a request to the parties for
additional information.

At any time before or after consummation of the Business Combination, notwithstanding termination of
the waiting period under the HSR Act, the applicable competition authorities could take such action under
applicable antitrust laws as each deems necessary or desirable in the public interest, including seeking to
enjoin the consummation of the Business Combination. Private parties may also seek to take legal action
under the antitrust laws under certain circumstances. We cannot assure you that the Antitrust Division, the
FTC, any state attorney general, or any other government authority will not attempt to challenge the
Business Combination on antitrust grounds, and, if such a challenge is made, we cannot assure you as to its
result. Neither CompoSecure nor Roman DBDR is aware of any material regulatory approvals or actions
that are required for completion of the Business Combination other than the expiration or early termination
of the waiting period under the HSR Act, which period has expired. It is presently contemplated that if any
such additional regulatory approvals or actions are required, those approvals or actions will be sought.
There can be no assurance, however, that any additional approvals or actions will be obtained.

Vote Required for Approval

This Business Combination Proposal (and consequently, the Merger Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereby, including the Business Combination) will be approved and adopted only if the
holders of at least a majority of the outstanding shares of Roman Common Stock vote “FOR” the Governing
Documents Proposal and each of the Business Combination Proposal, the Nasdaq Stock Issuance Proposal,
the Equity Incentive Plan Proposal and the ESPP Proposal are approved at the Special Meeting. Failure to
vote by proxy or to vote online at the Special Meeting or an abstention from voting will have no effect on
the outcome of the vote on the Business Combination proposal. To obtain approval, approximately 37.5% of
the Company’s public stockholders need to vote in favor of the Business Combination Proposal.

The Nasdaq Stock Issuance Proposal, the Governing Documents Proposal, the Equity Incentive
Plan Proposal and the ESPP Proposal are conditioned on the approval of the Business Combination Proposal
at the Special Meeting.

As of the Record Date, Roman’s Sponsor, directors and officers have agreed to vote any shares of
Common Stock owned by them in favor of the Business Combination. As of the date hereof, the Sponsor,
directors and officers have not purchased any Public Shares.

Recommendation of the Roman Board

THE ROMAN BOARD UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT ITS STOCKHOLDERS VOTE
“FOR” THE BUSINESS COMBINATION PROPOSAL.
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PROPOSAL NO. 2: THE NASDAQ STOCK ISSUANCE PROPOSAL

Background and Overview

Assuming the Business Combination Proposal is approved, Roman DBDR’s stockholders are also being
asked to approve (a) the issuance of up to 49,195,000 (assuming no redemption of our Common Stock) or
63,919,627 (assuming maximum redemption of our Common Stock) newly issued shares of Class B
Common Stock to the CompoSecure Holders in the Business Combination, as described in more detail
under the heading titled “The Business Combination Proposal — Merger Consideration,” (b) the issuance
and sale of 4,500,000 shares of Class A Common Stock to the PIPE Investors in connection with the
Common Subscription Agreements in the Common PIPE Investment as further described under “Proposal
No. 1: The Business Combination Proposal — PIPE Investment”, (c) shares of Class A Common Stock at a
conversion price of $11.50 per share upon conversion of the Exchangeable Notes, pursuant to the Note
Subscription Agreements under the Note PIPE Investment, as further described under “Proposal No. 1: The
Business Combination Proposal — PIPE Investment”, (d) the issuance of up to 7,500,000 shares of Common
Stock as Earnout Consideration to the CompoSecure equityholders, if earned, as described in more detail
under the heading titled “Proposal No. 1: The Business Combination Proposal — Merger Consideration”,
and (e) the reservation of up to 9,182,223 shares of Class A Common Stock to be authorized for issuance
under the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan (as described in more detail in “Proposal No. 6: The Equity Incentive
Plan Proposal”). Shareholder approval of these items is being requested for purposes of complying with the
applicable provisions of the Nasdaq Stock Exchange Listing Rules (each, a “Nasdaq Listing Rule”) 5635(a),
(b) and (d), to the extent such issuance would require a stockholder vote under Nasdaq Listing
Rule 5635(a), (b), or (d).

Reasons for the Approval for Purposes of Nasdaq Listing Rule 5635

Under Nasdaq Listing Rule 5635(a)(1), stockholder approval is required prior to the issuance of
securities in connection with the acquisition of another company if such securities are not issued in a public
offering for cash and (i) the common stock have, or will have upon issuance, voting power equal to or in
excess of 20% of the voting power outstanding before the issuance of common stock (or securities
convertible into or exercisable for common stock); or (ii) the number of shares of common stock to be
issued is or will be equal to or in excess of 20% of the number of shares of common stock outstanding
before the issuance of the stock or securities. Additionally, under Nasdaq Listing Rule 5635(b), stockholder
approval is required prior to the issuance of securities when the issuance or potential issuance will result in
a change of control of the issuer. Under Nasdaq Listing Rule 5635(d), stockholder approval is required for a
transaction other than a public offering, involving the sale, issuance or potential issuance by an issuer of
common stock (or securities convertible into or exercisable for common stock) at a price that is less than the
lower of the official Nasdaq closing price immediately before signing of the binding agreement and the
average official Nasdaq closing price for the five trading days immediately preceding the signing of the
binding agreement of the common stock if the number of shares of common stock to be issued is or may be
equal to 20% or more of the common stock, or 20% or more of the voting power, outstanding before the
issuance. If the Business Combination is completed pursuant to the Merger Agreement, Roman DBDR
currently expects to issue: a) up to 49,195,000 (assuming no redemption of our Common Stock) or
63,919,627 (assuming maximum redemption of our Common Stock) newly issued shares of Class B
Common Stock to the CompoSecure Holders in the Business Combination, as described in more detail
under the heading titled “Proposal No. 1: The Business Combination Proposal — Merger Consideration”,
(b) the issuance and sale of 4,500,000 shares of Class A Common Stock to the PIPE Investors in connection
with the Common Subscription Agreements in the Common PIPE Investment as further described under
“Proposal No. 1: The Business Combination Proposal — PIPE Investment”, (c) shares of Class A Common
Stock at a conversion price of $11.50 per share upon conversion of the Exchangeable Notes, pursuant to the
Note Subscription Agreements under the Note PIPE Investment, as further described under “Proposal No. 1:
The Business Combination Proposal — PIPE Investment”, (d) the issuance of up to 7,500,000 shares of
Common Stock as Earnout Consideration to the CompoSecure equityholders, if earned, as described in more
detail under the heading titled “Proposal No. 1: The Business Combination Proposal — Merger
Consideration”, and (e) the reservation of up to 9,182,223 shares of Class A Common Stock to be
authorized for issuance under the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan (as described in more detail in “Proposal No.
6: The Equity Incentive Plan Proposal®).
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Additionally, pursuant to Nasdaq Listing Rule 5635(a)(2), when a Nasdag-listed company proposes to
issue securities in connection with the acquisition of the stock or assets of another company, stockholder
approval is required if any director, officer or substantial stockholder of such company has a 5% or greater
interest, directly or indirectly, in such company or the assets to be acquired or in the consideration to be paid
in the transaction or series of related transactions and the present or potential issuance of common stock (or
securities convertible into or exercisable for common stock) could result in an increase in outstanding shares
of common stock or voting power of 5% or more. Nasdaq Listing Rule 5635(e)(3) defines a substantial
stockholder as the holder of an interest of 5% or more of either the number of shares of common stock or
the voting power outstanding of a Nasdag-listed company. Because Sponsor currently owns greater than 5%
of Roman DBDR’s Common Stock, Sponsor and certain of its affiliates are considered significant
stockholders of Roman DBDR under Nasdaq Listing Rule 5635(e)(3). As of the date of this proxy
statement, the Sponsor holds (i) no shares of Class A Common Stock, (ii) 5,789,000 shares of Class B
Common Stock, and (iii) 10,837,400 Private Placement Warrants. Each warrant entitles the Sponsor to
purchase one share of Class A Common Stock. After giving effect to the Business Combination (and
assuming that none of Roman DBDR’s outstanding Public Shares are redeemed in connection with the
Business Combination), all of the Sponsor’s 5,789,000 shares of Class B Common Stock will be
automatically converted to Class A Common Stock and the Sponsor will hold an ownership interest of
approximately 7.1% in the Combined Entity. The Sponsor will also be entitled to purchase up to 10,837,400
shares of Class A Common Stock upon the exercise of the Private Placement Warrants resulting in up to a
total ownership percentage by Sponsor and its Affiliates in the Combined Entity of up to 11% assuming
exercise of the Private Placement Warrants.

In the event that this proposal is not approved by Roman DBDR stockholders, the Business
Combination cannot be consummated. In the event that this proposal is approved by Roman DBDR
stockholders, but the Merger Agreement is terminated (without the Business Combination being
consummated) prior to the issuance of shares of Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock pursuant to the
Merger Agreement, Roman DBDR will not issue such shares of Roman DBDR Class A Common Stock.

We currently have 23,156,000 shares of Roman DBDR Common Stock outstanding. If the Business
Combination is completed pursuant to the Merger Agreement, Roman DBDR currently expects to issue: (a)
up to 49,195,000 (assuming no redemption of our Common Stock) or 63,919,627 (assuming maximum
redemption of our Common Stock) newly issued shares of Class B Common Stock to the CompoSecure
Holders in the Business Combination, as described in more detail under the heading titled “The Business
Combination Proposal — Merger Consideration”, (b) the issuance and sale of 4,500,000 shares of Class A
Common Stock to the PIPE Investors in connection with the Common Subscription Agreements in the
Common PIPE Investment as further described under “Proposal No. 1: The Business Combination Proposal
— PIPE Investment”, (c) shares of Class A Common Stock at a conversion price of $11.50 per share upon
conversion of the Exchangeable Notes, pursuant to the Note Subscription Agreements under the Note PIPE
Investment, as further described under “Proposal No. 1: The Business Combination Proposal — PIPE
Investment”, (d) the issuance of up to 7,500,000 shares of Common Stock as Earnout Consideration to the
CompoSecure equityholders, if earned, as described in more detail under the heading titled “Proposal No. 1:
The Business Combination Proposal — Merger Consideration”, and (e) the reservation of up to 9,182,223
shares of Class A Common Stock to be authorized for issuance under the 2021 Equity Incentive Plan (as
described in more detail in “Proposal No. 6: The Equity Incentive Plan Proposal”). Accordingly, we need
stockholder approval of the issuance of more than 20% of our issued and outstanding Roman DBDR
Common Stock at a price that may be less than the greater of book or market value of Roman DBDR’s
Class A Common Stock as of November 10, 2021.

Effect of Propoesal on Current Stockholders

If the Nasdaq Stock Issuance Proposal is adopted, (a) up to 49,195,000 (assuming no redemption of our
Common Stock) or 63,919,627 (assuming maximum redemption of our Common Stock) newly issued shares
of Class B Common Stock to the CompoSecure Holders in the Business Combination, as described in more
detail under the heading titled “Proposal No 1: The Business Combination Proposal — Merger
Consideration”, (b) the issuance and sale of 4,500,000 shares of Class A Common Stock to the PIPE
Investors in connection with the Common Subscription Agreements in the Common PIPE Investment as
further described under “Proposal No. 1: The Business Combination Proposal — PIPE Investment”, (c)
shares of
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Class A Common Stock at a conversion price of $11.50 per share upon conversion of the Exchangeable
Notes, pursuant to the Note Subscription Agreements under the Note PIPE Investment, as further described
under “Proposal No. 1: The Business Combination